Bridgepoint Group plc 2022 |
Annual Report & Accounts A

*ACIYUYAX*

AQ9 15/08/2023
COMPANIES HOUSE

TUESDAY




Financial highlights

Assets under management Underlying profit before tax

{2021: €32.5bn) (2021: £290.5m)

APM - KFI APM . KPI

Total operating income ~ Underlying EBITDA o
(2021: £270.6m} (2021: £113.9m)

IFRS  KPI APM_ KPI

Underlying FRE Reported profit before tax L
(2021: £48.5m) (2021: £62.6m)

APM KPI IFRS  KPI
Reported pro forma earnings per share Underlying pro forma earnings per share

464p  13.75p

(2021: 7.02p) {2021: 10.41p)
APM APM
Key An explanation of the alternative performance measures
) ("APMs™} used by the Group, including underlying profit before
APM " Alternative Performance Measure tax, underlying EBITDA and reported and underlying pro forma
KPI  Key Performance Indicator earnings per share, is set out on pages 36 to 39 along with a

IFRS  Measure defined by IFRS reconciliation to statutory measures.



Bridgepoing - 2022 Anryal Reparl & Accounts




Bridgepoint - 2022 Annual Reporl & Accounts

Introduction

Bridgepoint is an international
alternative asset fund management
group with offices in Europe, the
US and China. We support growth
businesses with a European focus
and seek to create value by helping
to build companies with greatly
enhanced long-term potential.

The 2022 Annual Report and Accounts for
Bridgepoint Group plc incorporates:

- the Strategic Repor;

the Directors’ report, the corporate governance report
and the Directors’ remuneration report; and

the financial statements,

cach of which has been approved by the
Board of Directors of Bridgepoint Group ple.

%&N&

Adam Janes
Group Chief Financial Officer
and Chief Operating Officer

23 March 2023

Find out more
bridgepoint.eu
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Bridgepoint at a glance

Who we are

Bridgepoint Group ple is one of the world's leading private asset Led by a team of partners who have a long history of working
growth mvestors with €38.0 billion of AUM and local presence together, Bridgepoint has a well invested platform that provides a
n Burepe, the US and China. We specialise in private equity and stromg foundation for furure growth. The Group has a differentiated
private credit and invest nternarionally across three core sectors: and sustainable investment approach underpinned by a longstanding
Advanced Industrials, Business and Financial Services, commitment to investing responsibly. nvironmental, social and

and Healthcare — with Technology as a 1ransversal across governance principles are part of Bridgepoing's DNA with a set
sectors as it touches everything everywhere. of specific goals set and measured for every investment.

Track record of growth in the capital we manage
Toral assets under management (“AUM”)

€38.0bn

{2021: €32.9bn)

B Private Equity €§riﬂl]m
M Private Credit’ €32.90n AUM
Total
AUM

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

1 Praforma tor the acquisition of 20T Credit
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Bridgepoint

creates lasting sustainable positive impact

The Environment Society Governance
Climate change is an investment risk, Diversity Communities Well governed businesses perform
and an opportunity and Inclusion Growing better and are more resilient
Diverse groups businesses
make better benefit their
decisions communites
Measurement

Effective measurement is the foundartion of immproved performance

Our year in numbers

Number of investment Total operating Underlying
related professionals income - EBITDA -
>190 £307.4m £140.5m
12021 £270 6mi 2027 £113 9m)
Underlying Employees of Bridgepoint Reported profit
FRE backed companies before tax ~
£/5.4m  >300,000 £127.4m
(2021: £48.5m) ? 2021, £62.6m)

Qur fund investors

By type By location

B Public Pension Plans 44% B Europe 48%
@ Insurance Companies 17% B North America 38%
B Asset Managers 15% B APAC 7%
B Sovereign Entity 6% MEA 6%
W Endowment & Foundation 6% LatAM 1%
W Corporate Pension 6%

Family Office 3%

Financial Institation 2%

Other 1%
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Strategic Report

Our purpose and values

Purpose

Bridgepoint aspires to be a force for
good. We drive growth and build value
by connecting people, capital, ideas
and opportunity.

Values

In everything we do, from commirting
investors’ capital to working with
portfolio companies, to supporting
our teams, we're guided by our values.
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We do
what we say

We do
the right thing

We act
with intelligence
and humility
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s statement

William Jackson

BridéEpoint tod;ly

Delivering growth and resilience

Bridgepoint is one of the world’s leading middle market alternauve
mvestment companies, focusing on supporting high growth
business in sectors ar niches which enjov strucrural railwinds
and where we have strong investment conviction.

This positioning has been especially rewarding in 2022, with
excellent overall fund performance marched by Bridgepoint’s own
financial performance, delivering an attractive combination of
growth and resiiience.

In an uncerrain macro environment Bridgepoint continues to
benefit from its strong balance sheet, asset light model, high and
stable margins and strong cash generation, as well as the growth
tailwinds and long durarion capital in the alternative assets sectar
maore broadly. This position has been enhanced by further progress
with fundraising activity in 2022 and capital deployment and
distributions in line with expectations - with our funds taking
advanrage of attractive opportumties anising as a result of the
CUrtent environment.

Of course, Bridgepoint and its partfolio companies are not immune to
global events and marker forces, but the scale and depth of Bridgepoint's
team, its longevity and experience of working through mulaple
economic cycles lincluding being accustomed to tilting investment
srategies to reflect market conditions) has helped us mitigate a more
volatile macro envirenment.

Importantly our private equity businesses’ <lear middle market
positioning (typically investing in companics valued up to

€10 billion}, where value is principally delivered through growth
rather than leverage, provides resilience in more challenging times
and the opportunity for significant growth potential in the furure,

As aresult, since our IPO in July 2021, Bridgepoint has grown AUM
by 43% o €38 hillion, helpmg to gencrate a 14% year-on-year rise in
20272 toral operaning income to £307 million and a 55% rise in
underlying I'RE to £75 million.

Strong exits throughout the current year and material revenue
and profit growth m our portfolio compamies helped us deliver
investment income ahead of consensus despite asset pricing
declines in many sectors across the wider markert.

8

This resulted in our Company delivering strong financial
performance during 2022 with underlying ERITDA and
underlying profit before tax increasing by 23% and 33% to
£140.3 million and £120.0 million respectively, translating to
reported earnings per share of 14.6 pence.

Good progress on fundraising with
momentum into 2023

Fundraising in 2022 was characterised by well documented
market challenges, as investors found themselves overallocated

10 the asset class as pubhc marker valuations declined. During the year
the overall fundraise market has recalibrated, with many investors
focusing now more than ever on realised returns as the best
performance benchmark. This has resulted in a shift towards
proven private equity and private credit strategics.

Our strong investment platform, disciplined investment strategy
and highly experienced team weathered by cycles are especially
relevant at this point in the cycle and are proving increasingly
atrractive to potential fund investors. With a number of our funds
in the market, we continue to make good progress towards our
original fundraising targets with strong commitments from new
investors. This 1s reflected in progress on BE VIT over the last six
menths despite the second half of the year always being a slow
ume for fundraising. We have now raised some €5.4 billion of
commizrments for BE VIT, up from €4 billion closed at half year.

Resilient investment performance

Qur Investment strategies in private equity and private credit focus
on delivering absolure rerurns for fund investors whilst adopting a
disciplined investment approach with measured diversification
across sectors, geographies and deployment year. This helps in our
drive to deliver attractive and resihent performance.

We have an unrclenting focus on using the depth of our investment
platform across Europe ta source the best opportunities in the middle
market. We cannot be complacent, bur T remain confident in our ability
 conninue detivering high quality and resilient imvestment
performance in the years ahead.

Private equity

Across our private equity strategics, during 2022 we made sight
platform investments, commituing €1.8 billion, and returned
£3.3 billion to investors.
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e

William Jackson
Chairman

Assets under management

€38.0bn

(+15.5%) APM  KPI

Tortal operating income

£307.4m

{(+13.6%) IFRS  KP}

Underlying EBITDA

£140.3m

(+23.29%) . APM KR

Underlying profit before tax

£120.0m

(+32.6%) APM KPR

Underlying FRE margin

31.1%

(2021: 24.3%) APM KPP

Key
APM Alternative Performance Measure
KPI | Key Performance Indicaror
IFRS . Measure defined by IFRS
An explanation uf the alternative performance measares U APM 1 used by the Graup,

mcludirg underlying EBITD 4, underiying profit betote tax and unde-hving FRE maigin is
o7 our on pages 36 1o 39 along with a iccencihation to the statutory measties

Strategic Report

2022 saw Bridgepoint Eurepe finalise the construcrion of the BE V]
portfolio and transition to investing BE V1. Tn paroicular s pleasing

1o report that BE VIThas made a good start to 1ts investment acuvity,
committing to the €858 milhon wequisition of MiQQ, a high growth
programmatic advertsing business, and the €865 million acquision of
Vivacy, a global personal healthcare company.

Bridgepoint Development Capital 111 also had a particularly strong
year, exiang four investments at an average money multiple of
4.7x and now ranking as one of Europe’s highest performing
private equity funds for its vintage.

The current Times also present opportunities and we remain
confident 1n our ability to deliver strong returns to our investors
from our middle market positioning. In particular middle market
investing does not typically use high Jevels of scaled leverage and
so0 the space is less constrained by the current paucity of leverage
available to fund larger transactions. As entry prices for Jess marure
businesses recalibrate and ‘towrist’ investors disappear, attractive
Tiew opportunities are already presenting themselves.

Selling assets today 1s clearly mere challenging than 12 months
ago, but the value of growth remains at a premium in the current
market. Safe strategic assets remain highly sought after. Middle
market sized companies are also attractive to large corporates in
cautious rimes who don’t want ro ‘bet the farm’ and 98% of
Bridgepoint fund realisations over the last 20 years have been
delivered via private transactions, so our funds are not reliant on
the [PC market for renurns. As a result, after a very active year for
exits in 2022, we ¢ontine to expect to return material amounts of
capiral to private equity fund investors in 2023.

Private credit

2022 marked an important tarning point in the cycle to be i the
credit market, with Bridgepoint Credit funds bepefitung from
higher interest rates and widening margins, which coupled with
disciplined credit decision making 1s driving fund performance.
Bridgepoint Credit is using 1ts disciplined process te build well
diversified funds that deliver attractive returns to investors whilst
mitigating risks. Since inception our flagship Dircet Lending funds
have yet to record a loss on any lending exposure.

Across the Direct Lending and Credit Oppormunities strategies the
tcam deployed around €2.9 billion of capital in the year. In terms of
fundraising, we expect to close the BDL 1Tl and BCO TV fundraises
this year and will return to market within the next 12 months with
successor funds.

9
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Chairman’s statement
William Jackson ...

P .

Ready for tomorrow

Business development, business
leadership, and ESG

Continued organic and M&A driven growth across
investment strategies and geographies

AUIPO we ser vut our strategy to continue to grow Bridgepoint
successfully both organically and by acquisition by taking
advantage of the strucrural growth railwinds thar support the
alternative asset management sector.

Business development remains a key area of focus for Bridgepoint as
we look to continue o scale existing straregies and to extend our
offering and expand into new adjacent strategies in Europe and North
America. We have been patient as markets recalibrate but continue to
see significant potential to contnue to develop our market leading
investment platform through selective M&A. Targets must be of
appropriate scale, be capable of delivering strong grawth, be run by

a standalone team and be demonstrably accretive to sharehalders.

Bridgepoint’s day job is making acquisiions and we will continue
to apply this experuse very carefully to what is now a growing list
of attractive opportunities for potential expansion.

More informartion on our strategy can be found on page 24.

Board and people: investment in leadership
and governance

People are Bridgepeint’s greatest assel. We pride ourselves on our
abilicy o recruir, develep and retain the best talent, enabling us wo
assemble the right team for each investment we support and bring
together the best people to generate the best ideas.

In 2022 we increased the depth of our leadership team with Chiis
Busby, a highly experienced PE professional and a 26-year Bridgepoint
veteran becoming Head of Bridgepoint Europe, leading BE’s operations

2000

Partners buyout
the business from
NactWest

“T'he deal warned oy

tead

2008

The global

financial crisis

Lo be the bes

Stralegic report

on a day-to-day basis. Frédéric Pescaton, who heads Bridgepoint's
activities in France, has taken the 1ole of BE's Deputy [ lead.
Additienally, Hamish Grant joined our Execunive Commmittee in the
middle of 2022 as the new head of our Investor Services team following
the retirement of John Barber after 16 years of excellent service to the
Company. He supports all aspects of our fundraising efforts and
oversees our fund investor relanonships.

Since [PO we have continued to carefully build a Board thar provides
high quality governance, that challenges our executive team and that
can add genuine value to our business. In the second half of the year,
we announced the appomntment of Cyrus Taraporevala to the Board
as an independent Non-Executive Director.

Cyrus is a highly respected financial industry expert with more than

30 years of experience in asset management, and his first-hand
knowledge of successfully leading and growing global businesses of scale
will be invaluable to the firm. He brings deep understanding of the
investment management world including in relation o ESG
matters, having spoken and published mulaple articles on chimarte

risk and other aspects of ESG.

We expect to make at least one further NED appointment to our
Board over the next 12 menths to further deepen the Board’s skill
set and broaden its diversity.

Continued work on ESG and
corporate responsibility

ESG is embedded across Bridgepoint's investment process and
approach to portfolio management, but we aim for constant
improvement. [ am grateful to Dame Carolyn McCall, who leads
the Board’s ESG Committee and has oversight of environmental,
social and governance matters at Bridgepoint.

Bridgepoint imvests to help companies grow. We look to support
strong-performing, good quality, well-managed businesses thar have
the portential to flourish, whether through internatonal expansion,
operational Improvement or 2¢quisitions.

20M

Bridgepoint
Shanghai
office opens

2014

Diversification and

2009

Bridgepoint
Development
Capital formed

cxpansion

s Lok

RETNNTE e
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Strategic report

However, itis no longer good encugh 1 focus solely on financial returms.
The climate crisis, war in Ukraine and the exacerbation of the impact of
the recent Turkish earthquake by poor business practices underscore

the need for all of us to act to have a posiive impact on society.

I'or Bridgepoint specifically, we aim t ensure our partner businesses are
governed accarding to high standards. Bridgepoint’s role In supporang
great businesses gives us both the means and responsibility 1o act.

T'aking a proactive approach to socictal and environmental issues
1s not just a social responsibility; it is also a matter of good
guardianship. Businesses that do good grow both faster and more
sustainably. Our ambition is to create lasting, sustainable, positive
impacts so that our investors, shareholders and employees are
proud of how we generarte returns.

Bridgepoint’s operations have been carbon neutral since 2020 and
conrtinues to focus on emissions reduction, ultimately aiming for
net zero emissions. In 2019 we reached our target of 25% female
representation in our investment teams and are now making
progress Towards our new target of 40%.

During the year we further strengthened our ESG team with the
appointment of a new Head of Sustainability and have putin place
dedicated ESG tearn members in each of our deal teams 1o drive
additional value creation across the portfolio.

Tn 2022 we supporred a range of charitable projects through the
Bridgepoint Charitable Trust and took part in local intdatives fike
the Covid vaccine roll gut in the UK, The Trust has most recently
supported Turkey earthquake relief charities.

Ultimately, T belteve that this holistic approach drives long-term
recurns for our fund investors and in turn our shareholders.

Dividend

We are proposing a final dividend of 4.0 pence per share, consistent
with the interim dividend. Bridgepoint aims to grow its dividend
progressively over ime as we scale by organic growth of our existing
businesses and by adding complementary or adjacent strategies.

2020

Bridgepoint NYC
office opens

Bridgepoint sells
minonty stake to
Dyal Capital Partners
Tt f

EQT Credit

FRITSREIN o

ment o

2021

Bridgepoint acquires The PO
and bevond

Qutlook

Bridgepoint ended 2022 1n a strong position and has started 2023
with good momentum.

Our deep investment platform, middle markert positioning and
disciplined imvestment approach across private equity and credit
positions us well to continue to provide strong returns to fund
investors. As T said at the nme of the TPO, if Bridgepoint performs
well for its fund investors our shareholders will also do well.

Ibelieve there are good reasons for optimism as we look ahead. The
alternative mvestment market continues to enjoy significant tailwinds
which are driving increased long-term allocatons over the medium term.
This structural trend is also enhanced by the well documented increasing
mterest of retail mvestors in the space, which we expect to became an
increasingly important source of our gwn capital in the furure.

With this market background driving organic growth and with our
long duration capital, strong balance sheet, asset light model, high
and stable margins, strong cash generation and attractive dividend
yield, Bridgepoint’s outlock remains very attractive. This resilience
was central to the Board’s decision to commence a share buyback
programme earlier in the year.

Finally, on behaif of the Bridgepoint Buard I'd like to thank all
colleagues working ar Bridgepcint and within our portfolio
companies for their dedication and hard work and without whom
we wouldn’t find ourselves in such a strong position today.

The straregic report on pages 4 1o 83 has been approved by the
Board of Dirccrors and is signed by:

v AN \/o-\/( —_—

William Jackson
Chairman

2022

The future
of Bridgepoint

~abwrt
Sl
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Market

Strategic Report

Bridgepoint’s disciplined investment approach, experienced team,
broad sector diversity and deep presence across European geographies,
coupled with middle market focus, leave the Company well positioned

for uncertain times.

Portfolio companies were largely resilient to macroeconomic
headwinds in 2022, with EBITDA growing at around 16% and a
strong set of PE exits in the year. This illustrates the strength of
Bridgepoint's investment approach, focusing on market leading
businesses with strong rthematic tahwinds, high EBITDA margins,
strong cash conversion and significant potential for expansion.

Read mere on Bridgepoint’s business model on page 14.

Market

The macro and geopolitical envirgnment remains uncertain.

High inflation and interest rates have persisted, and European
governments in particular are working to manage the ongoing
energy crisis. With this backdrop, in 2022 we have focused on
addressing inflationary pressures both within Bridgepoint and
fund portfalio companies. As we construct the BE VI and BDC TV
portfolios we are also tilting our investment strategy to reflect and
rake advantage of changing markert conditions.

Market uncertainty has had direct benefits for our Credit business. The
vast majority of Bridgepoint Credit's portfolios feature floating rate
instruments (L.e. Eurtbor +), with EURIBOR having increased from 0%
at the start of 2022 {reflecuve of floors) to 1.9% by December 2022, Tn
addition to this, the recent market uncertainty has created a number of
opportunities for private credit to increase market share. The decline in
activity from trachtional lenders has resulted in increased opportunities
for Bridgepoint's direct lending strategy, while Bridgepoint's credit
opportunites soategy has benefited from volatility in the secondary
market providing opportunities to purchase assets at attractive levels.

Whilst overall the business is not immune to changes m the
MACroeconomic environment we have a very experienced team,

and it is worth noting thar the majority of our equity portfolio companies
enjoy high margins with strong cash generation and use relatively modest
leverage compared to peers. Our fund returns are driven by focused
domestic and internatonal value creation strategies with exposure to
multple geographies. Merecver, some 98% of Bridgepoint exits over

the last 15 years have been private market ransacoons, with very hule
reliance on the currently subdued TPO market for exats. Most of our exits
have been delivered ar higher valuation rubtiples than entry multiples,
reflecting a valuation re-rating duce w company growth and
re-posiioning rather than broader sector valuaton changes,

which we beheve 15 a useful protection in current market conditions.

12

Portfolio strength at a glance

The Group's investment portfolios are trading in line with
expectations despite current market volarlity:

Sigmficant portfolio EBITDA growth in 2022 (for example,
30% and 24% weighted average EBITDA growth in BE VI and
BDL NI respecuvely)

Bridgepoint fund portfolios comprise mainiy high margin, cash
generative companics (for example, 27% and 30% EBITDA/
revenue average margin in BE VI and BDI. Tl respecuvely)

Equity fund porcfolios have currency hedging covering sorme
78% of non-Euro exposures

- Bndgepomnt's Credit business 15 focused on companies with high
equity vahie cover (for cxample, 66% average equity value cover
n BDL TN

Bridgepoint funds have limited exposure to assets where
perfermance is driven by discretionary spending
- Credit funds are nvested in companies within defensive and

resilient sectors (for example, over 75% of BDLITT's portfolio is
invested in Business Services, Healthcare and TM'T)

Porfolic companies have been impacted by rising energy costs,
but Bridgepoint portfolios, as a whole, do not comprise
businesses with high energy use and energy costs represent on
average less than 1% of pori{olio company revenues

These auributes were reflected mn Q4 valuations which are in line
with expectations, with underiying profit growth within portfolios
compensating for a fall in valuation multiples in some sectors.

Bridgepoint’s fund level resilience is further boistered by a
disciplined approach to portfolio construction.

Read more on Bridgepoint’s approach to portfolio construction on
page 21.
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Continued growth in private markets

Despite wider macro uncertainty, the private assel management
market continues to benefit from sector railwinds. Privare market
IMvestments are an increasingly important asset class both for
mvestors seeking returns and for asset management firms, resultng
in increasing allocations to private assets. In comparison to public
markets, the nature of private markets investing is typically
longer-term, with capital locked into funds for periods commaonly
ranging from seven to 10 years. The sector benefits from a number
of factors, including:

Relative long-term out performance of private markets versus
public markets — Research by Hamilton Lane indicares that
private equity and privare credit strategies have cutperformed
their equivalent public benchmarks in 19 of the past 20 vears,
mcluding in periods of heightened marker uncertainty

- Search for higher, differentiated returns - The gap between
pension assets and habilities remains wide, not least as a result of
ageing populations in many developed countres, and pension
funds have increased allocations te private markets 1o meet
long-term return obligations, given the generally higher returns
relative to public markets

Concentration of capital allocations towards fewer
managers — 'The growing allocation of funds to privare equiry has
been accompanied by a concentration of these allocations towards
more established firms. This rend 15 driven by muluple factors,
including the abality of broader investment platforms to source
auractive deals and deliver returns; increasing investor demands
with respect to servicing and reporting and a desire from limied
parmers 1o manage fewer general partner relanonships

Strategic Report

The European middle market

Bridgepoint defines the middle market as comprising

businesses with an enterprise value typically of up w €1 billion.

The majority of these businesses are small to medium-sized
companies, which represent a large part of the economy 1n many
European countries. For example, there are approximarety 25,000
companies in Europe with EBITDA berween €15 million and
{75 million as of I'ebruary 2023.

Middle market investment by the private equiry sector has
remained resilient even through periods of distuption. In Europe,
investments in middle marker businesses have consistently
accounted for the majority of private equity deals from 2007 to
2022. From 2017 1o 2022, there were over three times more
European middle markert wansactions than European large-cap
ransactions.

Many of these transactions result from businesses ourgrowing their
existing shareholder structure (typically founders, smaller investors
or larger conglomerates) but still requiring significant investment
and expertise (for example in people, systems and infrastructure).
This provides Bridgepoint with an opportunity 1o put investors’
capiral and the Group's expertise to work.

However, equity commitments for middle marker businesses

of between €150 million and €350 million are often too large for
individual counmry funds and too small for firms thar concentrare

on larger buyouts, limiting competition in the space. The abilicy to
create and then invest in a platform which is able to sustain growth over
the long-term represents a bartier to less well-established investors. For
example, such investments require proactive portfolio management and
a sufficiently large and expenenced investment team. Meanwhile, the
Bridgepoint Growth and Bridgepeint Development Capital funds
benefit from the scale of the wider Brdgepoint platform and the
associated support teams to drive value creation, resources that are
typically unavailable at smaller firms.

Read more on Bridgepoint’s market position on page 18.

13
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Business model

B‘ridgepo it isTa global leader in m!ddle
“market private assets investing. The
Group has a 30-year track record of
delivering compelling returns with an
attractive risk profile to a blue-chip
base of over 450 investors globally.

> We raise capital from a large
and diverse client base

v

> We invest in middle market N
private assets e

+.> We use Bridgepoint’s differentiated R ,;.;»
++  market position to create strong and ‘
consistent returns on capital deployetfr

> ‘We receive fees for
managlng clients’ capital
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We raise capital from, and invest on behalf of, a globally diverse, long-
standing and growing blue-chip client base, which includes many of the
world’s leading investors. Indeed, across the Group’s base of more than
450 institutional investors the average relationship length with

Bridgepoint is 14 years.

Throughout the Company’s history, the Bridgepont private equity
funds have made investments in over 400 businesses and the
Bridgepoint private credit funds have provided financing tc over
300 businesses.

We offer institutional investors a range of strategies to invest for
the long term in the Curopean middle market.

In all of our activities we take a responsible approach, looking to
support and build sustainable and stable growth businesses that are
beneficial to society.

50

year track record of delivering
compelling returns

A diverse chient base

In terms of the institutions that invest in our funds, the top three
categories are public pension plans (44%,), insurance companies
{17%) and assct managers (15%;. 'The remarmng 24% 1s spht
between endowments, foundatons, sovereign entties, family
offices, corporate pensions and financial institutions.

Regionally, Eurcpe, at 48%, 1s our largest source of capital followed by
North America (38%), Asia Pacific {7%0), and the Middle East (6%6).

Capital ralsed from our client base 1s invested in our private equity
and private credit strategies to capture the strong growth potential
of the middle market. In comparison to public markets, our clients’
capital is committed for the long term, with private funds typically
benefiting from capital being locked in for seven ro 10 years.

As our 30-year track record demonstrates, strong returns attract
new investors to our funds, result in more capital raised for
deployment in middle market opportuninies and lead o further
growth in total assets under management.

Our balance shect capital is invested alongside our clients’ funds and is
both an enabler and accelerator of the growth of our business.

15
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How we create value

Bridgepoint offers a truly differentiated pan European middle market position.

It operates at enterprise values below those targeted by large cap firms
and more broadly and deeply than other middle market platforms.

Differentiated and sustainable approach
delivering high-quality returns

The Bridgepoint funds’ investment approach has delivered strong
and consistent returns. Based on latest benchmarking (QQ3 2022),
all Bridgepoint Eurape and Bridgepoint Development Capital
funds raised after the glabal finanaal crisis of 2008 to 2009

are first or upper second quartile performers, Additionally,
Bridgepoint Direct Lending funds {not subject to equivalent
industry benchmarks) continue to deliver against their target
returns with no realised losses.

o . , . Middle market focus
Bridgepoint has delivered these high-quality returns through ]
careful portfolio construction, sensible use of leverage and asser Typlcaﬂy up to €1.0bn
selection focused on high margin, cash generative businesses, en tcrprisc value
contributing to low reahsed loss ranos. These rerurns have been
delivered by the application of the Group’s differentiated and
proven mvestment approdch, consistently applied across all
investment strategies. The key principles of this differentiated
approach are summarised over the following pages.

Local presence

Over 190 investment re]atéd_
professionals and 10 oftfices globally

Sector specialists
Deep sector knowledge and
thematic investment approach

16
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sIIvVe Impact

isk adjusted returns | Data driven

ompelingabsolute returns with Mining data to guide
investment decisions

Bridgepoint toolbox

Hands-on value creation e.g. buy-and-
build focus and operational improvement
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Strategic Reparl

A leader in middle
market investing

Bridgepaint believes the middle market 1s a ighly arractive investment
proposition for clients given the large number of possible irvestment
opportunities, and the significant potential for vahue creation, including
through operational improvement and add-on acquisiticns.

As aleader in middle market mvestng, Bridgepoint offers investors a
differendiated approach arising from its global reach and ability to
deploy capital across multiple middle marker sraregpes.

Read more about the middle market on page 13

Arrracnions of the middle market for chients:

Expertise

~ Greater scope to drive step-change m growth, for example,
through mmproving operations and international expansion

- Consolidation

- Substantial opportunity to consolidate fragmented markets
via add-on acquisitions

Scale of opportunity

- 25,000 companies in Europe with EBITDA between €15 and
£75 million

Number of opportunities

- Ower the last 10 years there have been 4.5x more transactions
in the middle market than the large buyour market

- Ownership
— Businesses often outgrowing founder or smaller investor base

- Capiral
- Firms require significant investment in people, systems
and infrastructure to grow

Evolving and
well-invested
office network

The Group has one of the largest private market platforms directed
at growth investing.

The local presence provided by the Group’s 10 offices is unrypical of middle
market firms and drives origination, value creation and therefore fund investor
returns. This wide network provides Bridgepaint with “on the ground” local expertise

See a map of our office network on page 4

18
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Deep and
long-standing
sector focus

Both private equity and credit strategies are organised into sector This thematic approach in combination with industrial

teams which operate on an international Group-wide basis. Based  relationships developed over years and supported

on long term thematic trends, each sector team identifies best by Bridgepoint’s local office presence contribute to Bridgepoint's
segmens within their sector and the best companies within cach strength in proprietary pre-empuve sourcing of investment

segment. This “Sector map™ is continuously updated. For example,  opportunities.
within private equity, this s illustrated in the healthcare sector by

the migration from investing in scrvices businesses to medical

technology and pharma.

3
4
t
3
1
£
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Differentiated
sourcing and
origination

Bridgepmnt’s private equity business typically focuses on primary Bridgepoint's crecit business contirmues to benefit from a number
transactions and has been successful in sourcing assets in bilateral of differentiated sourcing and crigination angles, including a
deals or limited auctions, avoiding full auction processes. localised approach drawing upon origination teams in five core
Bridgepoint’s strategic origination capabilitics allow it to markets across Lurope and Bridgepoint Credit's industrial advisor
make its invesrments at competitive entry valuations, with many network. Bridgepoint Credit's mulo-strategy approach, including
investments being made at the lower end of long-term valuation the recently launched CLO business, has further deepened
ranges of peers with similar geographic and scctor exposures. Bridgepoint's sourcing capabilities through increased exposure

to the syndicated loan market.
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Disciplined asset
selection and portfolio
construction

Core to Bridgepoint’s investment performance and its strong Every Bridgepoint fund is deliberarely diversified by vintage year,
positioning with investors is a focus on fundamental metrics for sector, geography and number of investments. For example, typically,
each new investment and careful portfolio construction to no asset will account for greater than 10% of a fund’s capital.

generate attracnve risk adjusted returns. Potenuial targets are
selected based on criteria such as:

For private equity, this portfolio construction process is combined with
prudent opening capital structures and a balanced rmix of value and
Clear sector thematics & high growth niches growth-themed investing. This diversification leads to funds with a
consistent performance profile. igh cash generation, high average
operating margins, good revenue visibility, low standard deviation
of returns and low loss ranios.

Marker leadership
- ESG critena
Faxcepuonal revenue visibnhicy
- High EBITDA margins
- Strong cash canversion
Platforms for consclidation at accretive valuations

Repeatable business models

International cxpansion potential

- Attractive relative value
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Hands-on value
creation philosophy

Bridgepaint drives value from mvestment to exit through a
roolbox of strategic and operational improvement measures.
These typically include the improvement of systems and
governance, organic growth through new product development,
increased salesforce effectiveness and internarional expansion as
well as the apuimisation of costs. Bridgepoint also has a focus on
delivering value-accretive add-on acquisitions for portfolio
companies across 1ts private equity strategies. For example,
Bridgepoint Europe VT portfolic companies have completed

50 add-on acquisitions as of 31 December 2022.

Bridgepoint Europe VI portfolio companies have completed

50

add-on acquisitions
as of 31 December 2022.

Responsible
investing

Bridgepoint has embedded ESG across its investment process
and approach to portfolio management. We aim for constant
improvement. Bridgepoint has an institutionalised ESG
governance framework and a growing in-house ESG team. ESG 18
monitored across the life cycle of investment activity and specific
ESG key performance indicators are reported by portfalio
companies annually. Bridgepoint expects portfolio companies
te deliver posiuve impact, meluding through:
Reducing environmental impact
Lowering their environmental impact by reducing their
carbon emissions through implementing environmental
ininauves such as reducing energy consumpnion
- Promoting diversity and inclusion
- Artracting and maintaining a diverse pool of talent across the

busmess, including at all levels of seniority, and set DE&I
targets and ambrtions

22

- Creating new employment

— As our portfolio companies grow, they create jobs with fair
wages and aim to improve working conditions for their
employees

Engaging with local communities

- Bngaging in chartable acovities and voluntcering initiatives o
give back to communities

Contributing to local economies

- All portfolio companies are expected to be fair tax pavers

For more detail on ESG, please see pages 54 to 66
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Data-driven
approach

The Group belicves that the breadth of data it helds from more
than 30 years of mvesting and a long track record of successful
fundraising is an additional socurce of potennal competitive
advantage. For example, we hold performance data on more than
10,000 trades in the credit business and information from more
than 300 current and historic private equity investments,
providing the Group with a deep and continuously growing track
record of roughly 19 million data points of past performance to
support decision making.

We expect to continue to develop our capabiiities in this respect,
inchuding by adding additional external dara and building more
efficient tools for capturing data at the portfolio company level.

More than

Strategic Report

30

years of investing
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Strategy

Bridgepoint is a global leader in
middle market private asset investing
and strongly positioned to continue
to deliver significant growth.

Our key strategic pillars

Activity

Strategic Report

Our strategy is focused on growing and diversifying Bridgepoint's
business and creatng value for chients and shareholders. There are
three strategic pillars:

The continued organic scaling of existing strategies;
- Product strategy extension; and

Adding additional verticals over nme through
acquisition-led expansion,

Opportunity

Scaling of existing strategics
Continue the track record of strong AUM growth established

over the past two decades through scaling existing private
equity and credit strategies

Exploit Bridgepoint’s strong position as the leader in the European
middle marker to continue scaling existing strategies through
further enhancing each strategy’s investment platform and
exploiting the opporunity of an evolving middle market

New products within existing
Investment strategies

Contnue to launch new credit and equity products
within existing investment strategies

Utilisc the strength of cur existing platform, origination capability,
domain and sector knowledge plus strong central funcrions (see
business model section on pages 14 to 23) to faunch funds that
complement our core strategies

Building new investment strategies

Contnue o successfully acquire and integrate new
businesses in adjacent privare market asset classes

2,

Significant scope to enhance Bridgepoint's scale and middle
market positioning, and create platform synergies through entry
into adjacent alternative asset classes
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Delivering on our strategy

¢

Scaling of existing strategies

In addiricn, there is the potential for each of the Group’s core
, P P
products to expand irrespective of markert growth:

The middle marker of the alternative asset management industry
has consistently expanded as private markets have grown, with the
enterprise value range of targeted assets moving up in size as larger
buyourt firms have continued to shift their focus to higher
enterprise value businesses. This is fllustrated by the evolving
definition of the middle market. Bridgepoint currently defines the

Bridgepoint Europe: scope to decpen its presence in existing
geographies, for example in Germany, where the Group has
significantly expanded the investment team.

market as being comprised of businesses with an enterprise value Bridgepoint Development Capiral: similarly placed to

of typically up to €£1.0 billion. As a result of the growth in private deepen scale in existing geographies. This is evidenced by the

markets and the ability to raise capital to support growth across the significant size of more country specific funds in its market,

life cycle of a company, companies are on average staying private alongside the opportunity to expand its geographic reach in

for longer, further adding o the market opportunity. Hurope, leveraging the Group’s office footprint and the existung
. . o . strength of Bridgepoint’s business across Europe to grow

The combination of market growth and Bridgepoint’s position as beyond its current focus on the UK, France and the Nordics.

the leader in the middle market mean the Group 1s well positioned

to scale 1ts existing stralegies ocver Umc.
Bridgepoint Credit: further geographic expansion is underway,
as evidenced by strength in Sweden, Germany, and France
alongside contnuing to build the track record of the Bridgepoint
Credit Opportunities strategy n the United States.

A track record of expansion

2009, 2010 2016 2018 2021
BDC: Acquisitions of Hermes US presence Dyal minority PO
direct investment platform & Develops Bridgepoint's global transaction Provides capiral for
funds previously managed by presence, supports portfolio Provided capital to accelerated growth
Edmund de Rothschild companies, increases deployment the Group for and value to
:Fak-es Endg?mmt,s capability, therefore porential fund accelerated growth Bridgepoint equity in
stirutionalised approach and ; st : B
X growth and reinforces existing porential acquisitions
platform to the SMid cap marker acrviries in North America
2016 2020
Bridgepoint Credit Bridgepoint Credit
2016 (Organic expansion) (EQT Credit acquisition}
Bridgepoint Growth Establishes Bridgepoint in the Creates marerial presence in the
Adds the third pillar second largest alternative second largest alternative asset
of Bridgepoint PE asset class, providing diversity class, providing scale and further
and growth potential growth potential

25
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Delivering on our strategy .. .

4 A0

Strategic Report

PR SN

New products within existing investment strategies

Bridgepoint has a strong track record of developing new products
within existing investment strategies. Both the private equity and
credit businesses began as single investment straregies before
growing both organically and inorgameally, so that each currently
has three disunct investment products,

Further potential exists for new products that would complement
the current offering. Possible avenues in due course include
broadening the Bridgepoint private ¢redit offering to adjacent
verticals, such as infrastructure debt.

Key to any such cxpansion would be ensuring exccllent origination

and alignment with Bridgepoint's expertise, competitive advantage
and values.

Bridgepoint’s ability to grow organically was demonstrated by the
greenficld launch of Bridgepoint private creditin 2016 (prior 1o
the accelcration of the strategy via the acquisition of EQ'I" Credit
in 2020). This included successfully building an investment team,
raising capiral and establishing a track record. Growth was further
boosted by the develapment of the senicr debr strategy directly
following the 2020 EQ'I" Credit acquisition,

Bridgepoint has also successfully added multiple complementary
ancillary funds within its existing investment strategies. This is
illustrated by the sizeable continuation funds raised for flagship
Bridgepoint Europe funds and Bridgepoint Development Capital
funds which drive further value creation in the assets transferred
and create addirional value for fund investors.

j
i
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New investment strategies

Bridgepoint intends 1o further scale by entering adjacent private All potential opportunities are assessed within a structured and
market asset classes, likely through acquisition. consistent framewerk, that applies the Group’s strong imvesunent
discipline and rigour, with a focus on delivering sustainable returns

There 1s scope to significantly enhance Bridgepoint’s middle for shareholders

market positioning and further deepen its market insights and
plarferm synergies via the addition of further product verticals Both real estate and infrastructure offer the opportunity to create
alongside private equity and private credit. businesses of global scale and the Group aims to build ourt in these

. .. strategies to creale additional core business lines in the medium-term.
The Group has a strong track record of successfully acquiring and &

integrating new businesses alongside organic developmentin
current verticals. In the medium term, Bridgepoint sees scope for
similar acquisitions within other private markers asser classcs, such
as real estate or infrastructure, burt also other segments where the
Group’s well-invested operating platform, capital raising
capabilities and reputation would enable acquired businesses to
more successfully scale their operations than as a standalone enticy.

Key gatekeeping criteria to determine
strategic growth opportunities

Returns for Returns for fund Competitive Complements
shareholders investors advantage existing strategies
Run by a Longevity and Alignment with

standalone team/ scalability Bridgepoint

resource brand

efficiency

27
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Stakeholder engagement and
section 172(1) statement

Key stakeholders

The Board has identified its key
stakeholders as colleagues, fund investors,
shareholders, portfolio companies,

the community, regulators, and suppliers.

28

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires the Directors to
act in a way that they consider, in good faith, would most Tikely
promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its
members as a whole.

In doing this, section 172 requires the Directors to have regard,
amongst other matters, to:
the likely consequences of any decisions in the long term;
- the interests of the Company’s employees;
the need 1o foster the Company’s business relationships with
suppliers, customers and others;
the impact of the Company’s operations on the community
and environment;
- the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation
for high standards of business conduct; and

the need 1o act fairly as between members of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Code requires the Board to understand
the views of the Company’s key stakcholders and deseribe how
their interests, and the matters set out in section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006, have been considered by the Board

in discussions and deciston-making.



Bridgepoint — 2022 Annual Report & Accounts

Strategic Report

The key considerations in respect of these stakcholders and the Board’s approach to engaging with them are explained below.

Colleagues

Key considerations
Bridgepoint is a people business. Trs employees are integral
1o the contnued success of the Group, and therefore the

retention, development and motivanion of colleagues1s key.

How Bridgepoint engages with colleagues

The Board actively engages with colleagues through a varicry of
chanmels, including town hall briefings, videos and team meetings.
A hirm-wide conference was held in October 2022, which induded
presentations from sentor management an the Group's strategy,
history and priorities, sessions for business units to share knowledge
and optimise working practices, and talks from external speakers
designed to inform and inspirc collcagues across the firm.

On an annual basis, the Group conducts an employee engagement
survey to obtain feedback from employees, the results of which are
fed back to business umt heads, the Executive Commirtee and the
Board as appropriate, and a number of actions are taken in response.
The year-on-year progress on survey resuits is monitored carefully as
part of this review.

Members of the Board meet with various members of senior management,
both through Board and committee meetings and through separate
discussions, to enable them to continue to build relationships with

the senfor management team.

A designated Non-Executive Director (Angeles Garcia-Poveda) 1s
responsible for gathering employee fecdback and attended the firm
conference in October 2022 ro speak to employees and also hear their
views. Angeles was also actively involved in a number of firm-wide
imtiatives in 2022 focused on leadership development and diversity,
equity and inclusion.

The Group continuously invests in its people with internal career
development injtiatives, such as the Bridgepoint Core 'I'raining
Programme, the International Associate Programme, new Partner
coaching, international and cross-functon rotations, and murtual
MENLoTing programmes.

The Bridgepoint Core Training Programme offers all Bridgepoint
employees the opporounity to develop their personal and professional
skills through beth internal and external rraining. Tn addition to
professional development, colleague wellbeing is a core focus with
employee support programmes and an annual wellness allowance.

29
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Stakeholder engagement ... ..

Fund investors

Key considerations How Bridgepoint engages with fund investors

Fund investors are a central focus of the Group’s business. The Group has a dedicated investor relations function, which manages
They provide the capital which the Group invests as part the Group's relationships with all of its fund mvestors whilst seeking to
of ts investment management activities and are who the develop new relationships with prospective ¢lients.

Group owes regulatory dunes to. . S . .
P £l - Management of relatonships with fund investors has been a key prnioriry

throughout 2022 given the Group’s active and extensive involvement
in fundraising across strategies. As a result, 2022 saw a high level of
interaction and communication with existing and prespecuve fund
investors, with regular feedback on these fundraises provided to the
Board and the Executive Commiittee.

Fund investors typically undertake due diligence on the Group as part
of their assessment of an investment into & Bridgepoint fund. These
excrcises help to provide the Group with an up to date view of the
primary concerns and considerations of such investors, and these
often then become impertant factors in how the Group manages

and operates the funds in which fund investors invest.

Fund investors also receive regular updares through calls, meetings
and various forms of written reports which focus on the provision
of high-quality and umely information and data.

Sharcholders

Key considerarions How Bridgepoint engages with shareholders

A strong and transparent relationship with shareholders Members of the Board (including the Fxecutive Directors and the

15 essental for the long-term success of the Group. Senior Independent Directar) regularly engage with shareholders of the

Company and encourage feedback as part of this engagement process.
This helps the Board to understand the, at times, conflicting interests
of different shareholders, and to make decisions in a way that treats
sharchalders and other stakeholders fairly.

At the firm-wide conference held in October 2022, Angeles Garcia-
Poveda, Carolyn McCall and Tim Score met wich various employee
shareholders of the firm.

Following the telease of Bridgepoint’s preliminary results for 2022,
sharcholders and analysts were given the appormnity o join a webcast
attended by cerrain Directors to discuss the results and ask questions
mare generally. Similarly, a webcast occurred following the release of the
interim results in 2022. In addition, the Board cngaged with shareholders
at the AGM held on 12 May 2022, which provided shareholders with

a further opportunity to ask questions and engage with the Board.

More generally, shareholders were given the epportunity to learn more
about the Group and its investment acuvities durng the year, such as
through a teach-in on the Group’s privare credit strategy thar occurred
in November 2022,
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Portfolio companies

Key considerations

The companies in which funds managed by the Group
invests are the source of returns o its fund Investors and
ultimarely the Group’s shareholders. Bridgepoint backed
companies employ over 300,000 people and have a
significant role in the wider community.

Community

How Bridgepoint engages with portfolio companies

Central to the prudent management of the portfolio companies and value
creation 1s the Group's constant focus on improvement, both in financial
and non-financial terms, as well as the building of sustainable businesses.
Strong relanionships with portfolio companies provide a platform for
better strategiv decision making at the mvestment level, which in turn
helps to drive value for the benefit of the portfolio company itself but
ultimaccly the relevant fund investors and the Group's shareholders.

The Group’s mvestment teams provide the principal means of portfolio
company engagement, with Investments in Bridgepoint’s privare equity
strategy typically involving the appeintment of Group Investment
professionals as directors on portfolic company boards. An important factor
in the ongoing relationship with portfolio companies is the integration of ESG
criteria in the Group's investment approach, with investment teams working
with the management teams of portfolio companies in this regard. For more
information on ESG see pages 54 to 66.

Beyond formal engagement at the portfolio company board level,
engagement also occurs informaily through investment teams an an
ongoing basis (for example, private credit investment teams maintain
dialogues with portfolic company sponscrs).

Key considerations

The Group recognises the responsibility it has to wider
society and is committed to contributing positively to
the communitics in which it operates.

How Bridgepoint engages with the community

Bridgepoint has along history of charitable giving, and regularly seeks our
meaningful and impactful partners with whom we can parter or where our
donartion can make a difference. During 2022, the Bridgepoint Charitable
Trust made a donation to the Ukraine Humanitarian Appeal of the Disasters
Emergency Commitee, renewed its funding to Laxhjiipen, a not-for-profit
focused on supporting children in socioeconomically disadvantaged areas of
Sweden, and marched donations made to Prostare Cancer UK, Ma Chance
Mot Aussi and Ukramian Action in connection with Bridgepoint's charity
¢yde from London to Paris in July. Chantable donations from the Group
and the Bridgepoint Charitable Trust were £175,000 during the year.

During 2022, there were a number of community outreach initatives
including volunteering with the Covid- 19 vaccimation effort at the
London Science Museum in February, working with the Woodland Trust
and The Queen’s Green Canopy to plant trees in the London Borough of
Redbridge in April, offering support to Frankfurter l.ebenshilfe’s annual
summer party in September, and in NDecember undertaking a Christmas
gift collection in support of the Tresham Centre for Disabled Children
and Young People in London.

‘The Board actively encourages, supports and monitors progress on
initiatives that it believes will have a positive impact on the environment
and communities in which the Group operartes.
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Stakeholder engagement ...

Regulators

Key considerations

Regulators provide key oversight in respect of how the
Group operates 1ts husiness. The interests of fund investors
and sharehclders arc served by Bridgepoint engaging
constructively with regulators.

How Bridgepoint engages with regulators
During 2022, the Group engaged constructively with several of
s regulators.

As part of efforts to seek regulatory registration in Luxembourg, the
Giroup had significant engagement and discussions with the Commission
de Surveillance du Secteur liinancier.

The Group continues to contribure to industry bodies such as the British
Private Equity & Venture Capirtal Associarion and Invest Europe, and
through these and other channels the Group participates in regulator
consultations and provides other mput.

Suppliers

Key considerations
Good relations with suppliers are important to the Group's
day-to-day functioning,

How Bridgepoint engages with suppliers
The Group regularly engages with irs key suppliers to ensure that cach
party understands the requirements of the other.

The Group ensures appropriate due diligence is undertaken in respect
of third-party service providers prior to appointment, and appropriate
monitoring and oversight of appointed third-party service providers is
undertaken on a periodic basis.
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The Beard’s approach during 2022 to the marters set out in section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 is set out below.

Relevant consideration under section

172(1) of the Companies Act 2006

The Board's approach in 2022

(ay Long-term
conscquences of decisions

The Board maintains oversight of the Group’s performance, and reserves to itself specific marrers for
approval, including overall commercial strategy and the business plan of the Group. This allows the
Board 1o ensure that longer term considerations are taken into account.

Dierails of the Group's strategy are set out on pages 24 to 27 of this Annual Report. [During the year,
the Board spent significant nme discussing potential stratcgic opportunitics, and considering the
longer-term growth of the business {(including how excess funds held by the business are
appropriately invested).

Further details of other matters considered by the Board during the year are set out on page 99.

(bl Interests of employees

{c) Fostering business
relationships with suppliers,
customers and others

The Board has designated Angeles Garcla-Poveda as the Non-Execurive Director responsible for gathering
workforce feedback. During the year, she attended a firm conference 1o speak to employees and also
hear their views.

More generally, the Board recognises the importance of employee engagement and diversity,
equity and inclusion, and has incorporated them as measures of Executive Director performance.

In 2022, the Board considered the results of 'an employee engagement survey, and various marters arising
out of it. The Remuneration Committee also considered broader workfarce remuneration during the year.

A cost of living payment was provided to junior colleagues during the year in erder to provide
support to those within the Group most likely to feel the effects of the changing economic climate.

Details on engagement with Bridgepoint’s stakehalders are set out on pages 28 to 32 above.

{d) Tmpact of operations
on the community and
the environment

During 20122, the Board discussed FSC marters, as well as the Group's charitable giving strategy, and also
considered the Group’s tax strategy. Further detalls on ESG matters are set our on pages 54 to 66. The Group
has been carbon neutral and operating on 100% renewable electricity since 2021, There were also continued
efforts in 2022 to dnve DE&T imitiatives both ar Bridgepoint and within our portfolio.

(e) Desirability
of maintaining a reputation
for high standards of

business conduct

The corporate governance framework of the Group is summarised on pages 97 to 100.

The Board has pursued compliance with substantially all of the Corporate Governance Code
since the Company’s TPO.

At Board meetings, the Group’s Company Secretary highlights developments in corporate governance
and wider legal requirements.

(f) The need to act fairly
as between members of
the Company

Details on engagement with Bridgepoint’s shareholders are set out on page 30.
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£38.0bn

The total value of assets held
in the Group’s funds plus the
value of capital which has been
committed but not ver drawn

Sce page 39 for a detatled

All three pillars of our strategy
aim to grow AUM (see page 24)

Remuneration linkage
Links to ‘capital raised’ clement
of the annual bonus plan

Strategic Report

Fee Paying

AUM (€bn)

163

19.3

23.4

2020

2021

2022

Description

The amount of capital held in
funds, including CLOs, which
the Group manages on behalt
of investors and on which

it charges fees

Definition
See page 39 for a detailed
definition

Link to strategy
All three pillars of our strategy
aim to grow AUM (see page 24}

Remuneration linkage
Links to ‘capital deployed’
clement of the annual
bonus plan

* 2020 and 2027 Fee Paving AUM bas been restated 1o melude CT.0r AL

£137.1m

A measure of profitability prior
to depreciation of properry
leases, amortisation of
mtangible assets, the cost

of financing and taxation

See page 37 for a detailed

All three pillars of our
strategy aim to grow EBITDA

Total AUM
(€bn)
Description
38.0
329 Definition
26.6 definition
Link to strategy
T 2020 2021 2022
EBITDA
(Em}
Description
1371
Definition
85.3 definition
Link to strategy
58.7
(see page 24)
2020 2021 2022

54

Underlying

EBITDA (£m)
1139
66.4
2020 2021

140 3

2022

£140.5m

Description

EBITDA excluding expenses
related to the PO, the
acquisition of the EQT Credit
business and M&A due
diligence which were not
incurred in the normal course
of business

Definition
See page 37 for a detailed
defimition

Link to strategy

Ali three pillars of our
strategy aim to grow EBITDA
{sec page 24)

Remuneration linkage
Links to the "EBITDA’ element
of the annual bonus plan
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Underlyi i
FRE (S £75.4m margin 31.1%

Description Description
Fee Related Earnings (“I'RE") Underlying FRE margin is
15 a measure of underlying a measure of underlying
profitability, excluding profitability, excluding
754 investment income 311 investment income
Definition Definition
See page 37 for definition 24.3 See page 37 for definition
48.5 (}uidance
167 45-50% in the longer term
24.9
2020 2021 2022 2020 2021 2022

before v e £120.0m e £127.4m

Description Description
A measure of profit after A statatory measure of profit
expenses, depreciation and after expenses, depreciation
amertisation, and financing, but and amortisation and financing
120.0 before tax, and exchuding 127.4 but before taxation
exceptional items and ..
pron : . Definition
amortisation of intangibles
sos Profit for the year
' Definition attributable to equity
See page 38 for defimuion shareholders before taxation
62.6
526
48.5
2020 2021 2022 2020 2021 2022
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Alternative performance

measures

These full-year results include several measures which are not
defined or recognised under International Financial Reporting
Standards ("TFRS”), including financial and operating measures
relating to the Group such as EBITDA, Underlying EBITDA,
Underlving BEBITDA margin, Underlying prafit before tax,
Underlying FRE, Underly{ng FRE margin, Fee Paying AUM and
Toral AUM, all of which the Group considers to be alternative
performance measures {*APMs”). These are reconciled to the
statutory results in the tabie below.

These APMs and KFIs are used by the Board and management to
analyse the business and financtal performance, track the Group’s
progress and help develop long-term strategic plans. These APMSs
are presented to provide addirional information to investors and
cnhance their understanding of the Group's results and operations.
Furthermore, the Board believes that these APMs are widely used
by certain investors, securities analysts and other interested parties
as supplemental measures of performance and hquidity. However,
as these measures are not determined in accordance with IFRS or
any generally accepted accounting standards, and are thus
susceptible to varying calculations, they may not be comparable to
other similarly titled measures used by other companies and have
limitations as analyncal wols. In particular, there are no generally
accepred principles governing the calculation of these measures
and the criteria on which these measures are based can vary from
company to company, which means that other companies may
define and calculate such measures differently from the Group.

36

In addition, as the Group is required by TFRS to consolidate certain
Collateralised Loan Obligations “ClLOs” which are managed by the
Group and in which the Group has an investment, the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the assets and
liabilites and the consclidated statement of cash flows includes the
gross cash inflows and outflows for the period for those
consolidated CLOs.

The consolidation of these CLOs could distort how a reader of the
financial statements interprets the balance sheet and cash flows of
the Group, therefore the CFO statement includes a summarised
non-statutory balance sheet and cash flow statement which
excludes the third parey CLO assets and habilities. Such measures
are also APMs.

APMs should not be considered inisolation and investors should
not consider such informaton as alternatives to total operating
income, profit before tax or cash flows from operating activities
calculated in accordance with TFRS, s indications of operating
performance or as measures of the Group's profitability or
liquidity. Such financial information must be considered only in
addition to, and not as a substitute for or supenor to, financial
information prepared In accordance with TFRS included elsewhere
in this Annual Report and Accounts.
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EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation. It is calculated by reference to total
operating income and deducting from it, or adding to it, as applicable, personnel expenses and other

_ expenses as well as foreign exchange gains and losses. ]

Underlying EBITDA Calculated by excluding exceptional items within EBI'TDA fram EBITDA. Exceptional items are irems
of income or expense that are material by size and/or nature and are not considered to be incurred in
the normal course of business. Fxamples include costs directly resulting from substanual corporate
business acquisitions or capital raising for the Group.

A breakdown is included within note 8 of the financial statements, on page 162.

2022 2021
Underlying EBITDA ) £m Em
EBITDA 1371 85.3
Add back: exceptional items within EBITDA ) 3.2 28.6
Underlving FBITDA 140.3 113.9
Underlying EBITDA Underlying EBITDA as a percentage of total operating income.
margin
Underlying FRE Underlying EBITDA less carried interest and income from the fair value remeasurement of investments
and adding back the cost of bonuses linked to investment profics.
2022 2021
Underlying FRE o £m £m
Underlying EBITDA 140.3 1139
Less: carried interest (24.2) {14.2)
Less: fair value remeasurement of investments (40.7) (56.9)
Add back: investment linked benuses L - 5.8
Underlying FRE 754 48.5
Underlving FRE margin Underlying FRE as a percentage of toral operating income excluding carried interest and income from
the fair value remeasurement of investments.
2022 2021
Underlying FRE margin ) ) £m £m
Underlying FRE ) 754 485
Total operating income 3074 270.6
[.ess carmed mterest (24.2) {14.3)
Less fair value remeasurement of investments (40.7) (56.9)
Adjusted roral operating income _ - 242.5 1994
Underlving FRE margin 31.1% 24.3%
Underlying Calculated by excluding exceptional items within EBITDA and the amortisarion of'-intangible assels
operating profit from vperating profit.
2022 2021
Underlying operating profic . L . £m £m
Operaung profit 118.8 70.3
Add back: exceptional itemns within EBITDA 3.2 286
Add back: amarnisation of intangible assers o 3.0 3.1
Total underlving operating profit 125.0 102.0
Underlving operating Underlying operating profit as a petcentage of total operating income.

profit margin
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Underlying protit
before tax

Calculated by excluding exceptional items and the amortisation of intangible assers from within profit
before income tax.

2022 2021
Underlying profir before tax - £m £m
Profit before tax 127.4 62.6
Add back: exceptional items within EBITDA 3.2 286
Add back: amorusation of intangible assets 3.0 3.1
Less: exceptional net other income {13.6) (3.8)
Total underlying profit betore tax 120.0 S0.5

Underi)"i@éroﬁt before

tax margin

Undecrlyving profit after tax

Calculated by excluding exceprional items and the amortisation of intangible zssets from profir after
tax.

Underlying profit
after tax margin

Underlying operating profit as a percentage of toral operating income.

Non-current assets
{excluding third-party
CLO asscrs)

Calculated by excluding third-party consolidated CLC non-current assets from total non-current assets
as defined from TFRS, and adding back the investment into CLOs on a non-consolidated basis,

2022 2021
Non-current assets (excluding third party CLO asses) i _ £m Em
Total non-current assets 540.0 5679
Add: investment in CLOs on a non-consalidared hasis 45.2 12.3
Non-current assets {exci[liti:lriﬁgr third-party
CLO asscts) 585.2 580.2
Current assets (eacluding  Calculated by excluding third-pax:t-}' consclidated CLO current assets from total current assets as
third-party CLO assets) defined from IFRS.
2022 2021
Current assets {excluding rhird party CLO asscts) £m £m
Total current assers 1,247.8 712.2
Less: consolidated CLO assets (741.3) (286.8)
I.css: consolidated CLO cash (24.6) (4.2)
Current assers (excluding third-parev CLO assers) 481.9 42172

Non-current liabilities
(excluding third-party
CLO lLabilities)
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Calculated by excluding third-party consolidared CLO non-current liabilities from rotal non-current
labilities as defined from [FRS.

2022 2021
Non-current liabilities (excluding third party CLO liabilities) o £m £m
Total non-current liabiles 7571 4323
Less: fair value of consolidated CLO liabilities (597.5) (241.4)
Non-current liabilities (excluding third-parcy
CLO liabilities) 159.6 1809
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Current liabilities Calculated by excl{iding third-party cansolidated CLO current liabiliries from total current liabilities as

(excluding third-par[y defined from IFRS.

CLO liabilities}

2022 2021

Current liahihities (excluding third parcy CLO habibries) 7 £m £m
‘Total current liabilities 258.0 1315
Less: consolidated CLO liabilities (2.6) (1.5
Less: consolidated CLO purchases awaitimg settlement ) (120.6) (35.8)
Current liabilities lexcluding third-party CI.O liabilities) 134.8 94.2

Underlying pro forma Calculated by dividing underlying profit after tax gross of non-controlling interests by the number of

basic and diluted sharcs in issuc after the TPO.

earnings per share

2022 2021

Underlying pro forma basic and diluted EPS £m B £m
Profit after tax 120.6 578
Add back: exceptional items within EBITDA 3.2 286
Add back: amortisation of mtangible assets 3.0 3.1
Less: exceptional net other income (13.6) (3.8)
Tax adjusted o N 0.0 00
Total underlying profit after tax 113.2 357
Pro forma number of shares (m) 823.3 . 8233
Underlving pro forma basic and diluted EPS (£) 0.14 .10

Fee Paying AUM Assers under management upon which management fees are charged by the Group, including CLOs,

For all funds with private equity straregies and the Bridgepoint Credit Opportunities funds I to 111, Fee
Paying AUM is eicher based on total commitments (during the commitment period) or on net invested
capital mormally during the post-commitment period).

For the Bridgepoint Direct Lending funds and Bridgepoint Syndicated Debr funds as well as expected

furure Bridgepoint Credit Oppartunities funds, Fee Paying AUM s based on net invested capital

- throughout the life of the fund. o

Total AUM The total value of unrealised assets as of the relevant date (as deterruncd pursuant to the latest
quarterly or semi-annual valuation for each Bridgepoint Fund conducted by the Group) plus undrawn
commitments managed by the Group. The valuations for Total AUM come from the Group's
valuations of the investments of the Bridgepoint funds.

The Group values all investments of the Bridgepoint funds at least twice a year, but in most cases four
rimes a vear, Each investment undergoes the same detailed valuation process, in accordance with the
Group's valuation policies and in line with fund requirements.

Completed valuarions are presented and discussed at the relevam Bridgepoint valuation commitiee
and are audited at year end by the relevanr fund audiror.

Kfla'ﬁ?agcment fee margin on  The underlying management fee rate in the Bridgepoint funds, excluding co-investment vehicles,
Fee Paying AUM calculared as the weighted average management fee rate for all Bridgepoint funds contriburing ro Fee
Paying AUM as ar the end of the accounting period.
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The Group’s strong financial performance
in 2022 can be attributed to increased
management fees across its private equity
and credit strategies, in addition to
resilient investment returns.

The Group has consolidared its financial position over its first full
financial year since IPO and is well-capitalised at the beginning of
2023, with investments praviding oppartamcy for furure uplifts in
profitability.

Group financial performance in 2022 was driven by 15.5%
growth in Total AUM 1o reach €38.0 billion and a 21.2% increase
in Fee Payving AUM 1o €23 4 billion at year end.

This increase drove a £43.8 million or 22.2% increase in
managerent and other fees and when combined with operational
leverage, which is a feature of our business model, helped us 1o
deliver a 55.5% increase in underlying FRE, and a 6.8% increase in
underlying FRE margin to 31.1%.
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Strategic Report

Underlying profit hefore tax of £120.0 million was £29.5 million

or 32.6% higher than the previous year, primarily driven by the
commencement of BE V1T from May 2022 and an increase in the
amount of invested capital in the Credit business which generated
increased management fees. BE ViT's [aunch marks a step change in
the income and profitability potential of the business and will be fully
reflected once fundraising is completed.

Strong and resilient investment performance delivered £64.9 million
of investment income despite volatile and uncertain markets, which
in combination with underlying FRE delivered underlying ERITDA
of £140.3 million. Reported profit after tax of £120.6 million was
£62.8 milhon or 108.7% higher than the previous year.

The Group is well-capitalised with a net cash position on its balance sheet
of £.296.0 million {(Including amours in term deposits, but excludimg cash
belonging to consolidated CLOs). The Group holds investments in
funds of £318.2 million including Group exposure to investment

in CLO loan notes, and carried interest at a discounted value of

£42.0 million which provides opportunity for fnther future
profitability and conversion to cash.

W

Adam Jones
Group Chief Financial Officer
and Chief Operaung Officer

Throughout the course of this section reference is made to adjusted measures which
the Company cansiders 1o be APMs or key KPIs. These are not defined ot recognised
under IFRS but are used by the Directors and man agement to analyse the business and
financial performance, track the Group’s progress and help develop long-term strategic
plans. Pages 36 10 39 set out definitions of each of the APMs used within the CFO
staternent and how they can be reconciled back to the financial statements.
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9

Adam Jones
Group Chief Fimancial Officer &
Chief Operating Officer

Summary

Financial summary

Year ended Year ended
31 Decemnber 31 December

L 2022 2021 Change (%)
Tow AUM (6bn) ' 38.0 329 155%
Fee Paying AUM (€bn)” 23.4 19.3 21.2%
Management fee margin on Fee Paying AUM (%) 1.16% 1.18% -0.2ppt
Management and other fees (£m) 241.5 1977 22.2%
Investment income {E£m) 64.9 71.2 (8.8)%
Total operaning income (£m) 3074 2706 13.6%
Toral expenses (exchuding exceprional items) (Em) (167.1) (156.7) 6.6%
Underlying EBITDA (£m) 140.3 1135 23.2%
Underlying EBITDA margin (%) 45.6% 42.1% 1 3.5pprt
Underlying FRE (£m) 75.4 48.5 55.5%
Underlying FRE margin {%) 31.1% 2439 +6.8ppt
Underlying profit before tax (Em) 120.0 20.5 32.6%
Reported profit before tax (Em) 127.4 626  1035%
Reported profit after tax (Em) 120.6 578  108.7%
Reported pro forma basic and diluted EPS (pence) 14.64 7.02 108.7%
Adjusted pro forma basic and diluted EPS (pence) 13.75 10.41 32.1%

© 2021 Fee Paying AUM has been restated 1o indude CLEO AUM

Fundraising
Private equity AUM at 31 December 2022 amounted 1o £26.8 billion.

Bridgepoint Furepe VI (“BE VII?) was launched in late 2021. Fundraising continued steadily through 2022 and is expected ro conclude

in summer 2023, Fundraising is alsc underway for Bridgepoint Growth 11 (“BG UI™).

Bridgepoint Credit Opportunities TV {(“BCO TV™) and Bridgepoint Direct Tending 11 (*“BDL TIT") continued fundraising m 2022 and arce

expected to conclude in the first half of 2023, As a result of these fundraisings, credit AUM ended the year ar €11.2 billion.

Total AUM development during the year

€billion Private equity Credit Total
31 December 2021 - 7 229 10.0 32.9
Fundraising 49 1.1 6.0
Divestments (3.3} 0.1 (3.4)
Revaluations 2.3 0.2 2.5
31 December 2022 26.8 11.2 38.0

Toral AUM ar 31 December 2022 was €38.0 billion compared to €32.9 billion at the end of the 2021. The 15.5% increase
is due to funds raised for BE VII and the impact of revaluations of fund investments.
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Total Fee Paying AUM development during the year

£ billion -~ - Private equity Credit Total
31 December 2021 o o 1377 56 19.3
Fundraising / Tnvested 4.9 32 81
hvestments {1.3) (1.8) (3.1
Step down (0.9 - (0.9)
31 December 2022 S T e 16.4 7.0 23.4

Fee Paying AUM ar 31 December 2022 was €23 4 billion compared to £19.3 billion at the end of 2021 with the 21.2% increase in
2022 pnmartly due to BE VIT becoming fee paying and an increase in invested capital in our credit strategies.

Given the scale of the Group's CLO business, CLO AUM has been included within Fee Paying AUM for 2022, and the comparative
figure has been testated for consistency.

Abbreviated income statement
Year ended Year ended

31December 31 December Change
£ million - 2022 2021 %)
Management and other fees 241.5 197.7 22.2%
Investment income 64.9 71.2 (8.8)%
Total operating income 307.4 270.6 13.6%
Toral expenses {170.3) {185.3) (8.1)%
Total expenses (exchuding exceptional expenses) {167.1) (156.7) 6.6%
EBITDA 1371 85.2 60.7%
Underlying EBITDA 140.3 1139 23.2%
Undcriying FRE 75.4 48.5 55.5%
Depreciation (15.3) (11.9) 28.6%
Underlying operacing profit 125.0 102.0 22.5%
Reported operating profic 118.8 70.3 69.0%
Net other ihCOmC!‘(Q_\;penscs) 8.6 (7.7 211.71%
Net other expenses (exchuding exceptional net income) {5.0) (11.5) (56.5)%
Underlving profit before tax 120.0 90.5 32.6%
Reported proefit before rax 1274 626  1035%
Tax B {6.8) (4.8)  41.7%
Reported profit after tax 120.6 57.8  108.7%

The Group's consolidated income statement has two key components: the first is the income generated from management and other fees,
which are from long-term fund management contracts. The second component is the variable income from investments in funds and
carried interest. Management fee income plus other operating income less costs 1s expressed as Fee Related Earnings ("FRE”). Underlying
FRE excludes exceptional expenses and bonuses linked to investment returns. Profits from co-investment and carried interest together
with FRE form the EBITDA of the business.

Exceptional items are items of income or expense that are material by size or nature and are not considered to be incurred in the normal
course of business. Kxceptional items are classified as “exceprional” within the Group Consolidared Statement of Profic or Loss are
disclosed separately to give a clearer presentation of the Group's results. In the year ended 31 December 2022, exceptional expenses
were recognised iclating to the personnel costs in relation to the acquisition of the EQT Credit business and costs incurred in relation to
potential acquisitions. In the vear ended 31 December 2021, exceptional expenses were recorded relating to the Group's IPO and costs
relaring to the acquisition of the EQ'T Credit business.

Underlying operaring profit excludes exceptional expenses within EBITDA and the amortisation of intangible assets arising from the
acquisition of EQT Credit. Underlying profit before rax excludes the aforementioned expenses and also certain non-operating other
income and expenses which have also been classified as exceptional. These relare to the acquisition of EQT Credit. Further explanation
of these items 15 included wathin note 8 of the financial statements (see page 1621

42




Bridgepoint — 2022 Annual Report & Accounts Strategic Report

Total operating income
Year ended  Year ended

31 December 31 December Change
£ million o 7 _ 2022 2021 6
Management and other fees 241.5 1977 22.2%
Carried interest 24.2 143 69.2%
Fair value remeasurement of investments 40.7 569 (28.5)%
Otbgrgperaringincome o B 1.0 1.7 (41.2)%
Total operating income 3074 270.6 13.6%

‘'otal operating income grew strangly, increasing by 13.6% from £270.6 million in 2021 to £307.4 million in 2022 reflecing an
increase 0 management and other fees and carried interest, partially offset by reduced income from the fair vahie remeasurement of
INVestments,

Management and other fees increased by £43.8 million, or 22.2%, from £197.7 million for the year ended 37 December 2021 1o
£2471.5 million for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2022, and was attributable to the below reporting segments in the year.

Year ended Year ended

31 Decemnber 31 December Change
£million 2022 2021 7 %)
Privare equity 187.8 157.3 19.49%
Credit 508 379 34.0%
Central ) 2.9 2.5 16.0%
Management and other fecs 241.5 197.7 22.2%

The increase was primarily due to the start of fees from BE V11, which commenced charging management fees from 11 May 2022, and

a full year of fees on increased levels of invested capiral in BDL Il and BCO 1V in the Credit business. These increases are parnally offser
by reduced fees an older funds which are in their divestment phase, where fees are based upon the remaining invested capital and reduce
when investments are sold.

Income from the Group's share of carried interest income of £24.2 mitlion in 2022 was driven by the Bridgepoint Europe IV ("BE V"),
Bridgepoint Furope V (*BE V") and Bridgepoint Development Capital 11 (“BDC 11T”) portfolios.

[ncome recognised as a result of increases in the value of co-investments decreased by 28.5% from £56.9 million in 2021 o
£40.7 million in 2022, where valuation increases across the private equity fund range, bur particularly within the BE V and BE V]
portfolios, were not as significant as the growth experienced in 2021,

Orher operating income includes fees and commissions receivable by the Group’s procurement consulting business, PEPCO Services LLP.

Operating expenses
Year ended  Year ended

31 December 31 December Change
£ million _ _ 2022 2021 . (%)
Personnel expenses (125.8) (121.4) 3.6%
Other operating expenses (42.4) (36.4) 16.5%
Foreign exchange gains _ . 1.1 1.1 0.0%
Tortal expenses before exceptional expenses (167.1) (156.7) 6.6%
bxceprional expenses (3.2) (28.6) (R8.8)%
Total expenses ) ' (170.3)  (1853)  (B.1)%

Personnel expenses {excluding exceptional expenses) increased by 3.6%, from £121.4 millien in 2021 1o £125.8 million in 2022,
reflecting the full year impact of investment n the Group's operating platform post IPO.

Persannel expenses (excluding exceptional expenses) as a percentage of total operating income was 40.9% faor the year ended
31 December 2022, compared to 44,5% for the year ended 31 December 2027 which included £5.8 million of mvestment linked
bonuses incurred in 2021, The improvement in the ratio in 2022 compared to 2021 was due 1o operating leverage.
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Other operaring expenses (excluding exceptional expenscs) as a percentage of toral operating income remamed broadly consistent at
13.8% for the vear ended 31 December 2022, compared to 13.5% for the year ended 31 December 2021, Other operating expenses
(excluding exceptional expenses) increased by 16.5%, from £36.4 million in 2021 1o £42.4 million in 2022 due to the operating costs
on the Group's new London headquarters, 5 Marble Arch, higher professional fees including amounts paid in relation to the expansion
of the Group’s regulatory footprint, fundraising costs associated with BE V1 and a reversion to normal levels of trave] costs following the
relaxation of pandemic travel restrictions.

EBITDA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December Change
Emillion o B 2022 2021 %)
Underlving EBITDA 140.3 1139 23.2%
Exceptional expenses within EBITDA ) (3.2) 28.6) (8B.8)%
EBITDA 137.1 853 60 7%

Underlying EBITDA increased strongly by 23.2% from £113.9 million in 2021 to £140.3 million in 2022, excluding exceptional
expenses associated with the IPO of the Group in 2021 and the acquisition of EQT Credir in 2020, This was largely driven by the
operational leverage resulting from the growth in total operating income of 13.6% representing more than double the growth in total
expenses, excluding exceptional expenses, of 6.6%.

Exceprional expenses of £3.2 million in 2022 included employee costs of £1.1 million relaring to the acquisition of EQ'T" Credit in 2020,
and £2.1 million of costs incurred in relation to potential acquisitions.

EBITDA, including exceptional expenses, increased by 60.7% as the increase in Underlying EBITDA is supplemented by the reduction
n exceptional expenses.

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December Change
£ million ) ) 2022 2021 B (%)
Depreciation ' "  (15.3) (11.9)  28.6%
Amorusanon of intangibles N (3.0) (3.1 (3.2)%
Total depreciation and amortisation expense (18.3) {15.0) 22.0%

Depreciation and amortisation expense increased by 22.0% from £15.0 million in 2021 to £18.3 million in 2022. 'This increase

was primarily due to the first full year of the lease of the Group’s new London headquarters which commenced in July 2021.

The amortisarion of intangibles acquired with the EQT Credit business (fund customer relationships) of £3.1 million and £3.0 million
have been excluded from the adjusted profitability measures in 2021 and 2022 respectively in order to enable a clearer analysis of
underlying profitability.

Total operating profit
Year ended Year ended

31December 31 December Change
£ miltion _ 2022 2021 (%)
Underlving operating profit 125.0 102.0 22.5%
Exceptional expenses within ERITDA (3.2) (28.6) (83.8)%
Armortisation of intangibles ) i (3.0 (3.1 (3.2)%
Reported operating profit i 118.8 703 69.0%
Underlying operating profit margin 40.7% 37.7%  +3.0ppt

Underlying operating profit increased by 22.5% or £23.0 million from £102.0 milhion in 2027 to a protit of £125.0 million in 2022,
reflecung the £26.4 million increase in underlying EBITDA.
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Reported eperating profit increased by 69.0% per cent from £70.3 million in 2021 to £118.8 million in 2022.

The underlying operating profit margin increased from 37.7% for the vear ended 371 December 2021 1o 40.7% tor the year ended
31 December Z022. This increase was due to operating ieverage.

Other income and expenses
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 Decembes Change
£ million - 2022 021 @
Net other expenses, excluding exceptional items (5.00 (115 (36.35)%
Exceptional net other income 13.6 38 2579%
Net other income/lexpense), inc]udi;lg C,chptf(}na] items 8.6 (7.7) (2171.7W%

Net other expenses, excluding exceptional items, decreased by £6.5 million to £3.0 million, compared to a net expense of £11.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 202 1. This movement was primarily duc to:
- increased interest income from cash on deposit
- adecrease in amounts payable to investors who have a 15% interest in the profits of the BE V co-investment vehicle; and

no interest expense from borrowings in 2022 compared 1o £3.1 million in 2021
Exceptional net other income primarily includes the reduction in the estimared deferred contungent consideranion payable 1o EQT AB
for the acquisition of the EQT Credit business, which is determined by the outcome of certain fundraising that falls within the defimtons

in the transaction documents (rather than toral fundraising). Further explanation is included within note 17 () of the financial
starements {see page 172). The income is partially offset by the unwind of the discount on the correspanding payable.

Profit before tax
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December Change
£ million L B 2022 2021 )
Underlying profit before tax 120.0 20.5 32.6%
Exceptional expenses (3.2) (28.6) (BB.8)%
Excepuonal net finance income 13.6 38  2579%
Amortisation of intangible assers (3.0) (3.1 (3.2%
Reported profit before tax ) 1274 62.6  1035%
Underlving profit before tax margin 39.0% 334%  ~S.éppt

Underlying profit before tax increased by 32.6% from £90.5 million in 2021 to £120.0 million in 2022

Reported profit before tax increased by 103.5% from £62.6 million in 2021 1o £127.4 million in 2022, reflecring increased underlying
operating profit

The underlying profit before tax margin increased from 33.4% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 39.0% for the year ended
31 December 2022.
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Tax

Yearended  Year ended

31 December 31 December Change
£ million . o 2022 o 2021 %)
Tax (6.8) (4.8)  41.7%

The tax charge increased from £4.8 million in 2021 to £6.8 million tn 2022. This was primartly due to movements in deferred rax liabilities.

The effective tax rare for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 5.4% compared 1o 7.7% for the year ended 31 December 2021

As detailed in note 11 1o the financial statemnents (see page 164), the Group has a lower effective tax rate than the UK statutory rate. This
s largely driven by nming differences on the taxation of management fee income and significant tax loss carry-forwards in the UK where
certain forms of income are not subject to UK corporation tax.

Profit after tax
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December Change
£ million 7 - - 2022 2021 (%)
Profit after tax 120.6 57.8 108.7%

Profit after tax increased by 108.7% from £57.8 million in 20271 to £120.6 miilion in 2022 which, after allowing for the £64.8m
increase in reported profit before tax, reflecting the higher rax charge in 2022.

Earnings per share and dividend per sharc
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December Change
£ pence ) 2022 2021 (£ pence)
Reported pro forma earnings per share 14.64 702 7.62
Adjusted pro forma earmings per share 13.75 10.41 3.34
Pro forma interim dividend per share 4.00 3.64 0.37
Final dividend per share 4.00 3.64 0.36

Adjusted earnings per share grew by 3.34 pence per share, reflecting the increase in profit after tax.
An interim dividend of £32.8 million, or 4.00 pence per share was paid on 29 Seprember 2022,
The Directors are proposing a final dividend of 4.00 pence per share in respect of the second half of 2022.

Consolidated balance sheet

Asat Asat
Summarised consolidated balance sheet (statutory basis) 31 Decemmber 31 December Change
£ million B ) 2022 2021 (%)
Assers
Non-current assets 540.0 567.9 (4.9)%
Current assets o o o 1,247.8 712.2 75.2%
Total Assets . - 1,787.8 1,280.1 39.7%
Liabilitics
Non-current habilities 7571 4323 75.1%
Current Habiliues o 258.0 131.5 56.2%
Total Liabilities L 1,015.1 563.8 80.0%
Net Assets 7727 716.3 7.9%
Equity
Share capital and premium 289.9 2899 0.0%
Other reserves 91 13.8 (34.1)%
Retained earnings L - - - 473.7 412.6 14.8%
Towal Equity 772.7 716.3 7.9%
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Ner assets principally comprise cash and term deposits, the fair value of investments and carried interest receivable from private equity
and credit funds and goodwill arising from the acquisiion of the EQT Credit business.

Non-currem assets decreased by 4.9% {rom £567.9 million at 31 December 2021 to £540.0 million at 31 December 2022
predominantly due the sale of the Group’s holding in the Bridgepoint Credit IT (*BC 11", partially offset by the purchase of new property,
plant and equipment related to 5 Marble Arch. Current assets increased by 75.2% from £712.2 million at 31 December 2021 to
£1,247.8 million at 31 December 2022 primarily due to deferred proceeds from the sale of BC IT and the increased level of current
asscts held by consclidated CLOs.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had cash of £296.0 million (including amounts in term deposits, but excluding cash belunging to
consolidated CLOs).

Tortal liabilites increased by 80.0% from £563.8 million at 31 December 20271 to £1,015.1 million at 31 December 2022, Non-current
liabilides increased from £432.3 million at 31 December 2021 1o £757.1 million at 31 December 2022, primarily duc to an increased
level of liabilities owed by consolidated CLOs. Current liabilities increased by 96.2% from £131.5 million at 31 December 2021 to
£258.0 million at 21 December 2022, Fxcluding the impact of consolidated C1LOs, non-curtent lahilities decreased by 16.4% as the
deferred consideration payable for the Group’s credit business moved from non-current to current liabilities during the year.

Total equity benefitted from 2022 profits with offsets for dividends paid and a decrease in other reserves due to movements in fair value
of hedging instruments partially offser by fereign exchange movements. These resulted in total equity of £772.7 million at 31 December
2022 up from £716.3 milhon at 31 December 2027,

The consolidated balance sheet includes the assets and lHabilities of certain CLOs which are required under IFRS to be presented gross on
the balance sheet. This could distort how a reader of the financial statements interprets the balance sheet of the Group.

The Group’s maximum cxposure to loss associated with its interest in the CLOs is limited to its mvestment in the relevant CLOs which
at 31 December 2022 was £60.3 million (2021: £50.3 million}.

The graph below shows a reconciliation of the CLO retated assers and Halilities within the consolidared balance sheet to the Group's exposure.

800.0

S——
700.0 246
600.0 |
500.0 N % Assets ateributable to third
400.0 (6001 - party CLO note holders
300.0 ‘
200.0 ‘
151 ) } Assets attributable to
0.0 Bridgepoint equity holders
FV of CLO inv CLO assets CLO cash CLO liabs Trades pending Net exposure

In addition, a summarised consolidated balance sheet on a non-statutory basis, excluding third-party CLO assets and labilites,
1s included below.
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CFO statement . ;s

Summarised consolidated balance sheet {excluding third party CLO assets and liabilities, non-statutary)’ 31 Decelﬁls):l[' 3 Dcceri;:: Change
£ milkion e 2022 021 %)
Asgsets

Non-current assets 585.2 580.2 0.9%
Current asscts - L 481.9 4212 144%
Total Assets texcluding third-parry CLO assets) 7 10671 10014 66%
Lialilities

Non-current liabilines 159.6 1209 (16.4)%
Current labilities ) ) 134.8 942 43.1%
Total Liabtlities {excluding third-party CLC Habilicies) 294.4 2857 3.3%
Net Assets (excluding third-party CLO assets and liabilities} 772.7 716.3 7.9%

" tull ron-siatutory consabidated balance sheet exc uding third-party CLO wssers and Habilities twnaadied? s included on page 202.

Liquidity

"The Group’s liquidity requirements anse primarily in relation to the funding of operations and the Group’s plans in connection with irs
expansion and diversification strategy. The Group funds its business using cash from its operations (retained profits), capital from
shareholders and third-parry debr.

Total financial debt and net cash position

Asat Asal
31 December 31 December Change
£ million - o 7 2022 2021 (%)
Bank borrowings - - 0.0%
(ash and cash equivalents {excluding CLO cash) 196.0 3231 (39.31%
Term deposits with original maturities of more than three months o 100.0 - N/A
Net cash (excluding consolidated CLOs) 296.0 3231 (8.4)%

At 31 December 2022, the Group had net cash of £296.0 million compared with net cash of £323.1 million ar 31 December 2021,

At 31 December 2022, the Group had no debt, but still has in place the £125 million revolving credit facility, which remains available
for drawing until October 2023 and is currently in the process of being extended for a further three vears.

As at 31 December 2022, in addition to the liabilities shown on the balance sheet, the Group had approximately £255.3 million and
£34.4 million of remaining undrawn capital commitments to the Bridgepoint funds in each of the private equity and private credit
segments, respectvely.

Consolidated cash flows

(Restated)

Year ended Year ended
Summarised consolidated cash flow statement {statutory basis) 31 December 31 December Change
£ million o - 2022 2021 %)
Net cash flows from operating acoivities 33.9 47  621.3%
Net cash flows from investing activinies (57.3) (191. 1) (70.0)%
Net cash flows from ﬁnancingﬂ:_ti\'_igies o (86.6) 3651 (1@}.7)%
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (110.0) 1787 (161.6)%
Tota) cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 327.3 157.1 108.3%
Effect of exchange rate changes o . 3.3 (8.5) (138.8)%
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 220.6 327.3 (32.6)%
of which: cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (for use within the Group) 196.0 3231 (39.3)%
of which: CLO cash (restricted for use within relevant CLO) o 24.6 4.2 485.7%
Taotal cash and cash equivatents at the end of the vear 220.6 3273 (32.6)%
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Net cash flows from operating activities for the vear ended 31 December 2022 was £33.9 million. The increase of £29.2 millions in the
nct cash flows from operating activities compared to the year ended 31 December 2027 was due to the conversion of FRE, offsct by fees

which could not yet be invoiced and ouber adverse movemenrs in the Group’s working capiral.

Net cash flows from investing activities, including carried interest and investment income proceeds, is driven by the timing of
investments and divestments by the underlving Bridgepaint funds. Receipts from investments inte the Bridgepoint funds of

£74.3 million in 2022 were partially offset by investment into the funds of £41.2 miilion. For the year ended 31 December 2022 cash
ourflows from investing activities of £57.3 million also includes investments in term deposits with onginal marurities of more than three
months and purchases of property, plant and cquipment related w the Group'’s new London headguarters.

Net cash flows from financing activities for the year cnded 31 December 2022 of £86.6 million primarily related ro dividends paid
during the year, as well as payments for office leases and repayments of conselidated CLO borrowings.

In addition, at 31 December 2022 the Group had £24.6 million recorded on the balance sheer as consolidated CLO cash which was held
by the consolidated CLO vehicles, legally ringfenced and not available for use by the Group. The conselidated cash flow statement
includes the gross cash inflows and outflows for the period to, and cash held at 31 December 2022 for those (CLOs which are required 1o
be consolidated. This could distort how a reader of the financial statements interprets the cash flows of the Group, therefore a cash flow
statement without the consolidated C1LO vehicles is presented below.

Year ended Y(:;fb; :::d)
Summarised consolidated cash flow statement (excluding cash flows relating te consolidated CL.Os, non-statutory} 31 December 31 December Change
gmilion - _ 2022 2021 o)
Net cash flows from operating activites (excluding consolidared CLO)s) 339 47  621.3%
Net cash flows from investng activities (excluding consolidated CLOs) (93.7) (20.8Y  350.5%
Net cash flows from financing activities (excluding consolidated CLCs) (69.6) 3011 (123.1)%
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (excluding consolidated CLOs) (129.4) 2850 (145494
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the vear (excluding consolidated CLOs) 323.1 423 663.8%
Eftect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (excluding consohdated CLOs) 2.3 (4.2) (154.8%
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (excluding consolidated CLOs) 196.0 3231 (39.3)%
Add back: investment in term deposits with original marurities of more than three months 100.0 - N/A
Net cash at the end of the year (excluding consolidated CLOs) 296.0 323.1 (8.4)%

A full nan-statutory consolidated cash Mow st ememt excuding third-parey ULO assels and habilines funaudiced] s incleded on page 203

Guidance
- Fundraising: (iood momentum an BE VI into 2023
- Investment income: Expected to represent around 20% of total revenue in 2023 and 2024

Cost growth: Hxpect continued inflaticnary pressures on costs in the near term and more modest growth in headcount and personnel
costs over medium term

- Actual cost growth in 2022 at 7% was slightly below high single digit guidance despite inflaticnary pressures being evident
- This reflects deliberate phasing of investment team hires in light of macro ervironment

FRE margin: Longer term guidance remains 45% - 50% at the conclusion of the BDCV and BE V1T fundraises

- Short term guidance remains unchanged at 30% - 35%

- 2024 expected to be slightly below the bottom of the short-term guidance, reflecting the usual margin profile of a PE cycle where
continued successful divestments in 2023 and 2024 will, as expected, reducc fees recognised on invested capital ahead of BDCV
generating fees from January 2025

- Tax: Subject tc any changes in the UK rax code, expect our effective tax rate tu remain unchanged in the 5% - 10% range
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Our historical performance

. 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
AUM (£bn) _ B B 19.7 19.3 266 329 38.0
Fee Paying AUM (€bn) o 127 127 16.3 193 23.4
Manapement fee margin on Fee Paying AUM (%) . L 1.23% 1.255'5__ 1.19% 1.18% 1.16%
Management and other fees (Em) - 1174 1439 1486 1977 2415
Investment income (Em) 256 24,0 42.3 71.2 64.9
Toral aperaring income (£m) _ _ 1448 165.8 191.8 270.6 3074
Total expenses (excluding exceptional items) (Em) 7 101.5 116.7 1254 156.7 167.1
ERITDA (£m) - 192 531 587 853 1371
Underlying EBITDA (£m) - 433 53.1 664 1139 1403
Underlying EBITDA margin (%)  299%  313%  346%  421% _ 45.6%
Underlying FRE (Em) o 177 29.1 24.9 485 754
Underlying FRE margin (%) B 7 14.8%  20.1% 16.7% 24.3% 31.1%
Underlying profit before tax (Em) - - jg@ 475 326 90.5 120.0
Profit before rax (Em) B B 126 475 483 626 1274
Reported proforma basic and diluted EPS (p) o 0.37 509 579 702 1464
Adjusted proforma basic and dituted EPS P 77 . 3.30 509 6.29 1041 13.75
Permanent headcount (ar y;lr end) 228 260 310 344 377

An explanation of the alternative performance measures used by the Group, including underlying profit before tax, underlying EBITDA
and reported and underlying proforma earnings per share, is set out on pages 36 1o 39 along with a reconciliation to the nearest statutory
measures.
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Viability and going

Stralegic Report

concern statements

The Group’s future viability and
prospects are underpinned by the
following:

- Alarge proportion of revenue (76% in 2022) is made up of
income from long-term fund management contracts

Significant majority (86%) of management fees in 2023 1o 2025
from funds already raised or in fundraising progress

- A largely predicrable cost base, of which over three quarters is
personnel related

Good visibility of income, expenditure and future profirability
during and beyond the period covered by this assessment

- A strong balance sheet, with net cash of £296 million (including
£100 million af term deposits with original maturities of more
than three months), no borrowings and an undrawn

£125 million hanking facility

Available levers to operate during stress events include reduced
variable compensation costs

Viability statement

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance {ode, the
Directors are required to undertake a robust assessment of the
prospects and viability of the Group.

Assessment of prospects

The Group's long-term prospects are primarily assessed through
the preducrion of the Group Strategic Plan (the “Strategic Plan”).

The Strategic Plan is updared regularly to take into account
updarted fundraising expectations, fund activity and expected
rerurns and changes within the cost base. The Strategic Plan is
presented to the Board at least annually, where it is formally
approved, following a robust review and challenge process.

Although the Strategic Plan covers a substantially longer period,
the three-year period w December 2025 has been sclected for the
viability staternent on the basis thar it is the period over which
forecasting assumptions are most reliable due to the high visibility
of earnings from fees and mvestment returns.

‘The Strategic Plan reflects the Group's strategy, which 1s
summarised on pages 24 1o 27, including plans to scale existing
strategies, develop new products and build new investment
straregies.

Key assumptions within the Strategic Plan include:

- the raising of new funds, which impacts the amount of
management fees;

the timing and level of returns from funds, which impacts
co-investment and camed interest cash flows and profit recogrition;

changes in the cost base, primarily in relation to people costs and
inflation; and

- future acquisition of business, which expands investment
strategies and strengthens performance.

Progress against the current year's budget, which underpins the
Straregic Plan, 1s menitored through the year.

Assessment of viability

The assessment of the Group’s viability requires the Directors to
consider the principal risks that could impact the Group, which are
outlined on pages 80 to 83.

Whilst all the risks idenuified could have an impact on the Group’s
performance, the specific risks thar are likely 1o have the maost
impact on the business model, future performance, solvency and
liquidity of the Group in the three year period covered are
considered to be:

- Fund underperformance - prolonged or significant fund
underperformance may adversely affect the Group’s business,
hrand and reputation, income received by the Group,
its growth and its ability to raise capital for furure funds.
Fundraising challenges — The inability to raisc additional or
successor funds {or raise successor funds of a comparable size o
predecessor funds), or 4 change in the terms on which investors
are willing to invest, could have a material adverse imipact on the
Group’s business, revenue, net income, cash flows or the ability
to retain employees.

The Directors review the key risks regularly and consider the
options available to the Group to mingate these risks to ensure the
ongoing viability of the Group is sustained.
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Stralegic Report

Viability and going concern statements .- .. ...

The Group’s viability requires consideration from the
perspective of capital for solvency, adequacy of regulatory
capital and hquidity.

Stress testing has been performed on the Strategic Plan, which
considers the impact of the Group’s key risks crystallising over
the three-year assessment period. The severe but plausible
stress scenarios applied to the three-vear period are:

Links te
Scenarios principal risks
Scenario 1: Fund under-
Weaker fund performance performance
Assumptions:
50% reduction in co-investment
cash returns and no carried interest
{(beyond that already recognised)
Scenario 2: Fundraising
Delay or no new fundraising challenges
Assumptions:
No further fundraising
Scenario 3: - As above

A combination of scenarios 1 and 2 above
{this 1s seen as a worst-case scenario and

highly unlikely)

Having reviewed the results of the stress tests, the Directors have
concluded that the Group would have sufficient capital and hquid
resources in the respective scenanos so that the Group’s ongoing
viability would be sustained.

The assumpnions befind the stress scenarios include maintaining
the Group’s dividend policy but this, and other assumptions, could
be reassessed if the circumsrances determined this to be necessary
over the longer term. Primary management actions to relieve
stresses on the Group's ability to operare during these scenarios
inchude:

- reducing the Group's dividends;

reducing variable compensation costs (which represent
circa 40% of payroll costs); and

- unlisation and/or extension of debrt facilinies.

Tt is possible that a stress event couid be more severe than those
modelled and have a greater Impact than has been determined
plausible. Other actions are available that mav reduce the impact
of more severe scenarios, but these have not been considered in
this viability statement.
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The Group undertakes reverse stress tests to idenufy
circumstances under which the business model becomes unviable.
The most plausible severe scenarto to cause the business model to
be unwiable is a macro-economic shock which results in the
write-down of the value of investments held by the funds.

This would impact the level of investment returns/resultin losses
for the Group bur is unlikely to have an immediate impact on
vigbihry. [f the impactis not emporary (unlike Covid-19, for cxample)
and meore permanent, this could impact the ability to exit fund
investments and ralse new funds, and therefore impact the Group
bevond the period covered in this viability assessment.

The reverse stress test determines the level of reduction to forecast
distributions from funds in order to tigger a business mode] failure
point, in the absence of any management actions. Such a scenario,
and the sequence of events which could lead to it is considered to
be extremely remote, as 1t requires forecast fund distributions to be
reduced by 100%, whilst maintaining all of the forecast investing
activity in full during the same period, whereas a macro-econemic
event s also likely to constram imvestment acoivity.

Whilst the occurrence of one or more of the principal tisks has the
potential to impact future performance, none of them are
constdered likely, either individually or collectively, to give rise to
trading deterioration of the magnirude indicated by the reverse
stress testing and to threaten the Group over the three-year period.

In addition to the stress scenarios referenced above, the impact of
continued high levels of cost inflation was quantified and
considered alongside the results of the tests applied. The Directors
determined that such a scemarto would not change their
conclusions on the viability of the Group.

Conclusion

Based upon the assessment set our above, the Directors have a current
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in
aperation, with adequate liquidity and capital, and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over a viability horizon of art least three
years.

Going concern statement

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Directors have
a responsibility to evaluate whether the Group has adequarte
resoUrces (o continue its operational existence for the foreseeable
furure and ar least the next 12 months from the sigming of the
financial statements.
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Assessment of going concern

In carrying out their going concern assessment, the Directors
considered a wide range of information, taking into account both
the Company and the Group’s cutrent performance and outook,
using information available up to the date of the issue of the
financial statements. This included:

- The Group’s business and operating models and strategy;
The Group's visk appetite and approach to managing nisk; and

- A summary of the current financial position and resources of the
Group.

Business model

As shown by the table below, a high proportion of the Group’s
revenue is made up of management fees, which are under long-
term fund management contracts. When taken together with a
largely predictable cost base, of which over three quarters is
personnel related, the Group has a good level of visibility of
income, expenditure and furure profitability when projected far
and beyond the next 12 months.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Underlying FRE (£m) 754 485
Management and other fees as % of tota!
operating income {%) o 78.6% 73.1%
Underlying FRE margin (%) _3L1%  Z43%
Perscnnel expenses as % of expenses
(excluding exceptional costs) (%) 75.3% 77.5%

Key assumptions made in the forecasts that underpin the
Directors’ going concern assessment are sel out above within the
viability statement and include the raising of new funds, the timing
and level of returns from funds and changes in the cost base from
hiring and inflation.

Strategic Report

Liquidity and resources

As ar 31 December 2022, the Group had a strong balance sheet
with net cash of £296 million, including £700 million of term
deposits with ongina maturites of over three months (202 1: net
cash of £323 million), no borrowings and an undrawn

£125 million banking facility.

Li1 order ro ensure liabilities are sertled when they tall due, the
Group’s hquidity is monitored regularly. This includes monitoring
the iming and level of operating expenses and the uming of
drawdowns and receipts from fund investments.

Stress testing

In making their assessment the Directors have considered
scenarios prepared 1n conjunction with the viability statement,
including a delay in fundraising and lower returns from fund
investments, which would impact the income and cash flow of the
Group. The Directors are sauished that, even under these stressed
scenarios, the Company and the Group would remain a going
concern,

Conclusion

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilicies in relation
10 the financial statements for the vear to 31 December 2022.
After making their assessment of going concern, the Directors
considered it appropriate 1o prepare the financial statements

of the Company and the Group on a going concern basis

for at least 12 months from the date of the approval of the
financial statements.
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How we approach ESG

A

-~ We are growth investors,

and we back businesses at
critical stages in their lifecycle.
This gives us the opportunity

- to drive positive change, not
just in terms of performance
but also in the environment
and society in which we operate.

This is our platform for
making a difference.
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Strategic Report

We want to help businesses do good and grow faster
and we believe sustainable, resilient businesses deliver

superior returns and a better society.

When we mvest, we invest ta grow. Bridgepoint looks to support
strong-performing, good-quality, well-managed businesses that have the
potential 1o flourish, whether via intematianal expansion, operational
improvement or acquisitions, or via a combination of these.

Bur that's not all we loak for. The millions of beneficiaries of
Bridgepoint funds want us to generate attractive retums in a
manner they can be proud of. From the ourtser, this is whar we
have strived to achieve.

Since Bridgepoint was founded in 1985,
our ambition has remained consistent:

To create lasting and sustainable positive impact

Beneath that ambition Tie four key ESG beliefs that guide
our investment decision-making:

1. We believe we must invest in our world and its
environment.

- Environmental action is ushering in a new era of
innovation, efficiency, and sustainable growth. Climate
change represents an investment risk and an opportuniry
e develop solunions,

2. Webelieve in the power of the individual in creating
diverse reams.

- By bringing diverse teams together that reflect the world
in which we live, we can deliver better performance.

3. We believe that business can and should be a force for
good.

- Growing busmesses should benefit the communities
in which they operate.

4. We believe well-governed businesses perform better
and are more resilient.

Structure, accountability, effective decision-making, and
performance monitaring - all enable sustainable success
for all stakeholders.

1. Unail Outober 2022, we necumed three o-tices :n London, which means we had 12
offices acrow 10 Tovarions. Tn Lctgber 2022, all London colleagues moved tna new
office

We arc committed to ajourncy

of constant improvement,

Environmental, social and governance principles are part of
Bridgepoint’s DNA. They are embedded into our own business, and
they arc integrated into the fuli life-cycle of our funds” investments.

We consider each of the four ESG beliefs across four key
areas of acnivity:

Bridgepoint's Group operations - as opposed to the businesses

that Bridgepoint funds support.

- Tnvestment decision-making - the processes and approach that
Bridgepoint takes when assessing potential investments.

Portfolio operations — the products and services that investee
companies provide and how they might support the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals ("UN SDGs™).

- Portfolio practices — investee compames’ internal ESG policies
and performance.

ESG at the Group level

We aim to set the standard in corporate responsibility.

Maoving towards net zero, having a more representative workforce,
supporting our communities and strong governance arc headline
ambitions, We have the structures, policies, and people in place to
deliver these ambidions and support our broader beliefs as we believe
that sustainable and resilient businesses deliver stronger performance.

It 1s our aim to make Bridgepoint a leader and a role model in
corporate responsibility by continuously meeting and raising
environmental, social and governance standards.

In 2021, we partnered with ACT Commodities, a Bndgepoint
portfolio company and leading supplier of market-based
environmenral salutions, to purchase renewable electricity
for eight offices. with the remaining four? already operating
on renewable electricity tariffs, meaning that Bridgepoint
offices globally have been operating on 100% renewable
clectnaity simce 2020.
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How we approach ESG .. ..:-...

Carbon neutrality — we became carbon-neutral in 2021, offsetting the
greenhouse gas emussions associated with our operations since 2020,
and are now accelerating our plan to reduce emissions and support our
portfolic companies to do the same.

In September 2022, Bridgepoint’s London colieagues moved into a
new office which has an overall bullding BREEAM1 Hxcellent rating,
with Bridgepoint floors pending an Qutstanding rating, which
contributes to our Greup carbon reducton plan.

Increasing gender diversity - we met an initial target of 25%
female representarion in investment teams in 2019 and have
since raised this targer to 40%,

Governance

Our rigorous approach to the management of fund investments
includes putting in place structures to ensure that Bridgepoint
remains accountable and transparent, and thac there is complete
ahgnment of interest berween the Company and third-parry
fund mnvestors.

The recently constituted Board-level ESG Committee, comprising
Non-Execunive Directors, aims to ensure that £ESG considerations,
including climate concerns, are integrated into the Company's
strategic and financial planning. It will oversee the implementation
of the Group’s E3G policies and also monitor ESG performance
and risk indicators across the Group and its investment port{olio.
Non-Executive Director Angeles Gareia-Poveda recently joined
the advisory board of the Climate Governance Initiative, a giobal
initiative in collaboration with the World Economic Forum, which
aims to enable effectrve climare corporate governance and mobilise
boards 1o act. Her expertise and involvement in this inidative

will help ensure that the Board stays up to date on indusmry

best practices.

ESG team

In 2022, our ESG team grew from a tezam of two to a team of five
across our privarte equity and credit strategies, including the arrival
of anew Head of Sustainability, Carole Brozyna. Since these
additions ro the team, the pricrity has been to focus on risk and
compliance management and on how to build sustainable value
creation throughout the investment process. In January 2023, the
Head of Sustainability presented the team’s progress and areas of
focus in the coming vear to the Executive Committee.

1 Building Reseaich Fstabiishment Environmental Assessment Method ("RREFANM")
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Training

All of our private equity investment professionals are asked to
complete compulsory ESG training. delivered by the British
Private Equity & Venture Capiral Association (“BVCA").
Bridgepoint and the BVCA worked closely to develop a pioneering
ESG training course in 2016 which has since become one of the
leading industry courses. Although delivered by the UK’s industry
body, the course 15 designed to suit protessionals working in all the
jurisdictions in which we operarte.

Diversity, equity, and inclusion (“DE&I”)
Bridgepoint is an international business: our employees come from
mare than 25 countries and speak over 20 languages. But
nationalities and languages arc just the start. We are working hard
to enrich the diversity of our organisation on every level including
with respect to gender, ethnicity, and social background.

In 2015, we recognised that Bridgepoint and the wider alternative
assct management industry needed to do more 1o develop greater
gender diversity. Cur response was to launch a 10-year programme
1o increase the representation of women in our business.

An initial targer of 25% female representation in the investment team
was met in 2019, and then raised 1o 40%. Progress has been ditven by a
gender-balanced recruitment policy through our International Associate
Programme, targeting a 50:50 gender spht. We work hard 1o support
our female talent through programmes that give them access to senior
role models and experienced mentors as well as peer support.

Although gender remains our primary focus, we believe that all
forms of diversity improve our performance and have widened our
efforts to include other forms of diversity. In 2022, our Paris office
added disability to its DE&I focus, and in London we continued
our efforts on ethnic and social background diversity, participating
in the 10,000 Black Interns programme which aims to address the
under-representation of Black talent in the financial sector and
ranning an insights week where we welcomed 59 participants
aged berween 16 and 21 from all backgrounds o learn more

abourt our industry. In the US, we participate in Girls Who Tnvest

and place a strong emphasis on hiring female interns.

Our DE&I initatives are wide-ranging and include:
Women’s Mumal Mentoring Programme;
- Women’s Role Maodel Dinner Series;

- networking events for female portfelio company professionals
(Paris office initiative);
parental coachimg; and

- formal DE&I or ESG objectives for all colleagues.
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Strategic Report

Bridgepoint creates
lasting, sustainable
positive Impact

The Environment

Tackling climate change
through our investments by
both reducing risk and impact
and developing solutions
and opportunities

Society

Growing businesses benefit
their communities

Diverse groups make
better decisions

Measurement

Governance

Well governed businesses
perform better and are
more resilient

Effective measurement is the foundation of improved performance
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ESG in the private equity investment

process

Before, during, after

We carry out thorough ESG due diligence
before we invest. We are proactive in
working with our portfolio companies to
raise their ESG ambitions in line with our

beliefs. We help them deliver their targets.

Strategic Report

By embedding ESG in the strategies of
our portfolio companies, we set them up
for sustainable success both during and
after the investment period.

Pre-investment

First and foremost, we do not invest in
companies whose products, services or
practices cause environmental or social
harm, and those withour a path to transform
into a positive contributor to society.

When we first consider a potential investment, our team will
identfy any potential ESG red flags and oppormunities as part of
our early transaction screening, As an example, in Bridgepoint
Furope, we have an exclusion list thar highlights sectors and
activities that we will not support. An oppeortumry can be rejected
on ESG grounds ar this or any later stage. We arc currently in the
process of applying this to our other investment strategics actoss
the private equity business.
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As the opportunity moves into full due diligence, the investment
team 1s responsible for ensuring that any ESG-related issues are
idenufied and assessed.

The findings from 184G due diligence and any recommended
remedial actions form a key part of the analysis presented to the
rclevant Bridgepoint Investment Advisery Committee.

We align all investment decisions in support of achieving long-
term value creation. We assess:

the company’s alignment 1o the UN SDGs;
- any ESG congiderations related to the company’s business model;
the company’s existing ESG policies and programmes; and

- opportunities for improvement.
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Strategic Report

Directly

post-investment

We aim to discuss ESG collaboratively
with portfolio companies as early as
possible - from the due diligence stage
before we have made the investment
through to signing and closing the
investment and beyond.

Following completion, as part of a value creation 100-day plan,

the investment team will work with management to appoint a Board
member responsible for ESG marers and to nominate an individual o
take responsibility for ESG on a day-to-day basis if such a person has net
already been nominated. Tt is mandatory for all Bridgepoint portfolic
companies to appoint a Board member responsible for CSG marters
within six months of entry to the portfolio and is now one of our
Sustainable Financial Disclosure Regulation (*SFDDR”) Article 8 objectives.

As part of this early engagement period, we will share our "ESG
guidelines for Bridgepoint-backed companics” and ouline our
expectations, as wel} as introduce the lead executive to our ESG
monitoring programme.

Tn 2022, Bridgepoint's ESG team piloted a new ESG Onboarding
Survey for newly acaquired portfolio companies o complete, which
allonws the team o idendfy opportunities for improvement and
sustamable value creation. This balds on the due diligence findings to
generzte a detalled understanding of current ESG performance. Once
this initial discovery phase is complete, a roadmap will be agreed with
management that inchudes company-specific ESG ininanves and
corresponding key performance indicators ("KPIs™).




Bridgepeint — 2022 Annual Report & Accounts

Strategic Report

During the
iInvestment
period

Throughout the fund investment period,
we ensure management teams
regularly review their ESG policies,
ensuring they remain aligned with
Bridgepoint’s expected standards

and industry-specific good practice.

Bridgepoint provides guidance and support to management teams
via the Bndgepoint Board representative and/or Bridgepoint’s
dedicated ESG team. External ESG advisers may alse be engaged
1o provide specific areas of expertise.

In 2022, the ESG rearn hosted global webinars to communicarte
Bridgepoint’s expectations and processes to portfolio comparnies more
effectrvely. In Q3 2022, the team hosted an educarional webinar,

n partnership with leadmg ESG experts, to commence a global
compliance programme. The purpose of the programme was to support
portfolic comparies improve six core compliance policies (ang-bribery
and corruption, ant-money laundering, cyber security, human rights
and modern slavery, health and safety, and whistleblowing) through

the provision of a set of global guidance documents.
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Tracking performance is a vital and evolving element of improving
115G practices during fund investment. At the portfoho company
level, management teams regularly report on KPIs. From our 2022
ESG portfolio company reporung campuign, we found that 83% of
our portfolio companics are monitoring ESG KPTs, and 71% of
those report these KPIs to cither their Board or Exccunive
Committec. We understand the importance of collecting and
reporung reliable data, and thart is why we refined and updared

our annual portfolio company survey and hosted a portfolio-wide
webinar in late 2022 to kick-off our 2022 reporung campaign.

At the mdustry level, we are acuvely engaged in driving greater
consistency in performance monitoring, for example, via our
position as a Steering Comimittee member of the ESG Data
Convergence [nitiative ("EDCI™).

We alm to create valuce for our investors by ecmbedding ESG
practices at our portfolio companies. Please see the Element case
study on page 62 for details on this.
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At
divestment

Our goal 15 tO set up businesses for We aim to ensure that, like for the Bridgepoint Group, ESG

p . becomes a key part of our portfelio companies’ operations.
sustainable success following the . _
We also ensure thar governance strucrures pur in place during

Brldgep01nt mvestment PerlOd- investment are sustainable post-investment and include
detailed information on ESG-related matters as part of
vendor due diligence.
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ESG in practice

Strategic Report

How integrating ESG considerations into decision-making,
both before and during the investment period, works in practice:

Element Materials 'I'echnology

Sector: Business Services

Element, a leading provider of lab-based testng services globally,
was exited by Bridgepoint in carly 2022 for §7 billion. The
company has a well-developed sustainability programme and
strategy which was a contribuung factor to exit discussions and the
successful exit muluple achieved.

Element has positioned itself as the partner of choice for many
customers facing new challenges in delivering their own
sustainability and ESG agendas. Element’s core end markets
include Connected Technologics and [ife Sciences, as well as
Aerospace, Energy and Automotive. The Automotive sector is
facing sigmficant sustamnability challenges, such as decarbonisation
and rransitioning to renewable energy, where Element 1s able to
provide direct support. By exit, 60% or over $650 million of sales
were directly attributable 1o supporting customers’ ESG agendas.

Furthermore, Element received a Sustainalytics rating placing
1tin the top 1.5% of all companics assessed globally based on the
company’s exposure and management of ESG risks. This result
shows that Element is not only a leader within its industry but
across all industries globally,

A track record of industry leadership

2007 2013

Founding member and
contributor to Walker
Guidelines for Disclosure
and Transparency
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Became a UN PRI signatory

Published our first Responsible
Investment Policy

® clement

By exir, over

$650 million

(60%) of sales were ESG-related

In the top

5%

of all companies assessed by Sustainalyrics

2016

ESG incorporated into our governance with the
inaugural executive ESG Commirtee mesting

BVCA training on responsible investment
rolled our to all investment team members

2009 2014 2017

Launched the ESG topics become ESG team launched
Bridgepoint embedded in investment

Charitable Trust decision-making
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Humanetics C HUMmAN: |

Sector: Advanced Industrials

For aver 70 years, Humanetics has been a pioneer in crash

test dummies, safery systems, simulation software, and sensor
technologies designed to save lives. Humanetics is leading the
charge in addressing gender bias in car safety which has made
women, > % of the driving populauen, 73% mwie Lkely to be
severely injured and 17% more likely to die in a serious accident.

Tagether with US regulators, Humanetics developed advanced
biofidelic crash test dummies of women, children, the elderly,
and people of various weights and heights to fill the gap in
conventional safety protocols.

Bridgepoint and Humanetics have partnered with industry groups
striving for equity in vehicle safery by educaring on and
advocarting for crash resting standards thar protect everybody.

Humanetics is also committed to the health and safery of its

own cmployees, ITn November 2021, the Michigan QOccupational
Safety and Health Administration granted an award

to Humanetics for exemplary health and safety commitment to
employees. The Consultation, Education and Training Silver
Award was presented to the company for maintaining an
exemplary health and safety record with no lost time accidents,
whilst demonstrating a strong commitment to a safery culrure.

2020

Bridgepoint Hardship Fund
launched to help support our
communities through Covid-19

2019 2021

Consistent ESG
TEPOTTing across
the portfolio

Strategic Report

Achilles

Sector: Business Services

ON Achilles

Achilles supports companies and industry communities to

achieve their sustainability obhiganons using its supply chaim risk
management solution to validate the provenance of their suppliers.
Working from offices in 17 countries, Achilles vahidates 54,000
supplicrs in energy, mining, constmicrion, logistics, manufacturing,
and retall, ensuring they meet local and global regularions to
protect the environment, hezlth and safety, and human rights of
employees. Achilles auditors visit over 6,000 client sites annually.

Achilles leads by example, baving received for the second year

a Brighter Futures Award for Climate Action, achieving an 80%
annual reduction in all scopes of 1CO ¢ emissions. Achilles holds
ISO 14064-1° certification globally for greenhouse gas emissions
with quantitative uncertainty at less than 3%. Achilles has
established an Ethical Working Business Group to promote
collaboration in tackling unethical employment practices and 1s a
member of the Alliance Agamst Exploitanion in UK construction.

1 150> 14064 consists of thiee pans, each with a difTerent techmical Tocus Part 1 of the
F
standaid relates 1o "Specification with guidanue ar che organisation level for
guantilication and reporurg of gteennause gas emissions and removals”™.

2022

Bridgepoint’s ESG ream grows to five including
a dedicarted credit resource

ESG-linked bridge facility put in place for BE VTI,
a first for Bridgepoint Private Equity

Project launched to estimate our financed emissions
actoss the privare equity and credit portfolios

BE VII, BG II, BDL IIT and BCO IV become
Bridgepoint's first SFDR Aurticle 8 aligned funds

ESG-linked bridge facilities put in place for BCO IV
and BDL I, a first for Bridgepoint Credit
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Strategic Report

ESG in the credit investment process

Lending weight

Bridgepoint Credit invests across the capital structure and
risk-reward spectrum through its three complementary strategies
of Syndicated Deby, Direct Lending and Credit Opportunities,

ESG lies ar the core of these credit stracegies.

Repardless of the investment strategy, we always sUive (o improve
environmental and soctal outcomes in line with our beliefs.

Where we make credit investments, we apply an ESG-centred due
diligence framework and incentivised loan pricing.

During the investment period, the credit sppormunities strategy often
fallenws a privare equiry-like approach to value creation, mcluding in
relation to ESG. Direct lending funds, on the other hand, typically
have less influence over their portfolio companies’ strategies.

However, whether in respect of credit opportunities or direct
lending, steps can be taken to ensure ESG plays a key rale in the
portfolio, through:

Pre-investment screening

We loock 1o invest in businesses that coantribute 1o the UN SDGs.
As aresult, the credit team regularly rejects investment
upportunities that either carry D54 risk or operate in harmful
industries. When we first consider a potenrial investment the
screening process includes the use of an exclusion list, highlighting
the harmful sectors and activities that we will not support. In
addition to assessing the company, we also assess the shareholders
(typically, a private equity firm) to understand how ESG issues will
be supported during the life of the investment.

Bridgepoint Credit evaluates potential investee companies on two
primary criteria:

- ESG Sclutions: Assessing if and how a company and the
industry in which it operates in fulfils ESG goals usimg the
framework of the UN SDGs,

ESG Practices: Assessing the environmental, social and
governance processes implemented within each company,
evaluated based on Bridgepoint Credics proprietary ESG survey
that 15 completed by the company and/ar its shareholders.
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Incentivisation

Bridgepoint Credit is at the forefront of a new market centred
arpund actively incentivising ISG performance through rhe
pricing of loans. Margin ratchets inked to ESG outcomes are
mcorporated imto loan documentaton, enabling the interest rate
on aJoan to vary based on ESG performance against specific
targets. These specific ESG targets vary for each company, based
on topics televant to the business Targels are set with the aim of
being in alignment with the Sustainability-Linked Loan Principles
and may include carbon reduction, waste reduction, increasing
employee diversity, and improving performance within third-parry
sustainahility assessments.

Monitoring

Bridgepoint Credit monitors the ESG strategy progress of its
portfolio companies through requested updates on the previously
completed ESG surveys from portfolio companies and
sharcholders every year. This allows us to assess ESG performance
on an ongoing basis and use this survey as a platform for
engagement with the portfolio.

The long-term goal 1s to make the asscssment of climate impact a
core part of our credit analysis. The challenge is to obrain data
from companies that do not often measurc their ewn climate
impact. In 2022, Bridgepoint Credit partnered with a leading
global carbon accounting platform 1o assess the carbon foorprints
of BDL T and BCO IV portfolio companies. Please see TCFD
Metrics and targets for more informarion.
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ESG industry associations

Strategic Report

Bridgepoint drives positive change in the investment industry.

We publicly advocate for and champion responsible investment and share
our experiences and practices with the wider investment community through
our engagement in the following industry-wide associations and initiatives:

Industry associations

PRI - Bridgepoint became a signatory to the UN-backed Principles
tor Respensible Investment (*UN PRI™) 10 years ago, in 2013.
Please sce the next page far our latest UN PRI score.

BVCA - Bridgepoint is a member of the Brirish Private Equiry and
Venture Capital Association and follows the Walker Guidelines for
Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity.

Tnvest Europe — Bridgepoint is a member of Invest Europe,
farmerly known as EVCA, the European Private Equity & Venture
Capiral Associarion, which represents the private equity
community across Eurape.

European Leveraged Finance Association - ELFA is a trade body
that seeks a more transparent, efficient and resilient leveraged
finance marker.

France Invest - Bridgepoint is a member of France Invest, a
professional organisation bringing together nearly 400 French
management companies and nearly 180 advisory firms.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

(“DE&I”) initiatives

Level 20 - A not-for-profit organisarion which promotes gender
equality and diversity in private equity. Bridgepoint’s co-head of
UK investment activities, Emma Wartford (Partner and co-chair of
the DE&I Committee), sits on Level 20's Advisory Commirttee.

France Invest - Bridgepoint’s Head of Sourhern Europe, Frédéric
Pescatori (Partner and co-chair of the DE&] Commirttee), co-heads
the Talent & Diversity Commission of France Invest, which
promotes industry-wide efforts to increase diversity within
investment firms. QOther members of the Paris investment team
are also active within the Commission, including Anne-Sophie
Moinade, who co-led the publication of France Invest's rulebook
to promote social diversity ar industry level.

ILPA’s Diversity in Action — Bridgepoint is a signatory to the
Tnstitutional Limited Parmers Association’s ‘Diversity in Action’
initiative which aims ro advance diversity, equity and inclusion.

10,000 Black Intermns — We became a member of the ‘10,000 Black
Interns’ programme in 2020 to help address the underrepresentation
of Black talent in the financial scctor.

Our Investors — We are a member of Out Investars, a global organisanon
that was founded with the mission to make the divect investing industry
more welcoming for LGBTQ- individuals.

Sustainability initiatives

iCT = In 2021, Bridgepoint joined the Initiative Climat
International, an initiative for private equiry action on climare
change in support of a collective commitment to understand and
reduce carbon emissions of private equity-backed compames and
secure sustainable investment performance.

ESG Darta Convergence Imitiauve (“EDCI”) - We are a founding
and Steering Committee member of the EDCI which was set up by
a group of GPs and [.Ps, led by CalPERS and Carlyle, who have
convened to form the private cquity industry’s first-cver
vollaboration to align on a standardised set of F.30G metrics and a
mechanism for comparative reporting.

Sustainable Markets Initiative (“SMI17) - We are members of the
SMT's private equity roundrable. The SMI, which was launched by
HRH The Prince of Wales at the World Economic Forum 2020, 15
a global coalition of leading companies thar share a vision for the
need 1o accelerate global progress towards a sustainable future and
to tackle climate change and hindiversity 1oss.
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ESG performance

UN PRI 2021 score published in 2022

We are pleased to have received the top raung in all three
maodules of our PRI assessment. This achievement recognises
Bridgepoint’s effort and commitments to being a leader in
corporate responsibility, and to integrating environmental,
social, and governance principles into the full lifecycle of

our investments.

Strategic Repart

Module Bridgepoint Median
Investment & 97 /100 60 /100
Stewardship Policy

11 1] L] ] |
Direct - 97 /100 67 /100
Fixed income —
Private debt EEEEE EEEE
Direct - 95 /100 66/ 100
Private equity

EEREN EEEN
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Sustainalytics

For the first time, we received a Sustainalytics score in 2022,
which put us in the top 15 percentile in our sub-industry {Asset
Management and Custody Services) and 35* percentile m all
companies scored globalty. We are pleased with this score, that
purs us in the medium-risk category, just short of achieving a
low-risk score. However, we believe that we can do better in the
furure and earn a score that reflects our KSG programme and
progress to date.
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TCFD

We are committed to supporting the transition to a low carbon
economy and journey to net zero in line with the Paris Agreement and
reporting our progress transparently. We are at the early stages of this
journey and the following disclosure details our second response in line
with the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures
(“TCFD") recommendations.

'T'his sectian summarises how we integrate climate risks and opportunitics into our key business and investment decisiens and includes
data on our direct greenheuse gas (“GHG”) emissions.

Whilst the direct environmental impact from Bridgepoint's own operations is considered to be limited, we are working on reducing cur
carbon footprint through the implementation of office emission reduction initiatives, supplemented by verified carbon credits. We are
also focused on reducing our 'financed emissions' by supporting our portfolio companies in developing carbon reduction roadmaps and
2CCOMPanyIng actions.

We consider our biggest exposurc to climate issues to be 1n our investment portfelio and this is where we contnue to focus our attention.

Compliance statement

In accordance with the requirements of Listing Rule 9.8.6(8), Bridgepoint Group Plc has included climate-related financial disclosures
consistent with the TCFD recommendations within this Annual Repart. At the time of the publication, the Company is fully compliant
with the following disclosures:

- Governance (all recommended disclosures)

Risk management (all recommended disclosures)
- Strategy (disclosures (a) and (b))

Metrics and targers (disclosures {a) and (b))

Further work 1s currently underway to enhance our reporting on Strategy disclosures (a) and (b) and to achieve full compliance with
disclosure (c).

We are in the process of carrying our a comprehensive climate-related risk mapping exercise to develop a more gramalar overview of our
material risks and impacts over the short-, medium-, and long-term. The results of this assessment will be included within our next TCFD
disclosure, or the one thereafter, once finalised, as it is dependent on a new dedicated in-house expert to deliver this.

Additionally, one of our focus arcas in 2023 is measuring and reducing our most significant emissions, financed emissions, through our
portfolio company Climate Programme At Bridgepoint Group level, we will continue to work on a carbon reduction action plan and
finalise this once we recruit an in-house climare expert. This wark will further strengthen the Group’s sustainability strategy and enable
1s to become compliant with TCFD Metrics and targets disclosure (¢). The current metrics used by the Company te monitor and manage
relevant climare-related risks are provided in the Metrics and rargets section.

We will continue improving upon our financial climarte-related reporting and expect to be able to publish an improved TCFD report
year-on-year, closing the gap to full comphance.

6/
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Governance

Board
oversight of
climare-related
risks and
opportunities

T,
Pl

The Board, assisted by the ESG Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee, provides ulumate oversight over the
Group's responsible investment strategy, including chmare-relared risks and opportunitics.

The recently constituted Board-level ESG Committee, comprising Non-Exccurtive Directors, aims to ensure that ESG
considerattons, including climate concerns, are integrated into the Company’s strategic and fmancial planning and will
oversee the implementation of the Group's ESG policies approved by the Executive Commuttee. Tt will alse monitor ESG
performance and risk indicators across the Group and its Investment portfolic. Non-Executive Director Angeles Garcia-
Poveda recendy joined the advisory board of the Climate Governance Initative, a global initiative in collaboration with the
World Economic Forum, which aims to enable effective climate corporate governance and mabilise boards to act. Her
expertise and involvernent in this midative will help ensure that our Board stays up to date on industry best practices.

T'he principal responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Commitree include monitoring the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management systems, including the Group's management of any marerial climate-related risks.

Assessing

and man aging
climate-related
risks and
opportunitics
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Recognising that ESG facrors and climate concemns can have @ matenal impact on the Group's performance and our investment
acuvities, Adam Jones, our Group Chief Operatng Officer (COO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), has been appeinted as the
Board-level executive sponsor for ESG matters, whilst our Chief Investment Officer (CIO), Xavier Rober, is responsible for ESG
marters at the Executive Committee level and oversees the work of our in-house ESG team and investment teams.

The Executive Committee executes the Group’s responsible investment strategy. The Committee meets monthly
and implements the Group’s ESG strategy and sets prionities, sustainability targers and responsible investment
procedures and palicies. The respansibility for identifying, assessing, and managing climate-related risks impacting
Bridgepoint's operations is diffused across various teams within the organisation, such as the ESG team, Legal &
Compliance team, and the investment teams.

The ESG ream, with support from the Legal & Compliance team and input from relevant business units, is
responsible for developing a register of climate-related risks and opportunities as well as devising suitable mitigation
strategies for marerial risks identified. Tn addition, the ESG team provides support to the Board, its committees, and
the Executive Committee in carrying out their responsibilities and assists in the development and implementation of
the Group's ES(G strategy. 'The ESG team reports directly to the CIO and the ESG Committee, while the Tegal &
Compliance team provides regular updates 1o the Audir and Risk Commtree on risk-related marters. The Group

also draws on the expertise of external ESG advisers and climate experts as necessary 1o effectively implement ESG
initiatives throughout the firm and develop best practices.

Considering our business model, we recognise that the majority of our exposure to climate-related risks is related to
our investmenr activities. Therefore, we have established pre-investment ESG due diligence processes to idenufy
and evaluate the level of exposure to ESG and climare-related risks in both our credit and private equity portfolios.
Within Bridgepoint Private Equity, the investment teams report the findings of the diligence process and the
recommended remedial actions w Bridgepoint’s Investment Advisory Committee (“TACT), which informs the
investment decision. Post-acquisition, the Portfolio Monitoring Committee (‘PMC”) meets every three months
during the first vear of ownership and then anmually to monitor the companies’ ESG performance and review their
exposure to ESG-related risks, including climate-relared risks when relevant.

Within Bridgepoint Credit. the investment teams report the findings of the pre-investment screening to the relevant
creditinvestment committees, which consider the information as part of the ultimate investment decision. In addition,
the investment teams monitor ESG risks on an ongoing basis and hold semi-annual ESG portfolio reviews that are dedicated
to updating ESG performance based on portfolio company progress or updates which may inclade climare risk.

The monitoring of material ESG considerations continues during the investment period and the credit and private
equity irmvestment tearmts engage with the portfolio companies to ensure that they align with the Graup's HSG
standards and have appropriate controls in place. A priority of Bridgepoint’'s ESG engagement strategy within our
ptivare equity portfolio is to ensure the portfolio companies have nominated a Board member o take responsibiliry
for ESG matrers within six months of investment, if ho one has yet been designated.
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Identifying

Considering the day-to-day operations of the Group across our office network, spanning 10 countries, the impacts

climate-related of transitional and physical climate-related risks to the Group’s direct operations are considered negligible. However,

risks and
opportunities
over the short,
medium, and
long rerm

wc recognise that we are already living in a changing climate and climate-related risks can develop rapidly and have
far-reaching and potenually irreversible conseguences.

Therefore, with third-party support to kick-start the process, we are currently carrying out a comprechensive
assessment of the physical and trangitional climate-related risks the Group may potentially be faced with under
three different climate pathways over the short {0-3 years), medium (3-10 years) and long term (10+ years) from
the present day up to 2050. The assessment telies on the following three scenarios:

Low-emissions scenario in which an ambitious and coordinated global effort to implement stringent climate
policies will lead to a considerable reduction of global GHG emissions, limiting the temperature rise to 1.5 -1.8°C
with little or ne overshoot. This leads te high transitional risks but relatively Tow physical risks.

Medium-emissions scenario, which presumes moderate climate ambition with countries fulfilling the pledges
set out in their Nationally Determined Contributions, leading to a decline in GHG emissions, burt resulting
nonetheless in a 2.6 - 3°C global temperarture rise. The scenario presents moderate to severe physical risks
with transition 1isks being relatively low.

- High-emissions scenario in which little to no climare action is taken, with countries continuing to rely on the
consumption of fossil fuels, leading to a consistent increase in global GHG emissions, resulting in a global temperature
rise of approximately 4°C. The scenario presents no transition tisks, bur very severe physical climare risks.

A range of scenarios were chosen to gain a comprehensive overview of the potentlal physical and transitional risks
and the assessment draws on a st of socio-economic and climate variables, including GG emissions, cemperarare
rise, frequency of heatwaves, frequency of extreme weather events, carbon pricing, and loss of GDP due ro
implementation of climate policies, among others. Data used for the indicators was at a global level, not accounting
for the specificaions of individual counnies. The scenarios are based on the data provided by the Network for
Greening the Financial System {*“NGF5" and the Tntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (‘TPCC™). As
Bridgepoint operates within the financial industry, scenarios developed by NGFS were deemed most appropniate,
however as NGFS has yet 1o develop a ‘hot-house” scenario in which global warming is likely 1o reach or cxceed
4°C, it was decided to use IPCC projections to be able to fully explore porential physical climate risks. The aim of
the assessment is to establish a register of marterial climate-related risks and opporwnities, which are then integrared
into the Company’s central risk register to ensure marterial climate-relared risks are considered in the Company’s
strategic and financial planning.

Given the scale of our investrent activities, our principal exposure to climate-related risks is undoubtedly related to our
portfolio comparies. We are committed to avoiding investrment in companies which may cause social or environmental
harm. Hence, exclusion lists have been put in place for Bridgepoint Credit and the Bridgepoint Europe private equiry
investment strategy, which provide an overview of non-compliant sectors and activities thar Bridgepomt will decline to
consider for investment. The BE exclusion list 1s currently being expanded acress all private equity strategies.

The Group recognises that our portfolio companies have LSG risks and opportunides, which vary by company,
sector, and jurisdiction, We have therefore developed pre-imvestment ESG due diligence processes to evaluate their
inherent and residual risk levels in our credit and private equity portfolios. During the due diligence process for
privare equity, our investment teams, in collaboration with external ESG advisers, identify material ESG risks,
including climate-relared risks where relevant, and develop recommendarions for suitable contral measures.
The due diligence processes account for both physicat and transitional climate-related risks, including bur not
limited to climate regulations mandating measurement and reduction of Scope 1, 2 and 3 GHG emissions,
compliance obligations related to country-specific emission trading schemes, risk of flooding to key operational
locations, as well as associated impacts on supply chains. Following investment, the PMC will meet after three
manths, six months, nine months, 12 months and then once every vear throughour the holding period. ESG
forms part of every privare equity PMC discussion, including performance on climate KPIs.
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Strategy continued

e,
E L PR O

[dentifving
climate-related
risks and
opportunities
over the short,
medium, and
long term
continued

Impact of
climate-related
risks and
opportunities

Diuring 2021, the Group also carried out climarte-related risk assessments with support from a leading international
ESG consultancy. The analysis provided climate scenario heat maps for 43 companies within our private equity
portfolio. which constituted two thirds of cur assets under management, and the BDL 1T and BCQO TV funds within
our credit portfolio. The assessment considered the physical and ransitional climate-related risks 1o our portfolio
companies under the following three scenarios: low-emissions scenario, representing a global temperature rise of 1.5
-1.8°C; medium-emissions scenario, representing a global temperature rise of 2.6-3%C; and a high-emissions
scenario, representing a global temperature rise of around 4°C. To ensure consistency in our climate risk
management approach, the scenarios chasen for assessing climare-related risks to the Company's direct operations
and to the investment portfolio were consistent.

The assessment concluded thar, overall, our portfolio is exposed te relatively low climate risks. As climate scenario
analysis is an iterative process, we are committed to repeating this exercise, covering both the Group’s direct risks
and risks to our portfolie compantes, every two to three vears, as the underlying assumptions of the analysis develop
and change. Despite the low level of misk identified 1n the assessments, we are currently in the process of updarting
our ESG due diligence processes for both private equity and credit to include additional climate risk considerations.

The direct impact of climate-related risks on the Group's aperations 1s considered to be limired. Therefore, while
climare-related impacts are considered within our risk management system, they arc not a principal risk. Examples
of risks and opportunivies identified in our portfolio for technology and software businesses include physical risks
such as exwreme weather cvents affecting a company's I'l and office infrascructure {including data cencres, servers,
and cables) potennally leading to an increase in operating expenditure and decreased staff producriviry.
Furthermore, in the consumer sector, as consumerts reduce their personal carbon foorprints, under the low carbon
scenario, ransition nisks such as the reduction in consumption and demand of animal protein could lead 1o loss of
revenue. On the other hand, companies may be able to offset this risk partially or wholly, and even generate
revenues, by developing meat-free alternatives for consumers.

As previously mentioned, we are currently working on updating our risk register of material climarte-related risks,
which will then be integrated into our exisring risk management system. The risk register will provide a more
granular uverview of the relevant climate-related risks, enabling us to develop a more comprehensive account of our
level of exposure. Moreover, one of our prionties for 2023 is to increase the granularity of our carbon disclosure
ahd devise appropriate carbon reduction plans and inittatives to decrease the Group's carbon impact. Furthermore,
we continue to work towards achieving our target of net zero across our portfolic by 2040. This is in line with
targets in place in the jurisdictions in which we operate, such as the United Kingdom and the European Union,
which have established net zero targets.

ESG and climate considerations play a significant role in cur investment practices. As previously noted, the
assessment of climate-related risk exposure in our private equity and credit portfolios, carried out in 2021,
considered the current level of physical and wansitional risk exposure to be negligible. All our portfolio companies
are subject to a pre-investment ESG due diligence assessment, and we are currently in the process of updating the
process to include additional climate considerations with the aim of further reducing the level of climate-related rigk
our portfolio 18 exposed to.

The potential impact of ESG-related risks zlso gaides our strategic thinking - our credit strategy uses a proprietary
assessment Lo analyse the ESG performance of potengal investments; our private equity strategy has invested in a
reporting tocl to better monitor and track the performance of porrfolic companies against numerous ESG KPls.
Further demonstrating our drive to invest respensibly, we have committed to aligning all our new private equity
funds to Article 8 of the SFDR, including BE VII and BG 1T which have dedicated carbon objectives. Within the
credit business, BDL 11T and BCO TV are also aligned to Article 8.
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Strategy continued

Climate
SCenario
analysis and
resilience

Based on the climate scenario analysis we’ve carried out, which considered three potential pathways, mcluding a
2°C or lower scenario, we have concluded that the rigsk of financially matertal climate-related impacts on the
Group’s direct operations is negligible. Taking into account the climare scenario analyses, our ideniified risk
exposure and the processes we have established to manage ESG-related risks within our business, we consider our
current strategy to be resilient to potential climate change impacts. We operate in various different geographies and
have esrabhshed a diversified investment strategy in six different scctors to Hmit the risk exposure of our portfolic.

Tn the event of significant climate change impacts, relevant disaster recevery policies are in place to ensure the safe and
conrinued operation of our office and 1T infrastricture, which are overscen by the Execunve Committee supported by
relevant departments such as ' and ESG. The responsibilicy for idenrifying and managing 158G and climate-relared
risks is diffused across the Company as illustrated in our Governance disclosure, ensuring effective oversight of ESG
matters. We are also currently working on devising a climate-related misk register to closely monitor the development of
any potentally material risks. The Group has raken a proactive approach towards management of ESG issues, and we
continue to grow our competence in this field to be prepared for any future challenges.

As mentioned, the overall climate risk identified across our portfolio was considered low. We have consciously
chosen not ro consider investment in companies which may cause envirenmental or social harm by establishing
exclusion lists. In addition, 2 multi-stage due diligence process has been established to ensure ESG risks, including
climate-relared risks where material, with potential to impact our portfolio companies are idennfied pre-investment
and effectively managed and mitgated during the investment period. The process also includes an assessment of the
partfolio company’s resilience and developing recommendarions for addressing any gaps in the company’s current
ESG strategy. If the evaluation raises any concerns about unmanaged marerial climate risks, we proactively engage
with the investee’s management to eliminate or mitigate any potential impacts to the viability and furure growth of
the company. These are then monitored closely on an ongeing basis by the PMC as mentioned previously.
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TCFD ..

Risk management

Processes for
identifying
and assessing
climate-related
risks

P

The Legal & Comphance team, which reports to the Audic and Risk Committee and the Execurive Commirtree,
regularly assesses the Group’s key risk exposures, including emerging risks such as climate-related risks.

Cur in-house ESG team, in callaboration with the Legal & Compliance team and investment teams, is in the process
of developing a more granular risk register of climate-related physical and transitional risks with the potential to
have a marerial impact on the Group’s operations. The ¢limare-related risk register framework includes assigning
owners 1o all identified risks, summarises controls and mitigants, and specifies key risk indicators (“KRIs”). In
addition, it estimates the potenual financial and non-financial impact were the risk to eventuare, as well as the cost
of control measures. The quantification of potential financial impacts and the cost of mitigation measures will
facilitate the consideration of climate-related risks in the Group's strategic planning.

Ag risks are continually evolving, the Risk & Compliance and ESG teams perform regular horizon scanning to
identify emerging risks, paying particular attention to current and emerging regulatory risks. To support the ESG
and Legal & Compliance teams in staying up to date with ESG and sustainability-related regularions, law firm
Travers Smith was commissioned to conduct a comprehensive mapping exercise on current and future regulations
thar arc material o Bridgepoint, including those related to climate risk. Any material issues idennfied will be
escalared to the Executive Committee as appropriate.

With regard to identifying and assessing climate-related risks in our investment portfolic, we have established an
ESG due diligence process as previousty described. With support from external ESG advisers, our investment teams
assess the [SG performance of portfolic companies pre-investment. This identifies ESG risks, including climare-
related risks where material, evaluating the risk exposure and recommending apprapriate mitigation strategies. The
risk assessments are reviewed by the relevant investment committees. Furthermore, we have carried out a project to
estimate our financed emissions using the Partnership for Carbon Accounting Financials (“PCAFT}! methodology to
betrer understand the footprint of our portfolio companies and be able to support our portfolic companies in
reducing their emissions. Please see Metrics and targets for our disclosure.

Processes for
managing
climate-related
risks

At the Group level, any ESG and climate-related risks considered to have a marterial financial impact on the Group’s
financtal performance are included within the central risk management system. All enterprise risks are assigned an
owner from senior management, to ensure oversight of the risk management process, and subcategory risks are
owned by relevant ream members, with climate-related risks often drawing on the expertise of the ESG and Risk &
Compliance teams. Where specific technical or legal expertise is required, the Group is supported by our extensive
network of 1SG and legal advisers and ESG industry associations and working groups, such as 1C International,
Tnvest Europe, BVCA and France Invest. Mirtigation strategy, control measures and KRis are identified for each risk,
accounting for the effectiveness of the current control environment.

Across our investment strategies, we consider active engagement an essential component of Bridgepoint’s approach to
ESG risk management. Throughout the investment period, we support and collaborarte with the portfolio companies’
management teams to implement best-practice ESG processes, policies and risk management systems. Within cur
private equity portfolio, our investment teams work with portfolio company management reams to appoint & senior
execurive 1o champion ESG considerations on the Board, within stx months of investment, if no board-level oversight
of ESG 1ssues has yet to be established, in addition to an ESG contact who 1s responsible for ESG on a daily basls.
Furthermore, specific ESG KPIs are defined to monitor the company's progress and the investment teams offer their
expertise ta help the portfolio companies estabiish appropriate ESG and carbon reduction infuatives.

1. The Panmership for Carbion Accounung Finarcials helps tmancal insoutions assess and discose the GITG emissions trom therr loans andinvestments through GG accounung,
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Risk management continued

Processes for
managing
climarte-related
risks continued

Where possible, Bridgepoint Credic provides partfolio companies with financial incentives and penalties in the form
of ESG margin ratchets. The margin ratchets include specified ESG rargets relevant to the business which may
include climate KPls such as emission reduction targets. Thereby, management of ESG-related risks remains a focal
Topic throughout our investment period.

We zalso leverage our network of ESG advisers when necessary to support the portfolio companies in the process of
identifying and managing material ESG-related risks, Such an engagement approach helps us ensure thar our
portfolio companies develop industry-specific good management practices of ESG issues and remain aligned to
Bridgepoint’s standards, contnbuting towards the UN 5DGs.

Integration of
climate-related
risks into
overall risk
management

Within the Group’s risk management framewaork, risks are categorised into three areas - Strategic and External risks,
Investment risks, and Operational risks -, with ESG- and climate-related risks being considered through the lens of
the identified three categorics. The materiality of the risks is assessed based on two key factors: the likelihood of the
risks cventuating, and the potential impact on the Group's performance were the risks to eventuate, taking into
consideration both the financial impact as well as the non-financial impact such as reputational damage. The
prioritisation of the risks also considers factars such as speed to impact and whether the risk is trending in a
particular direction (see pages 78 and 79 for a more detailed overview of the Group's risk management processes).
Appropriate mitigation measures znd risk indicators arc identified for all risks and the effectiveness of established
control measures is regularly monitored by the Legal & Compliance reams, relevant Commutrees, and the Board.

As noted previously, a similar risk management process is In place for our investment portfolio, monitored and
managed by the ESG and investment teams with oversight from the ESG Committee. Any material climate risks
identified over the course of the KSG due diligence process are reviewed by the relevant committees, with our
Investment teams suppotting portfolio companies with developing ESG roadmaps, monitoring KFls and reporting
against progress. T'o encourage detailed disclosure on ESG matters, all portfelio companies are required to provide at
least annually a comprehensive account of their ESG performance, including management of climate-related risks
when considered material. In 2022, we also launched an onboarding ESG questionnaire for our private cquiry
portfolio companics, which includes climate-related considerations, to optimise ESG data capture. One of our key
priorities for 2023 1s gaining a more granular understanding of the carbon footprints of our portfolio companics and
supporting them in developing credible emissions reduction plans. To achieve this, we are in the progress of setting
up a centrally coordinated programme. In the internim, we have decided to estimate the financed emissions of our
privare equity and credit portfolio nsing PCAF methodology. Please see our disclosure under Metrics and targets.
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Metrics and targers

Metrics used We support the UN SDGs of the 2015 Paris Agreement and the ambition to limit global warming to 1.5°C above
1O 355655 pre-industrial levels. At Group level, we have focused on refining our carbon accounting to accurately measure our
climate-related  carbon impact and have been monitoring the Group’s Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions since 2019, In addition, this year,
we are also able o disclose the GHG emissions related o our investment portfolio, calculated in line with the GHG
Accounting & Reporting Standard for the Financial Industry, developed by PCAF.

risks and

opportunitics
In addition to metrics related to GG emissions, we track a broad range of ESG and climate-related metrics in our
private equity and credit Investment activities.

Our private equity investment team has defined a set of standardised KPIs that are annually collecred, such as
energy cansumption, adoption of climate-related policies and implementation of appropriate governance and nsk
structures, as well as specific KPIs adapted to individual portfolic companies, that are regularly monitored
throughout the investment period to ensure the portfolic companies’ alignment to Bridgepomnt’s ESG standards.

In our Private Credit business, we have established a portfolio company scoring system, which enables us to assess
company ESG performance against over 30 ESG KPTs, which are collected anmually, including environmental
metrics such as consumption of renewable energy and GITG emissions reduction.

In 2023, we plan te launch a centralised Climate Programme ta support each of our private equity portfelio
companies on carben footprint calculation, the development of tallored GHG emission reduction plans as well as
verification of carbon data.

Bridgepoint Qur Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions, and underlying total energy consumption, associated with Group operations arc
Group summarised in the table below. This information has been prepared in accordance with cur reporting requirements
emissions under the UK’s Streamlined Fnergy and Carbon Reporting (“SHCR”) scheme for quoted companies, in accordance with
and financed The Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limired Liabilicy Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report Reguladions) 2618

€missions Selected Scope 3 emissions have also been included to provide additional detail on our GHG inventory.

Table: Bridgepoint Group's emissions

o Current reporting year 2022 Comparison reporting year 2021
Emissions Scope UK  Rest of world Total - UK Restof waorld . Total
Scope 1 (tCO4e) 61.6 35.3 96.9 78.7 136 923
Scope 2 - location-based (tCO,e) ) 104.3 164.6 268.9 68.6 1124 181.0
Scope 2 - market-based tCOse) o 66.3 95.3 161.6 8.8 31.2 4.0
Deducted emissions related 1o the
purchase of renewable electricity 380 69.3 1073 5938 81.2 141.0
Taotal Scope 1-2 - location-based tCOye) 1659 200.0 3659 147.3 1260 2733
Tetal Scope 1+2 - market-based (tCO,e) 127.9 130.6 258.5 87.5 448 1323
Underlying total energy consumption
(kWh) 584953 861,499 1446452 752,771 640,717 1,393,488
Emissions intensity for Scope 1+2 -
locations-based (tCO,e/FTE) 0.76 1.38 1.01 078 0.92 0.84
Iimissions intensity for Scope 112 -
market-based (tCO,e/FTE) 0.59 0.90 0.71 046 0.33 0.41
Scope 3 emissions ([CO:E}) N/A N/A 2,482 4 N/A N/A 1,019.3

74



Bridgepoint — 2022 Annual Report & Accounts Strategic Report

Metrics and targets continued

Bridgepoint
Group
emissions
and financed
emissions
contniued

Methodology

In 2022, we invested in a software platform and external support to improve the accuracy and completeness of our
Group’s GHG emissions inventory. This allowed us 1o report on a significant portion of the emissions indircctly
arising from our operations, including our financing activities.

The method used for calculating GHG emissiams is in line wirth the GG Protocel Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard and 1SO 14064-1. We have mcluded all sites and activites which fall under our operational
control boundary.

The following are included in the methodology for the calculations above:
- Scope 1 emissions include ‘fugitive” emissions {tom cooling systems within our buildings.
Scope 2 emtssions include purchased electricity as well as heat procured for our offices. They have been

calculated using the location-based approach as well as the market-based approach to ilfustrate our efforts te
procure rencwable electricity since 2020.

- Carhon intensity was calculated based on average F'T'E for the year. Note thar due to a slight change in
methodology, a minor revision was made to the carbon intensity figure for 2021.

2022 Scope 3 emissions in the table include category 1 (purchased goods and services), category 5 (waste
generated in operations) and category 6 (business travel).

- Scope 3 category 1 cmissions {purchased goods and services) are based on a combination of the average-data and
spend-based methodologies.

Scope 3 category 5 emissions (waste generated in operations) are based on volumes of waste by rype produced in our offices.

Scape 3 category 6 emissions (business travel) are based on expenditure and distance travelled for air travel, rail
travel, taxis, and rental cars, and on number of nights stayed or expenditure for hotel stays.

Scope 3 category 15 emissions {investments) are based on calculations in line with PCAF methodology. These are
shown separately in the following section.

Scope 3 emissions are currently calculated for our global activities.

Estimated emissions from financing activities

IFor the first time, we have estimared portfolio company emissions of our entire private equity portfolio and selected
credit funds using PCAF methodology. The selected credit funds included in the estimared portfolio financed
emissions are BCO TV and BDL 11T, and over 2023 it is planned that more credit funds will be included in the scope
of this assessment. Weighted average carbon intensity (“WACT”) is a carbon mtensity metric thar measures tonnes of
CO,e (tCG;e™ per million dollars of revenue. It is an indicator recommended by TCFD to assess a portfoiio's
exposure to carbon intensive companies.

WACI
Strategy Total emissions WACI (Scope 1, 2) (Scope 1, 2and 3)
Private Equiry 1,173,943 1CO4e 56.35 tCOe/%m 22588 tCOze/bm
Private Credit 651651C0Oe 2498 tCO.e/$m 136.68 tCOye/$m

Comparisons with the previous reporting year

Our Scope 1 emissions have decreased; however, thisis mamly due to a change m methodology. The consumption
of narural gas was previously reported in Scope 1, but this is now reported in Scope 2 as this is purchased from
building managers. This scope also now inchudes emissions from cooling our buildings, arising from refrigerant
leakage (known as fugitive emissions).

Scope 2 emissions have risen significantly using both the location-based and market-based methodologies. This s

mainly due to moving the consumption of gas to purchased heating within Scope 2 o reflect our operational boundary.
Furthcrmore, a combination of people returning to work following Covid-19, as well as high electricity usage during the
fitting-out of our new l.ondon office which fell within our operational control boundary have sdded ro the increase.

75



Bridgepoint — 2022 Annual Report & Accounts Strategic Reporl

Metrics and targets continued

Bridgepoint Carbon intensity for the UK has decreased using the location-based methodology duc to an increase in headcount
Group and a decrease in Scope 1 emissions, however.

lesilons Scope 3 emissions relating to purchased goods and services, waste generated in operations, and business travel 4l
and financed increased in 2022 due 10 an increase in purchasing I'" equipment for our new London headguarters, our annual
emissions conference which brought our calicagues rogerher in Lishon, improved dara collection for business travel, and a
continucd natural increase acoivity following the Covid-19 pandemic.

Note that emissions for staff working from home was included in Scope 3 emissions for 2027 but was subsequently
removed due 1o these no longer being material following a return to office working,

Actions taken 1o redluce emissions
In 2022, we consolidated our three London offices into a single energy efficient location, which benefits from an
‘Excellent BREEAM rarting.

We have purchased renewable electricity for all our global offices since 2020, either through ‘green’ electriciry
rariffs or through the purchase of energy attribute certificates. Doing this reduces our Scope 2 emissions, using the
market-based methodology.

Our UK employees alsa benefit from electric vehicle rental and cycle to work schemes as parr of their benefits
package, and our London office provides electric vehicle charging points. In France, our employees arc encouraged
1o use electric bikes to commute around the city. These initiatives have the potential ro reduce emissions associated
with employee commuring (Scope 3, categary 7}, as well as reducing the personal cmissions of our employees.

Although we recognise that they do not reduce our emissions, we also purchase carbon credits in the following
certified natare-based investment schemes:

‘The Uchindile Mapanda reforestation project to rebuild carbon sinks in Tanzania {verifted carbon standard);
- The Francis Beidier forestry conservation project in the US (climate action reserve standard);

- The high impact reforestation project to conserve forests and support communities in Nicaragua (gold standard

for the global goals}); and

The Rotunda Forest project to improve forest management in Romania (verified carbon standard and climare,
community and biodiversity standards).

These nature-based investments are in linc with the *beyond value chain mirigation” recommendations from the
Science-Based Targets initiative as part of their net-zero standard.

Targets, Our key prionties for 2023 are to further enhance the granularity of our carbon accounting and to continue
performance,  implementing steps to minimise the Group’s carbon impact,

and key At Group level, we set a target in 2021 to procure 100% of the Group’s office electricity consumption from
priorities renewable sources since 2020 and we are pleased to report that we have fulfilled this targer to date.

Going forward, we are focused on raising our ambition and fooking for new ways to integrate climate considerations
into our sustainahility strategy, while continuing to reduce our environmental impact through office emission
reduction initatives, supplemented by verified carbon credirs.

Regarding our private equity investment activities, in the short-term and as part of our centralised Climate
Programme, we aim to ensure that by the end of 2023 (or within 12 months of Bridgepoint investment), all our
portfolio companies have established carbon accounting for their Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions and developed a
GHG emissions reduction plan. Those that already have this in place will be expected o receive verification on
their carbon dara. I'or the longer term, we have set an ambitious target to achicve net zerey in our portfolic by 2040,
to align with the ambition set out in the Paris Agreement.

We recognise that this is an ambitious agenda, and we will take into considerarion the marurity of our portfolio

companies’ ESG straregies, offering them the necessary level of support as they work towards improving their
sustainability performance.
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Non-financial information statement

The Group complies with the non-financial reporting requirements
contained in secrions 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act
2006. Details of our business model are included on pages 14 o
23 and our principal risks and how we manage those risks are
ncluded on pages 78 to 83.

Employee matters

At Bridgepomt we firmly believe that our people are our greatest
asset. From the recruitment of diverse and talented professionals
wha exhibit a passion for performance and drive, to the development
of staff through hands-on Jearmning and extensive training, we suive to
foster a collaborative and inclusive environment. We are committed
1o being an equal opportunities employer and oppose all forms of
unlawful discriminaton. As such, we ensure our overall levels of
remuneration are without gender bias and are designed 1o attract,
develop and retain talented employees.

Employee diversity

As ar 31 December 2022, the Group had 377 permanent
employees. Of those that provided data, 203 were male, and 173
were female. There are efforts to increase the pipeline of future
female leaders at rhe firm, such as a 50:50 International Associate
Programme target spht of men and women, and a targeted increase
in the number of women in the investment team tw 40% by 2025.

Human rights

We are committed 1o preventing any form of slavery and human
trafficking. We seek 10 ensure there are no such practices in our
business and supply chain. Penodically, Bridgepoint reinforces
policies against modern slavery and human trafficking through
firm-wide training.

We have also conducted a review of our own business, our
portfolio companies that are covered by our statement and
material suppliers. No concerns were raised by any of our due
diligence. The Group’s full modern slavery and human trafficking
statement for the year ended 31 December 2021 can be found at
bridgepomren

Policies and standards

The Group has a whistleblowing policy that encourages colleagues to
report suspected wrongdoing as soon as possible, and an externatly
managed whistleblowing reporting system is in place that allows
colleagues to raise concerns in confidence. Any whistleblowing
matters raised are escalated to the Audit and Risk Commirree.

Bridgepoint’s policies can be found on the company website in the
“Legal, Regulatory and Other Disclosures™ section.

Anu-bribery and corruption

We are committed 1o ethical business practices across all our
operations and investments. Cur palicy 1s never to offer, request or
receive bribes, and to refuse any request to pay them. We actively
seek to reduce opportunities for corruption. We do not invest in
companics or projects that engage I corruption o appear 1o have a
high 1isk of such behaviour. We investigate and deal with all reported
or identified cases of corruption in line with our policy, which applies
to all enrities within the Group wherever we do business,

Environmental matters

The Group's disclosures in accordance with the Streamlined
Cnergy and Carbon Reporting requirements are set out on
pages 74 to 76.
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Our approach and key
developments in 2022

The Group believes that risk management 1s a fundamental part of
robust corporate governance and good management practice.
Goed risk management does not mean avoiding risks at any cost
but rather making informed and coherent choices regarding the
risks the Group and its funds want to take in pursuit of their
strategies and objectives, having regard to the methods used o
manage and mitigate those risks. Accordingly, risk management is
embedded within all areas of the business, both at a Group and
strategy level and across geographics, including in culrure,
decision-making processes, practices, business planning and
reporting activities,

The Group manages a variety of risks in connection with its
business acrivities, and the Board 1s ultimately responsible for
oversight of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systemns. This includes determining the narure and extent of the
key risks that the Board is willing to take in order 1o achieve the
(iroup’s strategic objectives, and revicwing management's
implementation of effective systems of risk identification,
assessment and management.

The Board is assisted in its risk management role by the Audit and
Risk Committee, which monitors and reviews the Group's internal
controls and risk management framework. More details of the
Audit and Risk Commirree are set out on pages 102 to 109.
During 2022, the Audir and Risk Committee considered the
Group’s risk management framework, and as a result work was
undertaken to harmonise existing risk management frameworks,
increase cngagement with reievant risk awners and ensure
effective reporting 10 1the Audit and Risk Commirree.

78

"I'o managc risk, the Group operates on a three nes madel:

- First line - Business units have the primary responsibiiity for
managing risks in their respective areas.

- Second line - Bridgepoint's Legal & Compliance Team assist
with risk managemeny, moni[oring the operation of first line
controls.

- Third line - In July 2022, Deloitte was engaged as the Group’s
outsourced internal auditor, and provides risk assurance on the
effectivencss of governance, risk management and internal
controls, including first and second line controls.

Prudent risk management within business units is underpinned by
a strong control culture with clear oversight of responsibilities, and
there is ongoing themaric comphiance monitoring. The Group
maintains comprehensive instrance cover with a broad range of
policies covering a number of insurable events.
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Risk

management

process

The Group undertakes the following process to identify, monitor
and manage risks:

1. Set strategy — The Board considers and approves the
Group's strategy, which forms the basis of the Group’s risk
identification process and risk apperite, allowing those risks
that may impact achievement of strategic objectives to be
focused on.

2. Identify risks — Penodically an exercise is undertaken to
idenufy the key and emerging risks facing the Group. This is
petformed by each relevant business unit and collated into 2
broader risk management framework which is ultimately
reparted an to the Board and the Audit and Risk Commirtee.

(8]

Evaluate risks — The Group evaluates risks based on two key
facrors: the likelihood of the risks eventuatng, and the impact
on the Group were the risks to evenruare (both financially and
in respect of other matters such as reputation). The refevant
risks are categorised and rated based on the product of these
two factors and contextualised with a further evaluaricn of
other factors such as speed to impact and whether the risk is
trending 1n a particular direction.

Key
risks

The Group’s risk management framework 15 designed to identity
a broad range of risks and uncertainties which it believes could
adversely impact the profitability or prospects of the Group.

A similar process is undertaken with respect to risks specifically
facing the funds managed by the Group and as required by
applicable regularary regimes. As part of each of these
framewarks and processes, ESG-related risks are considered.

The following pages set out the Group's key risks identified and
the primary mitigating actions, cantrols or monitors implemented

for each risk as well as the change in thar risk during the course of

2022 compared to 2021

4. Manage and mitigate risks - Mitigating actions, controls and
monitors are identfied for cach risk, taking into account the
effectiveness of the current control environment, and the
impact of these on the likelihood and impact of the relevant
risk are evaluated. Where appropnate, changes 1o the control
environment are identified and implemented.

5. Monitor and review risks - The Group undertakes ongoing
monitaring of risks identified and the ongoing effectiveness of
mitigants implemented.

When identifying risks, the Group categorises these within one of

the following three areas: Strategic and External risks, Investment

risks, and Operational nisks.

Strategic and External risks relate to the ability to deliver on the
Group’s strategic objectives ot risks from external or broader
events. Imvestment risks are those associated with investments
madc by the Group or the funds managed by it. Operational risks
are those associated with the Group’s dav-to-day operations,
including nisks relating to internal processcs, people or systems,
Risks in each of these categories may, if poorly managed,
ultmately result in a negative impact on the profitability or
prospects of the Group.

The key risks are identified based on the Group’s combined assessment
of the likelihood and impact of each risk eventuatng after the Group’s
controls and other mitigating actions are taken Into account.

Additonal risks and uncertainties that the Group may face,
inchiding those that are not currently known or that the Group
currently deems immaterial, may individually or cumuladively also
have a material effect on the Group’s business, results of operations
and/or financial condition.
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Risk management ... ;

Fundraising challenges

Description

The current Bridgepoint funds have a finite life and a finite
amount of commitments from fund investars. Once a fund nears
the end of its investment period, the Group raises additional or
successor hunds in order to keep making Investments and, over
the long term, earn manzgement fees talthough funds and
investment vehicles continue to eam management fees after the
expiration of their investment periods, they generally dosoata
reduced rate).

The alternarive investment management sector is intensely
competitive, with the Group compering with a number of other
persons for investar capital, including sponsors of public and
privare investment funds. Fundraising markets remained
caongested in 2022, If market conditions for competing
investment products result in competing products promoting
rates of return more favourable than those achieved by the
Bridgepoint funds, the attractiveness of Bridgepoint funds 1o
investors could decrease.

The inability to raise additional or successor funds (or raise
successor funds of a comparable size to predecessor funds), or a
change in the terms on which investors are willing to mvest, could
have a matcrial adverse impact on the Group's business, revenuc,
net income, cash flows or the ability to retain emplovess.

Stralegic Reportt

Law and regulation

Strategic and External Change in risk during FY22 o

Mitigation

The Group’s capital raising efforts are supported by an in-house
global investor services teamn, which urilises the Group’s dara and
technology capabilities.

The Group has made efforts to broaden its investor base, both in
terms of the number of investors across the platferm and the
geographic spread of such investors, helping to alleviate
COMPCTITive pressures.

As a leading middle market investor, the Group offers investors a
differentiated approach arising from its global reach and ability 1o
deploy capital across middle market straregies. This differentiarion
insulates the Group, to some ¢Xtent, against the competitive
pressures arising in respect of attracting fund investors.

Strategic and External Change n risk during FY22 o

Description

"I'he international nature of the Group’s busmess, with corporare
and fund entities located in multple Jurisdictions and a diverse
investor base, makes it subject to a wide range of laws and
regulations. It is supervised by a number of regulators, including
the Financial Conduct Authority in the UK, the Securitics and
Exchange Commission in the United States and the Autorité des
Marchés Financiers in France. Failure to comply with these laws
and regularions may put the Group at risk of fines, lawsuits or
reputational damage. 'The failure of the Group to comply with the
rules of professional conduct and relevant laws and regulations
could expose the Group te regulatory scrutiny, including pendlties
or enforcement actions.

Increased law and regulation may impact our operating entities,
our funds, and the markets and sectors where the Group’s
investment strategies invest.
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Mitigation

The Group is supported by dedicated Legal and Compliance
functions that provide guidance to the business on its regulatory
and legal obligations. These functions monitor regularory and
legislative changes in the jurisdictions i which the Group
operates and interact with regalators and industry bodies to stay
informed of regulatory changes. They also proactively take
actions across the business to comply with any changes in law or
regulation.

Employees of the Group are provided with periedic training on
the laws and regulanions relevant to the Group.
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Changes in macroeconomic
environment

Strategic Report

Change in risk dunng FY22 o

Strategic and External

Description

Macroeconomic events may contribute to volatility in financial
markets which can adverselv impact the Group's business by
reducing the value or performance of the investments made by
Bridgepoint’s funds. These pressures may result in challenges in
finding investment opportunities for funds as well as challenges in
exiting existing investments to realise value for investors, This
could in turn affect the Group’s ability to raise new funds and
materially reduce its profitability.

For example, rising interest rates may adversely impact multiples
and discount rates used for investment valuations. Higher interest
rates may also reduce our ability to secure favourable financing
for fund transactions, impacting fund returns. Higher interest
rates may also impact the cost of financing under Group facihites,
or the availability of such financing. Furthermore, unhedged
fareign exchange rate movements impact total returns and fund
net asset values

Fund underperformance

Mitigation

The Group’s business model 1s predominantly based on illigquid,
closed-end funds which allows investment teams te remain
disciplined throughout economic cycles. A range of approaches
are used to inform sirategic planning and risk mrtigation across
such cycles, including active management of the Group’s fund
portfolios, profitability and balance sheet scenario planming,
treasury management, and stress testing to ensure resilience across
a range of Macroeconomic OUICOmes.

Scnior management of the Group regularly updates the business
on economic trends and outlooks to aid investment reams and
corporate functions to anticipate and proactively address
macroeconomic risks.

Change in risk during FY 22 e

Investment

Description

In the event that certain of the Bridgepoint funds were 1o perform
unsatisfactorily, in particular if this were the case for a larger
Bridgepoint fund {for example the current flagship fund,
Bridgepoint Europe V1 or its successors), this may adversely
affect the Group’s business, brand and repurtation and lead to
difficulties for the Group in attracting fund investors and raising
capital for new funds in the future.

Mitigation

The Group has In place a robust and disciplined investment
process where investments are analysed and selected by the
Group's Operating Committees and [nvestment Advisory
Commirtees. Portfolio Management Commirtees regularly
monitor investment performance and delivery of investment
objectives. Anv ‘ar risk’ investments are subject o a detailed
review by a Portfolioc Working Group.

Investment processes not only evaluare and mitigace the risks
inherent in particular investments or divestments, but also ensure
that all investment decistons are taken m accordance with the
relevant fund’s Investment strategy.

The Group limits fund exposure to individual investments, and
diversifics investments in terms of sector, vintage and geography.

The deal flow of Bridgepoint funds is driven by the Group’s
sector strategy which is continually refined to exploit market
conditions, including changes In competitive pressures. The
Group's investment approach has evolved through different
economic cycles, helping it to resist temporary pressures.
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Risk management ...

Decreased pace or size of investments

made by Bridgepoint funds

Description

The Group’s revenue 1s driven in part by the pace at which the
Bridgepoint funds make investments and the size of those
investmenuts, and a decline 1n the pace or the size of such
mvestments may reduce the Group's revenue.

Many factors could cause a decline in the pace of investment,
including the inability of the Group’s investment professionals to
identify attractive investment opportunities, decreased availability
of capiral on atracuve terms and the failure to consummare
identified investment opportunities because of business,
regulatory ar legal complexities, new regulations, guidance
provided or other actions taken by regulatory auchorities, or
uncertainty and adverse developments in the global economy or
financial markets.

The Group competes for investment opportunities for the
Bridgepoint funds, and such competition 1s based primartly on the
pricing, terms and suucture of a proposed investment and
certainty of execution. The market for private equity transactions
has at times been characterised by relatively high prices, which
can make the deployment of capital more difficuit.

A failure to deploy committed capital in a timely manner may
have a negative impact on mvestment performance and the ability
to rajse new funds.

Strategic Report

Investment

Change in risk during Y22 @)

Mitigation
The rate of nvestment 3s kept under review by servor
management to cnsure that it is maintamed av an acceprable Jevel.

The Group has ongoing dialogue with 1ts mvestors and 15 sensitive
1o their concerns regarding investment and realisation pace. These
concerns are taken 1nto consideration when setting the short and
long-term strategy of a fund, and where necessary consent is
sought to modify investment periods to align with the pace of
mvestment that 1s reasonably and responsibly achievable.

Personnel and key people

Operational

Change in risk during FY 22 e

Description

The Group’s personmel, including its investment professionals and
spectalist teams, are highly important to the Group’s business and
its strategy implementation, and the marker for such persons 1s
highly competitive. The Group's continued success is therefore
dependent upon its abiliry to rerain and maotivate its personnel
and to strategically recruit new talented professionals.

In particular, the Group depends on the efforts, skill, repurations
and business contacts of its execurive management and other key
senior team members and the information and deal flow they
generate.

Micdigation

The Group has competitive reward schemes in place for all
emplovees, with rewards weighted towards performance and
long-term alignment with fund imvestors, driving value for the
Group. For senior management, these include a blend of short and
long-term incentives.

The Group performs ongoing succession planning and invests in
leadership development.
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Strategic Report

Information technology
and cyber security

Operational

Change in risk during FY22 o

Description

The Group relies on the secure precessing, storage and
rransmission of confidental and other mformanon in Bridgepoint
computer systems and networks. Cyber-security incidents aind
cyber-attacks have been occurring globally at a more frequent and
severe level and will likely continue to increase in frequency in
the future. The Group faces various cyber-security threats on a
regular basis, including ongoing cyber-security threats to, and
atracks on, information technology infrastructure thar are
intended to gain access to proprietary information, destroy data or
disable or degrade or sabotage svstems.

Cyber-security failures. technology failures or data security
breaches could result in the confidentiality, integrity or
availanlity of data being negatively affected, causing disruption or
damage to the Group's business.

Mirigation

The Group has in place an nternal vulnerability management
programme, as well as critical asset processes to patch critical
vulnerabilities Phishing testing is performed at least quarterly,
and penetration Lesting 1s undertaken annually.

The Group has a disaster recovery plan in place, and all key
systemns are hosted in the cloud, providing an inherent level of
resilience.

Third-party service providers

Opcrational Change in risk dunng FY22 e

Description

Certain of the Group’s funds and Group acoivites depend on the
services of third-party service providers, including those
providing banking and foreign exchange, information technology,
insurance broking, depository and alternarive investment
management services. The Group is subject to the nisk of errors
and mistakes by such persons, which may be auribured to the
Group and subject it or the Bridgepoint funds to reputational
damage, penalties or losses.

Mitigation

The Group ensures appropriate due diligence 1s undertaken in
respect of third-party service providers prior to appaintment, and
appropriate monitoring and oversight of appointed third-party
service providers is undertaken on a periodic basis.
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Bridging the gap
between...
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people
and ideas.

“It’s all about the team. It’s
all about the talent that we
employ and our ability to
foster and liberate that
talent and really give it
an opportunity to shine.”

Michael Black
Managing Partner, Bridgepoint
Development Capital
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Bridging the gap
between...
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opportunity
and capital.

“We wanted to raise
: further capiral to continue
-t the growth agenda and
the IPO was a natural
way to do it.”

Raoul Hughes
Group Managing Partner, Head of
Business Development and Strategy
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To make great
businesses...
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oreater.

] “A straightforward

r investment philosophy
that we delivered what we
said we would deliver on.
So we didn’t chip away in
the negotiations; we try to
be straightforward
and honest.”

David Shaw
former Bridgepoint Chairman & CEO
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And make
ommunities...
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stronger.

<«
Bridgepoint volunteer day ata
NHS Covid-19 Vaccination Centre
COVID-19
Vaccination Centre

Thank you
r coming
day.

“This 1s about obviously
achieving really strong
returns for our investors
but doing it in a way that
we can be proud of.”

Please donr’t forget to

Guy Weldon
Group Managing Partner,
Head of Investment
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Board of Directors

William Jackson

Chairman

Appointed Managing Partner in 2003
and Chairman in June 2021

Skills and experience

William has worked extensively on private equity transactions
across Europe over a 30 vear career and has served on numerous
boards. As part of his role at Bridgepoint, he is currently President
of the Board of 1Dorna Sparts, the international sports management
company which runs the MotoGP World Metorcycling
Championship and is a Bridgepoint fund portfolio company.

William 1s alse a Non Executive Director of Berkeley Group, the
FTSE 100 property company. He 1s a graduate of Oxford
Uriversity.

Other significant appointments
- Non-Executive Director, The Berkeley Group Holdings ple

92

Governance

Archie Norman

Senior Independent Director

Appointed in Junc 2021

A ] R

Skills and experience

Archie Norman has a breadth of business experience and an
extensive track record in business change, having led the
rransformarticn of a number of major UK businesses. He has served
on the board of a number of publicly listed companies in the UK
and internationally.

tle is currently Chairman of Marks and Spencer plc and has held
the position of Chairman of 1TV plc and of Lazard UK. He has also
served as Lead Non-Executive Director at the Department of
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. Amengst other positions
he has held during his career, Archie was Chief Fxecunve and
Chairman of ASDA plc and Finance Director of Kingfisher plc. He
has been a Non-Executive Director on the Board of British Rail,
Railrrack and Geest, and has also served as a Member of
Parliament in the House of Commens in the United Kingdom for
eight years.

Other significant appointments
¢hairman, Marks and Spencer ple
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Adam Jones

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer

Joined the Group in 2018

Governance

Key

Audic and Risk Commirttee
Nomination Commiitee
B Remuneratien Commirttee
ESG Commirree

|:| Committee Chair

Angeles Garcia-Poveda

Independent Non-Execurive Director

Appointed in June 2021

(NI E]

Skills and experience

Prior to Bridgepoint Adam held a number of global CFO roles,
including most recently at Pret A Manger and previously
All3Media, NBC News in New York and Universal Studios.

Adam started his career with leading accounting and professional
services firm PwC and then spent nine years at IMG, the global
sparls management group in & number of roles up to Senior
International Vice President.

Adam has an Honours degree in Accounting from the University
of Birmingham.

Skills and experience
Angeles Garcia-Poveda is an international executive with
eXIensive experience in governance.

She 1s currently Chairperson of the Board of Legrand A, the CAC
40 global specialist in clectrical and digital building infrastructure,
where she has been lead independent director and has chaired the
Nominations, Governance and Remuneration committees. She is
also an independent director at Edenred, listed in the French SBF
120 index. In her prior career as a partner with Spencer Stuarr, she
led its French and EMEA businesses and served on the global
Board of 13irectors. She 1s a member of the Boards Practice and the
consumer and private equity practices. She also spent 14 years
with the Boston Consulting Group, where she worked as a
consultant in Madrid and Paris.

Other significant appointments
Chairperson of the Board, Legrand SA

Non-[xecutive Directer, Bdenred SE
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Board of Directors ... ...

Governance

Carolyn McCall DBE

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed in July 2021

Tim Score

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed in June 2021

Skills and experience
Carolyn McCall is a seasoned chief executive with a strong track
record 1n value creaton and business transformation.

She is currently Chief Exccunive of ITV plc having been Chief
Cxecutive of easyJet for nearly 8 vears. She has also held various
commercial and management roles at the Guardian Media Group,
including CEQ of the Guardian and Observer before becoming
Group CEQ in 2006. In 2016, Carolyn was awarded a Damehood
for services to the aviation industry having received an OBE in
2008 for services to women in business. She has been a NED on
the Board of Tesco, Lloyds, New Lock, and Burberry, where she
was Senior Independent Director and has also served on the
Business and Energy government Board for 4 years and 3 Prime
Minister’s Business Councils (2015-2021).

Other significant appointments
- Chief Executive, ITV plc
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Skills and experience

Tim Score has significant experience in the rapidly evolving global
technology landscape as well as many years of engagement both
with marure economies and emerging markets.

He is Chair of British Land, having been a Non-Executive Director
and Chair of its Audit Committee since 2014, He is the Depury
Chair, Semor Independent Director and Chair of the Nomination
Committee at Pearson plc. Tim was formerly a Non-Execurive
Director of HM Treasury and CFO of ARM Holdings plc for 13
vears and held senior financial positions ar Rebus Group Limited,
William Baird ple, TucasVarty plc and BTR ple. From 2005 to
2014, he was a Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit
Commmittee at National Express Group PLC, including me as
interim chairman and six years as senior independent director.
Other significant appointments

- Chair, The Briush Land Company plc

Non-Executive Director, Pearson ple
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Cyrus Taraporevala

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed in January 2023

AR

Skills and experience

Cyrus Taraporevala 1s a highly respected industry leader 1n asset
management with more than 30 vears of experience, having
successfully led and grown global businesses of scale.

He is currently a non-executive director of Shell ple. Previously, he
was President and Chief Executive Officer of State Street Global
Advisors from 2017 1o 2022. While there, he played a critical role
n afhrming Srate Street’s repurtation as both a stalwart and a
pioneer within the asset management sector. Cyrus has published
multiple articles on ESG and climare risk, and is recagnised for
srrengthening Stare Street’s ESG credentials. Cyrus was also 2
founding member of the New York Stock Exchange Board
Advisory Councll,

Prior to State Street, he held numerous leadership roles ar several
asset management firms: Fidelity Investments, BNY Mellon Asset
Management, Legg Mason and Citgroup. Earlier in his career

he spent 14 years at McKinsey & Company, including 7 years

as a Parner.

Other significant appointments
Non-Executive Director, Shell ple

Gavernance

Key

Audit and Risk Committee
Nomination Committee
E Remuneration Committee
[8G Committee

{1 Committee Chair
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Senior Independent
Director’s governance
review

-

Archie Norman
Senior Independent Director

On behalf of the Board, T am pleased to
present the Group’s governance report
for 2022, Bridgepoint’s first full year as
a listed company.

During the year, the role of the Board has been to challenge and support
management in its development and execution of strategy, providing an
independent viewpemt on matters concerning the Group.

The key areas of focus for the Board during 2022 have been the
ongoing Bridgepoint Europe VIT fundraisc and the development
of the business in a more volatile market backdrop. In addition,
significant time was spent discussing potential strategic
opportunities.

We continue to believe that a good Board should have a close
understanding of the business and be able to act as a strategic
discussion parter to the Executive team, alongside their
governance responsibilities. The Board has received a number of
presentations from teams across the business and has gained a
deeper understanding of how the Group operates as a result. One
of the Board meetings for the year was held in Bridgepoint’s Paris
office which further allowed the Board to meet colleagues from
around the Group.

During the year, a number of the Non-Executive Directors
attended Bridgepoint’s firm-wide conference, providing them
with a valuable insight into the Group’s culture and the views

of employees. 'The completion of an employee engagement survey
process also supported management's monitoring of the Group's
culture and emplovee alignment with Group strategy.
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Governance

Board composition

In November 2022, the Group announced the appeintment of
Cyrus Taraporevala as an independent Non-Executive Director,
with such appointment taking effect on 1 January 2023. Cyrus
brings a wealth of asset management industry knowledge to the
Board, as well as an international viewpeint. His appoiniment also
results in Bridgepoint satisfying the Parker Review target.

As previously announced, the intention is to appeint one further
Non-Executive Director during 2023, where the focus will be on
ensuring that the relevant candidarte contribures to the overall
diversity of vicwpoints within the Board, as well as the mix of
skills and knowledge. Further details are contained in the
Nommation Committee report.

Stakeholder engagement

A full review of stakcholder engagement can be found in the
Strategic Report on pages 28 to 32.

Corporate Governance Code compliance

The governance report explains the key fearures of the Group's
governance framework. The Board remains committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance, and the
Group complies with substantially all of the provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code. Further details are set out on
page 100.

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s AGM is scheduled to take place at 11.00 a.m. on
18 May 2023 and will be held in the Maxwell Room ar the King’s
Fund, Ne. 11 Cavendish Square, London W1G OAN. The nortice
of meeting and related explanatory notes contamn further details.

(Ol Nl

Archie Norman
Senior Independent Director

Find our more: bridgepoint.eu
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Corporate
governance report

Governance

1. Our governance framework

Below is a summary of the Group’s governance structure.

Responsible for providing leadership, including

A full schedule of martters reserved for the Board is

Boar
oard setting the Group’s purpose, strategy and values, available ar bridgepoint.eu

and promoting its long-term sustainable success.

Committees The Board has established the following committees  The terms of reference for the Audit and Risk,
O assist it. Remunecration, Nomination and ESG Committees are

available at bridgepoint.eu

Audit and Risk Committee Remuneration Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee oversees external and The Remuneration Committee determines the palicy
internal audits, and the Group’s financial reporting and for Director remuneranon, and sets the remuneration
disclosurc. Tt also oversees the Group's risk management  of Executve Directors and senior management.
framework and system of internal controls,
Nomination Committee ESG Committee
The Nommarion Commiree evalaares the composition The ESG Committee assists the Board in 1ts oversight
and performance of the Board and senior executive team.  of environmental, social and governance marters.
It ensures that plans are in place for orderly succession for
appointments to the Board and senior management, and
cansiders candidates for Board positions.
Disclosure Committee
The Disclosure Commitee evaluates the need for
announcements to the market, and signs off and approves
the release of RNS announcements relating to financial
results or other material mformation. The Disclosure
Committee comprises William Jackson, Adam Jones
and Archie Norman.

Chairman The Board delegates day-to-day responsibitity

& Executive
Committee

for running the Group to the Chairman. The Chairman
15 assisted m this by the Execurive Committee, which
oversees dav-to-day operations, and implements the
strategy of the Group as determined by the Board.
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Corporate governance report - .- ...

2. Board roles and responsibilities

The Board provides entrepreneurial leadership and direction to Bridgepomt. The Board promotes the long-term sustainable success of
Bridgepaint, generating vatue for shareholders and contributing to wider society. The Board is also responsible for aversight of the
Group’s governance and internal control. A full schedule of martrers reserved for the Board is available at bridgepointeu

Broadly, key executive and non-executive responsibilities are divided as follows:

Chairman - Leads the Board and is responsible for the overall effectiveness of the Buurd and its committees

Sets the Board's agenda

- Ensures good governance
Promates a culture of openness and debate on the Board, facilirating effective contribution from
Non-Executive Directors
Develops strategies for consideration by the Board, alongside the Group Chief Financial Officer
and executive management

- Runs the Group on a day-to-day basis and implements the Board's decisions

- In conjunction with the Group Chief Financial Officer, represents the Group to external stakeholders

- Ensures the Board as a whole has & clear understanding of the views of the Company’s shareholders

Group Chief Financial Officer - Provides strategic financial leadership to the Group and runs the finance funcoien on a day-te-day
and Chief Operating Officer basis
- Manages the operating platform of the Group
- Develops strategies for consideration by the Board, alongside the Chairman and executive
management
In comjunction with the Chairman, represents the Group to external stakeholders
Leads the development of annual budgets for Board approval

Senior Independent Director

Acts as a sounding board for the Chairman

- Is available to sharcholders if they have concerns abour contact with the Chairman or Group Chief’
Financial Officer through normal channels, or if such contact has failed to resolve the relevant
issues

Leads meetings of the Non-Executive Directors at least annually to appraise the

Chairman’s performance

Non-Exceutive Directors - Bring special expertise to the Board
Constructively challenge and hold to account the Executive Directors against agreed performance
objectives
Monigor the delivery of the strategy within the risk and conrrol framework set by the Board
- Monitor the integrity and effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting, internal controls and
risk management systems

Company Secretary Responsible for advising, in conjunction with the Group General Counsel, on legal, governance and
listing matters at the Board level and assisting the Board in all governance related marters
- Provides support to the Board and its commiuces, ensuring that it has the resources required to
operate effectively
Maintains the books and records of the Group, and prepares minures of Board meetings
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3. Board activities

During 2022, the Board met six times and among other areas discussed:

updates on the performance of each of the Group’s strategies and funds, as well as the fundraising process for new funds;
financial reporting marters and approval of the Group’s 2021 Annual Report and Accounts and 2022 intenim resulrs;
business development initiatives, including potential acquisitions that would provide additiunal investment strategies;

- the 2023 budget, and progress against the 2022 budger;

shareholder and proxy adviser feedback;

the Group's ESG and charitable giving approach;

the annual employee engagement survey results, and actions propesed in response; and
legal and governance updates.
Board meetings have standing agenda items which ensures that key aspects of the business are given due consideration.

The artendance at Board and Commirtee meetings in 2022 are set our below, along with the number of meetings atrended by individual
Directors, and the total meetings that they were enutled to atrend.

Name Board Audit and Risk Remuneration Nomination
William Jackson a/6 - - 4/4
Adam Jomes a/6 - - 7 -
/\I’]gTSC:‘rEHC];;POVCd& 7 B &/6 - 3/3 4/4
Dame Carolyn McCall 6/6 ) 6/6 33 4/4
Archic Norman 66 7 6/6 33 474
Tim Score 6/6 6/6 i - 4/4
4. Culture

The Group has a strong and highly inclusive corporate culture, based on the corce refreshed values of “We do what we say”, “We do the
right thing” and “We act with intelligence and hurmility”. 1uring the year the Board discussed these refreshed values and derermined that
they better encapsulated the core values of Bridgepoint. The Board also had a number of opporrunities to monitor and review the
Group's culture, such as the firm-wide conference that was attended by a number of Directors, the employee engagement survey and ad
hoc meetings between colleagues und Directors. The Board recognises the contribution of Bridgepoint's unique culture to the success of
the business and is satisfied that itis aligned with the Company’s purpose, values and strategy. No specific corrective action was
requested of management during the year.

5. Contflicts of interest

In accordance with the Company’s Articles the Board has a formal system in place for Directors to declare conflicts of interest and for
such conflicts to be considered for autharisation.

In circumstances where a potental conflict arises, the Board (excluding the Director concerned) will consider the situation and either
authorise the arrangement in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the Company’s Articles or take other appropriate action,

All potential contlicts authorised by the Board are recorded in a register, which is maimtained by the Company Secretary. Directors have
a conunuing duty to update the Board with any changes to their conflicts of interest.
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6. Internal board evaluation

During the year the Board undertook an internal evaluation. This was conducted by the Group Company Secretary circulating
questionnaires, seeking feedback on a range of areas and covering the Board, the Directors, and each Committee of the Board. The
Group Company Secretary then reported on the feedback recetved o the Senior Independent Director and the Board, and the Senior
Independent Director then had follow up discussions with the Directors on the findings of the evaluation. Separately, the Senior
Independent Director held a meeting of the Non-Executive Directors without the Chairman to appraise the performance of the
Chairman and the running of the Board.

The Board evaluation confirmed that the Board, its Committees and its individual members all continue 1o operate effectively and that
cach of these had performed strongly during the vear. However, a number of specific action items arosc from the evaluation, key ones
being:
the appointment of a Non-Executive Director with significant asset management experience and an internationai profile would beneflt
the Group (this has now been addressed through the appointment of Cyrus Taraporevalal;

the inclusion of a dashboard of key financial mervics in the Board papers for each meeting;
- additional improvements to risk management reporting;
- areview and refresh of management succession plans in 2023; and

the provision of deep dive presentations {rom each business unit to the Board.

In 2023, itis intended that the Board evaluation will be externally facilitated.

7. Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company is subject to the 2018 Corporate Governance Code, which is publicly available at www .fre.org.uk. The Company has,
during 2022, applied the principles of, and complied with the provisions of, the Corporate Governance Code, subject to one exception.

Provision 9 of the Corporate Governance Code recommends that, on appointment, the Chair of a company should be independent
when assessed against the circumstances set our in provision 10, and that the roles of Chair and Chief Executive should net be exercised
by the same individual. William Jackson, as Chairman, combines the roles of Chair and Chief Executive and was not independent on
appointment. As disclosed ar the time of the IPO), the Nemination Committee and the Board consider that William taking on such a role,
which is commonplace mn the alternative asset management industry, is in the best interests of the Group in order to utilise his proven
leadership qualities and significant experience, Furthermore, William Jackson has been engaged with the Group since 2000 and has been
Managing FPartner since 2003, and therefore provides stability and continuity through his detailed understanding of the Group's
operations and the sectors in which it operates in the period following the 1PO. At the time of any fature Chair or Chief Executive
appaintment, it would be considered whether the separation of these roles s appropriate.

100



Bridgepoint — 2022 Annual Report & Accounts

Nomination
Committee report

9

Archie Norman
Chairman of the
Nomination Committee

In its first full year of operation, the
Nomination Committee focused on two
key areas, the development of Board
capabilities and potential appointment of
two further Non-Executive Directors with
complementary skills and experience and
the development of long-term succession
plans with respect to executives and
members of senior management.

Board composition and appointments

Bridgepoint firmly believes in the imporrance of diversity at Board
level and in 2022, over 30% of the Board comprised of women
(with two out of six appointments). "I'he Nomination Cemmittee
has instigated a search to identify and appoint two further
Naon-Executive Directors, to complement further the breadth of
experuse and diversity of the Board. After some discussion and
informed also by the Board evaluation process, the Commitree
cancluded thart the Board would benefit from the appointment of a
further Non-Exccutive Director with strong experience of
managing and leading asset management businesses,
camplementary international experience, and a strong cultural and
collegiate compatibility with Bridgepoint. Following an extensive
process, supported by external consultancy Russell Reynolds
(which has no connection with the Company or any individual
Director), on 1 January 2023 Cyrus Tarapeorevala was appointed
as an independent Non-Executive Director. Cyrus brings a wealth
of experience in the asser management sector, having previously
worked at Fidelity ITnvestments, BNY Melion Asset Management,
Legg Mason and Citigroup. More recently, he was chief execurive
of Stare Street Global Advisers, the fourth largest asser manager
globally with $3.3 tillion under management. Through his career,
Cyrus has worked and lived in Asia, Europe, and North America.

The Commiizee noted Cyrus' appointment as a non-execurive
director of Shell ple and determined that this commitment would
nort affect his performarce as a member of the Board.

Although Cyrus’ appointment results in the satisfaction of Parker
Review target in 2023, it has also meant that the Board now falls

Gavernance

below Bridgepuint’s preferred threshold of at least 30% women
and the Committee is resolved to address this m the year ahead.
During 2023 it is therefore intended that one further Non-
Executive Director appointment wifl be made, with a focus on
further complementing the calibre, breadth of expertise and
diversity of thinking amongst Board members.

Succession planning

The Committee believes that continuity of personnel and the
evolurion of top talent is critical to the way the business competes.
Therefore, during the year the Committee reviewed and discussed
long term succession planning for executives and other members
of senior management. Bridgepaint has a rich seam of lnghly
qualified investment talent that has grown up with the business
and the Committee 1s keen to ensure thar the pipeline of talent
remains strong, that the diversity of emerging ralent is broadened,
and measures are in place to plan for succession at all levels. These
measures include inviting individuals to participate in Board and
Committee meetings, internal mentoring and external coaching
and training. The Committee regards the medium- and long-term
evolution of management at a senior level as an important area of
focus and a subject which will also be a recurring item on the
Board agenda.

Senior management and direct reports

In terms of gender diversity the business is aware of the need to
increase the balance of women, particularly in investment roles:
as at 31 december 2022, of the 14 members of the Fxecutve
Committee, 2 were women, and of the 56 direct reports to
membenrs of the Executnve Commirttee, 15 were women.

There are a number of initiatives in place o increase female
representation in senior levels of the business, including a
Women's leadership development programme.

It is our intention to increase the longer term pipeline of furure
leaders, such as through a 50:50 International Associate
Programme gender split target, and a targeted increasc in the
number of women in the investment team 1o 40% by 2025.

l(‘.)ﬂ(ﬂu» N
or ! e
Archie Norman
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Find out more: bridgepeoint.eu
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S5
Tim Score

Chalrman of the

Audit and Risk Commirttee

I am pleased to present the report of the
Audit and Risk Committee for the year
ended 31 December 2022. This report
outlines how the Committee discharged
the responsibilities delegated to it by the
Board during the year, and the key topics
it considered in doing so.

The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling
wts oversight responsibilities related to financial reporting and the
internal controls and risk management processes of the business.

The principal responsibilities of the Commitiee can be
summarised as:

- Financial reporting - monitering the integrity and quality
of the financial statements of the Company, including
any formal announcement relating to financial performance,
and reviewing and challenging where necessary major issucs
regarding accounting principles, policies, practices, judgements
and presentations

- Bxrernal audit - oversight of the external auditor,
reviewing the effectiveness of the external audit process,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the cxternal auditor, and
developing policy on the engagement of the external auditor
1o supply non-audit services

Internal audit - making recommendanions to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the internal
auditor. monitoring and reviewing the work performed by

the internal auditor, and reviewing the effectiveness of internal
audit, mcluding its plans and resources

Risk management and internal controls - monitoring the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal
controls and risk management systems
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Details on activities undertaken by the Committee in relation
to each of these areas are contained in the Committee report
on the following pages. The primary areas of focus during the
year included:

- Reviewing the content and integrity of the full year and half
yearly financial reporting and the Annual Report, including
reviewing management's response to a letter received from the
Corporate Reporting Review Team of the Financial Reporting
Council as part of its regular review and assessment of the
quality of corporate reporting in the UK, requestng fusther
information in relation to the Company’s 2021 Annual
Report and Accounts.

- Identification and appointment of an internal auditor, and
agreement of the internal andir plan

- Receiving reports from management in respect of internal
controls, including the Group’s risk management framework
ang IT security management and moniroring of treasury and
nisk management

Lastly, I wish to thank my fellow members of the Committee
for their contributions during the year and I look forward to
continuing our work in 2023,

{ Gho

Tim Score
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee

Find our more: bridgepoint.eu
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Committee governance

Meerings

The Committee meets regularly, at least three times a year. In
carrying out its duties, the Committee 13 authorised by the Board
o obrain any informartion it needs from any | irecror or employee
of the Group. The Committee met six times during 2022 and met
twice since the end of the year prior to the publication of the
Annual Report and Accounts,

Composition

The Committee possesses a good balance of skills and knowledge,
including financial sector experience. In 2022, the Aundit and Risk
Committee comprised three independent Non-Executive
Directors, all of whom have financial or related business
experience due to the senior positions they hold or have held in
other listed or publicly traded companies or similar large
orgamsanons.

On 1 January 2023, Cyrus Taraporevala joined the Audit and Risk
Committee. Cyrus has substantial asset management industry
experience, most recently being the chief executive of State Street
Global Advisors, the fourth largest asset manager globally.

The Chair of the Committee, Tim Score, ts the Group’s designated
financial expert, having recent and relevant financial experience
as Chair of the Audit Committee of Pearson ple, and being an
Associate Chartered Accountant. He has also previously served

as Audit Commirtee Chair for The British Land Company plc

and National Express Group PLC. The qualifications and relevant
experience of the other Committee members are detailed on

pages 92 to 95.

Governance

The Group CFO is not a member of the Committee but attends
meetings at the invitation of the Chair of the Committee. Mazars
LLP, as external auditor, and members of the Group’s finance team
also regularly attend meetings. Since their appointment as internal
auditors, Deloirte have also been invited to attend each meeting.

The Committee will meet scparately with the external auditor at
least twice a vear to ensure that they arc receiving full cooperation
from management and are obraining all the information they
require. The external auditor is able to raise matters directly with
the Audit and Risk Committee if they consider that it is desirable
to do so. In addinon, the Chair of the Commuittee meets with the
exrernal auditor and members of the finance team separately,

as appropriate, throughout the year.

Terms of reference

The Committee has formal terms of reference which can
be accessed on our website at bridgepointeu.

The terms of reference are reviewed by the Board on
a regular basis.

Effectiveness

The operations of the Audit and Risk Committee were reviewed
as part of an internal Board evaluation undertaken in 2022,

The Committee was found ro be operating effectively,

and more details on the Board effectiveness review more
generally can be found on page 100.
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Audit and Risk Committee report ... ...

Areas of focus in relation to financial reporting

Areas of focus considered by the Committee in relation to financial reporting for the vear ended 31 December 2022, and the actions in

respect of these matters, arc set out in the following table:

Martter

Work undertaken

Alternanve performance measurces
The Group uses a number of alternative performance measures,
ncluding but not limited to:

EBITDA,;
Underlying EBITDA;
- Underlying EBITDA margin;
- Underlying FRE;
Underlying FRE margin;
- Underlying profit before tax; and
- Underlying profit before tax margin.

A full list can be found on pages 36 1o 39.

The Committee discussed the alternative performance measurces
with the Execurtive Directors, considering their appropriateness.

The Committee was satisfied that the alternative perfurmance
measures selected provide useful information to stakcholders,
and do nor detract from the TFRS measures.

Exceptional items

The Group’s income statement includes exceptional items which
are separately disclosed. The identification of exceptional irems
involves judgement.

The Committee reviewed the items selected by management

for the treatment as exceptional items in the financial starements,
which for the year ended 31 December 2022 related ta the
acquisition of EQT Credit and costs incurred in relation to
potential acquisitions.

The Committee was satisfied that the treatment was appropriate
and in line with the Greup’s accounting policies.

Consalidation

The Group holds investments in a number of funds, carred
miterest partnerships and CLOs which it manages. Judgement
15 required to be exercised in terms of assessing whether these
investments are controlled by the Group and therefore need
te be consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

The Commitee reviewed management’s assessment of
investments that the Group is deemed to control in accordance
with IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”, and their
treatment within the financial statements, which for the year
ended 31 December 2022 included consideration of the
treatment of CLO 3 and 4.

The Committee concluded thar it was satsfied with
management’s assessment.

Revenue recognition

Revernue recognition for the Group's management fees is not
complex. The recognition of carried interest and investment
income revenue is more complex, and involves esnmates
and judgement.
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The Committee reviewed the recognition of management fees,
carried interest and investment mcome. In partucular, the
Committee reviewed the methodology and process of valuing
fund nvestments and understood the accounting policy over the
recognition of earned mterest, including the discounts applied to
the fair value of unrealised investments.

The Commirttee concluded it was satisfied that revenue had been
properly recognised in the financiat statements.
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Work undertaken

Investment valuation

The Group’s co-investments Tepresent a significant portion of the
consohdared balance sheet. As these are mainly unquoted and
illiquid, considerable professional judgement is required in
determining their valuation.

The Committee reviewed the methodologies used to value
the Group’s investments in private equity and credit funds,
the process and governance over the valuarions and the
outcome of that process as at 31 December 2022.

Specifically, during 2022, the Commiuiee:

- reviewed how multiples are selected for application in
the valuation of private equity investments and the more
significant changes during the year (increases and decreases).

understood how ESG factors are considered 1n portfolio
company valuarions; and

- received an explanation of how a new discounted cash
flow model had been built, used and tested in respect of
the CLO notes.

Having challenged the approach taken by management, the
Committee was satisfied with the approach taken to valuation
as at 31 December 2022 and the disclosurcs made within the
financial statements.

Effective tax rate

The Group is subject to normal full tax rates in the UK. However,
its current effective tax rate is lower than the UK staturory tax
rate. 'I's 15 hecause of uming differences on when the Group's
income is taxed and the Group has significant tax losses carried
forward in the UK. Taken together these are key drivers in the
difference in the rate.

The Committee reviewed the way in which the tax charge for
the year had been determined, inchading the recognition and

urtilisation of tax losses carned forward and the reconaliaton
of the effective tax rate to the UK statutory rare.

The Commirttee concluded that it was satisfied with
management’s appreach to the caleulation of tax.

Viability statement and going concern

The appropnateness of preparing the Group financial statements
on a going concern basis, and whether the assessment undertaken
by management regarding the Group’s long-term viabiliry
appropriately reflects the prospects of the Group and covers

an appropriate period of time.

The Committee considered whether management’s viability
statement assessment adequately reflected the Group’s principal
risks as disclosed on pages 80 to 83, whether the period covered
by the statement was reasonable given the strategy of the Group,
the risk scenarios selected by management and the environment
m which it operates.

As a result of the assessment undertaken, the Committee was
satisfied with the approach taken for the viability assessment
and that the going concern basis of preparation is appropriate.

Climate-related financial disclosures

The Group 1s required to make certain disclosures in relation to
the TCFD recommendanons and makes additional recommended
disclosures within the Annual Report on haw the Group integrates
climare risks and opporunities into business and investment
decisions, and data on direct greenhouse gas emissions.

The Commmittee reviewed the way in which the Group’s ESG
strategy has been articulated within the annual report, including
TCFD disclesures.

The Committee concluded that it was satisfied with the
disclesures included.
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Matter

Work undertaken

Financial Reporting Council (*FRC™ feteer relating to the
2021 Annual Report and Accounts

In October 2022, the Company received a letrer from the
Corporate Reporting Review team of the FRC as part of its regular
review and assessment of the quality of corporare reporting in the
UK, requesting further informaton in relation to the Company’s
20271 Annual Report and Accounts.

The letter focused on the treatment of cash flows relating to
repurchase agreements and [PO costs and the presentation of the
Company’s restructure ahead of s IPC.

The Company responded to the enguines and agreed to make
certain changes within the 2022 financial statements and annual
report and accounts. Prior year compararive figures have been
restated in the consolidated statement of cash flows,

the Company statement of cash flows and the Company
staterment of financial position. The FRC have confirmed that
their enquiries have been closed’.

The Committee was provided with copies of letters sent by the
FRC and the Company’s draft responses.

The Committee confirmed thart it was satisfied with management’s
responses Lo the FRC's letter and disclosures made following the
identified restatements.

2022 Annual Report

Under the Corporate Governance Code, the Board should
establish arrangements to ensure the Annual Report presents
a fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
position and prospects.

The Committee was provided with drafts of the Annual
Report and provided feedback on areas where further clarity
or information was required 1o provide a complete picture
of the Group’s performance.

The Committee members were also provided with the final draft
for review as part of the final sign-off.

1. The VREOTs seview 15 iimited to the published 2027 Annual Repon and Accounts: 1= dues not benelit trom a detanead understandimg of underlying transacoons

and provides no assurance that the Annual Hepon and Accounts are correct 1in all material respocrs.
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Details of the Group’s risk management process and the management and mitigation of key risks can be found on pages 78 to 83.

The Board, through the Committee, has carried our a review of the principal risks facing the Group and agreed with how they have been

represented within the Annual Report.

Areas of focus considered by the Committee in relation to risk management and internal controls, and the actions in respect of these

matters, are set out in the following table.

Marrer

Work undertaken

Risk management framework

IT security risk

A paper was presented to the Commirttee which explained

details of the Group's risk management framework, including

an explanation of the enterprise risk register and risk rating
methodology. As a result of the Committee’s review of the
effectiveness of the nisk management framework, although no
material issues were identified, work was underraken to refresh
the enterprise risk register and to set up a framework for reporting
risk management marters to the Commirttee.

The Committee also received a paper which explained how
portfolio company risks arc identified and managed across the
private equity and credir strategies, prior to making investments
and durning the Iife of the investment.

Treasury and financial risk

The Committee received a paper which described the IT security
risks to the Group, and the invesument in technology and controls
put in place in order to mitigate the risks, as well as the framework
to manage a major cyber madent.

The Committee also reviewed the cyber securiry risk assessment
and monitering put in place over the fund portfolo.

The Committee reviewed the Group’s treasury and financial
risk management framework and policy, and in order to further
strengthen mrernal controls adopred policies in relation to the
management of bank accounts, payments, investing of cash,
borrowings and trading in foreign currencies.

The Committee also received a paper which summarised
the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk and the
mitigaung risk management techniques, including the
Group's foreign exchange hedging programme.
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External and internal audit

External audit

Marzars LLP were appainted as the Group's external auditor for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021, They have now served
for two years as appointed auditor.

The Committee's responsibilities include making a
recommendation on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor and oversceing their effectiveness
and independence.

The Committee discussed and agreed the scope of the audit prior

1o it commencing. 'This included a review of the:

- audit scope and approach, including the enrities that would be in
the scope of the audit for the consolidated financial statements;
tmeline for the audit, including the audit of subsidiary companies;

- external auditor’s view of significant and enhanced risks of
misstatement in the financial statements;

materiality levels used to plan and perform audir resting;

key audit martters and ather judgement areas within the
financial statements; and

- engagement terms, including the proposed audit fees.
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"The Committec subsequently reviewed reports from the external
auditor setiing ourt the status of:

interim audit testing, including a review of techmical accounting
marters and areas of esuimates and judgements;

final audit testing, including conclusions in respect of the
adequacy of disclosures within the financial statements;

unadjusted misstatements that they had found in the course
of their work, which were immatenal; and

- work performed over the Directors’ viabilicy and going concern
STUleImens,

In order to assess the quality and effectiveness of the exrernal audir,
the Commirtee has reviewed the audit process and the quality and
experience of the andir tearn engaged in the audir, including the
extent to which they had demonstrated competence, objectivity and
professional scepticism. The Committee noted the receipt of quality
reports with detailed informartion on the scope and resulis of their
work, including challenges to management judgements.

The Committee also considered the matters identified in the
review of the external auditor's work over the 2021 financial
statements undertaken during the year by the 'RC’s Auadic Qualiry
Review team (AQR) and the themes arising from the AQRC's
review of a broader sample of Mazars’ audits. Following a
discussion with the external auditors, the Committee determined
that the audit team had put in place adequate procedures for the
audit of the Group to address the findings from the reviews.
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Non-audit services provided by the external auditor

Mazars LLF? are primarily engaged to carry out statutory audit
work. There may be other services where the external auditor is
considered to be the most suitable supplier by reference to its skills
and experience. A policy is in place for the provision of non-audit
services by the external auditor, to ensure that the provision

of such services does not impair the external auditor’s
independence or nhjeriivity, in arcordance with the FRC's
Revised Ethical Standard.

Total fees for non-audit services amounted to ©0.2 million, which
represents 10.7 per cent. of the total Group audit fees pavable for
the year ended 31 December 2022, Details of all fees charged by
the external auditor during the year are set out on page 161,

The Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender
Processes and Audit Commirttee Responsibilities) Order
2014 (“the Order™)

Mazars LLP were first appointed as statutory auditor of the
Company following a competitive tender process, and the
Company confirms its compliance with the Order. Any
recommendation by the Audit and Risk Committee in relanon

to the (re-)appointment of the statutory auditors will take account
of the statutory auditor’s skills, experience and performance and
the value for money offered.

Governance

Internal audit

During the vear, a tender for the provision of internal audit
services to the Group was undertaken. Four firms participared
in the tender and Deloitte LLP were appeinted. Deloitte are
accountable to the Audit and Risk Committee and will use a
risk-based approach to provide independent assurance over
the adequacy and effectivencss of the control environment.

Following their appointment, Deloitte developed an audit plan

for the period 2022-2023, which was hoth a top-down and
bottom-up plan informed by the Group’s strategy, risk regisrer and
discussions with members of management and the Committee
members. The proposed internal audit plan for the next three years
15 expected to Involve approximately four audits per year across
the Group’s various business units. The plan was subject to review
and challenge by the Committee, before being approved.

Work has recently commenced for the four reviews identified for
the first cycle of the plan, which are:

private equity fund administration;

compliance monitonng programme;
- creditinvestment governance; and

dara management and governance.,

Each review will evaluate the design and operational effectiveness
of the controls in place to address the risks identified.
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Remuneration
Committee report

>

Angeles Garcia-Poveda
Independent Non-Execurive Director

As Chair of the Bridgepoint Remuneration
Committee, | am pleased to present on
behalf of the Remuneration Committee

the Directors’ Remuneration Report for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Fam also pleased ro welcome Cyrus Taraporevala to the
Committee, who joined on 1 January 2023, replacing Dame
Carelyn McCall. T would like to thank Carclyn for her work an the
Commirttee and her agreement to serve on the Commirtee until a
fifth non-exccurive director was appointed to the Board.

Remuneration philosophy

At Bridgepoint, we firmly believe that our people are our greatest asset.
Ths is reflected in the way that we conduct our business and also in
how we value and reward our employees. We recruit diverse and
talented professionals who exhibit a passicn for performance and drive,
we offer development opportunities to our colleagues through hands-on
leamning and exzensive training, and we strive to foster a collaborative
and inclusive ervironment,

Since Bridgepont’s inception, our differentizted culture has always been
reflected in our mcentive and remuneration structures which recognise
and reward performance whilst providing strong alignment with the
interests of our extermal scakeholders. Discredionary bonus structures
reflect individual and company performance and are paid in addition to
market competitive salarics and henefits. Fmployee share ownership is a
key part of Bridgepoint's culture and currently employees and former
employees {as well as certain related persons) hold over 50% of our
issued share capital. (Over 70% of vur cwirent employees are
shareholders.

Our Directors’ Remuneration Policy (the “Policy™), which was approved
by sharcholders ar the 2022 AGM with over 99% support, aims to
reflect gur internal culture of share ownership, revvards for strong
performance (a parmership ethes), and ahgnment with our fund
investors as well as our shareholders and reflects best practice within our
regulatory framework.

10

Cur two Executive Directors have a simple remuneration structure
aperated within the Policy framework. In cach case, their remuneration
structure has been adapted to take account of their individual roles
within Bridgepoint.

As a committee, we are pleased to confirm that during 2022,
remmuneration arrangements both for Executive Directors and the wider
workforce have continued to operate in line with the Bridgepoint
remuneration policy and philosophy.

Company performance

Tn 2022, Bridgepoint contmued to deliver strong retums for investors.
The year saw significant growth in Assets Under Management and
operating income 1ising by 14%. We have delivered investment income
ahead of expectations and have seen the value of Bridgepoint funds
held up or rse further through 2022 despire asset prices declining in
certain sectors of the wider market. As a result, underlying EBITDA and
underlying profit before rax have surengthened by 23% and 33%
respectively, translating 1o reported earnings per share of 14.6 pence.

Remuneration payable in respect of 2022

When considering the annual bonus outcome for the CFO, Bridgepoint
Uses a scorecard of measures that reflect the Group's business straregy,
and which align to the interests of our stakeholders.

The business ransitioned from investing BE VI to BE VI in 2022 but
BE VIl remains apen for investor commitments Impacting in year, but
not underlying, management fees. Therefore, the Commitee has
caleulated EBITDA for the bonus plan to reflect mun rate management
fees for BE VII. The EBITDA outcome dehivered just above the
mid-point for the range of targets originally set which the Committee
assessed was an appropriate cutcome providing a more relevant
assessment of the CFO's performance.

As the urmng of the BE VI fundraise evolved through 2022, the inital
target capital raised in the year was not achieved. Bridgepoint continued
to make significant investments across all strategies, which was reflected
in performance against the capital deployed targets. Our CFO
performed well n relation to the strategic objecuves we set for the year,
and in summary this resulted inapproximarely 25% of his salary being
earned in total. Further details of performance against financial and non-
financial performance measures can be found on page 114w 115.
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The Committee reviewed the formulaic result and considered
whether any discretion should be applied to the adjusred bonus
curcome. Based an the performance achieved against targets, the
experience of stakeholders and wider assessment of performance
during the year, the Committee was comfortable that the outcome
was appropriate and should not be adjusted.

The base salary for the CFO remained unchanged from that set ar
the time of the IPO and disclosed in the 2021 Annual Report on
Remuneration, During the vear, the first grant under the Restricted Share
Plan (*“RSP”) was made 1o the CFO which equared ro 50% of his salary.
This will vest after three years subject o continued employment and
achievement of the underpin as set out in the Policy.

At the request of the Chairman the Committee approved a
permanent reduction in his base salary from £890,000 to
£800,000 10 September 2022, As set out in the Policy, William
Jackson 1s not eligible 1o participate in variable remuneration
arrangements.

Approach to remuneration for 2023

When determining our approach for the year ahcad we considered

a number of factors including business performance, the external
market ervironment, the wider stakeholder context, Bridgepoint's
remuneration philesophy and how existng remunerarion
arrangements for Executive Directors are positioned relative to market.

Base salary

The base salary of the Chairman and the CHO will remain
unchanged in 2023.

Variable pay

In line with the Policy, the CFO will be eligible to receive an
annual bonus for 2023, with his maximum bonus opportumty
remaining at 50% of salary.

The Commuttee has reviewed the ongoing approprateness and balance
of metrics used for the 2022 bonus award and determined that it is
appropriate to split the EBITDA measure into FRE and investment
ncome measures for the 2023 performance year. The Commuttee has
also introduced a cash conversion KPI and mcluded capital measures in
the strategic objectives whilst reviewing the weighting of all metrics, to
align with the CFO’s focus areas. All metrics will be measured on a
normalised basts. Strategic performance measures including ESG

will have a weighdng of 30% and financial metrics wiill comprise

the remaining 70%.

The Committee feels that these changes reflect the prionities
of the business and align the CFC’s bonus epportunity with
business performance.

A restricred share award will be made to the CFO following the
announcement of the annual results. The award will be valued at
50% of salary and will vest after three years subject to continued
employment and the performance underpin.

"The Committee has been closcly monitoring recent share price and
market voladlity, We will keep this under review in the lead up to the
grant of shares under the RSP and wilt have discretion at the time of
vesting to adjust the outcomes if we feel that management have
benefited from factors outside of their control, and thar the vesting of
the award does not reflect performance achieved over the period,

In hine with the Policy, William Jackson is not eligible to receive a
restricted share award.

Non-Executive Directors’ fees

A comprehensive analysis of Non-Executive Directors’ fees has
been undertaken this year and, recopnising the workload of the
Company’s Board committees, an additional membership fee of
£7.000 per annum has been insticuted for each of the Audit and
Risk, Remuneration, ESG and Nominaton Committees, taking
effect from 1 January 2023. This fee will not apply to the chairs of
the committees, where they already receive an additional {ec for
such role.

As highlighted on page 56, Tam pleased to cenfirm that the
business has formed a Board level ESG Committee, which aims to
ensure that ESG considerations, including climate concerns and
diversity, arc integrated into the Company's strategic and financial
planning. This Commitee 1s chaired by Dame Carolyn McCall,
who will be supported by myself. Standard chair and membership
fees (as adjusted above) will apply to this Committec.

Remuneration arrangements elsewhere in the Group

Our company-wide employee engagement survey enables
colleagues, on a confidential basis, 1o provide feedback on a full
range of employment issues, including remuneration.

We are conscious that the well documented spike tn inflation has
led 1o cost-of-living challenges for some of cur workforce. During
the year, the Group has ciosely monitored the impact on our
colleagues and has considered how best to support them through
this challenging tume. In response a one-off cost-of-living award
was made in September 2022 to our colleagues at junior levels.

The inflationary environment has also mfluenced cur decision making
around annual pay increases to colleagues, with the Committee
approving an average increase to eligible colleagues of 6.7%.

Conclusion

During the year, T was also pleased to attend a firm-wide
conference where I had the opporrunity to talk ro employees
across the Bridgepoint Group on a range of topics and Tlook
forward to conunued dialogue geing forward.

The Committee has satisfied itself that the remuneration ourcomes
for 2022 are appropriate and that the Policy has operated as
intended.

On behalf of the Commirttee thank you for reading this report and
we look forward to receiving your support at the AGM on 18 May
2023 in relanion to approval of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for 2022.

(i)t

Angeles Garcia-Poveda
Chair of the Remuneration Commaittee

Find out more: bridgepointeu
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Governance

Annual report on remuneration

Remuneration at a glance

Exccutive remuneration framework and Policy summary

Single figure remuneration

Willtam Jackson

Max
Actual
Adam Janes
Max
Actual
o £0.5m £1.0m £1.5m
B Salary ¥§ Bencfis [ Pension #% Anpual Bonus LTTPs {ml) Orther {(nil}
Maximum epportunity under the
Component & purpose Operation under the Policy Folicy QOutcomes tor FY2022 Operation in 2023
Base Salary Reviewed annually with In considering increases, The CFO's salary remained  The salary of the Chairman

To help recruit, reward
and retain the calibre of
talent required o deliver
Rridgepoint's sirategy.

any changes normally
effective from the
beginning of the
financial vear.

the Commitlee assesses the
increases applying to the
wider workloree as well as
local market levels,

unchanged during 2022,
The salary of the Chairman
was reduced from
£890,000 ro £800,000
upoen his request effective
from September 2022.

and the CFO will remain
urchanged.

Benefits

Ta provide market
competitive benefits and
to support the health and
wellbeing of Executive
Directors.

Benefits currently received
by Execunve Directors
include life assurance,
private medical insurance
and income protecnion.

The opporranity s set at
the cost of providing the
benefits described.

There have been no
changes Lo the Executive
Mirectors' benefit
provision this year

Renefits 1o operate in line
with the Remunceration
Policv and align to those
available to UK colicagucs.

Pension
To provide market
COMPEUVe renrement
benefits.

A contmbution to the
Group Pension Plan
or a cash allowance
n liew of pension.

Annual Bonus

To encourage the
mproved financial and
non-tinancial pertormance
of the business and to
provide alignment with
shareholders through the
partial delerral of payment
into shares.

The annual bonus 1s
determined afier the
vear-end based on
performance against
targets during the year.

A pension comribution
rate in line with the rate
applicable 10 the majority
of the workforce in the
appropriale country.

The pension contribution
rate 1s currently 10% of
salarv up lo a notional
salarv of £112,300. There
have been no changes this
)"EHT.

Pension 1o operate in line
with the Remuneration
Policy and align to those
available to UK colleagues.

The overall maximurn
Annual Bonus opportunity
under the policy is 200%

Ufs‘el]aﬁ_}.

The Anmual Bonus pavable

Lo the CMO was £124 881,
The Chairman does not
receive variable
compensation.

Anmual bonus opportanity
rernains Unchanged from

2022

Restricted Share Plan
Provides alignment of the
Fxecutive Direcrors to
sharchulders by increasing
share ownership and
promoting long term value
Crealion.

An annual award of
Bridgepoint shares

which are subject to a
purformance underpin.
Shares normally vest after
3 years and are subject

to a further 2 year
holding period.

The averall maximum
annual award level s
100% of salary.

The annual award made 1o
the CFO was 50% of
salary. The Chairman does
not receive variable
compensanon.

Annual award opportunity
remains unchanged from
2022,
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Remuneration Policy
During FYZ2022, we operated under the Directors’ Remuneration Policy approved at the AGM on 12 May 2022, The full Remuneration

Policy can be found on our corporate website bridgepomteu.

Audited information

Total remuneration payable for the vear to 31 December 2022

The following table sels oud tlie wul lemuneration for the Execurtve Directors and the Non-Executve Lirectors for the year ended

31 December 2022, The Information for 2021 comprises, for the Executive Directors, the total remuneration received over the {ull year
from 1 January 2021 10 31 December 2021, including remuneration received from the Group prior to Bridgepoint's PO for work pricr
to the [PO.

Financial year Legacy Share
Al figures ended  Salaryand Taxable TowalFixed TowlVariable  NEDIPO Allocation
shown in £004 31 December fees Benefis? Pension® Bonus RSP Other  Hemuneraton Remuncration Fees' {Pre-1PQ) Total
Willam __ 2022 ___860.0 6.5 93 - - ~ 8766 . — - 8766
Tackson 2021 7988 56 99 6300° - 720° 8143 7020 - §4.8° 16011
Adam 2022 500.0 30 98 1249 - - 512.8 1249 - - 637.7
Jones 2021 4156 117 99 2025 _ 288 4372 3215 — 339 7924
Angeles 2022 950 - - - - 95.0 - - - %50
Garcia- - = e - —
Poveda 2021 4100 - - - - - 410 - 5000 - 5410
Archie 2022 2000 - — O - 2000 . . ~ 2000
Narman 2021 86.4" - = - - - 86.4 1,750.0 - 1,834
Dame 2022 750 - - - - 750 - - - 750
Carolyn - i . L
McCall 2021 323 - - - -~ 823 ~ 5000 - 5323
Tim 2022 950 - - - - B 95.0 - - - 950
Score 2021 41.0 - - - - ~ 41.0 - 500.0 - 541.0

Notes o the zable
1 Nor-Lxewutve Directars fees are shown from the date of appointment Each of the Non-Lxecutive Direciors received & pre-120 fee bach Non-Executive Direvior used the post-tax

amaunt of this fee W gequite shares in the Company, which mustc be heid fur at least tiree vears from TPO, or one year from leaving {i- sooner}

[

- Execunve Diestars recerve family privare medical insurance, Ife assurance and meome prorection. Willlam Jacksan also partivipares i 4 legacy SPOUscs pension arrangement.

-

- Dsecunve Directors have elected 1o receive 4 cash llowanee in eu of penston No Executve Dircelor paricipates in a defimed benetit pension arrangement.

i

Wiliam Jacxsor and Adam Jones received cash bonuses prior o TPOL These amouns related 1o pertormarce poor w tie 1170, No further bonuses were paid in relauon wo the 2021
Npancia yeat.

o

Prior io PO, certain emplovees Mcuding the Executive Mirectors were given the opporiumity to purchase shares in the Company The difterence berween the value and the price paid
ZAVE MISE Lo ar INCume tax hability that was settled by the Compary and is included here alongside tae valae or'the shares less amounts paid Lo purchase them These shares are subject

Lo vesting and holding perinds out w july 2026

Annual bonus plan

In 2021, prior to TPO, the Executive Directors received bonuses in line with normal practice. The amount of bonus payable was
determined by the Remuneration Committee of the unlisted company on a discretionary basis.

Derails of the 2022 honus caleulation are set out on page 114

Restricted Share Plan (RSP) vesting dur‘ing the year

There are no awards under the RSP which vested during the year or are due ta vest based on performance to 31 December 2022,
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Annual report on remuneration .. ...

Awards in respect of annual performance

Measare 35 Weighting czo‘Ts;h ::::i; (oni\‘ft.:]t?i?) (100% vsc‘s:cl:gjh Achicvement asa z‘g;::;
EBITDA 40%  £1542m  £1642m  £174.2m £165.9m 23.40%
Capital Deployed (selecred funds) 15%  €327bn  €3.77bn €4.27bn €3.4bn 3.75%
Capi Wl Raised o ” 15% Targets have been deemed to be - €6.5bn 0%

commercially sensitive by the Board -
further details regarding the commercial
sensitivities are set our below

Fmployee Engagement, Diversity & ESG 7 15% See tables below for a detailed summary 75% 11.25%
~___ of performance achieved against objectives of max

Business Strategy 159 set by the Commitee at the start of the 77% 11.550%
’ performance period. of max

Total Outcome 49.95%

Amount payable £124,881

The Commitree determines the annual bonus award for the CFO using a balanced scorecard. At the beginning of 2022, merrics that were
70% financial and 30% nan-financial were selected, aligned to the Group's key KPls.

EBITDA - When determining the outcome for 2022 and as referenced in the Chairman’s letter, given the fact that BE V1T remains open
for investor commitments the Committee decided it should assess the achievement using an adjusted caleulation of EBTVIDA. This
adjustment aligned the basis on which the rargets had been set by replacing the acrual fee income from the BE VII fund with the
budgeted level for 2022. This change has not impacted the targets and provides a more relevant assessment of performance for the
CFQ’s bonus calculation.

Capital Deployed (selected funds) - Despite the external environment, Bridgepoint continued to deploy significant capital across all of
1ts strategies. This included BE VI making its first commitment, investing in MiQ, a global leader in programmatic advertising and the
final construction of the BE VT porcfolio. The Credit funds included are calculated as net of recycled capital.

Capital Raised - Consistent with our general approach, we do not disclose the capital raised for ongoing fundraises due to the potential
commercial impact. As set ourt in the Chairman's statement, we expect to complete fundraising for BE V1|, BCO TV, BDL Hl and BG 11
during 2023. We will provide full disclosure in next year's repart.

Non-financial objectives
Developing and engaging with the Group's workforce through ESG, diversity and employee engagement initiatives:

ESG - Through 2023 we have continued to strengthen the ESG function. In the 18 months to December 2022, we have upgraded our
ESG reperting capability, launching new portfolio wide ESG reporting tools and upgrading the process by which we calculare
Bridgepoint’s carbon emissions.

Diversity - Management have focused on creating more opportunities for inclusion through ininatives including the Women’s Murual
Mentoring Programme, role model dinners {(sponsored by representatives from the business), D& committees and cur ongoing
relationship with Level 20. We continue to ensure diverse shortlists of candidares when recruiting and aim to ensure that our annual
associate cohort is at least 50% female, enabling us to build a strong pipeline of future female leaders.

Employee Engagement - The Teadership team has worked extensively to Improve employee engagement via the implementation of a
new company wide listening strategy Jaunched during Q1 of 2022, with further engagement during the year. Key ourcomes have been
discussed with statf both at an individual and "town hall” level.

The Committee weighted these objectives equally and assessed that the CFO's perfarmance in advancing these three core objectives
warranted a 75% of maximum score,
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Support the growth and development of the business through strategic and operational mitiatis ¢s:

Operational Initiatives - Through 2022 we have completed the build-out of cur post TPO ream and structure. Specifically, we have
improved our reporting, shareholder relations and company secretarial capabilities.

Business Development - We have remained proactive in our approach to business development. Through 2023 we have continued to
look at opportunities to grow existing strategies, add adjacent products and diversify Bridgepoint’s product offering,

The Committee assessed thar the CFO’s performance in relation o advancing these initiatives and Business Development warranted a
77% of maximum score.

Combining the financial and non-financial results gives a raral banus ourcome of 49.95% of maximum bonus opportanity for the CFO.
The Commitree has determined that the balanced scorecard outcome appropriately reflects the financial and strategic performance delivered.
Incentive awards granted during the year

The following table provides details of the incentive awards granted during the vear ended 31 December 2022:

Director Award Award Date Vesting Date Face Value at Grant Number of Shares Awarded

Adam Jones Restricted Share Plan 31 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2025 £250,000 71,428

The Company closely monitored the share price in advance of granting this incentive award and will have discretion at the ime of
vesting to adjust the ourcomes if it is felt that management have benefited from factors outside of their control and that vesting of the
award does not reflect performance achieved over the period.

Awards under the Restricted Share Plan will vest subject to the achievement of suitable financial and non-financial performance against
the performance underpin as detailed in the Directors’ remuneration policy.

The Company’s share plans comply with the Investment Association guidance on ditution limits and awards issued will not exceed a
limit of 5% in any ten years under all executive share plans and 10% in any ten years under all share plans.

Payments to former Directors and for loss of office

No payments were made to former Directors of the Company or in relation ta loss of office during the year.

Directors’ interests

The interests of the Directors and their connected persons in the shares in the Company as at 31 December 2022 are set out below.

Shares held outright at Vested sharessubject o Unvested shares subject o Sharcholding requirement
Director 31 December 2022 holding period holding period % of salary) Requirement met’
William Jackson® 511,430 10,630,980 5599620 300% Yes
Adam Jones® ) 44,572 - 4,178,422 300% Yes
Angeles Garcia-Poveda 94,286 —
Dame Carolyn McCall ) 75,714
Archie Norman ) 275.000 .
Tim Score 75714

1 Based on closing share piice un 31 December 2022 of £1.96 per share
2. Inclading shares neld by ronnected persons, but excluding shates held by Burgandy Investments Ho dings LP

On 16 March 2023, Cyrus Taraporevala purchased 60,000 Company shares on-market, and he purchased a further 40,000 shares on
17 March 2023, Otherwise, since 31 December 2022 there have been no changes in the Directors” interest in shares, or those of their
connected persons.

During employment, Execuiive Directors are reguired to build and maintain a sharcholding equivalent to 300% of their base salary. The
shareholdings of the Chairman and CFO exceed this requirement significantly.

Post-cessation of employment, Executive Directors must rerain shares to the value of 300% of salary (or the mumber of shares held at
cessanon if lower than 300%) for a perind of two vears in accordance with the Remunerarion Pohicy.
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Annual report on remuneration ... ..

William Jackson and Adam Jones purchased shares under legacy share purchase arrangements in June 2021 which will have to be soid
for nominal consideration if they leave employment prior to various dates that end in July 2026.

Performance graph and table

Bridgepoint Group ple shares began unconditional trading on the London Stock Exchange’s main market on 26 July 2021, The chart
below shows the Toral Shareholder Return performance of £100 invested in Bridgepoint from 26 July 2021 to 31 December 2022
against the FTSE 250 index. The FTSE 250 index 1s considered an appropriate comparison as Bridgepoint 1s a constituent of the index.
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2021 20322

— Bridgepoint — FTSE 250

2021 2022

Chairman single figure total remuneration {(£000s) 1,601.1 876.6
Bonus as a % of maximum cpportuniry ) ) N/A N/A

Long-term incentive vesting (as % of maximum oppormunity) N/A N/A

ligures reflect remunerarion to 31 December 2022, No long-term incentives have been granted or bonuses awarded to the Chairman
under the Directors’ Remunerarion Policy ro dare.
Change in Directer and employee remuneration

As the Company was admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange on 26 July 2021, there is no comparable remuneration to
disclose for the prier year. Full disclosure of the percentage change for Director and employee remuneration, in line with the large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, will commence in next year's report.
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Chairman pay ratio

UK regulations requite companies with more than 250 UK emplayees to publish the raue of the Chairman versus that of the Group’s
UK employees. Whilst we do not yet have more than 250 employees in the UK, we have elected ro calculate this ratio. In the calculation,
we have used Oprion A because this is the most statistically accurate approach.

Financial year Method Lowet Quartile Median Upper Quartile

2022 A &1 51 3:1

The pay for the Chailman and the employees at the requisite percentiles are set out below:

Figures shown in £000s Chaitman Lawer Quartile Median Upper Quartlc
Basic salary 860.0 65.8 95.G 163.8
Total pay 876.6 106.2 182.7 3439

The employee pay figures were caleulared by reference to the year to 31 December 2022, which is consistent with the period used for
the Single Total Figure of Remuneration for the Directors. The total pay and taxable benefits were derermined for all UK permanent and
fixed term employees as at 31 December 2022. No compenents have been omitted in calculating total pay and taxable benefits on a
single total figare of remuneration (STFR) basis. Necessary adjustments were made in determining full ume pay and benefits so that
salaries, cash bonuses, share awards, taxable benefits and pensions were annualised for employees who have not been with the Company
for the full financial year or grossed up an a full time equivalent basis for employees who work on a part time basis.

The Committee is comfortable that the pay ratio shown above is consistent with our pay, reward and progression policies for the
Company's UK employees as a whole,
Relative importance of the spend on pay

The table below shows the Company’s expenditure on employee pay compared to distriburions to sharcholders in the year ended
31 December 2021 and 2022.

Fy2021 FY2022

£m £m % Change

Distributions to shareholders _ ) 60 66 10%
Aggregate personnel expenses 1327 1269 -4.4%

FY 2022 distributions to shareholders include the final dividend for the year ending 31 December 2022 and a dividend of £33 million which
was paid to qualifying shareholders in September 2022. Aggregate personnel expenses are as set out on page 160 of this Annual Report.
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Implementation of policy in 2023

Executive Director remuneration

Base salary

Base salary levels will be as follows:

Chairman.: £800,000
- Chtef Financial Officer: £500,000

Atthe request of the Chairman the Committee approved a permanent reduction in his base salary from £890,000 ro £800,000.

Pension and benefits

Execurive Direcrors are eligible to participate in benefits in line with all other UK employees. They will receive a pension contnibution of
10% of salary (up to a salary cap of £112,500) in line with the rate applying to the rest of the UK emplovees. Other benefits mclude
family private health cover, Iife assurance and group income protection, William Jackson also participates in the group spouses pension
scheme which 1s a legacy benefit provided to other employees of similar tenure.

Annual bonus plan

Adam Jenes, the Chief Financial Officer, will be the only Director eligible to participate in the Annual Bonus Plan for 20273, as the
Chairman will not receive a bonus. 'T'he maximum bonus opportunity for Adam Jones will be 50% of salary.

Performance will be based en a mix of financial and non-financial metrics, weighted at 70% and 30% cof the bonus opportunity,
respectively. The Committee reviewed the operation for the 2022 bonus plan, which was the first full year as a hsted company and has
split the EBITDA measure into fee retated earnings and investment income to enable separate weighring to be provided to each element,
and included a cash measure. All of these elements will be measured on a normalised basis. In addition, the Committee felt that the
capital measures were better placed as part of the strategic objectives with a lower weighring, given the CFO’s focus.

The Committee considers the prospective disclosure of target ranges to be commercialiy sensiuve, bur there will be full retrospective
disclosure in next year's Annual Report, The Remuneration Committee has the discretion to adjust the fermulaic annual bonus or waive
specific merrics and replace them in determining the annual outcome if it believes that pursuing such metrics would not be in the best
intercsts of the business based on the prevailing circumstances during the year.

50% of any borus earned in excess of 25% of salary will be deferred into shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan. Deferred bonus shares
will vest after three years subject to continued employment.

Malus and clawback provisions apply in line with the Remuneration Policy, as set out on page 113
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Restricted share awards

A restricted share award will be made to Adam Jones following the announcement of the annual results. The sward will be valued at 50%

of salary and will vest after three years subject 1o continued employment and the underpin contained in the Policy table.

William Jackson will not be eligible to receive a restricted share award,

Non-Executive Director remuneration

A summary of the Non Bxccutive | wectors’ fees are shown helow:

Non-Executive Director 2023 Fee
Senior Independent Director’s fee B B £125,000
Non-Executive Director base fee _ £75,000
Audit and Risk Committee Chair'’s fee i _ £20,000
ESG Committee Chair's fee £20,000
Remuneration Committee Chair's fee £20,000
Committee membership fee o £7,000

Direcrors’ service contracts and letters of appointment

Name Date of appointment Drate of current contract Notice from Company Notice from the individual
William Jackson ) 25 June 2021 271 June 2021 12 months 12 months
Adam Jones 25 June 2021 21 June 2021 12 months 12 months
Angeles Garcia-Poveda B 25 June 2021 21 June 2021 3 months 3 months
Dame Carolyn McCall 12 July 2021 22 June 2021 3 months 3 months_
Archie Norman 25 Junc 2021 21 June 2021 3 months 3 months
Tim Score 25 Jhune 2021 21 June 2021 3 months 3 months
Cyrus Taraporevala o 1 Jaruary 2023 23 November 2022 3 months 3 months

Further details regarding the above can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Policy.
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Governance of remuneration

Roles and responsibility

The role of the Remuneration Commitee is to determine and establish a remuneration policy for the Executive Directors and Executive
Commirttee and to oversee the remuneration packages for those individuals (including all material risk takers). When determining
remuneration arrangements, the Committee must review remuneration across the whole Group and the alignment of incentives and
rewards with culrure and take 1hese inte account when determining remuneration of the Exccutive Directors and Execurive Committec.
Further details on the roles and responsibilities of the Committee are disclosed in the Terms of Reference which can be found on the
Company’s corporate website bridgepoint.en.

"The Remuneration Committee is responsible for:
derermining and developing the remuneration policy which applies to the Chairman of the Board, other Fxecutive Direcrors, members
of senior management, and any other employee of the group who the Committee s required by regulations to oversee.

- determining the individual remuneration packages of the Directors and relevant senior emplovees within the terms of the agreed
Remuneration Paolicy,

monitering the remunerztion structures and overall levels of remuncration of the Group'’s senior management and making
recommendations to the Board where appropriate.

overseeing the remuneration of the wider Bridgepoint team and ensuring that cur policy for the senior team is consistently scructured.

overseeing the operation of the Group’s employee share schemes

Remuneration Committec members and meetings

During 2022 the Committee comprised of the three independent Nan-Executive Directors listed below. The Remuncration Commirtee
Chair, Angeles Garcia-Poveda, has eight years’ experience chairing other remuneration committees. The Committee will meet at least
threc times a year.

The membership of the Committee changed in January 2023 when Cyrus Taraporevala joined the Committee. Dame Carolyn MeCall
stood down from the Committee from 1 January 2023,

Angeles Garcia-Poveda
Committee member ) Archie Norman

Committee Chair

Committee member Dame Carolyn McCall
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Key activities during the year

Over the period since it was constiturted, the Committee has carried out the following activines:

- approved the new Remuneration Policy and certain elements of its operation effective from IPO, such as the base salary levels for
the Executive Threctors:
set the KPIs for the Executive Directors;
derermined Execurive Director awards and reviewed awards payable to all material risk takers and control staff;

- reviewed annual bonus metrics ahead of 2023 1o ensure they appropriately align with business strategy and promote the correct
behaviours;

- received and debated briefings on the operation of remuneration arrangements throughout the Group; and

planned the cycle of work for 2023
In addition, the members of the Committee held a number of introductery meetings with key members of the firm as well as office visits.

The Policy has been designed to encourage long-term, sustainable growth and provide Execunive Directors with compertitive overall
remuneration for the achievement of stretching performance targets aligned to delivering the business strategy.

The Palicy has been tested against the six factors listed in Provision 40 of the Corporate Governance Code:
Clarity: the policy is as clear as possible and full details are described in straightforward concise terms ro shareholders and the

workforce.

Simplicity: remuneration structures are as simple as possible and are market typical, whilst ar the same time incorporaring the
necessary structural {catures to ensure a strong alignment to performance and strategy and minimising the risk of rewarding failure,

- Risk: the remuneration policy has been shaped to discourage inappropriate risk taking.
Predictability: elements of the policy are subject to caps and dilution limits. The Remuneration Commirttee may exercise its discretion
to adjust Directors’ remuneration if a formula-driven incentive pay-ourt 7s inappropriate in the circumstances.

- Proportienality: there is a sensible balance between fixed pay and variable pay, and incentive pay is weighted to sustainable long-
term performance. Tncentive plans are subject to performance conditions that consider both finanaal and non-financial performarice
linked to strategy, and outcomes will not reward poor performance.

- Alignment to culture: the Remuneration Committee will consider company culture and wider workforce policies when shaping and
developing Executive Director remuneration policies to ensure that there is coherence across the organisation. There will be a strong
emphasts on the fairness of remuneration outcomes across the werkforce.

Effectiveness

The operations of the Committee were reviewed as part of the internal Board evaluation led by Archie Norman during 2022; the
Committee was found to be eperating cffectively. For more details of this exercise, please sce page 100

External advisers

The Remuneration Committee receives independent advice from Korn Ferry, Executive Pay & Governance division, who were appeinted
pre-TPQ in 2021 following a tender process. Kom Ferry 1s a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct and has confirmed
to the Committee that it adheres in all respects to the terms of the code. The fees for the advice provided during 2022 were £68,210. Other
than Remuneration Consultancy, Korn Ferry provided no other advice or services to the Company during the year.

Total votes

cast {excluding
Resolution Votes for % Votes against % withheid votes) Vortes withheld
Directors’ Remuneration Report for 2021 (2022 AGM) 744,090,250 99.68% 2,379353  032% 746469603 62838762
Directors’ Remunerarion Policy (2022 AGM) 747.619,9%6  99.74% 1975439  0.26% 749595435 59712930
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DirecCtors’ report and additional disClosures

The Directors present their report for the year ended 31 December 2022, The Directors’ report comprises this report and the entire
Governance scction. In accordance with the FCA’s Listing Rules, the information to be included in the 2022 Annual Repert and
Accounts, where applicable, under LR 9.8.4. is set out in this Directors’ report. Particular information that is relevant to this Report, and
which is incorporated by reference, can be locared as follows:

Informarion Section in Annual Report Page numbers
Likely furure developments of the business of the Group Strategic Report 24 -27
Srakeholder engagement (including employee cngagemeno) Strategic Report 28-32
Dividends Strategc Report ) 46 .
Carbon and greenh@ga_s e{m-issions ) Strategic Report 74-776

Risk management Strategic Report 78-83
Board of Directors ) ' Governance ) 92-95
Corporate gove?ﬁéﬁcc report - ) Governance 97 -100 _
Finanetal instruments — risk management objectives and policies Financial Statements 176- 186
Acquisitions of own shares Financial Statements 201

Events after the Teporting period B Financial Statements 201

‘The Directors’ Report, together with the Strategic Report on pages 4 1o 83, represent the management report {or the purposes of
compliance with Rule 4.1 of the FCA’s Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules.
Directors” iability insurance and indemnity

The Company has purchased and maintains Directors’ and Officers’ insurance cover against certain legal liabilities and costs for claims in
connection with any act or omission by such Directors and officers in the execution of their duties.

The Company has also indemmified each Director to the extent permitted by law against any liabilicy incurred in relation to acts or
omissions arising in the ordinary course of their duties. The indemnity arrangements are qualifying third party indemmiry provisions
under section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. All such indemnities were in force during 2022, other than that for Cyrus Taraporevala,
which weok effect upon his appointment.

Political donations

[t is not the policy of the Company to make political donations as contemplated by the Companics Act 2006 and, during 2022, no
donations were made ro political parties or orgamisations, or independent clection candidates, and no political expenditare was incurred.
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Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (“DE&}”)

At Bnidgepoint we believe in the power of the individual. We arc a decistons business and we malke better decisions when we are better
informed - when we are able to see challenges and opportunities from multiple angles. Our appreach e DE&I is therefore not about
rokenism or ticking boxes, it's about our diversity of thoughr and collecrive intelligence and the impact they can bring to the gquahity of
our decision-making, outcomes and performance. We aim to create a work environment that propetly reflects the communirties in which
we operate, where every voice 13 heard, and everyone's wellbeing is valued. Why? Because doing so makes our Company a betrer place
to work. And because it makes Bridgepoint a better business and helps us achieve our wider, strategic goals. That's why, by becoming
more diverse, equitahle and inclusive, Bridgepoint is becoming a better business.

l'urther derails on equal opportunites and diversity are included in the straregic report on page 56.

The Group treats applicants and employees with disabilities fairly and provides facilicies, equipment and training to assist disabled
employees to do their jobs. Arrangements are made as necessary to provide support to job applicants who happen to be disabled. Should
an employee become disabled during their employment, efforts are made to retain them in their current employment or to explore the
opportunities for cheir retraining or redeployment within the Group. Financial support is also pravided by the Group to support disabled
employees who are unable to work, as approprtate to local market conditions.

The Group has clear grievance and disciplinary procedures in place, and also has an employee assistance programme shich provides a
confidential, free and independent counselling service and 15 available to employees in a number of locations.

Share capital

Asat 23 March 2023, the issued share capital was 819,998,501 ordinary shares of £0.00005 each, 500 deterred shares of £81 each, 1
deferred share of £1, and 1 deferred share of £0.01.

Significant shareholdings

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had been notified pursuant to DTR 5 or otherwise was aware at the time of the IPO of the
following interests representing 3% or more of the voting rights of the Company’s ordinary shares:

Sharcholder Nurmber of ordimary shares Percentage of total voring rights
Dyal Capital Partners TV (C) LP 124,531,939 15.13%
Burgundy Investrents Holdings LT - 75477698 .17%
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. 45,130,992 5.48%
The Capital Group Compantes, Inc. ' | 41939368 5.09%

Berween 31 December 2022 and 23 March 2023, being the latest practicable date before the publication of this Annual Report, the
Company received no further notifications under DTR 5.
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Directors’ report and additional disclosures ... ...

Rights and restrictions attaching to ordinary shares

Holders of ordinary shares are entited to attend, speak and vote at
general meetings and to appoint proxies and, in the case of
coTporations, corporate representatives are entitled to attend,
speak and vote at such meetings on their behalf. To attend and
vote at a general meeting a shareholder must be entered on the
register of members at such time (not being earlier than 48 howrs
before the meeting) as stated in the nouce of general meeting. All
resolutions at a general meering are voted on by poll, with holders
of ordinary shares having one vote for each share held.

Where a shareholder has been duly served notice under section
793 of the Companies Act 2006 (which confers upon public
companies the right to require information with respect to intercsts
in their voting shares} and the shareholder is in default of the
notice for a period of 14 days, unless the Directors determine
utherwise, the shareholder (and any transferee) will not be entitled
to attend or vorte at a general meenng, Where the relevant shares
represent 0.2.5% or more of the issued ordimary shares, the
Directars may direct that no transfer of shares that are the subject
of the default be registered until the default 1s remedied, provided
that where the shares are in uncertificated form, the Directors may
only exercise their discretion not to register a transfer if permitted
1o do so by applicable legislation.

Ordinary shares have arrached 1o them full dividend and capital
distribution (including on winding up) rights, but do not confer
any rights of redemption.

Holders of deferred shares shall not be entitled to vote or receive
any notice convening a general meeting of the Company, and shall
not be entitled to receive any dividends or ather distributions or to
participate in any return of capital {other than to receive the
nominal value of such shares in a liquidation after all other shares
have received £1 million per share). They do net confer any rights
of redemption,

All issued share capital of the Company at the darte of this Annual
Report 1s fully paid.

The Articles of the Company do not contain any restrictions on
the transfer of shares in the capital of the Company, other than an
ability of the Directors to refuse to register a transfer:

of shares that are not fully paid;

in respect of more than one class of shares;

which is not accompanied by the relevant share certificate {or,
where requested, other evidence of right to transfer is not

provided;

which is not duly stamped in circumstances where a duly
stamped instrument is required (or where requested, evidence
that the transfer is not subject to stamp duty is not provided);

of sharcs over which the Company has a lien; or

n favour of more than four persons jointly.

124

Certain restrictions may from time to time be imposed by faws and
regulations (for example, insider rading laws and the UK Takeover
Cade) and requirements of the Company’s share dealing code
whereby the Directors and emplayees of the Group require prior
approval to deal in the Company’s securities.

In the event the Company is deemed to be an invesrment
company as defined in the Tnvestment Company Act or the
Company’s asscts may be considered “plan assets™ within the
meaning of the US Employee Retirement Income Sccurity Act of
1974 (as amended), the Directors may restrict ownership in the
Company by (i) “U.S. persons” (as defined in Regularion S under
the U.S. Secunities Act) that are not a “qualified purchaser” (as
defined under the Investment Company Act); or (11) a person that
15 a benefit plan investor {including directly or through or as a
nominee). In such circumstances, the Articles give the Directors
the power to require a transfer of shares by ineligible persons.

Pursuant 1o a reorganisation agreement entered imo by, among
others, Burgundy A1 Nominees Limited, Burgundy A2 Nominees
Limited, Burgundy A3 Nominees Limited, Burgundy A4
Nominees Limited, Burgundy A5 Nominees Limited, Burgundy

B1 Nominees Limited, Burgundy B2 Nominees Limired, Burgundy
C Nominces Limited (the foregoing being the “Nominee
Companies”), the Company and vanicus pre-1PO shareholders
(being current or former employees of the Group or certain related
persons of such persons) (the “Management Shareholders”), the
Nominee Companies hold shares in the Company on behalf of the
Management Shareholders. Pursuant to the terms of the
agreement, the Management Shareholders are subjecr to
restrictions on their ability to dispose of their underlying shares for
a period of up to five years from the IPQ. As at 31 ecember
2022, belaw is the schedule for the remaimng relcascs of shares
from these lock-up restrictiens:

Diate Shares released from lock-up
July 2023 3,039,326 7
Taly 2024 81,734,187

July 2025 81,734,187

July 2026 192,459,135

Save as described above, the Company 1s not aware of any
agreements between holders of its securities that may restrict the
transfer of shares or exercise of votng rights.

Authority to purchase own shares

At the annual general meeting held on 12 May 2022, shareholders
passed a special resolurion to authorise the Company, subject to
certain conditions, to purchase on the market a maximum of
82,326,877 ordinary shares, representing approximately 10%

of the Company”s 1ssued ordinary share capital. As ar 23 March
2023, 3,270,273 sharcs have been purchased under this authory,
and the authenty will expire art the conclusion of the 2023

AGM or, if earlier, at the close of business on 31 July 2023.

The Directors are seeking the renewal of this authoriry at the
2023 AGM.
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Employce benefit trust and share schemes

The Company has established an employee benefit trust (“EBT™
to hold and acquire shares for the potenuial benefit of employces.
Pursuant to the terms of the EBT, the trustee is required to refrain
from exercising any voting rights attached to shares held by it
unless the Company directs otherwise.

Pursuant to the Company’s Neferred Annual Bonus Plan. award
holders are net generally entiled 1o receive dividends or to vote
(or have any other shareholder rights) in relation to an award until
the relevant shares are transferred to them.

Dividend waiver

A dividend waiver is in place from the trustee of the EBT in
respect of all dividends payable by the Company on shares which
it holds in trust.

Powers of Directors and Director appointments

The Direcrors manage the business and affairs of the Company
and may cxercise all powers of the Company other than those that
are required by applicable legislation or by the Articles to be
exercised by the Company in general meering,

The appointment and replacement of Directers is governed by the
Company’s Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and other applicable
legislation. The Directors may appoint any person to be a Directar
so long as the total number of Directors docs not exceed the limit
prescribed in the Articles {the maximum number of Directors
under the Articles is 20, save that the Company may vary this
maximum from time to time by ordinary resolution).

The Articles provide that the Company may. by ordinary
resolution at a general meeting, appoint any person 1o act ds a
Director, provided that such person is recommended by the
Directors, or the Company has received from the person
confirmation in writing, no later than seven days before the
relevant general meeting, of that person’s willingness to be elected
as a Director.

The Company may, by ardinary resolution {of which special notice
has been given), remave any Director from office. The Articles also
set out the circumstances in which a person shall cease ro be a
Director.

The Articles require thar at each annual general meeting each
persen whe is then a Director shall retire from office. A Director
who retires at an annual gencral meeting shall be eligible for
re-clection by sharehalders.

The Beard considers all Directors to be effective and commitied to
their roles, and to have sufficient time to perform their dutics. All
Directors are required ro seek the prior approval of the Board
befere raking on any significant external appointments.

Articles

The Articles may only be amended by special resolurion ar a
generzl meeting of shareholders.

Change of control

There are no significant agreements 1o which the Group is a party
that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Group, other than the following:

the governing documents of varipus Bridgepoint funds
(including the flagship Bridgepoint Furope funds) include
change of control provisions uiggered by Bridgepoint
personnel/former personnel (and their related parties) ceasing to
control certain Group menthers. In such circumstances, there 1s a
consultation process. and following the change of contrel
mvestors holding a majority of the commitments in the fund
may suspend the investment period, prohibiting the drawdown
of commitments. If such suspension is not lifted within a
£-12 month peried (varying by fund), the mvestment period will
be permanently terminated,
awards under the Group’s Deferred Bonus Plan generally vest in
full (te the extent not already vested) on a change of control of
the Company; and

- awards under the Group’s Long-Term Tncentive Plan and All
Employec Share Plan generally vest upon a change of control,
subject to the extent to which the performance conditions have
been sausfied at the time and ime pro-rating unless and to the
extent that the Remuneration Committee disapplics or reduces
time pro-raung,

Thete are no agreements between the Group and its Directors or
employvees providing for compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs because of a takeover bid, apart from the
usual provisions for payment in lieu of notice.

By order of the Board:

David Plant
Group Company Secretary

Bridgepoint Group plc

Company number: 11443992
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

"The Directors arc responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulanions.

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law, the Directors
have prepared the Group and Company financial statements in
accordance with international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006,

Additionally, the FCA’s Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules require the Directors to prepare the Group financial
statemnents in accordance with international financial reporting
standards adopted in the United Kingdom.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the
profit or loss of the Group and Company for that period. In
preparing the financial statements, the Direcrors are required 1o

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable,
relevany, reliable and prudent;

- for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with internationai accounting standards
n confarmity with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and Intermational Financial Reporting Standards as
adopred in the United Kingdom;

for the Company financial statements, state whether applicable
UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the Company
financial statements;

assess the Group and Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matrers related 1o going
concern; and

- use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
ntend to liquidare the Group or the Company or to cease
cperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the
financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financal
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

‘I'he irectars consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, 1s fair. balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group
and the Company's position and performance, business model

and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functiens are listed
on pages 112 to 113 confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view
of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidated
Group taken as a whole; and

- the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidated
Group taken as a whele, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

In accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, the
Directors confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no
relevant audit informaton of which the Company”’s audiror is
unaware; and the irectors have taken all steps that they ought to
have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s
audiror 1s aware of that information.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s systems of Tisk management and internal controls
mnc¢luding financial, operational and comphance controls, for the
vear ended 31 December 2022,

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
mternal control requirements of the Corporate Governance Code
throughout the year, maintaining an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and minimising risk.

By order of the Board

%&%\M

Adam Jones
Group Chief Financial Officer
and Chief Operating Officer
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Financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members of

Bridgepoint Group plc

Opinton

We have audited the financial statements of Bridgepoint Group plc
{the 'Parent Company’} and its subsidiaries (together the ‘Group’)
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2022 which comprise the
Consclidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and Campany Statement
of Financial Positien, Consolidated and Company Statement of
Clmngcs n HquiLy, CU”bU“ddlt‘d cuu_l Cumpdll_\ Staternent uf Cash
Flows, and notes 1 to 29 to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounring policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable Jaw and UK-adopied intemational accounting
standards and, as regards the Parent Company financial statements,
n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, the financial starements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the
Parent Company’s aftairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the
Group's profit for the year then ended,

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopred
international accounting standards and, as regards the Parent
Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Tnternational
Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilitics under those standards are further described in the
“Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the
Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities
and public Interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and
approprniate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded thar the
Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our audit procedures to evaluate the Directors’ assessment of the
Group’s and the Parent Company’s abiliry to continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting included burt were not limited to:

- Undertaking an irutial assessment at the planning stage of the
audit to idenufy events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s and the Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concerm:

- Obtaining ar understanding of the relevant controls relating to
the Directors’ going concern assessment,

Making enquiries of the Directors to understand the period of
assessment considered by them, the assumpuians they considered
and the implication of those when assessing the Group's and the
Parent Company’s future financial performance;

{dentifying and testing key assumptions within the going
CoONCern assessment;

"Tesung the mechanical and arithmetical accuracy of the medel
used to prepare the Group’s cash flow farecasts;

- Considering the consistency of management’s forecasts with
other areas of the audirt;

Assessing the sensitivity of the forecasts and conclusions to key
assumptions; and

Obtaining an understanding of the financing facihties avatlable
to the Group and reviewing the compliance with related
covenants;

- Assessed the sensitivity of the forecasts and conclusions to key
assumpuons; and
Assessing the appropriateness of risk factors disclosed in the
Group’s going concern statements by comparison to the
understanding gained in our audit procedures.

Based on the work we have performed, we have notidentified any
material uncertaintics relatung to events or conditions that,
mdividually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Group's and the Parent Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least tivelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Onr responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect
to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

In relation o Bridgepoint Group ple’s reporting on how it has apphed
the UK Corporare Governance Code, we have nothing material 1o add
or draw artention to in relation to the Directors’ statement in the
financial statements about whether the Directors considered 1t
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Bridgepoint Group plc .../

Key audit matters

Key audit marters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of martenial misstaternent (whether or not due to fraud) we identified,
including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement ream. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We summarise below the key audit matters in forming our opinion above, together with an overview of the principal audit procedures
performed to address each marter and our key observations arising from those procedures.

These matters, together with our findings, were communicated to those charged with governance through our Audit Completion Report..

Key Audit Matter

How our scope addressed this matter

Recognition of revenue arising from
management and other fees

In the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss, management and other fees toral
£241.5 million (2021: £197.7 million).

Refer to the Audit and Risk Committee
Report (pages 102-109); Accounung
policies (pages 145-153); and Note 5 of
the Financial Statements (pages 159-160).

The Group is entitled to management

and other fees arising from its performance
of investment management and related
services o Bridgepoint funds and third
parties. Management fees are based on

an agreed percentage of either committed
or invested capiral, depending on the fund
and 1ts life stage. Other fees include fees
and commissions relating to services
provided to third parties.

Auditing standards presume there 1s a risk
of fraud associated to revenue recognition.
We have concluded that due to the manual
nature of the process, that risk is associated to
the incorrect calculation of management
fees and other fees.

Our audit procedures

For our audit of management fees we selected a sample of those funds generating
management fee income based on fund strategy and significance relative to marteriality.
We tested 90% of the related amount and the principal procedures were:

Performing walkthroughs to develop an understanding of the procedures associated
with revenue recognition and evaluating the design and implementation of the relevant
controls in place;

- For a sample of funds:

agreeing the fee terms used in the calculation to the relevant Jegal agreements;

validating key inputs such as commitred capiral or investment cost to
supporting evidence;

- testing the arithmetical accuracy of the calculations prepared by management or
the third-party administrators by performing independent recalculations; and

- tracing management fees received during the year to bank statements;

Assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policy associated with the recognition
of management fees; and

For our audit of other fees we gained an understanding of the business ranionale for the
revenue stream and tested the balance to supporring evidence including contractual
terms, evidence of performance obligations being met, invoices and proof of payment.

Our observations
Based on the results of audit work performed we consider the methodologies and
assumptions used by management to determine the revenue recognition of management
and ather fees under IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customoers (“TIFRS 15™)

¢ be reasonable.
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Key Audit Marter

How our scope addressed this matter

Valuation of private equity

and credit funds

In the Consohdated Statement of
I'inancial Position, the fair value of fund
invesrments. excluding unconsolidated

CLOs,15 £257.9 mithon (2021: £275.7 million).

Refer to the Audit and Risk Committee
Report (pages 102-109); Accounting policies
{pages 145-153); and Notes 16 and 17 of the
Financial Statements (pages 167-170 and
pages 176-186..

The proprietary investment porifelio
comprises ungquoted securities, including
inTerests in private equity and credit fund
investments (which are held directly by
consolidated subsidiaries of the Group), and
tnvestments In investment entities (which
are typtcally limited partmerships and other
halding structures).

The interests in private equity and credit
funds are measured ar fair value based on
the net asset value determined by the
manager of the underlving funds.

The valuation technigues used ro determine
the fair value of investments held by the
funds invelve a igh degree of estmation
uncertainty, including the impact of climare
change. Therefore, there is a risk of error in
the determination of the fair valae of these
investments that could lead to a
misstatement in the fair value of the
investments in those funds.

Our audit procedures
We addressed this risk through performing the following audit wark:

Performing walkthroughs to develop an understanding of the procedures and controls
associated with valuadon of investments and evaluaring the design and implementation
of the relevant controls in place. This included inguiry of management regarding the
waliarion gavernance siructure and protocols around their oversight of the valuation
process, including evidencing the oversight from the Audit and Risk Committee and
the relevant Valuanon Committees;

For a sample of investments in funds. agreeing the balance 1o capiral statements and
reconciling the capital statements to audited financial statements of the funds;

- Vor a sample of underlying portfolio companies held by the funds (look-through
procedures), with the assistance of our valuation specialists:

- evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation methodelogy used and obtaining
an understanding of the key assumprions {inchuding the impacr of climate change);
and agreeing key inputs into the valuation models to source data and assessing
the mathematical accuracy of the valuation models.

Our obscrvations

Based on the results of audit work performed we considered the management has
approptiately estimated the fair value of the invesrments. We consider that the
methodology applied in the valuatdons and the assumptions adopred therein are in line
with IPEV guidelines and generally accepted valuation practices and comply with the fair
valuc principles outlined in JFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (“TFRS 137,
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Bridgepoint Group plc ...

Key Audit Matter

How our scope addressed this matter

Valuation of financial Liabilities at

fair value arising from the

consolidated CLOs

In the Consalidated Starement of Vinancial
Position, the fair value of consclidated
CLO habihties 1s £600.1 million

(2021 £242.9 million).

Refer zo the Audir and Risk Committee
Report (pages 102-109); Accounting
policies {pages 145-153); and Notes 17
and 19 of the Financial Statements
{pages 171-174 and pages 176-186).

The Group consolidates its investment in
certain CLO vehicles. As a result, the CLO
notes held by third parties are consolidated
as financial liabilities ar fair value through
profit or lass. The valuarion techniques
used involve a higher degree of cstimation
uncertainty, which we assessed has a risk
of material error. The Group applies the
residual valuation approach to account for
the inherent asymmertry between the
assets and habilities resulting from rthe
consolidation of the C1.O notes.

Our audit procedures
We addressed this risk through performing the following audit worlke

- Performing walkthroughs to develop an understanding of the procedures and conerols
associared with the valuation of CLO notes and evaluated the design, impléementation
of the relevant controls in place. This includes inquiry of management about the
valuation governance structure and protocols around their oversight of the valuation
process, including evidencing the oversight from the Audit and Risk Committee and
the relevant Valuation Committees.

Fvaluating management’s paper on the accounting treatment of the asymmetry
observed between the consolidated CLO assets and habilities and the reasonableness of
using the residual value approach m valuing the CLO Notes.

Verifying the mputs in the residual value approach to the audit work performed on the
consolidated CLO assets, cash and trades pending sertlement.

With the assistance of our valuation specialists, challenging the valuations of the CLO
notes held by the Group, through a seres of tests which included:

- Assessing the methodclogy used in determining fair value;

- Comparing management’s cash {low modelling with one of the marker standard rools
set up based on CLO doecumenration and trustee reports; and

- Assessing the assumptions used in management’s model (recovery rate, prepayments,

default and yield).

QOur observations
Based on the results of audit work performed, we consider the valuation of the financial

liabilities arising from the consolidated CLO is deemed to be reasonable and comply with
the fair value principles outlined in TFRS 13
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Financial statements

How our scope addressed this matter

Recognition of carried interest income and
measurement of carried interest receivable

In the Consolidated Statement of Profit or [ .oss,
camed mrerest tincome togals ©24.2 mitlion

(2021: £14.3 mullion). In the Consolidated Starement
of Financial Position, carried interest receivable
armounts to £42.0 mllion (202 1; £35.9 nuilion).

Refer to the Audit and Risk Committee

Report (pages 102-109); Accounting policies

(pages 145-153); and Notes 5 and 15 of the
Financial Statements (pages 159-160 and page 167).

The carned interest receivable represents the
expected income that the Group will receive from
thase funds whereby the fund performance has
exceeded the relevant thresholds based upon the net
asset value of the underlying fund.

Carmed nterest 1s calculated as a contractual
percentage of a fund’s return, once a speaficd hurdle
rate 1s expected to be met. These amounts are
specified in the underlying contract between the fund
and the Group in its capacity as investment manager.
Carried Interest are only recefved when a triggering
event, such as a realisation of a fund’s investment,
occurs. In respect of Carrled interest, management
must apply judgment in accordance with TFRS 15 o
determine whether it is highly probable that a

significant reversal will nor occur in the future.

The following are identified as the key risks
or judgments in respect to the recognition of
carried Tneerest:

- mappropriate judgments are made by
management in the calculations, including
whether a constraint is applied and the forecast
exit dates of the underiying investments;

- errors made in complex manual calculation
models; and

inappropriate inputs used by management in
the calculations,

The accuracy and recognition of revenue is
important 1o the Group's financial statements.
Stakeholder expectations may place pressure
on management to influence the recognition of
revenue. This may resulr in overstatement or
deferral of revenue to assist in mecting current
or future revenue targets or expectations.

Our audit procedures
We tested 100% of the balance. We addressed this risk through performing the

following audit work:

Performing walkthroughs to develop an understanding of the procedures
assaciated with recognition and measurement of carried interest and evahiaring
rhe design and implementation of the relevant controls;

Assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policy associared with the
recognition of carried interest;

- For a sample of managed funds:

- Agreeing the inputs used in the carried interest caleulations to supporting
evidence, including legal agreements, verifying the applicable hurdle and
triggers for the contractual nght to carried interest;

- Recalculating the value of the carmed interest receivable; and

- Inquiring abour any ongoing negotiations on investment cxXits and assessing
their impact on the discount applied for the recognition of related carried
interest accruals.

Ensuring management included appropriate disclosures in relation to significant
assumptions and sensitivities.

Our observations

Based on the results of audit procedures performed we considered rhe recognition
of carried interest to be in accordance with IFRS 15, All calculations rested have
been performed matenally in accordance with contractual terms.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Bridgepoint Group plc ...

Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

"The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quanrtitative thresholds for materiality. These,
together with qualitatrive considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audir
procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both
individually and on the financial statements as a whole. Based on our professional judgment, we determined matenality for the financial
statemnents as a whole as follows:

Group mareriality
Overall matcriality £6.4 million o
How we determined it 5% ofproh[ before 1ax, as repoued in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Rationale tor We have considered that the profitability of the business is the key focus of the users of the
benchmark applied financial statements, and as such, we have based out materiality around this benchmark. .
Performance Performance materiality is set to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability thar the aggregate of
materiality uncorrected and undetected misstatements in the financial statements cxceeds materiality for the financial
statements as a whole.
Having considered the knowledge of the Group's operations and controls in the prior year's audit, we set
performance materialicy at 60% of overall materiality, an mcrease from_ﬂ}c 50% used im the FY 21 audit.
Reporting threshold We agreed with the Directors that we would report ta them misstatements identified during our audit

above £0.2 million, as well as misstatements below that ameunt that, in our view, warranted reporting
for qualitative reasons.

The range of overall materiality across components, audited to the lower of statutory audit matenalicy and mareriality capped for Group
audit purposes, was between £0.1m and £3.8m., all being below the level of overall materiality that was set for the Group.

Parent Company materiality

Gverall materiality £6.4 million N o

How we determined it 1% of toral assets (capped at 0.4% s0 as not to qxceed Group materiality) -

Rationale for We have considered that total assets is the most appropriate benchmark as the Parent Compam 1s a holding
benchmark applied  entity with no marerial labilities,

Performance Performance marerality is set to reduce to an approprlatel\' Tow level the probabilicy that the aggregate of
matenality uncerrected and underected misstatements in the financial statements exceeds matenahity for the financial

statements as a whole.

Based on cur risk assessment, together with our assessment of the overall control environment, our
performance materiality is set at £3.8 million, which represents 60% of overall materiality.

Reporting threshold We agreed with the Directars that we would report 1o them misstatements identified during our audit
above £0.2 million, as well as misstatements below that amount that, 1n our view, warranted reporting
for qualitative reasons,
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As part of designing our audit, we assessed the risk of marerial
misstatement in the financial statements, whether due o fraud
or error, and then designed and performed audit procedures
responsive to those risks, In particular, we looked at where the
Directors made subjective judgments, such as assumptions on
significant accounting estimates.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
sullicent work to L able to giVE an L‘inl‘:if'ﬂ‘l om the financial
statements as a whole. We used the outputs of our risk assessment,
our understanding of the Group and the Parent Company, their
environment, contrels, and critical business processes, to consider
qualitarive factors to cnsure that we obrained sufficient coverage
across all financial statement line items.

Our Group audit scope included an audir of the Group and

the Parent company tinancial statements. Based on our risk
assessment, Bridgepoint Advisers Holdings, Opal Investments
[P, Bnidgepoint Credit Holdings Limited, Bridgepoint Advisers
Limited, Bridgepoint Advisers 1T Lirared, Bridgepoint Advisers
UK Limited, Bridgepoint Credit Advisers UK Limited, Bridgepoint
Credit Opportunites 11 GP LP, Bridgepoint CLO 1 DAC,
Bridgepoint CLO 3 DAC, Bridgepoint CLO 4 DAC, and the
Parent Company, Bridgepoint Group ple, were subject to a full
scope audit performed by the Group audit team. In addition,
Mazars component auditors performed a full scope audit of
Bridgepoint SAS, Bridgepoint Direct Lending TGP Sarl,
Bridgepeint Direct Lending 1T GP Sarl and BCLO Credit
Investments I S.a rl, and specified procedures on Bridgepoint LLC.

At the Parent Company level, the Group audit team also tested the
consohidation process and carried out analytcal procedures to
confirm our conclusion thar there were no significant risks of
material misstatement of the aggregated financial information.

Other informaton

The other informanon comprises the informartion included in
the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements daes
not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express

any form of assurance conclusien thereon,

Our responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obramed mn the
course of audit or otherwise appears to be marerially misstared.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misslaternents, we are required to determine whether this gives rise
to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
1s 2 material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report thar fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Financial statements

Opinions on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ remuneration report
1o be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the Strategic Report and the nrectory’
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and
those reports have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements;

- the information about internal control and risk management
systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance with rules 7.2.5
and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
sourccbook made by the Financial Conduct Authority (the FCA
Rules), 1s consistent with the financial stacements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements; and

informarion about the Parent Company’s corporate governance
code and practices and abour its administrative, management
and superviscry bodies and their committees complies with rules
7.2.2,7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the FCA Rules.

Matters on which we are required
to report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the
Parent Company and their environment abrained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the:

- Strategic Report or the Dircctors’ Report; or

information about internal control and risk management
systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and
7.2.6 of the FCA Rules..

We have nothing to report in respect of the following martters in
relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us 10 report
to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequarte for our audit have not been
recetved from branches not visited by us; or

the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made; or

- we have not recerved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or

4 curporale governance statement has not been prepared by the
Parent Company.
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Financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members of

Bridgepoint Group plc -

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the Directors’ statement in
relation to going concern, langer-term viability and that part of the
curporate governance statement relating 1o Bridgepoint Group
ple’s compliance with the provisions of the UK corporare
governance statement specified for our review,

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have
concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement 1s materially consistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit:

- Directors’ statement with regards the appropriateness of
adopring the going concern basis of accounting and any marterial
uncertainties ideniificd, ser our on pages 51-53;

Drirectors’ explanation as to its assessment of the enrity’s
prospects, the period this assessment covers and why they
period is appropriate, set out on pages 51-53;

Directors’ staterment on fair, balanced and understandable, ser
out on page 126;

- Board’s confirmation thar it has carried ourt a robust assessment
of the emerging and principal risks. set out on pages 79-83;

- The section of the Annual Report that describes the review of
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems,
et out on pages 78-79; and

The section describing the work of the Audit and Risk
Commitcee, set our on pages 102-109.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set our on page 126, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statemments and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
contrel as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial staterments that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis

of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidare
the Group ot the Parent Company or to ¢ease operations,

or have no realisuc alternative but to do so.
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Audiror’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from matenial misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with TSAs (UK) will always detect a marerial
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregare,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecuing
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilives,
outlined above, to detect marterial misstaterments in respect of
iregularities, including fraud.

Based on our understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and
their industry, we considered that non-compliance with the following
laws and regulations might have a material effect on the financial
statements: UK Bribery Act, UK Corporate Governance Code,
Financial Services and Markets Act, Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting, and ant-money laundering regulation.

To belp us identify instances of non-compliance with these
laws and regulations, and m idenufying and assessing the
risks of material misstatement in respect to non-compliance,
our procedures inchaded, but were not limited to:

- Gaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework
applicable to the Group and the Parent Company, the industry
in which they operate, and the stucture of the Group, and
considering the risk of acts by the Group and the Parent
Company which were contrary to the applicable Jaws and
regulations, including fraud;

Inquiring of the Directors, management and, where appropriate,
those charged with governance, as to whether the Group and the
Parent Company 1s in compliance with laws and regulations, and
discussing their policies and procedures regarding compliance
with laws and regulations;

- Inspecting correspondence with relevant licensing or regalatory
authorites including Financial Conduct Authority;

Reviewing minutes of Directors’ meetings in the year; and

Discussing amongst the engagement team the jaws and
regulations listed above, and remaining alert to any indications
of non-compliance.

We alse considered those laws and regulations that have a divect effect
on the preparation of the financial staterments, such as tax legislation,
the Listing Rules, FCA regulations, and the Companies Act 2006.
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In addition, we evaluated the Directors’ and management’s
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements, including the risk of management override of
controls, and determined that the principal risks related o
manipulating accounting records and preparing fraudulent
financial statements by overriding vontrols thar otherwise appear
1o be operaring effectively. Due to the unpredicrable way in which
such override could occur there is a risk of material misstatement
due to fraud on all audits.

Our procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to:

Making enquiries of the Directors znd management on whether
they had knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

Gaining an understanding of the internal conurols established to
mitgate risks refated to fraud;

- Discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud;

Addressing the risks of fraud through management override of
controls by performing journal entry testing;

- Cnneally assessing accounting estimates impacting amounts
included in the financial statements for evidence of management
bias;

- Considering significant transactions ourside of the normal course
of business. Our approach mcluded management inquiry, review
of the Board minutes, review of correspondences with regulators
and analyrical review to identify significant movements an
transactions and balances and substantively testing the
ransaction and refated disclosure, where applicable;

Reviewing the journal entry process to evaluate its effectiveness
and appropriateness, including an assessment of the level of
segregation of durics and a risk-based selection of journals based
on whart we considered as high-nisk criteria using a data anaiytics
ool and testing these against supporting documentation and
obtaining management explanations; and

Obraining an understanding of the rationale for and testing
related parry rransactions and balances.

The primary responsibility for the preventicn and detection of
irregularities, including fraud, rests with hath thosc charged with
governance and management. As with any audir, there remained a
risk of non-detection of Irregularities, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations or the
overnde of internal controls.

I'he risks of materizl misstatement that had the greatest effeet on our

audit are discussed in the “Key audit matters” section of this report.

A further description of our responsibilities s available on
the Financial Reporting Counal’s website at www.frcarguk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s Teport.

Financial statements

Other matters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee,
we were appointed by Bridgepoint Group plc on 4 October 2021
1o audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2027 and subseguent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is two years, covering the vears

ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRU's Ethical Standard
werc not provided to the Group or the Parent Company and we
remain independent of the Group and the Parent Company in
conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with our additional report to the
Audit and Risk Committee.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006,
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Parent Company’s members those matters we are required to statc
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and

the Parent Company’s members as a body for cur audit work,

for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

As required by the Financial Conduct Autherity Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rule 4.1.14R, these financial
statements form part of the ESEF-prepared Annual Financial Report
filed on the National Storage Mechanism of the Financial Conduct
Aurthority in accordance with the KSEF Regulatory 'T'echnical
Standard (“ESEF RTS"). This auditor’s report provides no assurance
aver whether the Annual Financial Report has been prepared using
the single electronic format specified in the ESEF RTS.

David Herbinet {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

30 Qld Bailey
London
EC4M 7AU

23 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

for the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
Note £m £m
Management and other feeg o 5 2415 197.7
Carried interest 5 24.2 143
FFalr value remeasurement of investments 5 40.7 56.9
Other operating income o 5 1.0 1.7
Total operating income 5 3074 2706
Personnel expensces 6 (126.9) (132.7)
Other operating expenses 7 (44.5) (537
lr'oreign exchange gains - ) 1.1 11
EBITDA" 1371 85.3
Depreciation and amartisation expense 9 (18.3} (15.0)
Total operating profit h 118.8 70.3
Other income 10 16.5 4.2
Other expenses B 10 (7.9) (11.9)
Profit before tax”™ - ) ) 1274 62.6"
Tax cxpense ) 11 (6.8) 4.8)
Profit after tax ' 120.6 57.8
Auributable to:
Equity holders of the parenc 120.6 57.8
- ~ i ) ) £ £
Basic and dilured earnings per share 12 0.15 0.16

* Excepuonal expenses of £3.2m (2021 £28.6m) are incladed in EBITDA. Prozit belore 1ax neludes exceptional expenses of £3 2m (2027: 228 6mb and excepnional income
of £13.6m{2021 L3 8m) Details of extentional items are included in nowe 8.

The notes to the accounts furm an integral part of these financial statements.

136



Bridgepoint - 2022 Annual Report & Accounts

Financial statements

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December

2022 2021

, Note Em Em
Profit after tax - - ) 120.6 578
Trems that may be reclassified to the statement of profit or loss in subsequent years:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 11.3 (3.6)
Change in the fair value of hedging insoruments {10.5) 12.8
Reclassifications to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 19 (b) (5.9) (1.6)
Total tax on components of other comprehensive income 11 () 33 2N
Other comprehensive iexpense)/income net of tax (1.8) 5.5
Total comprehensive income net of tax 118.8 63.3
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

118.83 63,3

Equity holders of the parent

The notes te the accounts form an incegral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at 371 December

2022 2021

Note £m £m
Asscts
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 85.5 75.8
Goodwill and intangible assets 14 119.6 122.6
(Carried interest receivable 15 42.0 389
Fair value of fund investments le(a), (b) 273.0 3137
Trade and other receivables N 161 (e) 19.9 16.8
Total non-current assets ) ) o ) 5400 5679
Current assets
Consolidated CLO assets™ Ta(a), {c) 741.3 286.8
Trade and other reccivables i6(a), (e) 184.9 88.2
Derivauve financial assets 16 (a), (d) 1.0 9.9
Clash and cash equivalents 16 (a), () 196.0 323.1
Term deposits with original maturities of more than three months 16 ta), (f) 100.0 -
Consolidated CLO cash” i 16 (a), (N 24.6 4.2
Total current assers o o ) 1,247.8 712.2
Total assets ) B 1,787.8 1,280.1
Liabilities
Non-current lrabilities
Trade and other payables 17 (a), {b) 13.6 43.5
Onther financial liabilities 17 (a), (d) 49.5 46.9
Fair value of consolidated CLO liabilities™ 17 (al), {e) 597.5 241.4
Lease liabilities 17 (a),18 771 80.8
Deferred tax habilines 21 19.4 19.7
Total non-current labilivies ’ N ) 7571 4323
Current liabilities 7
Trade and other payables 17 (a), (h) 115.5 90.2
T.case liabilities 17 (a),18 6.1 4.0
Denvative financial liabilites 17 ig) 13.2 -
Consohdated C1LO habiliues® 17 (), {e) 2.6 1.5
Consolidated CLO purchases awaiung settlement” ) 17 (a), () 120.6 358
Total current liabilities ) y : ) 258.0 131.5
Total liabilities ) 1,015.1 5638
Netassers o 772.7 7163
Eguiry
Share capital 22 (a) 0.1 01
Share premium 22 (a) 289.8 289.8
Share-based payment reserve 22140 36 32
Cash flow hedge reserve 2240 (8.9) 7.5
Net exchange differences reserve 224d) 14.4 3.1
Retained earnings ] o 473.7 4126
Tetal equity 772.7 7163

" Details of the Group's mtesest m consohdated Collateralised Toan Obligauons (*CLOs™ are meluded m note 16 {01, The equity holders' cxposure n the consolidared C1.0s 5 £45.2m
at 37 Vrecember 2022 {2021, £12.3m) The Group’s mvestment 1 CLOs which are not consolidated is £15.1m (2021 £38.0m) and 1s imchuced within fair value ot fund irvestments,
A mor statctory Consalidaied Stement or irmaneia) Poszon, excluding consondated CLOs is presenced on page 202.

"The financial statements of Bridgepaint Group ple {company registration number: 1144 3592), which include the notes,
were approved and authorised by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

& A M Jones
N"ﬁ Director
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Financial statemoents

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

tor the year ended 31 December

Share-

Net

Capital based Cashflow exchange Non-

Share Shate redemption  payment hedge differences  Retained controlling Total

capital  premium reserve Teserve reserve reserve  carmings Total  interests equity

Nate £m £m €m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

AU T January 2022 0.1 28938 - 3.2 7.5 31 4126 7163 - 7163
Profit for the year - - - - - - 1206 1206 - 1206
Orher comprehensive loss - - - - 16.4) 11.3 3.3 (1.8) - (1.8)
Toral comprehensive income - - - - (16.4) 11.3 1239 118.8 - 1188
Share-based payments 22 (e) - - - 0.4 - - - 0.4 - 0.4
Dividends 23 - - - - - (62.8) (62.8) - (628
At 31 December 20022 0.1 289.8 - 3.6 (8.9) 144 473.7 7727 - 7727

Share- Net
Capital based  Cash flow  exchange Non-

Share Share redempuion payment hedge differences Retained contralling Tatal

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Toral nTereses equity

Notes £m £m £m Lm Err_:_ 7 £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2021 240.9 05 24.6 - (2.2) 53 397 3088 817 3805
Profit for the year - - - - - - 57.8 57.8 - 578
Other comprehensive income - - - - 112 3.6) 2.1 5.5 - 33
Tortal comprehensive income - - - 11.2 (3.6) 357 63.3 - 63.3
Share capital issuance - 2893 - 32 - - - 2925 - 2925
Share capital reorganisation (240.8) - {24 6) - - - 2654 - - -
Dividends 23 _ - - - - - (30.0)  (30.0) - (30.00

Movement in non-controlling

Interests - - - - (1.5) 1.4 81.8 81.7 (81.7 —
At 31 December 2021 0.1 28598 — 3.2 7.5 31 4126 7163 - 7163

The notes to the accounts form an ntegra! part of these financial statements.
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Financiat stalements

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December

{Restated}
2022 2021
) Note £m £m
Cash flows trom operating activities i 7
Cash generated from operatjons 24 (a) 35.6 6.1
Tax paid ~ (1.7) a4
Net cash intlow from operating activities 339 4.7
Cash tlows from investing activities
Tnvestment in term deposits with original maturities of more than three months 16 (1) (100.0) -
Receipts from investments (non-CLO) 15,16 (b) 74.3 690
Purchase of investments (Non-Ci.0) 15, 164{b) (41.2) {86.9;
Interest received (non-CLL) 3.3 1.0
Irvestments in non-consolidated CLO)s (8.7 -
Payments for property, plant and equipment 13 (22.6) (6.3)
Cash acquired on consolidation of intermediate fund holding ennties 12 -
Receipts from investments (consolidated CLOs) 1569 113.3
Purchase of investments {consolidated C1.Os) (166.1) (281.2)
Cash movements from the consalidation of CLOs 45.6 -
Net cash flows from investing activities (57.3) (191.1)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipt from non-controllg interest - 114.3
Proceeds from issuc of sharces by subsidiary - 4.7
Praceeds from issue of shares by the Company 224a) - 305.1
PO costs 8{b) (1.8) {18.00
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company 23 (62.8) (30.0)
Drawings on banking facilities - 492
Repayment of banking facilities - (146.9)
Drawings from related party investors in intermediate fund holding enurics 3.8 4.0
Principai elements of lease payments {4.1) (5.8)
Drawn funding (consolidated CT.0s) - 654
Repayment of CLO borrowings (consolidated C1.Os) (15.3) (1.4
Receipts from sale and repurchase of holdings in non-consolidated CLOs 17d) - 281
Cash from CLO investors (vonsolidated CLUs) (1.7) 23
Interest paid (non-CLO) (4.7) (5.9)
Net cash flows from ﬂnaﬁdﬁg activ ities B ) (86.6) 3es.1
et (decrease)/merease in cash and cash equivalents (110.0) 1787
Toral cash and cash equivalents a1 the beginning of the vear 327.3 1571
Tiffect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3.3 (8.5)
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of year ) 220.6 3273
Cash and cash equivalents ff“sr use within the Group) 16 () 196.0 3231
Consclidated CLO cash {reswricied for use within relevant CLO) ) 160 24.6 4.2
Total cash and cash cquivalents at the end of year 220.6 3273

1. The Group’s cash Hows from “heraumg activities, ivesting activities and finarcing activites for the timancal year ended 31 Decernber 2021 have been restated, IMarther dealls are

provided in note 1 on page 144,

2. The Consohdated Staement of Cash Flows indudes re cash flows of consolidated CLOs A nom-statmory Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows excuding the impaccaf

consolidaumg CT.Os which has not besr aud'ted. is included on page 203

The notes to the accounts form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements

Company Statement of Financial Position

as at 37 December

(Restated)
2022 2021
Note £m £m
Assets o
Non-current assets
Tnvestments in subsidiaries 27 1,023.0 10226
Deferred 1ax assels 21 0.4 1.1
Total non-current assets _ 1,023.4 1,0237
Current assets o o
Trade and other recervables 16 (a), (e} 20.3 106.5
Cash and cash equivalents 16 (a), () 114.0 1590
"'erm deposits with original mawurides of more than three months 16 (a), () 50.0 -
Total current assets T 184.3 2655
Total assers ] 1,207.7 1,289.2
Liabilities
Current hlabilities
‘I'rade and other payables 17 {a), (b) 1.1 237
Toral liabilitics o 1.1 231
Net assets 1,206.6 1,266.1
LEquity
Share capital 22 @) 0.1 0.1
Share premium 22 (a) 289.8 2898
Share-based payment reserve 22 {e) 3.6 32
Merger reserve 22 571.4 5714
Retained carnings 341.7 4016
Total equity 1,206.6 1,266.1

1. The Company’s invesunents insubsidianies and merger resery e as at 31 Decemner 20211 hove been restated. Funther devels are provided in nowe 1 on page 144

The Company’s total profit for the year was £2.9m (2021: loss of £24.3m).

The notes to the accounts form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements

Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December

Capital Share-based
Share  redemption payment Merger Retained

Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve carnings  Total equity

Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2022 0.1 289.8 - 3.2 5714 401.6 1,266.1
Profit for the vear - - - - - 29 29
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive expense - - - - - 2.9 29
Shate-based paymerus 22 (e) - - - 0.4 - - 0.4
[rvidends 23 - - - - - (62.8) (62.8)
At 31 December 2022 0.1 289.8 - 3.6 5714 3417 1,206.6

Capital ~ Share-based
Share  redemption payment Merger Retained

Share capital premium reserve reserve Teserve carnings  Total equity

Note £m Em £m Em £m £m £m

At 1 January 2021 240.9 0.5 24.6 - - 190.5 456.5
Loss for the year - - - - - (24.3) (24.3)
Orther comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Toral comprehensive income - - - - (24.3) (24.3)
Share capital issuance 22 - 2893 - 32 - - 2925
Share capital reorganisation (240.8) - (24.6) - 3714 2654 571.4
Dividends 23 = - - - (30.0) (30.0)
At 31 December 2021 {(Restated) 0.1 2898 — 3.2 371.4 401.6 1,266.1

The notes to the accounts form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December

(Restated)
2022 2021
Norte £m £m
Cash {lows from operating activities 7
Cash generared from operations . 24 66.3 (107.5)
Net cash flows from op&éting activities 66.3 (107.5)
Cash flows from insesting activities
Investment in term depasits with original maturities of more than three months (50.0) -
Interest received i 1.5 -
Net cash flows from ins é\ting activities (48.5) -
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares of the Company - 305.1
PO costs - (18.0)
Dividends paid o shareholders of the Company 23 {(62.8) (30.0)
Net cash flows from financing activitics (62.8) 257.1
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {45.0) 149.6
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 159.0 94
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalenrs - =
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of vear 16 {f) 114.0 159.0

1 The Company's cash rlows fram operating acovities and financing activitiss “o1 the finanaial year ended 31 December 2021 have beenresrared. Fuither details are proviced m more 1

ar page 144

"T'he notes to the accoungs form an integral part of these financial starements.
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Notes to the consolidated and Company
financial statements

1 General information and basis of preparation

General information

Bridgepoint Group ple (the “Company™) is a public company limited by shares, incorporated, domiciled and registered in England and
Wales. The Company’s registration number is 11443992 and the address of its registered office 1s 5 Marble Arch, London, W1H 7E].

The principal activity of the Company and entities controlled by the Company {(collectively, the "Group”) is to act as a privare equity and
credit fund manager. The Strategic Report sets out further details of the Group's activities.

Basis of prepatation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 [Jecember 2022 comprise the financial statements of the Group and the
Company.

The consolidated financial staternents of the Group and the Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopred international accounting standards and in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as applicable to
companies reporting Under those standards. The financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis, except for financial
mstruments measured at fair value through profit and loss.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out within note 2. These pelicies have
Been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformiry with internarional accounting standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. 1t also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting palicies. Details
of the critical judgemenss and key sources of estimarion uncertainty are ser out in note 3. Actual results may differ from these estimares.

The financial staternents arc presented in pound sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest £0.1m except where otherwise indicated.

Adoption of new and revised standards and interpretations
During the year, the following amendments to existing standards and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ("IASB”) became effective. These do not have a material impact on the Group or Company’s financial statements:

- Amendments to [FRS 3 “Business Combinations™ reference to the Conceptual Framework

- Amendments to TAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”: proceeds before intended use
Amendments to IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets™: onerous contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract
Annual Tmprovements to IFRS 2018-2020

The Group has not early adopred any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. The Group
plans to adopt the “Amendments to TAS 1 *Presentation of 'mancial Statements’: classification of Habilities” issucd by IASE when 1t
becomes effective on 1 January 2024. The impact of this standard on the Group's financial statemenrts is currently being considered, bur
15 unlikely to be material.

Changes to comparative period financial information
The following changes have been made to the compararive period presented within these financial statements:

Receipts from sale and repurchase of the Group's halding in CLOs of £28.7m have been reclassified from investing activities to
financing activites in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, There is no impact on net cash flows for the pericd;

- TPO costs of £18.4m have been reclassified from financing activities to operating activities in the Consohdated Statement of Cash
Flows 1o bifurcate the cash flows in a similar manner to how the costs had been classified within the Consolidated Statement of Profic
or Loss and Consolidared Srarement of Changes in Equity. There is no impact on nert cash flows for the period;

IPO costs of £18.0m have been reclassified from financing activities to operating activities in the Company Statement of Cash Flows
1o bifurcate the cash flows in a similar manner to how the costs had been classified within the Company Statement of Profit or Loss
and the Company Sratement of Changes in Cquity. There 1s no impact on net cash flows for the period; and

Tnvestments in subsidiaries and merger reserve have been increased by £571.4m in the Company Statement of Financial Positon to
record the fair value of shares acquired in the Company’s immediate subsidiary as part of the restructuring ahcad of the Company’s
TPO, There is no impact on the distributable reserves of the Company.

144



Bridgepoint — 2022 Annual Report & Accounts Financial statements

The above changes were prompted by an inquiry from the Corporate Reporting Review team of the FRC as part of its regular review and
assessment of the quality of corporate reporting in the UK. They requested further informarion in relarion to the Company’s 2021
Annual Report and Accounts, as explained further in the Audit and Risk Committee repen on page 106. The Compuny agreed to make
the above changes within its 2022 financial statements.

The FRC's review is limited to the published 2021 Annual Report and Accounts: it does not benefir from a detailed understanding of
underlying transactions and provides no assurance that the Annual Report and Accounts are correct in all marerial respects.

Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the Directors have a reascnable expecration that
the Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for a period of ar least 12 months from the dare of
1ssue of these financial statements having assessed the business risks, financial position and resources of both the Group and Company.
Further detail is set out within the viability and going concern statement on pages 51 to 53.

Company financial statements

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Starement af Profit or Loss and the Statement of Comprehensive Income
of the Company are not presented as part of these financial statements. The Company’s profit for the year amounted to £2.9m (2021:
loss of £24.3m},

2 Accounting policies

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial staternents include the comprehensive gains or losses, the financial position and the cash flows of the
Company, its subsidiaries and the entities that the Group is deemed to cantrol, drawn up to the end of the relevant period, which
includes elimination of all intra-group transactions. Uniform accounting policies have been adopred across the Group.

Assessment of control
Contrel is achieved when the Group has power aver the relevant actvities, exposure 1o variable returns from the investee, and the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

The Group contrels an invesree (entity) If, and only if, the Group has all of the following:
power over the investee (i.e. existing rights thar give it the current ability to direct the refevant activities of the investee);
exposure, or rights, to variable retarns from its involvement with the investee; and

- abiliry to use its power over the investee to affect its rewurns.

The Group reassesses whether ar not it controls an investee if faces and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three clements of conrol listed above.

When the Group helds less than a majoricy of the voring rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumsrances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient ro give it power, including:
- the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relarive to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;
potential voring rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other parties;
rights arlsing from other congractual arrangements; and
- any additional facts and circumsrances thar indicarte that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activiries ar the time when decisions need to be made, including vorting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
The assessment of control is based on all relevant facts and circumstances and the Group reassesses its conclusion if there is an indication

that there are changes in facts and circumstances.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control aver
the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income from the date the Group gains control until the dare when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary. All intra-group balances and transactions with subsidiaries are eliminated upon consolidatien.
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When the Group consolidares an entity which has an interest held by a third party, it assesses whether the third party’s interest
represents equity or a financial liability. To determine this classification, the substance of the contractual terms of the financial
instrument 1s taken as an indicator of whether the third party’s interest is debt or equity. If a pre-agreed profic share percentage that is
contractually defined within relevant limited partnership agreements 7s present, the Group recognises a contractual obligation to settle in
cash, and, therefore, the interest is classified as debt and fair valued through profitand loss. In the case where the contract results in a
residual interest in the assets of the investee after deducting all of the invesice’s liabilities, a non-controlling interest is recognised within
equity. More details are provided in note 17 (d).

(L) Fuu u[gn CUNTELILIUS

Presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in pound sterling, which is the Company’s functional currency and also the presentational
currency for the Company and Group.

Foreign currency transactions
Fareign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the opening spot exchange rate for the month in which
the transaction occurs as an approximate for the acrual rate at the date of the transaction.

liarcign exchange gains and losscs resulting from the setdement of such transactions, and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates, are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilitics denominarted in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are rransiated to the functional
currency at the applicable foreign currency exchange rate on the date the fair value was determined. Non-moenetary items in a foreign
currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

Foreign operations
The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from the presentational carrency are
translated into the presentational currency of the Group as follows:

assers and liabilities for cach statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of thar statement of
financial position;
- income and expenses for cach statement of profit or loss presented are ranslated at epening spot rate for the month; and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

{¢) Operating income

Operating income primarily comprises management and other fees, carried interest income and investment profits from the management
of investment in private equity and credit fund parmmerships. The parties to agreements for fund management services comprise the
Group and the investors of each fund as a body. Accordingly, the group of investors of cach fund are idennfied as a customer for
ACCoUNUIng purposes.

Income js measured based on the consideration specified in the contracts and exclude amounts collected on behalf of third parties,
discounts and value added taxcs. ’

Management and other fees
The Group earns management fees from its provision of various investment management services to funds, which are treated as a single
performance obligation.

Management fees are recognised over the life of each fund, generally 10 to 12 years, occasionally subject to an extension, if agreed with
the imvestors of that fund.

Management fees are based on an agreed percentage of either commirted or invested capital, depending on the fund and its life stage.
Fees are bilied in accordance with the relevant limited partnership agreement and are either billed semi-annually or quarterly in advance
Or arrears.

Other fees may alse camprise fees and commisstons relatng to provision of services to third parties.
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Carried interest

The Group receives a share of fund profits through its holdings in Founder Partmerships as variable consideration dependent on the Tevel of
fund returns. The entitlement to carried interest and the amount is determined by the level of accumulated profics exceeding an agreed
threshold (the “hurdle”) over the life-time of each tund. The carried interest income is only recognised to the extent it is highly probable that
there would not be a significant reversal of any accunmulated revenue recognised on the completion of a fund. The reversal risk due to
uncertainty of furure fund performance is managed through the application of discounts. This 1s explained further svithin note 3.

The carried interest receivable represents a contract asset under IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”™. Amounts are
typically presenied as non-cunent assets wiless they are expected to be reccived within the next 12 months,

The Group applies the simplified approach far measuring impairment of the contract asset and the practical expedient permitted by IFRS
9 “Financial Instruments”™.

Investment income
[nvestment income consists primarily of fair value remeasurement of the Group's investments in private equity and credit funds. Derails
of the valuanion of such investments is explained further within note 3.

Other operating income
Other operating income includes fees and commissions receivable by the Group's procurement consulting business, PEPCO Services LLP.

Amounts are recognized n the Consolidared Statement of Profit or Loss on an accruals basis,

{d) Deferred acquisition costs

Professional costs, patticularly legal and other adviser costs, are incurred when raising a new fund. The mited partnership agreement of
cach fund dictates the aggregare expense that can be recharged to the fund investors on the clase of a new fund. Costs in excess of the
cap and any fees paid ro placement agents are capitalised as a non-current asset.

The berefit of the incurred costs for private equity funds is primarily considered to be atrnburable to the period when the primary fund
investment activity is carried out. Therefore, the useful life of the asset is the commitment period for the fund. A useful life of three years
is used for privare equiry funds, being the shortest likely commitment period, burt is rypically berween three and five years.

I'or credic funds, the period of portfolio construction is typically longer, therefore a five-year useful life is used, which correlares with the
period over which the management fees build up to a maximum level.

Details are provided within note 16 {e).

(c} Personnel benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits, which include employee salaries and bonuses, are expensed as the related service is provided. A hability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present or constructive obligation 1o pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimared reliably.

Accumulated holiday balances are accrued at each period end, if an employee’s entitlement is not used 1 full.

Long-term employee benefits

Long-term emplovee benefirs, which are those that are not expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the period end in which the
employee renders the service that gives rise to the benefit, include certan long-term bonuses. An expense is recognised over the period in
which the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimared reliably.

Defined contribution pensions
Amounts payable in respect of employers’ contributions to the Group’s defined contribution pensien scheme are recognised as emplayee
expenses as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
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Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured art the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments 15 expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on an estimate of the number of equiry instruments that will evenuwally vest. A corresponding credit is made ro the
share-based payment reserve within equity.

At each reparring date. the Group revises its estimare of the number of equity instruments e‘xpeaed to vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates. if any, is recagnised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimare, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

(f) EBITDA
EBITDA means earnings before interesr, raxes, depreciation and amortisation. It is used 1o provide an overview of the profitability of the
Group's business and segments. Underlving EBITDA is calculated by deducting exceptional items within EBITDA

EBITDA and Underlying EBITIDA are alternative performance measures and non-TFRS measures.

The Group uses Underlying EBITDA as exceprional income or expenditure could distort an understanding of the perfoermance of the
Group. Detals of exceptional expenses are set out in note 8.

(g) Operating profit
Operating profit means earnings before other income, other expenses and taxes. Operating profit is an alternative performance measure
and a non-TFRS measure.

(h) Leases

Leases for office premises

The Group has applied TFRS 16 “Leases” where the Group has right-of-use of an asset under a lease contract for a period of more than
12 months. Such contracts represent leases of office premises where the Group is a tenant.

The lease liability is initially measured at the net present value of future lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate {*IBR”). Generally, the Group uses its IBR as the discount rate as the implicit rate is not readily determinable for the rented office
premises. The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

‘The TBR is the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obramn an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment within similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease payments due within the next 12 months are recognised within current liabilities; payments due after 12 months are recognised
within non-current liabilines.

Assets are recorded initially ar cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the length of the contractual lease term. Costis defined
as the lease liabihties recognised plus any initial costs and dilapidation provisions less any incenuves reccived. The right-to-use assets are
depreciated during the lease term, generally 5 to 10 years. Right-of-use assets are included within property, plant and equipment in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Group as lessor
Where the Group acts as an intermediate lessor by entering into a subletting agreement and has transferred substantially all the risks and

rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, the Group accounts for these subleases as finance leases under [FRS 16 “Leases”.
Such contracts represent subleases of office premises.

At commencement of the lease term, the Group derecognises the right-of-use assct relating to the head lease and recognises the net
investments in the sublease as a receivable, The difference between the right-of-use asset and the net investment i the sublease s
recognised in profir and loss. The Group uses the IBR used for the heud lease to measure the net investment in the lease (adjusted for any
initial direct costs asseciated with the sublease). During the term of the sublease, the Group recognises both finance income on the
sublease and finance expense on the head lease.

The Group applies the simplified approach for measuring impairment of lease receivables and the practical expedient permitred by TFRS
9 “Financial Instruments”,
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elecred not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease labilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these teases as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term within operating expenses.

(1) Other income and expenses

Other income comprises interest earned on cash and term deposits, finance income on sublease agreements and the impact of the
remeasurement of the deferred contingent consideration payable under the sale and purchase agreement and associated unwind of the
discount tor EQ'TT AR.

Orher expenses comprise interest on interest-bearing liabilities, finance expenses on lease liabilities and amounts due ro related party
investors in Opal Investments LP and BE VI {French) Co-Trivest LP under the limited partnership agreements.

Tnterest income and expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. Recurring fees and charges levied on committed bank
facilities are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss as accrued. Credit facility arrangement fees are capitalised and
amortised to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or T.oss using the effective interest method over the term of the faciliny,

(j) Exceptional items

Ttems of income and expense that are material by size and/or nature and are not considered to be incurred in the normal course of
business are classified as ‘exceptional” within the statement of profit or loss and disclosed separately to give a clearer presentation of the
Group’s underlying financial performance. In considering the nawure of an exceptional item, management’s assessment includes, both
individually and collectively, each of the following:

- whether the ttem 15 outside of the principal actuvities of the business:
- the specific circumstances which have led to the item arising;
the likelithood of recurrence; and

if the item is likely to recur, whether the item is unusual by virtue of 1rs size.

(k) Taxation
Taxation expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting period.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of corporation tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the current or prior reporting periods. Tax is
calculated on the basis of rax rates and laws that have been enacred or substantively enacted by the period end. Current tax 1s recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profir or Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income,
or directly in equity. In this case, current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity accordingly.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax arises from temporary differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the
amounts Used for taxanion purposes.

Peferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the imidal recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognicion of
other assets and habilities in a transaction, other than a business combination, thar affects neither the tax nor the accounung profit.

Deferred tax habilines are recognised for all taxable temparary differences.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal
of deferred tax Habilities o other furure taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates thart are expected 1o be applied to their respective peried of realisation,
provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred rax assets and habilities are offset when there is &
legally enforceable right of set off, when they relate o income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the Group intends to settle on a
net basis. Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in the Consolidared Statement of
Profit or Loss, except where they relate to items that are charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the related deferred taxis
also charged or credited directly w equity, or to other comprehensive income.

Current or deferred taxation assets and habilities are not discounted.
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(1} Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated art cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment.

The cost includes the purchase price as well as expendirure directly attributable to put the asset in place and order to be used in
accordance with the purpose of the acquisition.

Assets are depreciared 5o as to write off their cost, on a straight-line basis, over their esnmared useful lives as follows:

Asset class Useful life _

Computers, furniture and other 3106 years

leasehold improvements Over the shorter of their useful economic life or the lease term
Property right-of-use asscts Over the contractual lease term

The loss to reduce the carrying amount of anv assets that are impaired is recognised within the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Toss
and reversed if there are indications thar the need for impairment is no longer present. The carrying amounr of an item of property, plant
and equipment is derecognised from the Consolidated Statement of Financial Positon at disposal or when no futare economic benefits
arc expecred from the use or dispogal of the asser. The depreciation is included within “Depreciation and amaertisation expense” within
the Consclidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

(m) Intangible assets
Intangible assets, which constitute custamer relationship assets acquired from a business combinanion, are stated at cost less accumulated
amortsation and accumulated impajmment losses.

Intangible assets are annually assessed for impairment when there are indicators of impairment.

Amorusation is calculared, using the straight-line metheod, to allocate the depreciable amount of the assets o their residual values over
their estimated useful lives. The amornisanon is inclhuded within “Depreciation and amortisation expense” in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss.

(n) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. The cost of a business
combination is the fair value of the considerarion given, liabilities incurred or assumed and of equity nstruments issued. Costs
arrnburable to the business combination are expensed in the Consolidated Statement of Prefit or Loss. Where control is achieved in
stages the cost 1s the consideration at the date of each transaction.

{n acquisition of a business, fair values are artribured to the identifiable assets, liabilitics and contngent labihines. Intangible assets are
only recognised separatcly from goodwill where they are separable and arise from contracrual or other legal rights. Where the fair value
of contingent liabilities cannot be reliably measured, they are disclosed on the same basis as other contingent liabilities.

Contngent consideration 1s recognised ar the acquisition date. Tt is classified as a financial liability and subsequently remeasured to fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

CGoodwill recognised represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the fair values ro the Group’s interest in
the identifiable nert assets, hiabilides and contingent liabilities acquired.

Goodwill is assessed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate potential impairment
loss. Any identified impairment is charged 1o the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, No reversals of impairment are recognised.
Impairment triggers could include the loss of a fund management contract or a failure to raise a new fund.

Third party mterest arises when the Group’s interest only constitutes a portion of the total with the rest portion being profit share thar
the Group owes the other related parries. The prafit share is calculated based on a contractually defined and pre-agreed percentage
which is set out within relevant imited partnership agreements. The Group has considered factors such as the substance of the legal
contracrual agreement and the lack of discrerion the Group has regarding the residual payments to third parties. Therefore third party
interest is classified as a financial Habilicy and measured at fair value through profic and loss with the corresponding assets being
meastired at fair value.
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(o) Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets consist of investments o funds, investments made by Collateralised Loan Obligations (*C1.Os”) consolidated
by the Group, derivative financial instruments, accounts receivable and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and term deposits
with original marurities of more than three months.

The Company's financial assets consist of accounts receivable and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Recognition
A financial asset is recognised when the Group or Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Classification and measurement

The Group’s financial assets are initially classified into one of three measurement categories. The classification depends on how the asser
1s managed (business model) and the characteristics of the asset’s contractual cash flows. The measurement categories for financial assets
are as follows:

- fair value through profit or loss;
fatr value through other comprehensive income; and

- amortsed cost.

Financial assets must be measured through profic or loss unless they are measured at amortsed cost or through other comprehensive
income. The Group’s investments fn funds and investments in CLOs are measured at fair value through profit or loss as such assets are
held for investment returns.

Derivative instruments used for hedging foreign exchange, are measured ar fair value through profit or loss. Where they qualify for hedge
accounting the effective portion of the gain or loss an the hedging instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income until the
recognition of the hedged transaction affecrs profit or loss, at which point the amount recognised in ather comprehensive income is
recycled to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial assets are mcasured at amorused cost only if both of the following criteria are mer:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms give 1isc t cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's trade and other receivables are short-term receivables relating to non-financing transactions and are therefore subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effecrive interest rate method less expected credit Joss. 'I'he Group's approach to calculating
expected credit loss allowances 15 described in the credit risk section within note 19 (d).

Receivables due in greater than one year are initially discounted to their present value using an equivalent rate of interest that would be
duce on borrowings. The discountis released over time to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with eriginal maturities of more than three months are measured at amaortised cost.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contracrual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when the Group or Company
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substannially all the risks and rewards of cwnership of
the financial asset arc transterred. On derecognition of a financial asset in its enurety, the difference between the asset’s carrying value
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable, is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Impairment

Expected credit losses are calculated on financial assets measured at amartised cost and are recognised within the Consolidated
Staterment of Profit or Loss. For trade and other receivables, the Group and Company apply the simplified approach and the practical
expedient permitted by TFRS 9 “linancial Instruments” to apply a provision matrix that is based on its historic default rates over the
expected life of the short-term receivables.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, with the exception of financial habilities at or designated at fair value through profit or less, are initially recognised at
fair value, net of transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basts.

Derivarive financial labifities are initally measured at fair value and are subsequently measured ar fair value ar each reporting date.

151



Bridgepoinl — 2022 Annual Report & Accounts Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated and Company
financial statements .../

Liabilities of CLOs consolidated by the Group are designated as financial habilities measured art fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss related to CLOs are initially recogmsed and subsequently measured at fair value on a
recurring basis with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognised through the fair value remeasurements of invesuments
line within the Consolidated Stazement of Profit or T.oss along with interest paid on the CLO financial liabilities. The effect of the
Group’s own credit 1isk on liahilities of CLOs is not recognised in other comprehensive income as the effcet weuld create an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss,

Amounts payable for CLO purchases awaiting settlement are recognised at the point at which the CLO has a contractual obhigation to
exchange cash.

Deferred contingent consideration payable relating to business combinations 1s measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Borrowings are initially recogrsed as the amount of cash received from the bank, less separately incurred wransaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Repurchase agreements are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Other amounts payable 1o related party investors which represent the residual profits due ro third party investors are held ar fair value
through profit and loss with the corresponding assets being measured at fair value. The effect of the Group’s own credit risk on these
labilities is not recogmised in other comprehensive income as the effect would create an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

All of the Group's and Company’s other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

"'he Group and Company derecognise financial liabilities when, and anly when, the Group's or Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting
Derivarive financial Instruments are initiaily measured ar fair value determined using independent third-parry valuations or quored marker
prices on the date an which the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date.

For derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, prior to their settlement the fair value movements on the effective portion of the gain or
loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income and within the cash flow hedge reserve within equity, while
any ineffective partion is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Toss as gain or loss on cash flow hedge
within operating expenses, Amounts recognised in equiry are transferred to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss when the
hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged cash flow occurs.

For denvarives that are not designated as cash flow hedges, all fair value movements are recognised in the Consolidared Srarement of
Profit or Loss. Where a derivarive relares to a hedge of investments in foreign currencies, the profit or loss on the revaluarion of the
hedging instrument is recognised together with the investment returns in the Consolidated Statement of Profir or Loss.

Prior to their settlement, derivatives are carried as a financial asset when the fair value is positive and as a financial liabiliry when fair
value is negative. The fair value of unsettled forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to the marker for forward contracts
with similar marurities.

(p) Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries in the Company Statement of Financial Positien are recorded at cost less provision for impairments. All
transactions between the Company and its subsidiary undertakings are classified as related party transactions for the Company accounts
and are ehminared on consolidarion.

(q} Investments in associates

Associates are entities in which the Group has an investment and over which it has significant influence, but not control, through
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions. Such entities are funds or carried interest partnerships where the Group
holds more than a 20% interest in the entity. The Group initially records the investment at fair value through profit or loss as operating
income within the Consolidared Statement of Profit or Loss. The investments are recorded as fair value of fund investment or carried
mterest receivable within the Group Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
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(r} Cash and term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and cali deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments including term
deposits with original marurizies of three months or less and money market funds, which are readily converrible toa known amount of
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vahue.

CLO cash 1s cash held by CLO vehicles consolidated by the Group and is not available for the Group'’s ather operating acuvities. Term
deposits represent fixed term deposits placed with banks and financial institutions.

(s) Dividends
Dividends and other distributions o the Company’s shareholders are recogmsed in the period in which the dividends and other
disuibutions are declared and approved by the sharehaolders. These amounts are recognised in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

(£) Own shares

{wn shares arc recorded by the Group when ordinary shares are purchased through special purpose velneles, which have the purpose of
purchasing and holding surplus shares of the Company from employees who have left the employment of the Group or from other
means. The special purpose vehicles include Atlantic SAV Limited, Atlantic SAV 2 Limited and the Bridgepoint Group ple Employee
Benefit Trust. These entities are aggregated together within the financial statements of the Company and are consolidated within the
financial statements.

wn shares are held ar cost and their purchase reduces the Group's net assets by the amount spent. They are recognised as a deducrion
to retained earnings,

When shares are sold, they are transferred at their weighted average cost.

No gain cr loss is recognised on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own shares.

3 Critical judgements in the application of accounting policies and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

The judgements and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, which may have a significant risk of causing a
matertal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assers and liabilities within the next financial year, are summarised below. The Group's
estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and expectation of furure events and are reviewed periodically. The acrual
ourcome may be materially different from that anticipared.

(a) Judgements

Consolidation of fund investments

The Directors have considered whether the Group should consolidare investments in funds into the results of the Group. Control is
determined by the extent of decision-making authority, rights held by ather parties, remuneration and exposure to retuns.

The Directors have assessed the legal nature of the relationships between the Group, the relevant fund and fund investors and have
determined that as the manager, the Group has the power to influence the returns generated by the fund, but the Group’s interests
typically represent only a small proportion of the total capital within each fund (¢c. 2% of commitments). The Directors have therefore
concluded that the Group acts as an agent, which is primarily engaged to act on behalf, and for the benefit, of the fund investors rather
than act for its own benefit.

The Group’s investments in Bridgepoine funds are accordingly measured at fair value through profit or loss and returns from those
investments are recognised as operating income within the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Consolidation of CLOs

The Group holds nvestments in the senjor and subordinated notes of CLO's chat it manages, predominandy driven by risk-retention
regulations. As the Group has power, as the asset manager, to impact the returns of the vehicles, the level of exposure to variable returns
from its involvement as an investor in the notes requires assessment to whether this indicates the Group has & principal or agent
relationship and therefore whether the CLO should be consolidated under IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”. The
subordinated notes of CLOs are the ranche thart is most exposed to the risk of portfolio assets failing to pay as they are the first to absorb
any losses. As a resuly, the Group’s consideration of exposure 1o variable returns focuses on its interest in equity tranche.
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The assets and liabilirics of the CLO are held wathin separate legal entities and, as a result, the liabilities of the CLO are non-recourse to the Group.
The consalidation of the CLO has a significant gross-up on the Group’s assets and liabitities, which is shown gross an the face of the Consolidared
Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as separate lines but has no net effect on the profit or loss, cash flows or
netassets. Details of the assets and liabilities are included in notes 16 and 17 and a non-statutory and unaudited Consolidared Statement of
Financial Position and Consalidated Statement of Cash Flaws excluding the consolidation of CLOs is included on pages 202 and 203.

The Group consclidates Bridgepoint CLO 1 DAC ("CLO 17) as the Group has exposure te variable returns as an investor in the
subordinated notes. The Group holds the majority of the subordinated notes in C1.O 1 and the Directors have thetefore conchuded that
the Gromip acrs as prineipal and shovld consalidare

Bridgepoint CLO 2 DAC (“CLO 2") is not consolidated in the financial statements of the Group at 31 December 2022 as the Group's
exposure to variable returns is only 5% of all debt and subordinared notes.

Ar 31 December 2021, Bridgepoint CLO 3 DAC (“CLO 3" was not consolidated in the financial statements of the Group and was oeated as an
associarte as the Group’s holding was 7% of all notes (which includes a 31% interest in the subordinated notes} as the Group did not have the greatest
exposure o the vanable renrms. On 8 June 2022, the Group acquired an addidonal 30% interest from another investor which inereased the Group's
interest in the subordinated notes to 61%. The Group's equity interest has decreased to 51% as at 31 December 2022. The subordimared notes are
the tranche that is most exposed to the nisk of portfolio assets failing to pay as they are the first to absorb any losses. As a result, the Directors have
therefore determined that the Group acts as principal and should consolidate in the fimancial statements as at 31 December 2022. The following table
provides an overview of the consideranion ransferred, and the recognised amounts of assets acquired and Fabilities assumed as of the acquisition date.

. £m
Consideration T
Cash paid on acquisition date 83
Total consideration transferred 83
Fair value of the Group's equity interest in CLO 3 held before the acquisition ) . 86
Toral _ ‘ _ 16,9
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Financial assers 3429
Financial habilities (315.2)
Total identifiable net assets atirihutable to subardinared notes 277
Attributable to third-party investors of CLO 3 o _ - (1G.8)
Total 16.9

The Group paid £8.3m (£9.6m) in cash on the acquisition date with no further consideranion due. The fair value of the identifiable ner
assets avquired approximates the fair value of consideration on the acquisition date, and as a result, no goodwill is recognised on the
acquisition,

Bridgepoint CLO 4 DAC (*CLO 47) is also consolidared in the financial statements of the Group as at 31 December 2022 as the Group
has a majority interest in its warehouse equity. The consolidation of CLO 4 began during 2022 and it remained consolidated at

21 December 2022 as 1t was still a warehousc ahead of its issuance in January 2023,

The Group designates the amounts auributable to the third-party investors as financial liabilities ar fair value through profit and loss.

Consolidation of Carried Interest Partnerships

As a fund manager to its private equity and credit funds, the Group participates in Carmied Interest Parmerships (*CIPs”), the participants of which
are the Group, certain Group employees and others connected to the underlying fund. These vehicles have nwo purposes: 1o facilitate payments of
carried mrerest from the fund to carried interest participants, and to facilitare individual co-investrment into the funds.

The Directors have undertaken a control assessment of each CIP in accordance with TFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” to
consider whether they should consolidare the CIP.

The Directars have considered the Jegal nature of the relationships berween the relevant fund, the CIPs and the CIP participants and
have determined thar the power w control the CIPs {which are entitled o the carried interest from the funds) ultimarely resides with the
fund investors and that the Group 1s therefore an agent and not a principal. This is because the purpaose and design of the CIPs and the
carry rights in the fund are determined art the outset by the fund’s limited partnership agreement (*LPA”) which requires investor
agreement and reflects investor expectations Lo incentivise individuals to enhance performance of the underlying fund.
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The Group does not primarily benefit as its principal revenue stream is management fees based on commitments or invested capital.
While the Group has some power over the Adjudication Committees of the CIPs, these powers are limited and represent the best
interests of all carried interest holders collectively and, hence, these are assessed 1o be on behalf of the fund investors.

The Directors have assessed the payments and the returns the carried interest holders make and receive from their investment in carried
mterest and have considered whether those carried interest holders wha are also employees of the Group were providing a service for
the benefir of the Group or the investors in the fund. The Directors have concluded that the carried interest represents a separate
relationship between the fund investors and the individual employces and that the carried interest represents an invesument requiring
the individuals to put their own capital at risk and that, after an initial vesting period, continued rights to returns from the investment are
not dictated by continuation of employment.

In addition, the Direcrors have also considered the variabiliy of returns for all CIPs thar currently have value under JFRS 15 "Revenue
from Contracts with Customers™ and in doing so have determined that the Group is exposed to limited variable returns in the range
5-26% with the main beneficiaries of the CIP variable returns being the other participants. The Directors concluded thar the CIPs are not
conrrolled by the Group and therefore should not be consolidared.

Where the Group has a share of 20% or more of the rights to the carnied interest, the Group is considered 1o have significant influence.
Accordingly, the BDC [11 carry scheme, where the Group holds an interest of 26%, 1s considered an assocrate. Detalls of the associate are
set out within note 27 {d).

Consolidation of employee share partnership

On listing, the founder employee shareholders created a separate ning-fenced vehicle, Burgundy Invesrments Holdings LP (the
“Burgundy Partnership”). The Burgundy Partnership is a pool of assets, which will comprise the Company’s shares and ather
investments. The shares were contributed by founder employee shareholders electing to donate a portion of their shares to the
partnership. This pool is ring-fenced for allocaring to furure partrers in the business, as a means of allowing them to build 2 meaningful
long-term shareholding in Bridgepoint and other investments and reflect the opportunities that previous partners were offered. The
existing employee sharehclders prier to listing, and certain new employee parmers, will wholly own the interest in the Burgundy
Partnership.

The Group does not have any direct economic interest in the Burgundy Parmership, and awards of new points to existing and furure
empleyees will be made by the Advisory Committee of the Burgundy Partnership, which is made up of some of the Jargest founder
employee shareholders.

The Directors have considered the requirements of IFRS 10 “Consclidated Financial Statements” to determine whether they should
consolidare the Burgundy Partnership. As the Greup does not meet all three criteria: 1) pawer over the investee, 2) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 3) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns, they
have concluded that the Burgundy Partnership should not be consolidared.

(b) Estimatcs

Recognition and measurement of carried interest revenue

Carried interest reveriue is only recognised ta the extent it is highly probable that there would not be a significant reversal of any
accumulated revenue recognised on the complerion of a fund.

In determining the amount of revenue to be recognised the Group is required to make assumptions and estimates when determining 1}
whether or not revenite should be recognised and 2) the uming and measurement of such amounts.

The Group bases its assessment on the best available information pertaining to the funds and the activiry of the underlying assets within
that fund. This includes the current fund valuation and internal forecasts on the expected timing and disposal of fund assets.

For private equity funds, the reversal risk is managed through the application of discounts of 30 to 50% to the fair values of unrealised
imvestments where the realised and unrealised valuation of a fund exceeds the relevant carried interest hurdle.

For credit funds, which are more sensitive to the performance of individual investments within the portfolio, only funds that have either
reached their hurdle or are expecred 1o do so imminently are modelled on the same basis.

"1'he discount applied for each fund depends on the specific circumstances of cach fund, taking into account diversity of assets, whether
there has been a recent marker correction (and whether this has been already factored into the valuation of the fund) and the expected
average remaining holding period. The levels of discounts applied are reassessed annually.

A sensttivity analysis on the impact of a change in the fair value of unrealised investments has been included in note 5.
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Valuatien of fund investments at fair value
Fund investments at fair value consist of investments in private equity and credit funds. The investments are fair valued using the net
asset value of each fund, determined by the fund manager. These funds are invested into direct and indirect equiry and debt investments.

Partfolio assets within each fund are stated at fair value as derermined in good faith by the fund manager in accordance with the terms of
the LPA of each fund and the International Private Tquity and Venture Capiral Valuation Guidelines (“IPEV™) and are reviewed and
approved by the relevant Bridgepoint Valuation Commirttee. The valuations provided by the fund manager typically reflect the fair value
of the Group's proportionate share of capital account balance of each investment as at the reporting date or the latest available date.

The market approach is typically used for the valuation ot the assets. '|'s comprises valuation techmques such as market comparable
companies and mulriple techniques. A market comparable approach uses quoted market prices or third-party quotes for similar
instruments 1o determine the fair value of a financial asser. A muliple approach van be used in the valuation of less liquid securities,
which rypically form the majority of assets within a privare equity or credit fund.

Comparable companies and multiple techniques assume that the valiation of unquoted direct investments can be assessed by comparing
performance measure multiples of similar quoted assets for which observable market prices are readily available. Comparable public
companies are selecred based on factors such as industry, size, stage of development and strategy. The most appropriate performance
measure for determining the valuartion of the relevant investment 1s selected {which may include KBITIDA, price/carnings racios for
earnings or price/book ratios for book values). Trading multiples for each comparable company identified are calculated by dividing the
value of the comparable company by the defined performance measure. The relevant trading multiples might be subject to adjustment
for general qualitauve differences such as quidity, growth rate or quality of customer base between the valued direct investment and the
group of comparable companies. The indicated fair value of the direct investment is determined by applying the relevant adjusted
trading muiniple ro the identified performance measure of the valued company. Where available, valuation techniques use markert-
observable assumptions and inputs. If such information s not available, inpurs may be derived by reference o similar assets and active
markets, from recent prices for comparable ransactions or from other observable market data. When measuring fair value, the manager
selects the non-market-observable inpurs to be used in its vatuation techniques based on a combination of historical experience,
deviation of input levels based upon similar investments with observable price levels and knowledge of current market conditions and
valuation approaches.

Within its valuation techniques the fund manager typically uses different unobservable input factors. Significant unobservable inputs
include EBITDA multiples (based on budget/forward-looking EBITDA or histarical EBITDA of the issuer and EBITDA muldiples of
comparable listed companies for an equivalent period), discount rates, price/earnings ratios and enterprise value/sales multples. 'The
fund manager alse considers the original transaction prices, recent transactions in the same or similar instruments and completed third
party transactions in comparable instruments and adjusts the model as deemed necessary.

The fund manager takes into account ESG related factors such as climate change into the valuation of investments and, to the extent
necessary, makes adjustments to earnings and multiples where demand or costs for a portfolio company coutd be impacrted.

Debrt instruments may be valued using the marker approach, independent loan pricing sources or at amortised cost, which requires the
determination of the effective interest rate from a number of inpurs, including an estimation of the expected matunty of each loan.

Due to the level of unobservable inputs within the determinarion of the valuation of individual assets within each fund, and no
observable price for each investment in a fund, fund investments at fair value are classified as level 3 financial assets under II'RS 13 “Fair
Value Measurement”.

Further detail on the valuation methodologies, inputs and the number of fund investments valued using each technique, along with a
sensitiviry analysis of the impact of a change in the fair value of fund investmenrts is included within note 19 (a).

Valuation of CLO assets and liabilities

‘The loan asset portfolios of the consolidated CLO vehicles are valued using independent loan pricing sources. 'I'o the extent that the
significant Inputs are observable, the Group categorises these investments as level 2. The valuanon methodclogy for the Group’s
investment in the various notes of CLOs 1s based upon discounted cash floww models with unobservable market data inputs, such as asset
coupons, constant annual default rates, prepayment rates, reinvestment rates, recovery rares and discount rares and they are therefore
considered level 3 financial assets. At 31 December 2021, the approach had been to use broker pricing for the equity investments,
classified as level 2 financtal assets. Notwithstanding, the Directors believe that the model-based valuation is more reflective of the
valuarion of the labilities and aligned with the objectives of the holdings of such assets.
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The debt and subordinared debr Liabilities of consclidated CLOs are valued in line with the fair value of the CLOs’ loan asset portfolios.
The CLO designated activiry vehicles which are consolidated are set up te distribute all proceeds generated from the assets of the CLO
toe the note holders of the CLO and thus the enuity iself does not generate any residual profit. The valuations of the consclidared
liabilities are therefore measured ac par and adjusted m order to match the value of the asset portflio, with any adjustment applied to the
note liabilities in order of ascending seniority. A sensitivity analysis has been inchuded within note 19 {f).

Measurement of deferred contingent consideration payable

Under the sale and purchase agreement for EQT Credit the Group has an obligation to settle an amount of deferred contingent
consideration on the completion of fundraising for Bridgepoint Direct Lending 117 (“BDL [117) and Bridgepoint Credit Opportunities IV
("BCO IV"). Fundraising for both funds continued during 2022 and is expected te complete in 2023, The amount payable has been
based upon management’s best estimate of each fundraising at 31 December 2022, which s consistent with approved budgets.

Measurement of intangible assets, useful lives and impairment
A custoraer relationship asset was recognised following the Group's acquisition of KQ'I' Credit in Ocrober 2020, to reflect the vahae of
current investor relationships to the Group in the future.

At the time of the acquisidon, the cost of the acquired customer relationship was measured at fair value by discounting estimared
contractual furure cash flows over a period in which the customer was expected to remain invested within the Group's funds. Key
assumptions in the model included forecast earnings for 2021 to 2025, a growth rate applied from 2025 onwards, which was based
upon the long-term operating plan for the business, an investor reinvestment rate from one fund to another and a pre-rax discount rate
of 10.5%, which was calculated by using comparable company informartion.

The usetul life of the intangible assets arising from this transaction has been determined as seven vears, which represents the period over
which the net present value of cash flowws {rom the acquired customer relationships reduce to nil.

The customer relationship asset is assessed for impairment when there are indicators of impairment. Such indicators would include
fundraising lower than targets. No impairment has been idenufied.

Goodwil] is assessed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate potental impairment
toss. Goodwill arose from the acquisitien of EQT Credit. It is the Group’s judgement that the lowest level of cash generating unic (“CGU”
used 1o determine impairment is the credit business segment for the purposes of monitoring and assessing goodiwill for impairment. In
performing the Impairment test, management prepares a calculation of the recoverable amount of the goodwill, using the value-in-use
approach and compares this to the carrying value. In order to validare this, a value-in-use forecast based on approved budgets has been
prepared by management to compare the forecast of the Credit business segment to the carrying amount of the goodwill. Key
assumptions in the forecast include forecast earnings for 2023 to 2027, including new fundraising, and a pre-tax discount rate of 15.0%
(2021: 10.7%), which was calculated by using comparahle company information.

A sensitiviey analysis of goodwill and the intangible asset has been included within note 14.

4 Operating segments
Operating segments are the components of the Group whose results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision
maker 1o make decisions about resources 1o be allocated to the segment and assess its performance.

The Execcurive Directors are considered to be the chief operating decision maker of the Group, which is divided into operaring segments
based on how key management reviews and evaluates the operation and perfarmance of the business.

The Group’s operations are divided into two groups, the Core business, consisting of the Private Equiry and Credir fund management
and associated Central support, and Other. Other includes the Group’s procurement consulting business, PEPCO Services LLP, and costs
relating to strategic projects.

The Group's core operations are divided into two business segments: Private Hquity and Credit. The aperations of both business
SCEMents consist of providing investment management services to the respective funds and thelr investors. The investment management
services comprise identification and strecturing of new investments, the menitoring of investments and the sale and exit from
investments. The two business segments are supported by the Central support functions which include investor relations, head office,
finance, human resources, I'T and marketing,

n 2022 certain investor related costs were reclassed to Central from Credit reflecting team restrucruring. The comparative periad was
not restared.
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Segmental statement of profit or loss analysis

Ll

The Executive Directors assess the operating segments based on the line items below, primarily on operaring income and aperating profit.

The EBITDA for sach segment (the segment result), rogether with depreciation and amortisation and net finance expensc, forms profit
befere tax. Depreciation, other income, other expenses and exceptional expenses are not allocated to operating segments and are

included in the Group total. Foreign exchange gains and losses are allocated to Central.

Group

Private Equity Credit Central Total Core Total Other Total Group
Year ended 31 Dc:rmng_OZl ) £m fm £m £im €m £m
Management and other fees 187.8 508 2.9 241.5 - 241.5
Carmied imrerest 24.2 - - 24.2 - 242
Fair value remeasurement of investments 32.1 8.6 - 40.7 - 40.7
Orher operaring income 0.2 - - 0.2 0.8 1.0
Total operating income 244.3 594 29 306.6 0.8 3074
Personnel expenses (67.6) (21.2) (35.9) (124.7} (1.1 (125.8)
Other operating expenses (16.2) (8.4) {(17.6) (42.2) (0.2) (42.4)
Foreign exchange - 0.7 04 1.1 - 1.1
Underlyving EBITDA {excluding exceptional cxpc11§cs) 160.5 30.5 (50.2) 140.8 {0.5) 140.3
Exceptional expenses (3.2)
EBITDA {including exceptional expenses) 1371
Depreciation and amortisation {18.3)
Orther income and expenses 8.6
Profit before tax 127.4
Group

Private Equity Credit Central Total Core Tatal Ocher Total Group
Year ended 31 December 2021 £m £tm Em B Em £m ) £ m_
Management and other fees 157.3 379 2.5 197.7 - 1977
Carried Interest 14.3 - - 4.3 - 14.2
Farr value remeasurement of investments 545 2.4 - 36.9 - 56.9
Other operating income 0.8 - - 0.8 0.9 1.7
Total operating income 226.9 40.3 2.5 269.7 0.9 2706
Personnel expenses (66.2) (22.1) (32.0 (120.3) (1.1 (121.4)
Orther operating ¢xpenses (13.3) 9.1) {(13.7) (36.1) (0.3} (36.4)
Foreign exchange - - 1.1 1.1 - 1.1
Underlying EBITDA (excluding exceptional expenses) 147 4 3.1 {42.1) 114.4 {0.5) 113.9
Exceprional expenses 28y
EBITDA tincluding exceptional expenses) 8§53
Depreciation and amortisaton (15.0}
Other mnceme and expenses (7.7}
Profit before tax 62.6

Geographical analysis and customer concentrations

The Group’s income from funds is earned from funds entirely domiciled within Europe. The Group's operating expenses are incurred in
the locations where the Group has offices, to identfy and suppart portfolio companies which is unconnected to the domicile of the fund
or the location of the fund investors. Therefore, the Group's operaring results cannot be analysed in a meaningful way by geography.

Na single fund investor constitutes more than 10% of assets under management.
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Assets and liabilities analysis

The Group’s Consolidated Staternent of Financial Position is managed as a single unit rather than by segment. The only distinction for
the business segments relates 1o the Group's mvestments in funds and the carnied interest receivable. which can be split between private
equiry and credit (spiit between attriburable to the Group and third-party imvestors).

31 December
2022 2021
- B £m £m
Investmenes: o
Privawe equity 241.3 2175
Credit (assets attriburable to the Group) 76.9 108.1
Credit (CLO assets attributable to third-parcy investors) . ~ 696.1 2745
Total inyestments 1,014.3 600.5
Carried interest recetvable:
Private equicy 394 36.4
Credit ~ 2.6 25
Total carried interest receir able B 42.0 389

5 Operatng income

Operating income primarily comprises management and other fees, carried interest income and investment profits from the management
of and mvestment in private equity and credit fund parmerships.

Management and other fees
Management and other fees arc presented net of the profit or loss impact of the settlement of foreign exchange hedging used to limit the
volatility of foreign exchange on fecs camed in curas.

Group
T 2022 021
. _ Em Em
Management and other fees before settdement of FX hedges 239.1 196.7
Settlement of FX hedges ) o o 2.4 1.0
Total management and other fees B 241.5 197.7

Carried interest

The amount of carried interest recognised in operating income and the carrying value of the related asset is sensitive to the fair value of
unrealised investment within each fund. The reversal risk in carried interest income, which 1s accounted for under IFRS 15 “Revenue
frem Contracts with Customers”, is managed through the applicaucn of discounts of 30 to 50% to the fair value of the fund investments
and the later recognition of carried interest relating to credit funds.

Tf the fair value of unrealised invesuments of each relevant fund had been higher/lower at cach year end, the impact on carried inrerest
Income in each year 15 shown in the table below.

- Group
2022 2021
Carried interest ingome: - - ) £m Em
10% lower value of unrealised assets (3.9 (4.2)
10% higher value of unrealised assets 5.4 5.4

Note 19 {a) includes a sensitivity analysis for co-investument valuavons and the impact on profit or loss.
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Fair value remeasurement of investments
Fair value remeasurement of invesrments consists of net changes in the fair value of the Group's investments in private equity and credic funds.

Fair value remeasurement of investments is presented net of the profit or loss impact of the remeasurement of foreign exchange hedging
used to limir the volatility of foreign exchange on investment income earned in euros.

Group o
2022 2021
T . —— o £m £m
Fair value remeasurement of investments before remeasurement of FX, hedges 47.0 538
Remeasurement of FX hedges o (6.3) 31
Fair value remeasurement of investuments o 40.7 36.

Fair value remeasurement of investments also includes the remeasurement of the fair value of investments in CLOs which are fully
consolidated by the Group. The CLO investment expense is the amount of investment income due to third-party note holders who have
invested in the CLOs which are fully consolidated by the Group.

_ _Grow 0
2022 2021
. fm Em
CLO investment income ' 149 30
CLO investment expense o 7 (13.0) (1.3
CLO investment income, net 1.9 1.7

The table above excludes the fair value remeasurement of sale and repurchase arrangements of the Group's interests in CLOs 2 and 3.
Further derails are set out in nate 17 (d).

Other operating income
Orther operating income includes fees and commissions receivable by the Group’s procurement consulting business, PEPCO Services LLP.

6 Personnel expenses

Aggregate personnel expenses (including Directors’ remuneration) in each year were as follows:

Group )

2022 2021

Em £m

Wages and bonuscs 97.6 104.4
Social security costs 16.1 158
Pensions 2.0 19
Share-based payments 0.4 32
Orther emplovee expenses B 10.8 74
Total personnel expenses 126.9 13227

Total personnel expenses include £1.1m {2021: £11.3m) of exceptional expenses, and accordingly are excluded from the calculation of
undetlying profitability measures, See note 8 for further details,

a} Pensions
The Group operates a defined contriburion pension scheme for its Directors and employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
thase of the Group in an independently administered fund. 'The scheme is a non-conmiburtory scheme but does permit employec contriburtions.
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b) Share-based pavments
The toral charge to the Consolidared Sratement of Prafit or Loss for the year was £0.4m (2021: £3.2m} and this was credited to the
share-based payments reserve in equity. Details of the different types of awards making up the charge are set our below.

No other share-based payment awards were made during the vear ended 31 December 2022

Group and Company
A3 Share Award __ PO Share Award A3 Share Award (£ per share) [PO Share Award (E per share}
{Restated) (Restaced}
2022 2021 2022 _2o21 2022 2021 2022 . ozozle
Opening 602,000 - - - 3.96 - 3.50 -
Share reorganisation/granted - 612,000 - 870,090 - 356 - 350
Vested (60,200) - - (837230 396 3.96 - 3.50
Forfeited (12,825) (10,000) - (32,860 3.96 3.96 - 3.50
Questanding ac vear end 528,975 602,000 — — 3.96 3.596 - -
* Share-based paymenis in 2021 huve been restated to reflect the vesung o2 [PO awards as at 31 Decernber 20270, There s no impact on the Consolidated Statement of Proticar Loss

and the Consolidated Statemem of Finanaal Posinon.

) Other employvee expenses
Other employee expenses include insarance, healtheare, raining and recruitment costs.

Staff numbers

The monthly average number of persons, including Directors, employed by the Group during the year split by geography was as follows:
Group S

2022 2021
) No. Nao.
UK 221 207
Other ] 145 133
Total 366 340

"The Company has four employees (2021: four).

7 Other operating expenses

Orher operating expenses include expenditure on IT, travel and legal and professional fees. Other operating expenses include fees paid to
the auditers for the audir of the Group and relevant subsidiary financial statements and other fees for other services. Kxpenditure relating
to low-value asset Teases are required to be disclosed separately and are set out below.

a) Auditor's remuncration
During the year, the Company and the Group received the following services from its external auditor, Mazars LLP ("Mazars”). The wble
below sets out fees earned by Mazars in relation to the year ended 31 December 2022

Group
2022 2021
Em £m
Audit fees o
Fees payable 1o the external auditor for the audit of the Company and the consclidated financial statements 0.5 0.4
Fees payable to the exrernal auditor for the audit of the accounts of the Company’s consolidared subsidiaries 0.9 _ 08
Total audic fres B _ , 1.4 2
Non-audit fees
Audit-related assurance services o 0.2 0.1
Total non-audit fees ) 0.2 0.1
Total auditor’s remuncration 1.6 1.3
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b} Low-value asset leases

Group
2022 C 2om
o £m £m
Expense relating to Tow-value asset leases
- Low-value asset lcases 0.3 0.2

8 Exceptional items

Excepuional items are material items of incame or expendirture that are not considered to be incurred in the normal course of business
and withour disclosure could distort an understanding of the financial statements. Accordingly, exceptional items are excluded from the
calculation of underlying profirabiliry measures.

Exceptivnal items in the year ended 31 Decernber 2022 principally relate to costs associated with the Group's acquisition of EQT Credit
and costs incurred in reladon o potental acquisitions. Exceptional other income relates to the remeasurement and revaluarion of a
deferred consideranon payable.

Group
2022 2021
. . £m £m
Personnel expenses {(1.1) {11.3)
Other operaring cxpenses o o 2.1) {17.3)
Total exceprional expenses within EBITDA (3.2} (28.6)
Other expenses _ -
Total exceptional cxpenses ) i (3.2) (28.6)
Group
2022 2021
_ _ &m £m
Orther income ] 13.6 3.8
Total exceptional income 13.6 38

a) Exceptional personnel expenses

In 2022, exceptional persannel expenses include deferred transaction related bonuses and associated social security costs from the
acquisinion of QT Credic in 2020 Specific bonus payments payable to employees in relation o the EQ'T acquisition are exceptional as
similar awards were only granted once. The awards incentivise employees to align their goals with the business’ goals through being
awarded over multple periods, hence such expenses will continue to be recognised untl 2025, 2027 exceprional persannel expenses
include transaction related bonuses from the acquisition of EQT Credit and PO related personnel costs.

b) Exceptional other operating expenses
In 2022, exceptional orther operating expenses include costs incurred in relation to porential acquisitions. 2021 exceprional other
operatng expenses include listing costs incurred during the TP0 and costs related ro potential acquisitions.

¢) Exceprional other income

Exceptional other income of £13.6m relates to remeasurement and revaluation of the deferred contingent consideration payable and
associated unwind of discount to EQT AR. The deferred consideration pavable to EQT AB was recognised upon acquisition and 1s
considered exceptional s no similar contractual labilities will be entered into with EQT AB by the Group. Due to the contractual
arrangement underlying the deferred consideration, which is a payable in a future accounting period, there will be exceptional items
related to the valuation in muluple periods.

2021 exceptional other income relates to remeasurement and revaluation of the deferred contingent consideration payable to EQT AB and
associated unwind of the discount and deferred proceeds receivable under the Investment Agreement with Dyal Capital Partmers TV (C) LP.
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9 Depreciation and amortisation

The following table summarises the depreciarion and amorrtisation charge during the year.

Group
2022 2021
o o E£m - £m
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 15.3 11.9
Amortisation of intangible assets o 30 31
‘Total depreciation and amortsation expense 18.3 150

The amaortisation of intangible assets is excluded from the calculation of underlying profitability measures in arder 1o distinguish from
underlying performance.

10 Other income and expenses

Group

2022 2021

7 B £m B B £m

Interest income on term deposits 23 0.4
Finance income on subleases 0.6 -
Other income ] 13.6 38

Total other income 18.5 4.2
Interest expense on bank overdrafts and borrowings (1.3} (3.1)
Interest expense on lease liabilitles (3.4) 2.8)
Other expenses 0.9) 0.4
Finance expense on amounts payable to related partv investors (2.3) {5.6)
Total other expenses ‘ (7.9 {119
Net other mcome/{expenses), including exceptional items 8.6 {7.7)

a) Ocher income

Other income in 2022 primarily relates to the remeasurement and revaluation of the deferred contingent consideration payable and
associated unwind of discount 1o EQT AB (see note 17 (b) for further details) of £13.6m. It is considered exceptional income, and
accordingly is excluded from the calculation of underlying profitability measures.

Other income in 2021 relates to the unwind of discounting on the deferred proceeds receivable from Dyal Parers TV (C} LD of £2.6m
and the remeasurement and revaluation of the deferred contingent consideration payable and associated unwind of discount to EQT AB

of £1.2m.

b} Other expenses
Orther expenses include borrowing faciliry fees which are being amorused over the term of the facihry of £0.9m (2021: £0.4m).

¢) Finance expense on amounts payable to related party investors
Finance expense on other financial ligbilities represents amounts due to related party investors in Opal Investments LP and BE V1
(French) Co-Invest LP under the limited partnership agreements. See note 17 (d) for further detail.
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11 Tax expense

(a) Tax expense
Tax charged in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss:

Group
2022 2021
£m £m

Current taxation B T
Current tax — current vear 34 2.8
Current tax — priot year 04 0.3
Total current tax expense ' - 38 31
Deferred taxation
Deferred tax - current year 4.7 2.8
Dcferred tax - prior year o B (1.7) (1.n
Toral deferred rax expense - o N 3.0 1.7
Tax expense o 6.8 4.8

(b} Reconciliation of tax cxpensc

The tax on profit before tax 1s different 1o rhe standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19.0% (2021: 19.0%) primanly due to
riming differences on taxation of management fee income, losses carried forward, a proportion of which are not recognised, and other
timing differences. In the Spring Budger 2021, the UK Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporarion tax rate will
increase 1o 25%. As the change had been substantively enacted at the balance sheer dare. these rates have been considered when
calculating the closing deferred tax balances at the reporting date.

Gruug -
2022 2021
o _ B £m £m
Profit before tax ' N 127.4 626
"I"ax on profit before taxartion at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19.0% (20:21: 19.0%) 24.2 11.9
Non-taxable and non-deductible items {23.7) (5.3)
Deferred tax adjustments regarding management fee income and investments 2.5 (13.9)
Capiral gains transferred - 3.1
Effect of tax rate changes - 53
Fffect of foreign tax rates 0.2 0.5
Deferred tax not recognised 5.0 4.0
Prior year adjustment (1.4) (0.8)
Total tax expense for the year - 7 6.8 4.8

(c) Tax on amounts recognised directly in other comprehensive income
Tax on amounts recognised in other comprehensive income relate to deferred tax timing differences on foreign exchange forward
contracts used for hedging purposes.

2022 2021
Em £m
Tax on amounts recognised 1n other comprehensive income 3.3 (2.1

(d) Tax losses not recognised
The Group has carrled forward losses of £498.8m (2021: £452.0m) as at 31 December 2022 which have not been recognised duc to the
uncertainty of future taxable profits against which the asset can be unlised.

The Group has an asset of £33.4m (2021: £25.0m) and the Company an asset of £0.4m (2021: €1.1m) that have been recognised
where there is an expectation that the tax losses can be utilised against future profits. See note 21 for further detail on deferred rax
assets recognised.
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12 Earnings per share

) ~ 2022 2021
Profit atuibutable to equity holders of the Company (€ m) 120.6 578
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for purposes of basic and diluted EPS (m) 823.3 356.0
Basic and dilured carnings per share (£) 0.15 01e

The adjusted earnings per share on underlying profit after tax of £113.1m (2021: £85.7m) based on the weighted average number of
shares at 31 December 202215 £0.14 (2021: £0.10 on underlying profit after tax of £85.7m based on the number of shares in 1ssue at
31 December 2021). The underlying profit after tax is calculated by excluding exceptional items and the amortisarion of intangible
assets from within profir after rax.

See note 22 for further dewails on the changes in the number of shares.

The number of ordinary shares included in the calculation of carnings per share excludes own shares held by the Group.

13 Property, plant and equipment

Group
Computers,
Right-of-uic Leasehold  furnitureand
assets  improvements other Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2022 77.4 15.2 10.8 103.4
Foreign exchange - 04 0.1 0.5
Additions 3.4 189 34 25.7
Disposals ) (7.7) 4.7 (3.8) (16.2)
Balance at 31 December 2022 ) 73.1 29.8 10.5 113.4
Accumulated depreaation ) ”
Balance at 1 January 2022 (14.2) (5.6) (7.8) (27.6)
Foreign exchange - (0.1) {0.1) 0.2)
Depreciation (10.6) 2.7) (2.0) {15.3)
Disposals 7.2 4.2 3.8 15.2
Balance at 31 December 2022 (17.6) (4.2) (6.1) (27.9)
Carrying valuc at 31 December 2022 ' 55.5 25.6 4.4 B5.5
- Group
Computers,
Right-of-use Leaschold furniture and
assers  improvements other Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2021 50.1 99 10.0 70.0
Foreign exchange - (0.2) (0.1) Q.3
Addinons 65.1 5.5 1.0 716
Disposals {37.8) - (0.1) (37.9)
Ralance at 31 December 2021 - 77.4 15.2 108 103.4
Accumulated depreciatio-r;
Balance at 1 January 2021 {(17.5) (4.3) {6.6) (28.4)
Forelgn exchange - 0.1 0.1 0.2
Depreciation (9.0) (1.4) (1.5) (11.9)
Disposals 12.3 - 02 12.5
Balance at 31 December 2021 ' _ (14.2) (5.6) (7.8) (27.6)
Carrying value at 31 December 2021 63.2 9.6 2.0 75.8

The Company has no plant, propercy or equipment at 31 December 2022 (2027 nil).
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14 Goodwill and intangible assets

Group
Goodwill Intangibles Toral
£m £m £m
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2022 ) 105.1 21.2 126.3
Balance at 31 December 2022 ) 105.1 21.2 126.3
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 January 2022 - 3.7 (3.7)
Amortisation o L - (3.0) (3.0)
Balance at 31 December 2022 S - 6.7) (6.7)
Carrving value -
Balance at 1 January 2022 105.1 17.5 122.6
Balance ar 31 December 2022 105.1 14.5 119.6
~ Group
Goodwill Intangibles Total
€1m £ m £m

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2021 105.1 21.2 126.3
Balance at 31 December 2021 N - 105 212 1263
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance ar 1 January 2021 - (0.6) (0.6)
Amertisation o ) - - 3.0 (3.1
Balance at 31 December 2021 - (3.7) (3.7
Carrying value h
Balance at 1 January 2021 ~ 1051 206 1257
Balance at 31 December 2021 1051 175 122.6

The goodwill arose following the acquisition of EQT Credit in 2020. All goodwill is attributable to the Credit operating segment.

Goodwill is required 1o be assessed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate potential
impairment loss. In petforming the impairment test, management prepares a calculation of the recoverable amount of the goodwill using
the value-in-use approach and compares this to the carrying value. The value-in-use is determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows generated from the continuing use of the Credit operating segment and is based on the following key assumprions:

- The cash flows arc projected based on the actual operating results and a five-year estimare from 2023 1o 2027 (2021: from 2022 to
2026). Cash flows for the time thereafter are taken into account by calculating a terminal value based on the discount facter applied by
the Group.

- Operating profits are based on management approved income, future fundraising, deployment of capiral and costs of the business,
taking into account growth plans for the Credit business as well as past experience.

A pre-tax discount rare of 15.0% (2021: 10.7%), which is based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital, is applied in
determining the recaverable amount.

Along-term growth rate of 4.1% (2021: 5.0%), which is based on an asscssment of the private debt industry rates of growth, and
management's experience, is applied to the terminal value.

As at 31 December 2022 significant headroom 1s noted, and therefore no impairment is identified (2021 nil). The Credit business
would need to fall shore of its projected profit margins by over 58.5% over the period 2023 to 2027 for the goodwill 1o be impaired.

The intangible asset represents a customer relatonship asset which also arose as part of the acquisition of EQT Credit.

The intangible asset was valued based on a number of assumptions. These include profit margins, size of funds, Tevel of reinvestment and
atrition 10 new funds and the discount rate applied to the projecuions.

The Compary has no goodwill or intangibles assets.
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15 Carried interest receivable

The carried interest receivable relates to revenue which has been recognised by the Group relating to its share of fund profits through its

holdings in CIPs.

Revenue is only recognised to the extent it is highly probable that the revenue recognised would not result in significant revenue reversal
of any accumulated revenue recognised on the completion of a fund. The reversal risk 1s mitigated through the application of discounts.

Tf adjustments to the carried mterest recetvable recognised in previous periods are required, they are adjusted through revenue.

A sensitivity analysis of the impact of 4 change in the value of unrealised fund assets is included within note 5.

As at 31 December 2022, the undiscounted carried interest asset is £68.3m (2021: £63.2m).

Group
2022 2021
e oo £m £m
Opening balance o 38.9 27.9
[ncome recognised in the year 231 15.2
Foreign exchange movements recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 1.1 (0.9}
Foreign exchange movements recognised in other comprehensive income 01 (0.2
Receipts of carried interest N {21.2) 3.1)
Closing balance ' 42.0 38.9

The Company has no carned interest receivable,

16 Financial assets

{a) Classification of financial assets

The following tables analyse the Group and Company’s assets in accordance with the caregories of financial instruments as defined in
IFRS 9 “Firancial Tnstruments”®. Assets which are not considered as financial assets, for example prepayments and lease receivables, are
also shown n the table in a separate column in order o reconcile to the face of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Group

Fair value Financial assets Assets which

through profit Hedging at amortised are not financial
or loss derivatives cost assets Total
As ar 31 December 2027 €m £m £m £m £m
l'air value of fund invesrments 273.0 - - - 273.0
Consolidated CLOY assets 726.3 - 15.0 - 741.3
Trade and cther receivables - - 181.6 23.2 204.8
Dervauve financial assets - 1.0 - - 1.0
Cash and cash equivalents - - 196.0 - 196.0
Term deposits with original marurities of more than three months - - 100.0 - 100.0
Consohidated CLO cash - - 24.6 - 24.6
Total 999.3 1.0 517.2 23.2 1,540.7

o Group )

Fair value Financial assets  Assets which are

through profit Hedging ar amartised not financial
or loss derivatives cost assefs Total
As at 31 December 2017 £m £m Em £m fm
Fair value of fund investments 3137 - - - 3137
Consolidated CLD assets 286.8 - - - 2860.8
‘I'rade and other receivables - - T6.4 28.7 1051
Derivative financial assets - 99 - - 99
Cash and cash equivalents - - 32341 - 3231
‘'erm deposits with original maturities of more than three months - - - - -
Caonsalidated CLO cash ) - - 4.2 - 4.2
Total 6005 9.9 403.7 28.7 1,042.8
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Company
Fair value Financial assets Assets which
through profit Hedging at atnortised are not financial
or loss derivatives cost assets Toral
Ay at 31 Deecember 2022 £m €m £m £m £m
Trade and other receivables - - 20.3 - 20.3
Cash and cash equivalenrs - - 114.0 - 114.0
Term deposits with original maniriues of more than three months - - 50.0 - 50.0
Total - - 184.3 - 1843
Company
Fair value Financial assets Assets which are
through prefic Hedging ar amortised not financial
or lass derivarives cost assets Total
Asat 31 December 2021 ) R 7 €m _Em Em _Em £m
Trade and other receivables - - 106.5 - 106.3
Cash and cash equivalents - - 139.0 - 159.0
Term deposits with original marurities of more than three months 7 - - - - L
Total - - 265.5 - 265.5

(b) Fair value of fund investments
Invesiments representing the Group’s interests in private equity and credit funds are ininally recognised at fair value and subsequently
remeasured at fair value through profit or loss within operating income.

"The investments primarily constst of loans or commitments made in relation to the Bridgepoint Eurepe VI,V and 1T, Bridgepornt
Development Capital 1V and U private equity funds, the Bridgepoint Credit I, Direct Lending I and 1), and Credit Opportunities IIT and
IV credit funds.

The fund investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss as the business mode! of each vehicle is 1o manage the assets and
to evaluate their performance on a fair value basis.

Group

2022 2021

. ) £m £m

Opening balance . 313.7 2359
Additons 385 927
Change in fair value 329 657
Foreign exchange movements recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 58 (8.6)
Forcign exchange movements recognised in ather comprehensive income 8.2 (6.1)
Disposals - o ) {126.1) 65.9)
Closing balance 273.0 3137

The Company has no investment in funds at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

{c) CLO assets

The balance shown includes the gross value of the assets held by CLO 1, CLO 3 and CLO 4 (2027: CLO 1), which are consolidated by
the Group, but of which the Group only holds the right and liabilities in relation to a small portion. "I'he CLO assets arc primarily
measured at fair value through profit or loss as the business model of each vehicle is to manage the assets and to evaluate their
performance on a fair value basis.

Group
2022 2021
e Em _ . Em
Consolidated CTA assets consolidated by the Group 741.3 286.8
Consolidared CLO assets atrributable to third-party investors _ ) (696.1) (274.5)
Group's exposurc to consolidated CLO assets 45.2 123

The Company has no investments in CLO assets at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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(d) Derivative financial assets

Group
2022 2021
B Em £m
Derivative financiat assers
Forward contracts 1.0 2.9

The derivative financial assets relate to forward contracts that are used to hedge foreign exchange risk. Further detail on the hedging
programme 13 set out in note 19 (b).

The Company has no derivative financial assets ar 31 December 2022 (2021: nilh.

{e) Trade and other reccivables

Group Company B

2023, (RESt;LEZdi)' 2022 (RQS[;EJEZG;)'
B £m ) £m £m £m

Non-current
Prepayments 1.6 - - -
Trade and other recelvables 7 18.3 16.9 - -

B ) 19.9 16.9 - -
Current

Trade receivables 12.2 16.0 - -
Accrued income 19.0 28 - -
Prepayments 6.2 5.5 - -
Deferred investment receipts 52.8 - - -
Other receivables 94.7 639 203 1065
' 7 7 o 184.9 88.2 20.3 106.5
Total trade and other receivables 204.8 1051 20.3 106.5

" Current prepayments and other recervables in 20271 have been restated to reflact a classification change There is no impact on the Group Consolidared Statemenr of Financial Posizion
There are no material differences between the above amounts for trade and other receivables and their fair value.

i) Other receivables

Orher receivables primarily relare to amounts to be invoiced to funds managed by the Group and their portfolio companies in relation to
costs incurred on their behalf, Such costs include deal and fundraising expenditure. Amounts receivable from the funds ar year end were
£49.7m (2021: £37.6m). Amounts receivable from portfolio companies of the funds at the end of the year were £2.7m (2021: £2 1m).

ii} Deferred investment receipts

This recervable relates to the sale of the Group's stake in Bridgepoint Credit IT “C” LP, which was previously held as an investment in an
assoctate and measured at fair value through profic or loss. The sale was completed in October 2022 with an initial payment of £52.8m
{(€£59 5m) which was received in February 2023 and a final payment in 2026 9f the final net asset value is ourside a pre-determined
range. The Group has determined that the possibility of the net asset value of the funid falling outside the range is highly unlikely,
therefore, no contingent consideration has been recogmsed.

ii1) Cost of acquisition

Current and non-current trade and other receivables also include the deferved cost of acquisition and consist of expenditure in excess of
the cap within the LPA and fees paid to placement agents. Such costs are capitalised as a non-current asset and amortised berween three
and five years. The movement in the capitalised costs of acquisition is set out in the following table.

Group N
2022 2021
) B - £m o £m
Opening balance 01 1.1
Addimons 3.6 -
Amortsation _ - 09 (00
Closing balance ' 2.8 0.1
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iv) Lease receivables

Non-current and current trade and other receivables include lease receivables on sublet office premises. Two of the subleases run until
the end of the related head lease and expire on 31 December 2027, The third sublease runs for 10 years and expires on 16 August 2031,
The undiscounted cash flows for these lease receivables during the vear ended 31 December 2022 were £1.4m (20271: £1.0m). The
finance income carmed on the subleases during the vear ended 31 December 2022 was £0.6m (2027: £0.4m).

The following table sets out the maruricy analysis of lease receivables, showing undiscounted lease payments to be received after the
reporting date.

Group
2022 2021
Lease recetvables ) £m £m
Due within 1 yvear ' - . 2.5 14
Duce between 1 and 2 years 25 25
Due between 2 and 3 years 2.5 25
Due berween 3 and 4 years 2.5 25
Due between 4 and 5 years 2.5 2.5
Due after more than 5 years 5.2 7.9
Total undiscounted lease pavments receivable B 17.7 19.3
Unearned finance income o {2.3) (3.1)
@ﬁvcstn}cnt in leases 3 ) 154 162
Current ) 2.0 0.8
Non-current ) ) 13.4 154
] 15.4 16.2
The Company has no lease receivables at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
(f) Cash and term deposits
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m tm £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand ' o 78.3 3231 14 1590
Money market funds 17.7 - 12.6 -
Term deposits with original marurities of less than three months 1000 - 100.0 ) -
Tortal cash and cash equivalents 196.0 3231 114.0 1590
Term deposits with original maturities of more than three months 100.0 - 50.0 -
Consolidated CLO cash ) 24.6 4.2 - -
Total cash and term deposits i 7 320.6 3273 164.0 1590

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly hiquid investments including term
deposits with original maturities of three meonths or less and maney market funds, which are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and are subject to an insigniﬁczmt risk of changes m value.

'erm deposits represent fixed term deposits placed with banks and financial insticutons.
Consolidated CLO cash 1s cash held by CLO vehicles consolidated by the Group and is not available for the Group’s operating activities.

There are no material differences between the carrying amounts and fair values of cash and cash equivalents, term depesits with original
maturities of more than three months and consolidared CLO cash.
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17 Financial liabilities

{a) Classification of financial liabilities

The following tables analyse the Group and Company’s financial habilities in accordance with the categories of financial instruments
defined in TFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. Liabilities such as deferred income, long-term employee benefits, soctal security and other
taxes arve excluded as they do not constiture a financial liability and are shown in the table in a separate column in order to reconcile
the face of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Group )

Liabilides

Fair value Financial  which are not

through profit Hedging Yabilicies at financial
orloss detivatives amortised cost liabilities Total
As a1 31 December 2022 o £m £m £m £m Em
‘I'Tade and other payables 16.7 - 518 60.6 129.1
Other financial liabilities 49.5 - - - 495
Lease hiabilities - - 83.2 - 83.2
Dertvanive financial liabilities - 13.2 - - 13.2
Consolidared CLO labilities 597.5 - 2.6 - 600.1
Consohdared CLO purchases awaiting settlement ) - - 120.6 - 120.6
Total financial liabilitics 663.7 13.2 258.2 60.6 995.7

Group

Fair value Financial Liabilities which

through profu Hedging Habiliries at  are nor financial
or loss derivatives  amortised cost liabilities Tuoral
As at 31 December 2021 ) £m £m - Em £m £m
Trade and other payables 30.3 - 350 64.4 1337
Orther financial liabilides 46.9 - - - 469
Lease Habikitics - - 84.8 - 84.8
Derivative financial habilives - - - - -
Consolidated CLO liabilities 2414 - 1.5 - 2429
Consolidared CLO purchases awaiting settlement - - 358 - 358
Total financial liabiliries 318.6 — 1611 644 5441

Company

Liabilities

Fair value Financial  which are not

through profic Hedging liabilities at financial
or loss derivatives  amortised cost liabilidies Total
As at 31 December 2022 Em £m Em £m £m
Trade and pther payables N - - 1.1 - 1.1
Total financial liabilities - - 1.1 — 1.1

Company

Fair value Financial Liabilities which

through profic Hedging liabilities at  are not financial
or loss derivatives  amortised cost liabilities Total
As at 31 December 2021 )  _Em £m £m £m Lm
Trade and other payables ) . ) - - 23.1 - 231
Total financial liabilities - - 23.1 - 231
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{b) Trade and other pavables

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
o ) £m £m £m £m
Amounts duc in more than one year:

Deferred contingent consideration payahle - 30.3 - -
Management incentive scheme 12.9 12.6 - -
Accrued expenses o 0.7 0.6 - -
13.6 43.5 - -

Amaounts due within one vear: a
Trade payables 1.3 8.0 - -
Deferred contingent consideration pavable 16.7 - - -
Accrued expenses and deferred income 77.7 70.2 1.1 29
Amaunts due to related parties 1.3 0.7 - 20.2
Social security and other taxes 28 2.7 - -
Grther payables 5.7 86 - -

) ) 115.5 90.2 1.1 231

Total trade and other payables 129.1 133.7 1.1 23.1

i} Deferred contingent consideration

‘The deferred contingent consideration 1s payable to EQT AB and relates to the outcome of certain fundraising for the Bridgepoint Direct
Lending I11 and Bridgepoint Credit Opportunities [V funds that falls within the definitions applying to deferred consideration in the
rransaction documents (this does not equate to total fundraising). These fundraises are expected to complete during 2023, T'he maximum
amount payable is £44.4m (£50.0m). At 31 December 2022, the Group remeasured the expected liability atr that point, which equated
10 £16.7m (2021: £30.3m), through the Consolidated Statement of Prefit or Loss. Further derails of the correspending income relating
to the re-measurement are included in note 8 {0).

Werc the total fundraising raised within the relevant definitions for both funds to increase by 45%, the maximum deferred consideration
would be mert,

At 31 December 2022, the deferred contingent consideration payable is classified as a current lability as it s expected to be settled
during 2023 (202 1: non-current liability).

1i) Management incentive scheme

In April 2021, a subsidiary campany, Bridgepoint Credit Holdings Limited, issued shares to certain employees of the Group as part of a
management incentive scheme. The shares are subject to a put and call option, whereby the participating employees have the option to
sell and the Group has the option to buy back the shares in the future based upon a pre-determined formula which considers the amount
of funds raised and the resulting management fees over a five-year period. The scheme has been accounted for as an other long-term
employment benefit under IAS 19 “Employment Benefits™ as it is not linked ro the value of the equiry of Bridgepoint Credit Holdings
Limited or equiry instruments of other Group members, but is based on the revenue generated by major funds managed by the Group.
As at 31 December 2022, the expense and corresponding liability has been based upon funds raised and expected management fees
which exceed the targers at that date.

iii) Accruals and deferred income
Accruals and deferred income include amounts that have been incurred, but not vet invoiced, employee bonuses and amounts that have
been received in relation to fund management activity for services that have not been provided, but are owed o the Bridgepoint funds.

iv) Other payables

Other payables include tax and other provisions.

There are no material differences between the above amounts for trade and other payables and their far value.
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(¢) Borrowings

On 19 October 2020, Bridgepoint Advisers Holdings, entered into a Revolving Facility Agreement for £125m for a period of three
years. At 31 December 2022 there were no drawn amounts on the facility (2021 nil drawnl. Loan arrangement fees of £1.25m have
been capitalised and are being amortised over the life of the facility. At 31 December 2022 the unamortised fees are £0.4m

(2021: £0.7m).

There are no material differences between the above amounts for berrowings held at amortised cost and their fair value.
The Company has no berrowings ar 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

(d) Other financial liabilities

Group

2022 2021
o o - o £m £m
Liabilities held at fair value through profitand loss
CLO repurchase agreements 281 28.1
Amount payable o refared party investors in Opal Investments I.P 10.0 9.5
Amount payable o related party investors In intermediate fund holding entities 11.4 9.3
Toual ' 49.5 46.9

1) CLO repurchase agreements

The Group has entered into an arrangement to sell and repurchase interests in CLOs 2 and 3. For CLO 2. the repurchase liability 1s
£12.5m (€14.9m) and will be repaid at face value as at the scheduled repurchase date of 15 April 2035, unless an earlier dare is agreed as
per the agreement. For CLO 3, the repurchase lability is £15.6m (£18.6m) and will be repaid ar face value as at the scheduled
repurchase date of 15 January 2036, unless an earlier date is agreed as per the agreement. The interest payable over the life of the
repurchase is equal to any distributions received by the relevant notes to which the repurchase agreement relares.

ii) Amounts payable to related party investors in Opal Investments LP

The Group has an investment in Opal Investments LP, which is an investor in the Bridgepoint Europe V Fund partnerships. Under the
limited partnership agreement, related party investors had the right ro receive up to 100% of the profits from the partnership unless the
Group exercised an option to trigger up to 85% of the profits of the partnership from the date of the exercise of the option. Hffecrive

31 December 2020, the oprion was excrcised therefore 85% of the accumulated profits from the partnership were allocated to the equiry
shareholders of the Company from non-controlling interests. 15% of the residual profits are classified as a financtal lability payable to
relared party invesrors. Due to the nature of this agreement, being a contractually agreed profit share to relared party investors, the
Group recognises their interest as a financial lability which is fair valued through profit and Toss at each reporting date.

iii) Amount payable to related party investors in intermediate fund holding entities

The Group consolidares a number of limited partnerships through which some of the Group’s investment in funds is held. The Group's
interest only consrirutes a portion of the total and therefore other financial Liabilities inchude the fair value of the amounts due to external
parties, who are related party investors, under the limited parinership agreement. Due to the nature of this agreement, beinga
contractually agreed profit share to related party investors, the Group recognises their interest as a financial liability which 1s fair valued
through profit and loss ar each reporting date.

"T'he Company has no other financial Kabilities at 31 December 2022 (202 1: nil).
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{e} Consolidated CLQ liabilities

Group
2022 2021
) £m £m
Liabilities of CLOs consolidated by the Group {(non-current) 5975 2414
Liabilities of CLOs consolidated by the Group (currenty ) o 2.6 1.5
Total 600.1 2429

Non-current CLO habilities are designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial habilities held ar fair value through profit or loss represent notes and loans issued by CLOs which are consolidated by and have
been originated by the Group. They are initially recognised and subsequently measured at fair value with gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value and interest paid on financial instruments recognised through investment income in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss.

The notes and loans issued by CLOs have rights to the assets of the respective CLO and there is no recourse to the Group.

{f) Consclidared CLO purchases awaiting settlement

Group
2022 2021
_ - o Em £Em
Consolidated C1.0) purchases awaiting scrtlement 1206 358

Amaounts payable for purchases of CLO assets awalting settlement are recogmsed ar the point at which the CLO has a conrracroal
obligation to exchange cash.

(g) Dertvative financial liabilities

Graup
2022 2021
£m £m
Deriv ative financial liahilicies:
lForward contracts 13.2 -

The derivanve financial liabilities relate to forward contracts thar are used to hedge foreign exchange risk. Further detail on the Group’s
hedging programme is ser out in note 19 (b).

The Company has no derivarive finaneial liabilides ar 31 December 2022 {202 1: nil).

(h) Commitments

The Group’s undrawn capiral commitments to the Bridgepoint funds at each period end are shawn in the table below. Capiral
commitments are called over time, 1ypically between one to five years following the subscription of the commitment. Capital
commitments are not a financial lHability, and the Group does not have an oblhigation te pay cash unrtil the capirtal is called. Commirments
may increase where distriburions made by the fund are recallable.

Group
2022 2021
o o e £rm £m
Private equiry funds 2553 1137
Credir funds ] . 34.4 285
Total commitments i 2897 142.2
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18 Lease liabilities

Group
2022 2021
o £m - £m
Lease liabitities
Current 6.1 4.0
Non-current 77.1 80.8
Taotal 83.2 848

The lease liabilities relate to rental payments in respect of the Group's rented offices. The lease contracts range from 5 to 10 years.

The lease liahility is initially measured at the net present value of future lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the leasc or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s IBR. Generally, the Group
uses its 1BR as the discount rate as the implicit rate is nart readily determimable for the rented office premises.

The lease contracts include either inflationary increases to the rent payable or periedic review of the rent payable. The liability has been
determined at each period end, based upon expected changes in the contractual rent pavable, as well as any planned exercise of any
break or early exit.

The determination of the lease term for each lease invoives the Group assessing any extension and termination options, the
enforceabthity of such options, and judging whether it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. A number of leases contain such
clauses. For each lease, a conclusion was reached on the overall likelihood of the option being exercised. The potential future cash
curflows relating to extension options not included in the measurement of lease liabilities approximate £1.6m (2021: £1.6m).

The lease liability is therefore sensitive to assumptions relating to the selecuion and application of the IBR and those relating 1o the
exercise or non-exercise of lease break clauses.

The Group periadically reassesses the lease term and this assessment is based on all relevant facts and circumstances. Should a change
occur, the Group modifies the lease liability and associated right of use asset to reflect the remaining expected cash flows.

The IBR has been determined by combining the relevant reference risk free rate for each currency, consideration of adjustments for
country specific risks and applying a financing spread observable to comparable campanies. In order 1o validate the reasonableness of the
IBR, it has been compared to the margin payable on the Group’s Revolving Credit Facility, and found to be comparable. If the IBR had
been 1% higher or lower, the impact on the lease Hability would be:

Group
2022 2021
: Em fm
Increase of 1% (3.0 {3.5)
Decrease of 1% 3.2 3.8

All lease liabilities have been modelled to the end of their non-cancellable lease term, or where expected to be exercised to the break
date. Thercfare, the lease exposure stated is the maximum exposire, Ignoring any extension oprions.

The lease payments are allocated between principal and finance expense. The finance expense is charged to the profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the Jiabiliry.

The Consolidated Statement of Profir or Loss includes the foilowing amounrs relating 1o the lease fiabilities:

Group
2022 2021
. . £m £.m
Interest on lease liability 3.4 2.8

The Company has no lease Habilities (2021: nil).
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19 Financial risk management

In its activities, the Group is exposed to various finandal risks: price/valuation risk, market risk (including exposure to interest rates and
forergn currencies), liquidity risk and credit risk arising from financial instruments. The Group’s semor management is responsible for the
creation and control of an overall risk management policy in the Group.

The Group Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is made up predominately of investments into private equity and credit funds,
consalidated CLO assers and liabilities, term deposits with original marurities of more than three months, cash and cash equivalents, lease
liabilities, CLO purchasc awaiting settlement and other financial liabilities. The assets of a private equity fund are controlling or minonity
stakes, typically in private conpariies, and thew debu The assets of credit funds and the consolhidared CLO vehicles are loans to private
companies. T'he financial risks relating to such investments are inherenty different, due to the nature of the investments as equity or
debr and recovery and returns from capital invested will depend upon the financial health and prospects of each underlying investee
entity. As part of their construction, each fund is constructed as a diversified portfolio of assets, diversified by the number of assets, their
industry and geography.

Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group and to set appropriate risk limits and
conrrols. Policies are reviewed on a regular basis to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which all employess understand thelr roles and obligations.

The Company Statement of Financial Position is made up predominantly of investments in subsidiaries, cash and cash equivalents, and
term deposits with original maturities of more than three months.

{a) Price and valuation risk

Price and valuation risk is the uncertainty about the difference between the reported value and the price that could be obrained on exit
or maturity of an asset or liability. This principally relates to investments in funds, which hold portfolios of private equity and debr
investments, the investments held by consolidared CLOs, and the notes issued by consolidated CLOs.

This uncertanty arises due to the use of unohservable inputs, such as EBITDA, in the calculaton of fair value, the performance and
financial health of portfolio companies, and ulumarely - as it relates to investments in private equity — what a third party may be willing
to pay for the business. There is less uncertainty for investments in debr as the upside is capped ta the maximum of the principal and
interest receipts, whereas private eqguity investments have greater potential for larger changes in their valuation as the upside is not

capped.

The Group monitors the performance of each investment closely. Partfelio manitoring is embedded and maintains focus throughour the
investment Life of each company. All investmenuts are formally reviewed through dedicated Portfolio Monitoring Committees. The
review process invalves a rigotous assessment of the company’s financial performance, financial health (including covenant coverage)
and exit prospects.

The Group values all investments in line with the IPEV Guidelines at least rwice a year, and in mast cases quarterly. Each investment
undergoes the same derailed valuation process, in accordance with the Group's valuation policies. Completed valuations are presented
and discussed at the relevant Bridgepoint valuation committee for approval.

The number of unigue investments that the Group indirectly invests into through its investments in private equity and credit funds is
mumerous and it s not practical to provide a summary of the principal inputs into cach investment. 'T'he rable below summarises the
wvaluation methodolcgies used to fair value investments in private equity and credit funds which are classified as level 3 financial assets.
Due to the level of unobservable inputs within the determination of the valuation of individual assets within each fund, and no
cbservable price for each investment in a fund, fund investments at fair value are classified as level 3. Whilst some assets held by the
funds may be classified as level 2 instruments, the Group does not consolidate the funds and treats the unit of account as the fund rather
than the individual asset.
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Fair value at  Fair value at Number of

Nature of asser/ 371 December 37 December unique Valuation
]iabilit)‘i 2022(Em) 2021 (Em)  investments me[hndl_ﬂugy _
Private 241.3 2179 68 Farmngs
equity fund
nvestments

Listed price

Description

Tnputs

Where a portfolio company
15 profitable and for which a
set of listed companies and
precedent transactions are
available. This is the most
commonly used private
equity valuation
methadology.

Earnings multiples are applied to the earmings
of each paortfolio company to determine the
enterpiise value. The most common measure
of earmings is EBITDA. Farmings are adjusted
for non-recurring items and run-rate
adjustments to arrtve at maintainable carmings.
Earnings are usually obtained from portfolio
company management accounts or forecast/
budgeted earnings, as considered appropriate.
When selecting earning multiples consideration
1s glven Lo
- The original transaction price/entry multiple;
- Recent transactions in the same or similar
instruments;
- Relevant comparable listed company
multiples;
- Exit expectations and other company
specific factors.
The resuleing enterprise value is then adjusted
to take into account the capital structure of the
pottfolin company, including any assets or
liabilities such as cash or debt that should be
inciuded. The fund’s share of the value is
calculated by calculating its holding.

At 31 December 2022, 97% (2021 97%) of
private equity fund investments were valued
using the earnings muluple approach.

Where a portfolio company
has instruments traded on a
recognised exchange the
traded price is used to value
the investment.

The traded price is applied to the number of
shares held by the fund in the porifolic
company. The value 1s then adjusted to take
Into account any assets or liabilities in holding
entities outside of the listed company.

Asat 37 December 2022, there were two listed
portfolio compames (3%) (202 1: 3%6) which
were priced using the prevailing share price.
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Fair value at  Fair value at Number of
31 December 31 Decemnber unigque
2022(Em)  2021(Em}  investments

Nature of asset/ Valuation

lability

methodology

Description

Inpurs

Credit funds 769 1081 126 Markert

price

Where a loan 1s traded
in the market, market
prices can be obtained
for use in pricing.

Market prices can be obrained from third-party
market price aggregation services or broker quotes
where there 1s an active market. 'The extent to how
active the market is depends upon the “depth’ of the
pricing, (being the number of distinct price
guotations available from different sources). Before
the use of market pricing, consideration is given to
identify anomalies or other inaccuracies m market
pricing or whether there are other factors that should
be considered, for example, recent transactions.
Asar 31 December 2022, 8% (2021: 8%) of the
Credit fund assets were priced using marker prices.

Earnings

Where a loan may be
impaired an earnings
basis 1s typically used
to determine the
enterprise value of the
borrower, following
which a waterfall
approach is used to
determine the value
of the loan.

Where there are circumstances which indicate there
is risk of non-performance of the borrower, the
enterprise valuc of the borrewer will typically be
determined in accordance with an earnings
methedology (as described above), following which a
warerfall approach is used to determine the value of
the loan. Asat 31 December 2022, 4% (202 1; 49)
of the Credit fund assets were priced using earnings
basis.

Amortising

1o par
method

Where a performing
loan that has been
onginarted 1s valued
based upon its
amortised cost.

Provided thart there are no circumstances which
indicate a material underperformance or inabiliry of
the borrower to pay interest or repay the principal,
the valuation of loans that have been originated 1s
determined by apportioning any arrangement fees,
stmilar fees or discount on a linear basis over the
anoapared holding period Gwhich is typically three
years). As at 31 December 2022, 80% (2021: 82%)
of the Credit fund assets were priced using the
amortising to par method.

Discounted
cash flows

Other 7

Where the Group
holds an interest in
the note of a C1LO, a
discounted cash flow
analysis 1s used to
determine the
valuation.

Inputs used in the discounted cash flow analysis
include discount rates and those used to project the
expected cash flows relating to the CLO's underlying
asset portfolio including annual Joan default rates and
associated recovery rates, prepayment rates,
reinvestment rates and spreads. As at 31 December
2022, 100% (2021: none) of the investments in
CLO notes werc priced using discounted cash flow
method.

(Oither valuation
techrmiques may be
unlised where the
above methodologies
are not deemed
appropriate.

Considering the broad array of debr instruments that
may be held by the funds, it may be deemed
appropriate for ather valuatuon techniques to be
utlised in certain cases. As at 31 December 2022,
8% (2021: 6%) of the Credit fund assets were priced
using other valuation techniques.
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Fair value at  Fair value at  Number of
Nature of asset/ 31 December 31 December unique Valuarion
liability 20224 IIL) _ 20;1 (‘;Vm) B nvesrments metl_mdnlog‘y B Descriprion B Inputs o B
Consolidated 681.1 2745 152 Market Where aloan is traded in the  Marker price aggregation services or broker
CLO assets price marker, market prices can be quotes where there 1s an active market. The
obtained for use in pricing.  extent to how active the market is depends
upon the ‘depth’ of the pricing, (being the
number of distinct price quetations available
from different sources). Before the use of
market pricing, consideration is given to
idenufy anomalies or other inaccuracies in
market pricing or whether there are other
factors that should be considered, for example,
recent transactions. As at 31 December 2022,
100% (202 1- 99%) of the CLC fund assets
N were priced using market prices,
Toral assets 999.3 600.5 —
Non- 597.5 2414 17 Nel asset Where the Group is required ‘The inputs to the valuation are the quotes
Invesrment value to consohdate the liabilities  obrained from Markit and Bloomberg of the
grade and of a CLO, a net asset CLO assets.
subordinated approach is used where the
debrt value of the llabihities is The cash, accrued interest and expenses are at
liabilities of driven by the value of the  their book value.
the consohdated loan asset
consolidared portfolio and any residual
CLOs cash, accrued interest and
cxpenses contained within
the vehicle. i o
Deferred 16.7 30.3 N/A Discounted Future consideration tobe  Inputs used in the calculation of the deferred
contingent cash flows  paid to EQT AB inrelation  consideration calculation include estimated
comsid- to the acquusition of EQT  cutcome of certain fundraising, minimum and
erarion Credit business and relates to maximum threshelds and payout ratic set out
the cutcome of fundraising  in the sales and purchase agreement and
- for certain funds. discount rate. )
CLO 281 28.1 N/A Discounted  Where the Group is subject  Tnpurs used in the discounted cash flow
repurchase cash flows  to asale and repurchase analysis include discount rates and forecast
agreements agreement relating to CLOs,  cash flows relating to the CLOs underlying
4 discounted cash flow asset portfoho including assumpuions for
analysis is used to determine  annual loan default rates and associated
the valuation recovery rales, prepayment rates,
reinvestment rates and spreads.
Other 21.4 18.8 N/A Other Where the Group entersa ~ N/A
financial limited partnership
liabilities agreement with related party
mvestors to contracrually
share profits from those
partnerships, other valuation
techniques may be unlised
where the above
methodaologies are not
_ deemed appropriate.
Total 663.7 318.6
liabiiities
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A reasonably possible change in the values of iInvestments at fair value through profit or loss is shown in the rable below. This is
modelled as 10% of privare equity fund investments and 1% of credit fund investments. As above, investments in private equity
inherently have greater potential for larger changes in their valuation as the upside is not capped. The downside is limited 1o the amount
invested in the funds. For credit investments, the upside is capped to the maximum of the principal and mterest receipts, the downside 15
limited to the amount invested in the funds, but due to the investment straregy of the fund, losses are expected to be very small.

The sensitivity analysis considers only the net impact on the Group from changes in the consolidated CLO portfolio, as the Group's
exposure o price nisk is imited to only its interest within the CLO and not the gross assets and labilities.

Group
2022 2021
£m £m
. ) /) =/
Fair value sensitivity:
10% private equity fund investments 24.1 209
1% credit fund investments 0.8 1.1

The Company has no significant exposure to price/valuation risk.

(b) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency (“FX”) risk 1s the sk of losses or other adverse effects resulting from a change in a foreign exchange rate, or from other
unfavourable changes in relation to a foreign currency. The Group is primarily exposed to two types of FX risk:

- Transaction risk: the adverse effecr thar foreign exchange rare flucruarions can have on a completed rransaction prior to settlement. Tt
is the exchange rate, or currency, risk associated specifically with the time delay berween entering into a trade or contract and then
sertling it. As the majoriry of the Group’s income is denominated in euro, this means that its income when recognised in sterling is
subject te exposure to foreign exchange rate movements over time.

Translanon risk: the risk of adverse changes in the rates at which assets, liabilities, income or costs in foreign currencics are translated
into the reporting currency. The Group holds assets denominated in currencies other than sterling, the presentational currency of the
Group. Censequently, the Group 1s exposed to currency risk since the value of investments denominated in ather cwrrencies will
fluctuate due to change in exchange rarte.

Hedging of EUR management fees

In order to hedge EUR denominated management fee income, the Group has entered into a series of forward trades and swap
agreements to sell EUR and buy GBP at various dates in the furure to reduce the currency exposure of EUR denominated income to
furure spor rare volarility. The level of hedging is determined with reference to the amount of sterling denominated costs and dividends.
The level of hedging provides for almost full coverage in 2023, and reducing in 2024 and 2025, which will be increased and extended
as part of the ongoing hedging strategy over time.

The nominal value of apen trades at the year end date to match certain expected furure cash flows is shown in the table below, along
with the aggregate mark-to-market of the year end dare.

Group
2022 2021
B £Em £m
Nominal value of forward trades in GBP 294.2 266.4
Mark-to-market value at vear end (9.6) 6.8

These hedges are in place to march known future cash flows, and the Group has decided to use cash flow hedge accounting as allowed
and determined under IFRS 9 “Financial Inscruments”. The effective portion of the gain or loss on these hedging instruments is
recognised in the other comprehensive income in cash flow hedge reserves while any meffective portion is recognised immediately in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss as gain or loss on cash flow hedges within operating expenses. When the hedge 1s settled all
gains or losses relating to the hedge are transferred to the Consolidated Starement of Profit or Loss.

The change in value that has been recognised as incffective in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, the amount of the effective
portion recognised within the cash flow hedge reserve and amounts released to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss during the
year are shown in the table below. There was no hedge ineffectiveness.
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Group
2022 2021
£m £m
Ineffective portion recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss - -
Effective portion recognised in other comprehensive income (10.5) 12.8
Reclassificd to the Consolidared Statement of Profic or .oss upon sctdement of hedges (5.9) (1.6)

Hedge ineffectiveness could occur if the amount of hedging is more than the amount of the EUR denominated income and timing
differences between receiprt of the income and scttlement of the hedge.

Hedging of investments in EUR

The Group’s primary exposure to assets and liabilities in foreign currencies 1s to investments in funds and carmied interest receivable,
which are predominantly held in EUR. n order to remave the risk of volatlity in the Group’s earnings on the translation of assets at each
year end, the Group has entered into a series of forward rrades and swap agreements to sell EUR and buy GBP at various dates in the
furure that march the expected date of receipts from the underlying funds.

These hedges are in place to match expected future cash flows, and the Group has decided to use hedge accounting as allowed and
determined under TFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. The hedged items fair value movement is recognised in full in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, hence all gains and losses on hedging instruments are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profic or
Lass directly. No hedging instnument gains or losses are taken directly to equity for investment hedges. The hedge ratic is tracked by
comparing the nominal value of cutstanding trades 1o the Group's total exposure to fund investments and loans denominated in a
foreign currency.

The Group's exposure to EUR investrnents and borrowings at each year end is summarised below, along with a sensioivity of the impact
of a 5% change 1n the FX rate. This analysis excludes the CLO assets, which are attributable to third-party investors.

Group

2022 2021

. £Em £m

HUR denominated investmoents (EFUR) 330.7 34777
Borrowings (EUR) - -
Investment hedges (EUR) (176.7) (180.0)
EUR dencminated investments, net {EUR) ' 154.0 167.7
+/- 5% sensitivity (GBP) impact on profit and net assets 6.8 7.0

The nominal value of open trades at the vear end dare is shown in the table below, along with the aggregate mark-to-market.

Group
2022 2021
o . o £m £m
Nomunal value of forward rrades in GBP 156.7 1597
Mark-to-market value ar year end (2.6) 31

The profit or loss on the revaluarion of the hedging instrument is recognised together with the investment rerurns in the Consolidared
Statement of Profit or Loss.

A change to FX rates will impact the fair value of derivative contracts, hewever an opposing movement will be seen in the hedged item.
"I'he Company has no significant exposure to foreign currency sk,

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantally independent of changes in market interest rates. The amounts drawn
under the Group’s revelving credit agreements, however, bear interest at a floating rate that could rise and increase the Group’s interest
cost and debt, although ar 31 December 2022 the Group had no outstanding borrewings (2021: nil).
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If intercst rates were to change by 1%, the Group’s finance expense applied on the borrowings at vear end would have increased or
(decreased) by the amounts set uut in the table below.

Group -
2022 2021
£m £m
{+/-} (+/-)

Increase or decrease of 1% - -

(d} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty is unable to meet their contractual obligations in full, when due. Potential areas of credit risk
consist of cash and cash equivalents, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, short-term receivables, investments in the
CLOs and derivative financial instruments. The Company and the Group have not experienced any significant defaults in prior periods.

Group exposure

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each counterparty. Expected credit losses are
calculared om all of the Group’s financial asscts that arc measured ar amortised cost. Iactors considered in determining whether a default
has raken place include how many davs past the due date a payment is, deterioranon in the credit quality of a counterparry, and
knowledge of specific events that could influence a counterparty’s ability to pav.

The Group’s expected credit losses are calculated using a three-stage model, which requires financial assets to be assessed as:

- Performing {stage 1) - Financial assets where there has been no significant increase in credit risk since original recognition

- Under-performing (stage 2} — Financial assets where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, but no defaule
Non-performing (stage 3) - Financial assets that are in default

The maximum exposure to credit tisk at the reporting date of these financial assets 1s their carrying amount.

Expecred credit Tosses are not expected to be material and there are no financial assets that are impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group limits its cxposure in relation to cash balances and derivative financial instruments by only dealing with well-established
financial institutions of high-quality credit standing. At cach period end, the Group's cash and cash cquivalents were held with banks thar
were investment grade credit quality (BEB or higher).

Term deposits with original maturities of more than three months

The Group’s term deposics represent fixed term (mare than three months) deposits placed with banks and financial institutions of
high-quality credit rating, At each period end, the Group's term deposits were held with banks that were investment grade credit qualicy
(BBB or higher).

Investments in CLOs

Ar 31 December 2022, the Group fully consolidated CLOs 1, 3 and 4 (2021: CL.O 13. "The Group's interests in CLOs 1 and 3 comprise
interests in subordinated nates which incur the first lass if there is any default within the portfolio of assets by an individual borrower.
The construction of CLO) 4 commenced during the year and remained in warehousing as a1 31 December 2022, As the Group held a
majority interest in the warehouse equity, the Group fully consolidates CLO 4.

Whilst the Group has entered into sale and repurchase agreements for CLO 2 and CLO 3, it remains contractually exposed to the
performance of CLO, however as the interest is held vertically across all notes of the CLO, the holdings are more diversified than the
Group’s interest in CLOs 1, 3 and 4. Under the sale and repurchase agreements, the Group is subject to credit risk with the counterparry
10 £29.7m (2021: £28.3mj, however is holding cash collateral of £29.7m (2021: £28.4mj, reducing the risk.

The Group is required to hold a 5% interest in such vehicles after they are launched under risk retention rules. Each CLO portfolio
tvpically invests in 70-100 individual Toans issued by private equity borrowers. The portfolios are highly diversified by geography,
industry and sponsor. The Group’s maximum exposure to loss associared with its interest in the CLOs is limited to the carrying amounts
of the notes held by the Group, which at 31 December 2022 was £60.3m (2021: £50.3m).

Investments in private equity and credit funds
The Group’s investmenrs in private equity and credit funds indirectly expose it to credit risk via loans to investee entities. The maximum
exposure to loss assoctated o funds is limited to the carrying value at 31 December 2022 which was £257.9m (2021: £266.4m).
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Trade and other receivables
The Group applies rhe simplified approach to caleulate expected credit losses for trade and other receivables. Under this approach,
instruments are not categorised into three stages and expected credit losses are calculated based on the Iife of the instrument.

Trade and other receivables are primarily amounts due from funds or amounts due from portfolio companies, which are collected by the
Group, for the benefir of the fund. The funds are managed by the Group on behalf of investors, who have made commitments to the
funds. Therefore. trade and other receivables with the funds are collateralised against unfunded investor commitments. These
commitments can Be drawn at any time, The Group therefore considers the prebability of default to e remote.

As alessor the Group has exposure 1o payments by lessees. The Group considers there to be a low nisk ot detault due to the quality
of the counterparty.

Carried interest receivable
The Group’s carried interest receivable represents income expected from CIPs. The Group considers there to be no risk of default on
these receivables on the basis that these amounts are due from the funds for reasons set out above (e.g investor commirments).

Company exposure

Potential areas of credir risk for the Company consist of cash and cash equivalents, including depesits with banks and financial institutions and
short-term recervables. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the vear end of these financial assets is their carrying value. The Company seeks
to reduce the credit risk relating to cash balances by only dealing with well-established financial institutions of high quality standing,

(e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obliganions associated with its financial
habilities that are scrtled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidicy is to ensure, as far as
possible, that 1t will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurting unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's repurtation.

Liquidity outlook is menitored at least monthly by management and regularly reviewed by the bourd of directors.

The timing of the Group’s management fee receipts and operating expenditure are predicrable. The timing, amount and profits from the
Group’s investments into and divestments from the funds are inherently less predictable, however a reasonable period of notice 15 given
to all investors, including the Group, ahead of drawing of funds.

The Group’s policy is ro maintain sufficient amounts of cash and cash equivalents to meet its commizments at a given date. 'The Group
has the use of a Revolving Credit Facility 1o assist in managing liquidity. Due to the long-term nawure of the Group’s assets, the Group
seeks to ensure that the maturity of its debt instruments is matched to free cash generaced from the business.

The Company has sufficient cash reserves to assist in managing liquidity. The risk is not considered to be marerial as the majority of the
balances are held with the Group companies.

The tables below summarise the Group and Company’s financial liabilities by the time frame they are contractually due ro be setled,
undiscounted and including interest payable. This also excludes liabilities which are not fimancial liabilides {(for example, deferred income).

Grou|
Due within =~ Due berween Due :ithin Due more than

1 year land2years  2and 5 years 5 years Total

Asat 31 December 2022 £m £m £m £m £m
Orher financial liabilites 214 - - 29.7 51.1
Derivative financial Habilities 52 4.8 3.2 - 13.2
Trade and other payables 51.8 - - - 51.8
Deferred contingent consideratien 16.7 - - - 16.7
Lease habilities 9.4 13.6 39.7 349 97.6
Consolidated C1.O labilities 84.5 48.3 397.2 249.5 779.5
Consolidated CLO purchases awaiting setdlement 120.6 - - ~ 120.6
309.6 66.7 440.1 314.1 1,130.5
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Group .

Duc within Due between Due within  Due more than
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years Total
Asat 31 December 2021 £m £m . Em £m o _Em
Oxher financial liabilites 18.8 - - 281 469
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - -
Trade and orher payvables 390 - - - 390
Deferred contingent consideration - 332 - - 33.2
|.casc habilities 7.2 59 38.8 471 102.0
Consolidated CT.0) Habilitics 1.5 - - 2414 2429
Consolidated CLO purchases awaiting settlement 358 - - - 358
102.3 421 38.8 316.6 4998

Company

Pue within Due between Due within  Due more than
Iyear land2years  2andS5years 5 years Total
As at 31 December 2022 £m £m £m £m £m
Trade and other pavables 1.1 - - — 1.1
1.1 ~ - - 1.1

Company

Due within Due berween Due within  Due more than
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and § years 5 years Total
As at 31 December 2021 . £m fm ‘E: m &m . Em
Trade and other payables 23.1 ) - - - 231
23.1 - — - 23.1

(f) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be recelved to sell an asser or paid to transfer z liability in an orderly transaction between markert
participants at the measurcment date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has access to
ar that dare. The fair value of a liability reflects fts non-performance risk.

The Group discloses fair values using the following fair value hicrarchy that reflects the significance of the inpurcs used in making the
measurements:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets (level 1);

Tnputs - other than quored prices included within level 1 - that are observable for assets or liabilities, cither directly (as prices) or
indirectly (derived fram prices) (level 2); and

- Inputs for assets or liabiliries that are not based on observable markert data (level 3).
Financial assets presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as investments in funds through profic or loss use inputs
based un unobservable market data and therefore classified as level 3 in the fair value hicrarchy. Further derails of the approach to the

valuation of investments are set out within note 3. There have not been any transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy during
the year.

The assets of the CLO vehicles, which are fully consolidated by the Group, are classified as level 2 fair values as they are priced using
independent loan pricing sources. These sources consolidare broker quetes where depth represents the number of quotes supporting the
price provided.

Derivatives used for hedging, which are fair valued, are classified as level 2 fair values as the inputs are observable.

Group
2022 2021
B - £m Em_

Financial assets at fair value through proﬁ-t-:)r loss:
Level 1 - _
[evel 2 727.3 296.7
Level 3 ~ N _ o R i 273.0 3137
Total 1,000.3 6104
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A reconciliation of level 3 fair values for financial assets which represent the Group's interest in private equity and credit funds,
including the Group’s investment in CLOs which are not consolidated, is set out in the table below:

Group
2022 2021
. _ ) _ . £m Em
Level 3 financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Opemng halance 313.7 2359
Addinons 385 92.7
Changen fair value 329 65.7
Fareign exchange movements recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 58 (8.6)
l'oreign exchange movements recognised in other comprehensive income 8.2 6.1}
isposals (126.1) {65.9)
Transfers (to)/from level 1 or 2 - -
Closing balance 273.0 3137

"The underlying assets in each fund consist of portfolios of investments in controlling or minority stakes, typically in private companies, and
their debr. Due ta the level of unobservable inputs within the determination of the valuation of individual assets within each fund, and no
observable price for each investment, such invesrments are classified as level 3 finandial assets under TFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”,

A sensinivity analysis of a change in the value of investments at fair value through profit or loss is set out in note 19 (a).

Group

2022 2021
£Em £m

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Level 1 _ _
Level 2 13.2 2132
Level 3 ~ ) 663.7 788
Total - B 676.9 292.0

The valuation methodology for valuing debt habilities and subordinated debt Habilities of the Group’s holdings in is based upon nternal
discounted cash flow models with unobservable market dara inpurs, such as asset coupons, constant annual default rates, prepayment
rates, reinvestment rates, recovery rates and discount rates and they are therefore considered level 3 financial liabilicies. At 31 December
2021, the approach had been to use broker pricing for the liabilides of the consolidated CLOs which were therefore classified as level 2
financial liabilities. Due to the change in valuation methodology for the consolidated CLO liabilities, £211.9m of financiai lizbilities have
been transferred from level 2 to level 3 in the fair value hierarchy during the period (2027: nil).

Financial liabilities classified as level 3 under the fair value hierarchy consist of the deferred contingent consideration, liabilities of CLOs
consolidated by the Group and other financial Rabilicies, which represent CLO repurchase agreements, and payables to related party
investors in Opal Investments 1P and other intermediare fund holding entities. The valuation of these habilities is based on unobservable
market data and they are therefore classified as level 3.

Group

2022 2021
. Em £m_
Level 3 financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Deterred contingent cansiderartion 16.7 303
Comsolidared CLO liabilities 5975 299
Other financial liahilities 49.5 188
Tortal 663.7 78.8

A reconailiation of level 3 fair values for CLO labilities ar fair value through profit or loss is set out in the table below.

A reconciliation is nat provided for the deferred contingent consideration on the basis that the movement benween 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021 relates to the remeasurement and revaluation of the payable and for other financial liabilities refer to note 17 (d).
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Group
2022 2021
. £m Em

Movement in CLO liabilities at fair value through profit or lass which are level 3:

Opening balance 29.7 37.8
On acquisition 2879 -
Repayment - (5.5)
Drawn 52.8 -
Foreign exchange movements 242 (2.2
Change in fair value (9.0) (0.4}
‘I'ransfers from level 1 or 2 L ) 211.9 -
Closing batance 597.5 29.7

A change in the value of the CLO habulities is included in the table below. A sensitivity analysis for the deferred contingent consideration
is included within note 17 (b).

Grnuln___
2022 2021
o Em £m
Increase or decrease of 1% 6.0 0.3

The Company does not hold any liabilities at fuir value at 37 December 2022 (2021: mil).

20 Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that the Company and its subsidiaries have sufficient capital both
now and in the future, having considered risks in the business and mitigants to those nisks, while managing returns to the Group’s
shareholders. The Group also manages its capital position to ensure compliance with capital requirements imposed by the Financial
Conduct Authority (“FCA”) and other regulatory authorities on individual regulared enriries.

The Investment Firms Prudential Regime (“IFPR”) for the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (“MiFID”) investment firms came into
effect from 1 January 2022. This regime applies to MiFID investment firms, collective portfolio management investment firms and
regulated and unregulated holding companics of groups that contain anc or mare of the aforementoned firms. Dunng the year, the Group
and certain regulated subsidiaries have reported to the FCA on own funds, the own funds requirement and a basic liquid asset requirement.

The capital structure comprises cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and the capital and reserves of the Company, comprising share
capital, share premium, capital contriburions, other reserves and retained earnings as set out below.

2022 2021

B 7 B £m Em

(ash and cash equivalents (for use within the Group) 196.0 3231
Term deposits with ariginal marurities of more than three months ) 100.0 -
Nert cash 296.0 3231
Share capiral 0.1 0.1
Share premium 289.8 289.8
Share-based payment reserve 36 32
Cash flow hedge reserve (8.9) 7.5
Net exchange differences reserve 14.4 31
Retained eamnings ) 473.7 412.6
Equity atributable 1o equity holders B 772.7 716.3

The Group's banking facilities are subject to financial covenants. Bridgepoint Advisers Holdings” Revolving Credit Agreement is subject to a
ratio of adjusted EBITDA to net finance charges and rano of total net debr to adjusted EBITDA on a rolling annual period.

During the year the Group was fully compliant with regulatory capitat requirements and banking covenants.
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21 Deferred tax

Group o

2022 2021

£m £m

Gross deferred tax assets B 579 478
Gross deferred tax liabilities ) (77.3) (67.5)
Towa (19.4) (19.7)

Orther timing Management Losses carried

Gross deferred wax assets differences fees hedges forward Tota)

Asat 1 January 2021 3.1 0.8 16.1 26.0
{Charge) to other comprehensive income - 0.8 - 0.8)

Credit to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 13.7 - 89 226

As at 31 December 2021 22.8 - 250 47.8

Credit to other comprehensive income - 2.0 - 2.0

{Charge)/credit to the Consclidated Sratement of Profit or Loss (0.3) - 8.4 8.1

Asat 31 December 2022 22.5 2.0 33.4 57.9

Management
Other timing Management fees income and Capiral

Grass deferred tax liabilities differences fees hedges investments allowance Total
As ar 11@”}' 2021 (10.6) - (31.3) - 419
(Charge) to ather comprehensive income - (1.3) - - (1.3)
(Charge) to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss {103 - (11.5) (2.5) (24.3)
As at 31 December 2021 ' (20.9) (1.3) (42.8) (2.5) (67.5)

Credit to other comprehensive income - 13 - - 1.3
Credit/(charge) to the Consolidated Statemnent of Profic or Loss 19 - (10.8) (2.2) (11.1)
As at 31 December 2022 ' (19.0) - (53.6) 4.7) (77.3)

Deferred tax liabilities primarily represent a future tax on the Group’s management fees income and a timing difference arising on the
remeasurement of the fair value of investments. They unwind as management fees become taxable and investments are realised.

Deferred tax assets primarily relate to tax losses carried forward, to the extent that they can be utilised under relevant tax legislation.

Other timing differences primarily relate to a deferred rax asset on lease Habilities of £20.8m (2021: £21.9m) and a deferred tax hability
on right-of-use assets amounting ta £13.9m {2021: £16.3m), these will unwind aver the period of the leasc.

The Company had a deferred tax asset of £0.4m (2021: £1.1m) which relates to tax losses carried forward.

The deferred tax has been measured using the applicable tax rate expected at the point at which the income or cost will become taxable.
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22  Equity
(a) Share capital and premium
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

Campany
2022 2021
L No. £ No. B
Ordinary of £0.00005 each o 823,268,774 41,163 823268774 41,163
Deferred of £81 each 500 40,500 500 40,500
Deferved of £1 each 1 1 1 1
Deferred of £0.01 each ) 1 0.01 1 0.01
Total 7 823,269,276 81,664 823,269,276 81664

Share capital represents the number of ordinary shares issued in Bridgepoint Group plc multiplied by their nominal value of £0.00005
cach. Share premium substantally represents the aggregate of all amounts that have ever been paid above nominal vatue to Bridgepoint
Group plc when it has 1ssued ordinary shares.

The holders of the ordinary shares have the right to receive notce of and to attend and vote at any general meeting of the Company. The
shares have one vote per share on a resolution.

Each ordinary sharc is eligible for ardinary course dividends and distributions on a liquidation, and is generally entitded 1o participate in a
retarn of capiral, in cach case subjecet to the provisions set out in the Articles of the Company.

Deferred shares have no rights other than the right to receive their nominal value in a liquidation after all other shares have received
£1.0m per share.

(b) Own shares

Own shares arc recorded by the Group when ordinary shares arc acquired by the Company and they are deducted from shareholders’
equity. The Company held 886,484 ordinary shares and 501 deferred shares (2021: 853,624 ordinary shares; 507 deferred shares)
within retained carnings as at 31 December 2022 at a cost of nil (2021: nil).

{c) Cash flow hedge reserve

Hedge reserves consist of the cash flow hedge reserve and the costs of hedging reserve, such as the change in fair value related to forward
points basis adjustment. The cash flow hedge reserve is used to recognise the effective pertion of gains or losses on foreign exchange
forward contracts that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, as described in note 19 (b). Amounts are subsequently either
rransferred to deferred income or reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Lass as appropriate.

(d) Net exchange differences reserve
Orther comprehensive income reparted in the net exchange differences reserve comprises the net foreign exchange gain/(loss) on the
translation of foreign operations.

(¢} Share-based pavment reserve
The share-based payment reserve relates to the accumulated expense from the recognition of equity-settled share-based payments to employees.

(f) Merger reserve
The merger reserve relates to the fair value of shares issued by the Company as part of the restructuring ahead of the Company’s TPO in
2027 at fair value.
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23 Dividends

The Company paid a final dividend of £30.0m in May 2022 to qualifying sharcholders, in respect of the second half of 2021, which
equates ta 3.0 pence per share. In 2021, a dividend of £30.0m was paid to eligible A1 and A2 ordinary shareholders on the day
immediately befure [PO, which equates 1o £2.61 per share.

Aninterim dividend of £32.8 million was paid to shareholders in September 2022, which equares o 4.0 pence per share.

The directors have annaunced a final dividend of 4.0 pence per share, to be paid in May 2023 to sharcholders on the register as at
28 April 2023, This equates to £33.0 million, subject to the share buyback programme (the “Share Buyback Programme”).

2022 o 2021
Ordinary dividends paid: £m Pence per share £m Pence per share
Interm 32.8 4.0 30.0 961.0
Proposed final dividend 33.0 4.0 300 36
24 Cash flow information
(a} Cash generated trom operations
Group . Company
(Restared) {Restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
- Em £m £m Em
Profit/(loss) before tax 127.4 62.6 2.9 (25.8)
Adjustments for:
Exceptional expenses 3.2 32 0.1 3.2
Share-based payments 04 2.9 - -
Profit on disposal of right-of-use asset 04 (0.6) - -
Depreciation and amortisadon expense 18.3 150 - -
Net other (income)/expense (8.6) 7.7 (1.7) -
Carried interest (24.2) (14.3) - -
Fair value remeasurement of investments (40.7) (56.9) - -
Net exchange (gams)/losses (1.1) (1.1 0.1 -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (46.4) (10.3) 86.9 (108.5)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and ather pavables 6.9 (2.1 (22.0) 236
Cash generated from operations 35.6 6.1 66.3 ¢107.5)
(b) Cash outflows from Icases
Group
2022 2021
£m £m
Financing ) ' 7.6 S6
Operating o ) 0.3 02
Cash gencerated from leases 7.9 2.8

The Company has no leases (2021: nil).
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{c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities

Group
Foreign
Net additions/ Fair value exchange 31 December
1 January 2022 Cash flows (disposals) movements movements 2022
o £m Em £m E€m £m £m
Borrowings - - - - - -
Fair value of consolidated CLQ Habilities 2414 - 340.7 (8.9) 24.3 5975
Lease habilines _ 84.8 (7.6) 6.0 - - 83.2
Total 326.2 (7.6) 346.7 (8.9) 24.3 680.7
Group 7
Foreign
Ner addirions/ Fair value exchange 31 December
1 January 2021 Cash flows (disposals) movementy movements 2021
L £m Em £m £m £m £ m
Borrowings 997 (9777 - - (2.0) -
Fair value of consalidared C1.0 labilities 256.6 - - 04 (15.6) 2414
Lease liabilities o 420 (9.6) 524 - - 848
Total 398.3 (107.3) 524 0.4 (17.6) 326.2

The Company has na barrowings or lease liabilities (2021: nil).

25 Related party transactions

(a) Key management compensation

The Executive Directors are considered to represent the key management of the Group. ‘The compensation paid or payable o the key
management {s set out in the table below.

Group
2022 2021
- B . . E£Em Lm
Salary, bonus and other benefits _ 1.6 5.0
Total 1.6 5.0

Further informarion on the remuneration of the directors can be found in the Remuneration Report on page 112.

(b) Directors’ emoluments
‘The dircctors of the Company since their appointment or the point of their resignation were remuncrated by the Group as set out below.
The aggregate value of remuneration expenses in relation to pensions and share based payments are less than £0.1m.

Group
2022 2021
o ) ; Em £m
Salary, bonus and other benefits ] ] 2.1 6.6
Toral 2.1 6.6

(c) Transactions with directors
On 31 March 2022, Adam Jones was granted a conditional share award of 71,428 shares at a value of £3.50 per share, with total value
£250,000, vesting on 31 March 2025,

In 2021, on the Company’s isting to the London Stock Exchange, 275,000 shares were issued to Archie Norman, 94,286 shares to
Angeles Garcia-Poveda, and 75,714 shares to each of Carolyn McCall and Tim Score for consideration of £3.50 per share.

On 7 une 2021, Adam Jones and William Jackson were granted 10,000 and 25,000 A3 shares respectively in the capital of the
Company for consideration of £1.50 per share.
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(d) Carried interest

Fund investors expect certain members of the Group's senior execulive management to invest in carried interest and co-investment in
the Group's third-parry funds to demonstrare alignment of interest, and as such the directors of the Company have made significant
personal commitments from their own resources to some of these third-party funds. The funds and CIPs (which arc entitled to the carry)
are not consolidated by the Group but are relared partics. 'The returns (in the form of invesrment income and capiral appreaiation} are
fully dependent on the performance of the relevant fund and its underlying investments.

The directors of the Company at 31 December 2022 have committed amounts from their personal resources across multiple funds
rotalling £15.6m (the direcrars at 31 December 2027: £11.8m).

(¢} Transactions with funds
The Bridgepoint funds are related parties of the Group. Amounts received as fees from and reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf
of the funds during the year are shown in the table below, along with the amounts receivable at year end.

Group
2022 2021
£m £m
Amounts recelved from funds o h 264.3 216.0
Amounts receivable from funds 49.7 39.6

26 Parent and ultumate controlling party

The Company is owned by a number of individual shareholders and companies, none of whom own more than 20% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Accordingly, there is no parent entity nor ultimate conuolling party.

27 Subsidiaries

The Group consists of the Company and entities controlled by the Company. This note sets out those subsidiary entities owned by the
Company and thar are consolidated, those which are nor, and those structured entitics which are consolidated in the financial statements.

Company
{Restated)
2022 2021
Em E,"?__
Balance as at 1 January 1,022.6 448.0
Increase in investment in subsidiary 0.4 574.6
At 31 December 1,023.0 1,022.6

The Group holds a direct interest in Bridgepoint Group Holdings Limited as at 31 December 2022 representung 100% (2021: 100%).
Tts registered office is referenced in the table below the st of subsidiaries.

(a} List of subsidiaries

Company's

praportion of

Country of’ ownership

Name of subsidiary B Ref incorparation ) Principal activity Share class interest
Bridgepoint Group Holdings Limited 1 UK Holding company Ordinary shares 100%

The table below shows derails of subsidiaries owned directly or indirectly by Bridgepoint Group Heldings Limited as at 31 December
2022 and its ownership interest in each entry. The registered office of each subsidiary 1s referenced to a table below the list of
subsidiaries. All subsidiaries operate in the countries where they are registered or incorporated and are stated at cost less, where
appropriate, provision for impairment.
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Name of subsidiary

101 Trivestmencs (1P Limited
Artlantde GP 1 Limited
Atlantic GP 2 Limited
Atlannc GP LLP

BRTPS GP Limired
BRTPS FP GP Limited
BBTPS Nominees Limited
BC 1T FP Limited

BC I FP SGP Limited

BC (GP 1 Limited

BC GP 2 Limited

BCII GPLLF
BCITGPLP

BCII ML Limired

RC MLP UK Limited

BC SMA Carry GP Sarl
BC SMA N Carry GPLLP
BC SMA 1T FP Limited

BCLO Credit Investments TSl

BCO I Carry GPLLP
BCO 1T Carry GP LLP
BCO IV Carry GP LLP
BCO TV FP Limited

BCO IV LORAC Limited
BCOIVSFPLP

BDC GPLP

BDC IHSGP) Limtred
BDC T HP GP Limited
BDCNGPIPR

BDC 11 Timited

BDC I Nominees Limited
BDC TGP 1 Limited
BDCTHGP 2 Limited
BDCIIGPLILP

BDC TN Limited

BDC 1T Nominees Limited
BDC I SFP GP Limirted
BDC TV Nominees Limited
BDC IV Limited

BDC IV GP 1 Limited
BDC TV GP 2 Limited
BDC TV MLP Limited
BDC IV GPLLP
BDCIVGPILP

BDC TV SFP GP Timited
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Ref

L S J ¥ S S U ORGP \F R U N

S I I S R e T T T S S G S 0 T U T N T NG T N [y A, T S T O [ e S

Country of

incorporation

UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
TK
LUK
UK
LK
UK
UK
Luxembourg
UK
UK
Luxembourg
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Company’s

proportion af

ownership

Principal activity _ Share class interest

General Partmer Ordinary shares 100%

General Partner Ordinary shares 100%

General Partner Ordinary shares 100%

General Partner N/A -

General Partmer Ordinary shares 100%

General Partner QOrdinary shares 100%

Nominee company Crdinary shares 100%
Dormant entity Ordimary shares 100%

Dormant entity Ordinary shares 10G%

General Partner Qrdinary shares 100%

General Parmer Crdimary shares 100%

General Partner N/A -

General Partner N/A -
Managing Limited Partmer Ordinary shares 100%
Managing limited Partner Ordinary shares 100%
General Partner Ordinary shares 100%

General Parmer NsA -

Founder Partner Ordinary shares 100%

CLO management company Ordinary shares 100%
General Partner N/A -

General Partner INFA -

General Partner N/A -

Founder Partner Ordinary shares 100%
Investment holding company  Ordinary shares 100%
General Partner N/A -

General Partner N/A -

General Partner Crdinary shares 100%

General Partner Ordinary shares 100%

General Partner N/A -

Limited Parmer Ordinary shares 100%

Nominee company Ordinary shares 100%
Genetal Partner Ordinary shares 100%

General Partmer Ordinary shares 100%

General Partner N/A -

Dormant entity Ordinary shares 100%

Nominee company Ordimary shares 100%
General Partmer Ordinary shares 100%

Neminee company Ordinary shares 100%
Dormant entity Ordinary shares 100%

General Parmer Ordinary shares 100%

General Partmer Ordinary shares 100%
Managimg Limited Partner Ordimary shares 100%
General Partner N/A -

General Partner N/A -

General Partmer Ordinary shares 100%
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Name of subsidiary

BDC Special 1 Limited
BDC Speaal 2 Limited
BDC Special GP LLP
BDCP 1T (Nominees) Limited
BRCPTIGP 1 Timired
BDCP TGP 2 Limited
BDCPNIGPILF
BDCPIIGPLP

BDCP IT Limited

BI2CP 11 MLP Linmred
BDCP T SFP GP Limited
BDIL. I Carry GPLLP
BDLIT Carry GPSarl
BDL I Carr}' GPLLP
BDL [T FP Limited

BDL T LORAC Limited
BEP IV (Nominees) Limited
BEP IV FP Limited

BEP IV FI? SGP Limited
BEP IV GP 2 Limited
BEPIV GPLLE
BEPIVGFPLP

BEP IV MLP Limited
BEY Germany GP Co Limited
BEV FP Limited

BEV GP LLP

BEV I'P SGP Limited
BEV GP 2 Limited

BEV GPC Limited

BEV MILP Limted

BEV Nominces Limited
BEV Nominees [T Limited
BE VI FFP Limited

BE VI FP SGP Limited
BE VI GP 2 Limired
BEVIGPLIP
BEVIGPLP

RE VI Limited

BE VI MLP Limited

BE VI Nominees Limited
BE VII GP 8CSp
BGIIGPLLP

BG T Nominees Limited

Bridgepoint AB
Bridgepoint Advantage Limited

_ Ref

S T e e O R O B S R e e A B S L I N R N BV T oS I O B o T SR e PG I oS I 8]

v

Country of
incorporation Principal activity Share class
UK General Partner Ordinary shares
UK General Partner Ordinary shares
UK (General Partner N/A
UK Nominee company Ordinary shares
LK General Partner Ordinary shares
UK General Partner Ordinary shares
UK General Partner N/A
UK General Partner N/A
UK Investment holding company Ordinary shares
UK Managing Limited Partner Ordinary shares
UK General Partner Ordinary shares
UK General Parmer N/A
Luxembourg General Partner Ordinary shares
UK General Partner N/A
UK Founder Partner Ordinary shares
UK Investment holding company  Ordinary shares
UK Nominee company Ordinary shares
UK Founder Partner Ordinary shares
LK Ceneral Partner Ordinary shares
LK General Partner Ordinary shares
UK General Parter N/A
UK General Parter N/A
UK Managing Limited Partner Ordinary shares
Guernsey General Parmer Ordinary shares
UK Founder Partner Ordinary shares
UK General Partmer N/A
UK General Partner Ordimary shares
Ux General Parmer Ordimary shares
UK General Parner  Ordinary shares
UK Managing Limited Partmer Ordinary shares
UK Nominee companty Ordimary shares
UK Nominee comparry Ordinary shares
UK Dormant entity Ordinary shares
UK General Parmer Ordinary shares
UK General Partner Ordinary shares
UK General Partner N/A
UK General Partner N/A
Guernsey Dormant entity Ordinary shares
UK Managing Limited Partner Ordinary shares
UK Nominee company Ordinary shares
Luxembourg General Partner N/A
LUK General Partner N/A
LK Nominee company Ordimary shares
Private cquity advisory
Sweden company Ordinary shares
UK Dormant entity Ordinary shares

Company’s

proportion of

ownership
interest

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%%
100%

100%

100%
100%
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Principal acnnt)

Share class

Company’s
proportion
of ownership
incerest

Country of’
Name of subsidiary Ref incorporation
Bridgepoint Advantage MLP Limired 1 UK
Bridgepoint Advantage FP Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Advantage FP> SGP Limited 2 LK
Bridgepoint Advantage GI? 2 Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Advantage GP LLP 2 UK
Bridgepoint Advantage GP LP 2 LUK
Bridgepomt Advantage Nominees Limited 1 UK
Bridgepomt Advisers Europe Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Advisers Group Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Advisers Holdings 1 UK
Bridgepoint Advisers T Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Advisers Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Advisers UK Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Capital (Doolittle) Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Capital (GP) Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Capital (Nommees) Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Capital Dircctorships Lirmited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Capital General Parter LP 2 UK
Bridgepoint Capital Group Limited
Employee Benefit Trust 1 UK
Bridgepoint Capiral Scottish GP Limited 2 UK
Bridgepoint Capital Scottish GP IT Limited 2 UK
Bridgepoint Capital Partners Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Capital Verwaltungs GmbH 6 Germany
Bridgepoint Charitable Trust 1 UK
Bridgepoint Credit AD GP Sarl 3 Luxembourg
Bridgepoint Credit Advisers Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Credit Advisers UK Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Credit BOCPIF GP Sarl 3 Luxembourg
Bridgepoint Credit Carry LP 2 UK
Bridgepoint Credit Carry GP LLP 2 UK
Bridgepoint Credit Co-Invest GP Sarl 3 luxembourg
Bridgepoint Credit Empire GF Sarl 3 lLuxembourg
Bridgepoint Credit Furope Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Credit France SAS 12 France
Bridgepoint Credit GP Verwaltangs GmbH 13 Germany
Bridgepoint Credit Holdings Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Credit Limited 1 UK
Bridgepuint Credit Management Timited” 1 UK
Bridgepoint Credic MSPD GP Sarl 3 Luxembourg
Bridgepoint Credit MPD GP Sarl. 3 Luxembourg
Bridgepoint Credit Nominees Limited 1 UK
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Managmg Limited Parmer

Dormant endity

General Partner

General Parter

General Parmer

General Parmer

Nominee company

Private equiry advisory company
Investment holding cormpany
Investment holding company

Private equity management company
Private equity management company
Privare equity management company
Dormant entity

General Partner

Nominee company

Dormant enoty

General Parmer

Emplovee Benefit Trust

General Partner

General Partner

Dermant enucy

(zeneral Parmer

Charitable Trust

(GGeneral Partner

Credit fund advisery company
Credit fund advisory company
General Partner

Investment holding company
General Parmer

General Partner

General Parmer

Credit fund advisory company
Credit fund management company
Gencral Parter

Investment holding company
Credit fund management company
Credit fund management company
General Partrer

General Partner

Nominee company

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

N/A

N/A
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordmary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

N/A

N/A
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

N/A
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

N/A

N/A
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary sharcs
Ordinary shares

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

49%
100%
100%
100%
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Name of subsidiary

Bridgepomt Credit Opportunities 1T GP Limited
Bridgepoint Credit Opportuniries I[ GP LP
Bridgepoint Credit Opporunities 11T GP
Lirmited

Bridgepotmt Credit Oppartunities [11 GP LP
Bridgepotnt Credit Opportunities [V G S
rl

Bridgepoint Credit Opportunities SICAV GP
Sarl

Bridgepoint Credit Partners Limited
Bnidgepoint Credit PPF GP Szl
Bridgepoint Credit Services Sar.l.
Bridgepoint Credit UK 1 imired

Birdgepoint Debe Funding Timited
Bridgepoint Debt Management Limited
Bridgepoint Debt Managers Limited
Bndgepoint Development Capital Limired

Bridgepoint Divect Lending [T GP Sarl.
Bridgepoint Direct Lending TGP Sarl
Bridgepoint Europe (5GP) Lid
Bridgepoint Europe T FP? (GP) Limited
Bridgepoint Europe 11T {GP) Limited
Bridgepoint Europe 1T GP LP

Bridgepoint Europe TV {Nominces) 1 Timited
Bridgepoint Europe IV {Nominees) Limited
Bridgepoint Europe TV FP (GP) 1imired
Bridgepoint Europe IV General Partner LP.
Bridgepoint Europe TV General Partner ‘F L.P.
Bridgepoint Europe lLimired

Bridgepoint Europe Managerial LLP
Bridgepoint Europe V Finance 1 Limited
Bridgepoint Europe VII (GP) S.arl.
Bridgepoint Europe V11 FP Limited
Bridgepoint Burope VI 1'P SGP Timited
Bridgepoint Europe VI GP 2 Limited
Bridgepomnt Europe VII GP LIP
Bridgepoint Furope VII Nominees Limited
Bridgepoint Europe VI MLP Limited
liridgepoint Finance Limied

Bridgepoint Fund Management S.ar.l.
Bridgepomt GmbH

Bridgepoint GPZ LLP

Re

RN

[

[SS ]

Country of
incorporation

Principal activity

UK
UK

UK
UK

Luxembourg

[ uxembourg
UK
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
Luxembourg
Taxembourg
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
Linzembourg
UK

UK

UK

LK

UK

UK

UK
Tuaxembourg
Germany

UK

General Partner
General Partmer

General Partner
General Partner

General Partner
(3eneral Partner

Dormant enory
(GGeneral Partner

Credit fund advisory company
Credit fund advisory company

Dormant enury
Dormant enury
Dormant entity
Dormant entity
General Partner
(General Partner
General Partner
General Partner
General Partner
General Partner
Nominee entity
Nominee entity
General Partner
Gieneral Partner
General Partner
Iimited Partner
Limited Partner
Dormant entity
General Partner
Founder Partner

Genera! Partner
General Partner

Nominee company
Managing l.imited Partner

Dormant enoicy

General Partner

Ordinary shares
N/A

Ordinary shares

N/A
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary sharcs
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordimary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordimary shares

N/A
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

N/A

N/A
Orrdmary shares

N/A
Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary sharcs

Ordinary shares

N/A
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary sharcs

Private equity management company Ordinary Shares
Private equity advisory company

Ordinary shares

N/A

Share class

Company's
proporion
of ownership
interest

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Country of
Name of subsidiary Ref incorparation
Bridgepoint Growth | GP LLP 1 UK
Bridgepoint Growth Timited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Growth Nominees Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Holdeo 1 Limited 1 UK
Bridgepomt Holdings Croup Linuted 1 UK
Bridgepoint Holdings Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Infrastructure Advisers Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoimt Infrastructure Development
Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Infrastructure Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint International Limied 1 UK
Brnidgepoint Investment Consultants
(Shanghai) Co Ltd 8 China
Bridgepoint Loan Fund GP Sarl 3 luxembourg
Bridgepoint Netherlands BV, 9 Netherlands
Bridgepoint Partners Limited 1 LK
Bridgepoint SAS 7 France
Bridgepoint Private Equity Group Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Private Equity Growth Fund
Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Private Equity Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Property Advisers Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Property Development Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Real Estate Advisers Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Real Estate Development
Limnited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Real Fstate Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Real Limited 1 UK
B3ridgepoint SA 10 Spain
Bridgepoint Services Sarl 3 Luxembourg
Bridgepaint $p Zoo 11 Poland
Bridgepoint Sp Yoo spk 11 Poland
Bridgepoint Structured Credit Limied 1 UK
Bndgepomnt US Holdeo Limited 1 UK
Bridgepoint Ventures Limited 1 UK
Bridgepaint, LLC 14 Umited Startes
Burgundy GP LLP 1 UK
Burgundy GP 2 Limited 1 UK
George'Town (Nominees) Tamited 1 UK
Horninghaven Limited 1 UK
Horningway Limited 1 UK
HPEIIGPLP 2 UK
HPE SGP Limited 2 UK
TORAC 5 imited 1 UK
LORAC 6 Limuted 1 UK
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Principal activicy

Share class

Company’s
proportion
of ownership
interest

(eneral Partner
Dormant enicy
Nominee company
Dormant enniry
Daormant entty
Dormant ennty
Dormant entity

Dormant entry
Dormant enury
Dormant enary

Private equity advisory company
General Partrner
Privare equity advisory company
Dormant enuty
Private equity advisory company
Dormant entty

Dormant entity
Dormant enoty
Dormant entty
Dormant enticy
Dormant entty

Dormant entity

Dormant ennry

Dormant enuity

Private cquity advisory company
Private equity advisory company
Private cquity advisory company
Private equity advisory company
Dormant entity

13ormant enuty

Dormant entity

Private equity advisory company
General Partner

General Partner

Dormant enury

Dormant entity

General Partner

General Partner

General Partmer

Investment holding company
Tnvestment holding company

N/A
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordimary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

N/A
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordimary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordimary shares

N/A
Ordinary shares
Ordmary shares
Ordinary shares

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
T00%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
T00%
100%
100%
100%
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Coampany’s

proporuon

Country of of ownership

Name of subsidiary o Rel incorporation Principal activity _Share class interest
LLORAC BC Co-Tnvestment Limited 1 UK Investment holding company Ordinary shares 100%
LORAC BCII Limited i UK Investment holding company Ordinary shares 100%
LORAC BDC T Limited 1 UK Investment holding company  Ordinary shares 100%
LORAC BDC TV Limited 1 UK Investment holding company  Ordinary shares 100%
TORAC BDC Timited 1 UK Tnvestment holding company  Ordinary shares 100%
LORAC BDCP 1T Limited 1 UK Investment holdimng company Ordinary shares 100%
LORAC BEP IV Limited 1 UK Invesument holding company Qrdinary shares 100%
LORAC BENT Co-imvestment Limited 1 UK Tnvestment holding company  Ordinary shares 100%
LORAC BG T Limited 1 UK Investment holding company Ordinary shares 100%
LORAC Carry BC SMAII Limited 1 UK Investment helding company Ordinary Shares 100%
LORAC Carry BCO TV Limited 1 UK Investment holding company Ordinary Shares 100%
LORAC Canry BDL 111 Limited 1 UK Investment holding company Ordinary Shares 100%
LORAC Eagle Limired 1 UK Investment holding company COrdinary shares 100%
LORACKITE Limited 1 UK Investment holding company Ordinary shares 100%
New HPETT GP LP 2 UK General Partner N/A -
Opal Investments LP 2 UK Investment holding partnership N/A -
PEPCO Services LLP 1 UK Collectve purchasing negotiator N/A -
Ruby Germany GP Limited 4 Guernscy General Partner Ordinary shares 100%
Ruby Investments (UK) Limired 1 UK Investment holding company Ordinary shares 100%
Sapphire Investments (Guernsey) Limited 4 Guernsey Tnvestment holding company  Ordimary shares 100%
Throttle Nominees Limited 1 UK Nominee company Ordinary shares 100%
Vigny Advisory 15 France Dormant enticy  Ordinary shares 100%
Vigny Participation 15 France Dormantentity Ordinary shares 100%
Vigmy Holding 15 France Dormant entity rdinary shares 100%

* The Group holds 49% of A Shares ard 100% of R skares As the (iroup has the power (o rorce 4 compulsory purchase of the A shaies and all the B shares have been bought by the
Group and all prefits and residuals accumulate to the B shares, the Graup has deemed 1o control «nd are consalidated withuin the financal statements

Ref Regisiered office .

i 5 Marble Arch, L.ondon, W1TT 7T0], United Kingdom

2 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh, EH3 9WI, Scotland, United Kingdom

3 6B Rue du Fort Niedergriinewald, Luxembourg, L-2226, Luxembourg

4 1 Royal Plaza, Royal Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY 1 2HL, Guernscy

5 Master Samuelsgatan 1, 5-111 44 Stockholm , Sweden

6 Neue Mainzer Strasse 28, 60311 I'rankfurt, Germany

7 21 Avenue Kleber, 75116, Paris, France

8 Unit 2103-05, ONE 1CC, No 999 Middle Huathai Road, Shanghai, Xuhui District, China

2 Amstelveenseweg 760, 1081JK, Amsterdam, Netherlands

10 Caile Rafacl Calvo, 39A-4° - 28010 Madrid , Spain

11 ul. Rondo ONZ 1, 00-124, Warsaw, Poland

12 21 rue La Pérouse, 75116, Paris, France

13 C/O Steigmaier Steuerberamungsgesellschaft mbH, Schleissheimer Str. 12, 85221, Dachau, Germany
4 Corperarion Service Company. 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington Newcastle DE 19808, United Srates
15 21 rue La Pérouse, 75017, Paris, France
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{b) Entities not consolidated
The table below shows endities that are indirect subsidiaries of the Company, but the Group does not have the power to direct activities
or rights to variable returns from the entity and they are therefore not consolidared in the financial information.

Country of Proportion of
Name of subsidiary: Ref incorporau'nn___ L Principaf activity Share class ownership interest
Bridgepoint PE CI Limirted 1 UK [nvestment holding company Ordinary shares 49.1%
Sapphire Fund IT South Limited 4 Guernsey Investment holding company Ordinary shares 25%
Sapphire Sub ITA Limited 4 Guernsey [nvestment holding company Ordinary shares 100%
Sapphire Sub 1T B Limited 4 Guernsey Investment holding company Ordinary shares 100%
Sapphire Sub [T A Limited 4 Guernsey [rvestment holding company Ordinary shares 100%
Sapphire Sub 1T B Limired 4 CGuernsey [nvestment holding company Ordinary shares 100%
Sapphire Sub 1T C Limited 4 CGuernsey [nvestment holding company Ordinary shares 100%
Sapphire Sub South Limited 4 {uernsey investment holding company Ordinary shares 25%

The profit or loss for the above entities for the vears ended 31 December 20271 and 2022 are not matenal.

) Consolidated structured cntities
The table below shows derails of strucrured entities that the Group has deemed o control and are consolidared within the financial
statements for the periods referenced.

Group’s
Country of proportion of
o . incorperation ownership interest R Narure of interest Periods consclidated
Name of qtru‘.turcd cntities:
BE VI (French} Co-Tnvest LP United Kingdom 8o.2% Limited partner All periads
Year ended 31
BDC TV (French) Co-Investment LP - United Kingdom 51.9% Limited partner December 2022
Bridgepoint CLO 1 DAC Treland 55%  Subordinated note in the residual class All periods
Year ended 37
Bridgepoint CI.O 3 DAC Treland 51%  Subordinated note in the residual class December 2022
Year ended 31
Bridgepoint CLG 4 DAC Ireland 50% Warehouse equity December 2022
Opal Investments LP United Kingdom 85.0% Timited partner All periods
Year ended 31
Maple Tree VI[ LP United Kingdom 21.7% Limited partner December 2022

* A coniro] assessment of Maple Tree VI1LE has heen performed m accordance with s accouniong policies ard concluded that the Group has power and exposure to vanabic renazns in
profic sharing, As a resull the Grouo consohdates the vehicdle Undes the limited partnership agreement, third-pany investors have the right o receive the higher ol 4 preforred reane and
mulople of drawn commitnents, along with a share ol'1esidual profits {rom the partnership As at 31 December 2022, no commitment had been diawn {tom the third-=party nvestors.

{d) Associates

Where the Group hold investments in funds or CIPs that give the Group s1gn1FL111t influence, but not control, through participation n
the financial and vperating policy decisions, the Group measures nvestments in associates at fair value through profit or loss.
Information about the Group’s associates measured at fair value 1s shown below. The investments are recorded as financial assets or
carried interest receivable within the Group Conschdated Statement of Financial Position.
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BDCIII SFP LP
The Group has an interest in a CIP which has a share of 26% of the rights to the carried interest from the BDC 11T fund parterships and
is therefore considered ro have significant influence. Where the Group holds an interest thar is greater than 20% the Group is considered
to have significant influence, but not contral. Accordingly, the BDC 11T carry scheme s considered an associare of the Group. Key
financial information 1s set out in the table below.

31 December

2022 2021

. N B £m £m

Catred muerest receit ghle 7 1364 136.3
Carried in[ere_s_[__Pz_l)_’_z_l_blc _ ) ) (136.2) __{136.3)
Nec assers 7 (0.2} -
Result for the year - -
Counuy of domicile UK UK
Group's interest in the associate 25.9% 25.9%

The partnership’s registered address is 50 Lothian Road, Edinburgh, EH3 9WI, UK.

BEPIV SFPLP

Within investments in funds, the Group has an investment that has an enttlement of 49.7% of the limited partner commitments of BEP
1V SFP LP, a parmership that is a co-investor into the BEP TV fund partnerships. The Group also has a 31.8% of the entitlement to the
founder partner comrmitments of the entity, which currently has no value. Where the Group holds an interest thar is greater than 20%
the Group is considered to have significant influence, but not control. Accordingly, BEP [V SFP 1P is considered to be an associate of the
Group. Key financial information abour the fund is set out in the table beiow.

31 December

2022 2021
] £m Em_
Investments at fair value 39.5 46.6
Orther assets 3.2 1.7
Total liabilities (2.1) (0.5)
Net assets h 40.6 478
Profit tor the yvear 0.7 58
Country of domicile UK UK
Group’s interest i the associare 49.7% 49 7%

The partmership’s registered address is 50 Lathian Road, Edinburgh, EH3 9W], UK.

BE VI Co-Investment (Feeder) Partnership LP
The Group has an invesrmenr thar has an enritlement of 45.6% of the limited partner commirments of BE VI Co-Investment (Feeder)
Partmership LP. Where the Group halds an interest that is greater than 20% the Group is considered to have significant influence, but
not control. Accordingly, BE VI Co-Tnvestment {I'ceder) Partnership LP is considered to be an associate of the Group. Key financial
information abour the fund is set out in the table below.

31 December

2022 2021
- _ £m o £m
Invesrments at fair value o ' 124 74
Other assets 1.5 2.0
Total habibries {0.1) 0.1
Net assers ) 13.8 9.3
Profit for the yvear 2.8 1.9
Country of domicile UK UK
Group’s interest in the associate 45.6% 52.6%

The partnership’s registered address is 50 Lothian Road, Edinburgh, EF3 9WJ], UK.
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Other associartes

Tn addition to the associares listed above, there are four other entities where the Group considers itself to have significant influence wich
ownership above 20% These are immarenial individually and in aggregate and have no balances or transacnons associated with them for
the years presented.

() Subsidiaries not audited
For the year ended 31 December 2022 the following UK subsidiaries were expected to be entitled 1o exemption from audic under
section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies:

101 Investments (GP) Limited  BDCITGP 2 Limited BDCP TGP 2 Limited " BEP IV GP 2 Limited

Atlantic GP 1 Limited BDRC IIT Limited BDCP IT MLP Limited BEP IV MLP Limited

Atlanuc GP LLP BDC IMT SFP GP Limited BDCF IT SFP GP Limited BEV FP SGP Limited

BRTPS I'P GP Limited BDC TV GP 2 Limited BE VI VP 5GP Limited Bridgepoint Furope TTT P (GP) Limited
BC GP 2 Limired BDC IV MLP Limited BE VI GP 2 Limited Bridgepoint Europe IV FP (GP) Limited
BC Tl FP SGP Limited BDC TV SFP GP Limited BE VII FP Limited Bridgepoint Europe Managerial LLP
BC 1T MLP Limited BDC Special 1 Limited BE VII FI° 5GP Limited Bridgepomt Growth I GP LLP

BOC I FP GF Limited BDC Special 2 Limited BE VI MLP Limited Burgundy GP LLP

BICTT Limited BIC Special GP LLP BEPTV 4P SGP 1 imited

28 Unconsolidated structured entities

A structured entity Is an entiry that has been designed so thar votimg or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who
controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of
contractual arrangements.

The Group has determined that where the Group holds an investment, loan, fee receivable, commirment with an investment fund or CIP
with a right ta carried interest, this represents an interest in a structured entity. Where the Group does ot hold an investment in the
structured entity, the Group has determined that the characteristics of control are not met. As set out in note 3 (a), CIPs that currently
have value are those where the Group is exposed to variable returns in the range of 5-25.9% with the main beneficiaries of the CIP being
the other participants,

The disclosure below includes CLO 2 for the year ended 31 December 2022, which is not consolidated, as explained in note 3 (a} (2021:
CLO 2 and CLO 3 were not consolidated).

The Group acts in accordance with pre-derermined parameters set out in various agreements and the decision-making authority is
well defined, including third-party rights in respect of the investment manager. The agreements include management fees cthart are
commensurate with the services provided and performance fee arrangements that arc industry standard. As such the Group is acting
as agent on behalf of these investors and therefore these entities are not consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.
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The Group's interest in and exposure to unconsolidated structured entities including ourstanding management fees is detailed in the
table below and recognised within rrade and other receivables in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The carried interest

receivable 1s included within the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Group
Value of the accrued Group
Group's Typical Net asset carried maximum
co- Group value of the Management Typical Group share interest  exposure to
investments commitment Total investor fundsat year feesreceived management of carried receivable loss at
atyearend tothe fundas commitments end by the Group fee range Carried interest rare interest  aryear end year end
o £m % E£bn £bn £m % % % £m £m
31 December
2022
Generally up to
Private equity 0.75w  20% of profits Upto
funds 2413 <2% 282 15.5 179.5 2.00% over threshold 35% 394 280.7
Generally up to
1.00 0 20% of profits Upto
Credit funds 76.9 <2% 4.9 2.8 50.8 1.75%  over threshold 35% 2.6 79.5
318.2 331 18.3 2303 42.0 360.2
31 December
2021
Generally up ro
Private equity 07510 20% of profits Upro
funds 2179 <2% 230 138 157.3 2.00% over threshold 35% 364 254.3
Generally up 1o
1.00t0 20% of profits Upto
Credit funds 1081 <2% 59 3.8 379 1.75% ovcer threshold 35% 25 110.6
326.0 28.9 17.6 1952 389 364.9

29  Events after the reporting period

On 24 January 2023, the Company announced an on-market Share Buyback Programme of up to £50.0m. The sole purpose of the
Share Buyback Programme is to reduce the Company's share capital. The Share Buyback Programme commenced on 24 January 2023
and s expected o be completed on or before 30 Seprember 2023, As at the date of the approval of the financial statements, in aggregate
3,270,273 ordinary shares have been acquired by the Company pursuant to the Share Buyback Programme and cancelled.

There have been no other material subsequent events since 31 December 2022,
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Non-statutory Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position, excluding CLOs

as at 31 December

(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
2022 2021
£m £m
Assers
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 85.5 758
Goodwill and intangible assets 119.6 122.6
Carried nterest receivable 42.0 389
Fair value of fund investments® 318.2 3260
Trade and other receivables 19.9 16.9
T'oral non-current assets 585.2 580.2
Current asscts
Trade and other receivables 184.9 #8.2
Denvauve financial assets 1.0 99
Cash and cash equivalents 196.0 3231
Term deposits with original maturivies of more than three months 100.0 =
Tortal current assers 481.9 4212
Toral assets 1,067.1 1,001.4
Liabilities o
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other pavables 13.6 435
Other financial liabiliues 49.5 469
Lease labilities 771 808
Delerred 1ax liabilities 19.4 197
Total non-current liabilities 159.6 1902
Current liabilities
Trade and other payablcs 115.5 20.2
Lease liabilities 6.1 4.0
Drerivaove financial habilities 13.2 -
Total current liabilities - 134.8 94.2
Total liabilities 2944 285.1
Net aswets 772.7 716.3
Equity
Share capital 0.1 01
Share premum 289.8 289.8
Share-based payment reserve 36 32
Cash flow hedge reserve (8.9) 7.5
Net exchange differences reserve 14.4 31
Retained earnings 473.7 412.6
Total equity 772.7 716.3

= The *ait valie of urd investmer:s indudes the Group’s swn expusures in consolidated CLOs 1,3 and 4 0 £45.2m (2021 £12.3m) as at 31 Decembe 2022,

This unaudited non-statutory consolidared statement of financial position applies all of the measurement and recognition requirements
of TI'RS and the accountng pelicies of the Group, except for the requirement o consalidate CLLOs. CLOs are presented as an investment

held at fair value in line with how they are managed by the Group, rather than being consolidated in accordance with IFRS 10
“Consolidated Financial Statements”.

202



Bridgepoint — 2022 Annual Report & Accounts

Other Information

Non-statutory Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows, excluding CLOs

for the year ended 31 December

Unaudited Unaudited
2022 2021
E€m £m
Cash flows from operarting activities -
Cash generated [rom operations 35.6 6.1
Tax paid (1.7 1.4)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 33.9 4.7
Cash flows trom inyesting activities o
Tovestment in term deposits with original maturities of more than three months (100.0) -
Receipts from investments 74.3 69.0
Purchase of investments (41.2) (86.9)
Interest received 3.3 10
Tnvestments in non-ceonsolidated CLOg (8.7) -
Cash acquired on conschdation of intermediate fund holding entitics 1.2 2.4
Payments for property, plant and equipment (22.6) (6.3)
Net cash flows from investing activicies (93.7) (20.8)
Cash flows from financing activities
Recerpt from non-controlling interest - 114.3
Proceeds from issue of shares by subsidiary - 47
Proceeds from issue of shares by the Company - 3051
PO costs (1.8) (18.0)
1Dividends paid o sharcholders of the Company (62.8) (30.0)
Drawings on banking facilities - 492
Repayment of banking facilities - (146.9)
Drawings from related party investors in intermediate fund holding entities 38 7.3
Principal elements of lease pavments 4.1) {(6.8)
Receipts from sale and repurchase of holdings in non-consalidated CLOs - 281
Interest pad 4.7) (5.2)_
Net cash lows from financing activites T (69.6) 3011
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equi\-'-a]cms (129.4) 285.0
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the vear 3231 423
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2.3 4.2)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year 196.0 3231

This unaudited non-statutory consolidared statement of cash flows applies all of the measurement and recognition requirements of TFRS
and the accounting policies of the Group, except for the requirement to consolidate CLOs. Consolidated CLO cash 1s not presented
the opening or closing cash positions in this statement and all cash flows relate to the non-CLO activities of the Greup.
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Other information

Shareholder information

Corporate website

The Company’s website at bridgepoint.eu contains various
information which may be useful to sharehelders, including the
current share price and press releases, It is pussible to sign up on
the website to receive email alerts for press releases.

Shareview

Equinin is the Company's share registrar, www.shareview.couk
is Equiniti’s free, self-service website where shareholders can
manage their interests online.

The website enables shareholders 1o
view share balances;

- change address details;

- view payment and rax information;

- update payment instructions; and

- update communication INstructions.

Sharcholders can register their email address at www.shareview.
co.uk to be notified electromically of events such as AGMs, and can
receive shareholder communicarions such as the Annual Report
and the Notice of Meeting online.

Enquiries and nortifications concerning dividends, share certificates
or transfers and address changes should be sent to the registrar.

Registered office and principal place of business

Bridgepoint Group plc
5 Marble Arch
London, W1H 7E].

Telephone: - 44 () 20 7034 3500

Registered in England and Wales
Company No. 11443592

Corporate brokers

J.P. Morgan Cazenove
25 Bank Srreet

Canary Wharf

Londen, E14 5]P.
Morgan Stanley

25 Cabort Square
Canary Wharf

London, E14 4QA.
BNP Paribas

10 Harewood Avenue
T.ondon, NW1 6 AA.

204

Auditor

Mazars LLP

30 Old Bailey
Tondon, LC4M 7AU.

Registrar
Equiniti Limited
Aspect House

Spencer Road
Lancing, West Sussex, BN99 6DA.

Telephone: 0371 384 2030 from UK
or +44 1271 415 7047 from overseas

Financial calendar

Ex-dividend date

Record date

Amnnual General Meeting
Payment date for dividend

27 April 2023
28 April 2023
18 May 2023
23 May 2023
25 July 2023

Half-year results
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Other information

Glossary

Annual Report

this annual report and accounts;

APM alternative performance measure;

Alitriclesr ) the Articles of Association of the Company;

zj\/l assets under management; -

7g<;rd the board of directors of the Company;
EE_E-AM N Building Research Estab]ishrmreﬁn[ Frvironmental Assessment Method;
BV CA -

Companies Act 2006

British Private Fquity & Venture Capital Association,

the UK Companies Act 2006, as amended from time to time;

Company

Bridgepoint Group plc;

Corporate Governance Code

the UK Corporate Governance Code published in July 2018 by the Financial Reporting Council,
as amended from tume to time;

EBITDA earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation;,
EPS earnings per sha%; 7

FCA the Financial Con:i;J“c( Authority;

FRE - fee related earnings;

Group or Bridgepoint

the Company and each of its direct and indirect subsidiaries;

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards:

PO the initial public offering of the Company’s ordinary shares;
KPI - key performance indicator;

PCAF N Partrership for Carbon Accounting Financials;

SE(;}_ ‘ Streamlined Energy and Carben Reporting;

SFDR ) ot

Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation;

subsidiary

has the meaning given to 1tin the Companies Act 2006;

TCFD Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures;
UN PRI United Nartions Principles for Responsible Investment; and
UN SDGs United Nations Sustainable Development Goals.
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